AQUATIC ECOLOGY SUBJECT INDEX (by Diana L. Walstad)

TABLE of CONTENTS

Al (Aluminum)	4
Algae	4
blue-green algae	5
Algal advantages over SAMS-	
Allelopathy	
Ammonia/Ammonium-	
Ammonium versus nitrate-	
Aquatic plants	
water chemistry and species variation:	
Artificial propagation-	
B (Boron)-	
Bacteria and Microbes	
Bicarbonate-	
Biofilms	
C (Carbon)	
Ca (Calcium)	
Chelators	
CO2	
CO2 Uptake Strategies-	
Cu (Copper)	
Decomposition and Metabolism-	
Denitrification-	
Diseases and Predators of Aquatic Plants-	
DOC and POC	
Ecology, natural interactions-	
Elements and size of earth's inhabitants-	
Energy transformations- (all numbers are per mole)	
Eutrophication	
Fe (Iron)	
Fish	
Fishfood	
Gases-	
Heterophylly and Emergent Growth-	67
Hormones, Plant	
Humus	
Invertebrates and Protozoa	
Artemia (Brine shrimp)	
Snails	77
K (Potassium)	
Lake rhythms	
daytime	
summertime	
Lake, River, Ocean and Aquarium Ecosystems	
Light, biological effects-	
Light Properties and Artificial Lighting	
Metal toxicity, fish-	

Metal toxicity, general-	
Metal toxicity, plants	
Mg (Magnesium)	
Micronutrient Nutrition-	
Mn (Manganese)	
Mo (Molybdenum)	90
N (Nitrogen)	90
Na (Sodium)	91
Nitrates	92
Nitrification	93
Nitrites	
Nutrient Cycling (Seasonal)	97
Nutrition-	
Oxygen	
P (phosphorus)	100
Photosynthesis (PS)	101
Pigments	
Plant Composition and Components	104
Redox of Sediment-	
Reproduction	
Roots	106
Root Oxygen Release (ROL)	107
S (Sulfur)	
H ₂ S	
Sediment	
decomposition-	
organic matter	
Soils, terrestrial-	
Peats and Potting Soils	
Theories and Evolution-	
Wastewater treatment	
Waterlogging, Effect on Plants	
Water Chemistry, General	
Zn (Zinc)	
ABBREVIATIONS	
REFERENCES	
A	
В	
B1	
Ū	
D	
 E	
F	
G	
I	
J	
Κ	
L	

M	
N	
0	
P	
R	
S	
S1	
Τ	
U & V	
W	
Y	
Z	

Note: Authors in bold lettering represent papers particularly dedicated to the subject. And a 'W' or 'WW' represents Wetzel's textbook edition and page number in the book. An 'N' represents Nester's textbook and page number (See 'Abbreviations')

AI (Aluminum)-

- alum is an aluminum potassium phosphate cpd used in wastewater tx (N787) flocculating and acidifying reagent (Boyd 95; Fort 95; **Hall 91**); will precipitate DOC (Thurman 85);
- chelation with humus (Russel 73; Urban 90) and citrate (Lacroix 93) reduces its toxicity (Wild 88; Lacroix 93)
- hydroxides of Al bind micronutrients (Donahue 83; Ponnamperuma 81); reduce Al toxicity to animals (Nieboer 80) and plants (Wild 88); and bind Cu in water reducing Cu toxicity (Pagenkopf 86)
- levels in lake waters (Bowen 97; Fraser 82; Lacroix 93; Urban 90); sediments (Bowen 79); and terrestrial plants (Davies 97)
- major component of soils (Bowen 79; Kawaguchi 77; Kyuma 89; Wild 88) and plant tissue (Lucas 93); enters the soil solution in acidic tropical soils (Davies 97)
- release into acidified lakes- Fraser 82; Lacroix 93; Urban 90
- resistance to Al toxicity by calcifuge plants (Foy 78; Rorison 60a, 60b, 84; Russel 73; Vickery 84; Wild 88) and those that release malate from their root tips (Huang 96); tolerance common in tropical terrestrial plants (Davies 97; Foy 78)
- soil Al responsible for exchange acidity and base unsaturation (Boyd 95); replaces the base cations of tropical soils (Vickery 84)
- solubility increases in soils below ~pH 5 (Ag. Ext.; Davies 97; Ponnamperuma 81; Ross 89; Russel 73; Wild 88) and in lakes with pH below 5 (Lacroix 93; Urban 90); insolubility decreases its toxicity to animals (Nieboer 80); 1,000 X more soluble at pH 5 than pH 6 (Boyd 95)
- stimulation of growth (Foy 78) in a calcifuge plant fed ammonium (**Rorison 85**)
- symptoms of toxicity in plants (Foy 78; Grise 86; Rorison 85) and on the gills of fish (Gundersen 94; Lacroix 93)
- toxicity to plants (Bowen 79: Donahue 83; Glass 89; Grise 86; Foy 78; Rorison 60a,b; Smits 92;
 W316; Wild 88); bacteria (Tsai 86); animals (Nieboer 80), and fish (Fort 95; Hall 91; Gundersen 94; Lacroix 93; Winner 92; Witters 90); a common problem in the tropics (Davies 97); nitrates enhance uptake and toxicity (Rorison 85)
 uptake by aquatic plants (Grise 86; Titus 90)

apane of aquare plane (once oo, if

Algae-

- air exposure of marine intertidal algae can increase PS (Johnson 74; Reiskind 89)
- algal blooms: Red Tides (Anderson 94); possible bacterial effects on (Azam 98); control by viruses (N326)

algicides- Aliotta 90; Frank T4(6); Greca 90, 92; Keating 77; Smart 85

allelopathy in (Dor 78; Gopal 93; Hay 88; Juttner 81; Keating 77, 78, 87; Proctor 59; Rice 84;

Rizvi 92; van Vierssen 85; W367; Wolfe 79); phytoplankton more vulnerable to allelochemicals than epiphytic algae (Hilt 08) *See also* 'Algae: toxins of' *and* 'Allelopathy'

ammonium preferred over nitrates- Guerrero 81; Kuenzler 86; Serra 90) phytoplankton preference and better growth with ammonium (**Trommer 20**

aquarium, typical algal flora-Fitzgerald 69

attachment preferred by 90% of algae (W561); holdfast of marine macroalgae (Cuny 95; Mann 73); holdfast of Chara absorbs P well (Forsberg 90)

bacteria stimulate attachment of algal spores onto their biofilm (Joint 02); bacteria consume algae

(Geesey 78); algal extracts stimulate bacterial growth (**Marsollier 04**); bacteria feed on diatom mucus (Azam 98)

balls of algae are Cladaphora species- Kasselmann 03

barley straw controls algae (Barrett 99) but not in USA (PC Tom Barr 09)

bicarbonate use common (Bowes 93; Holbrook 88; King 72; Prins 89; Raven 93; W529), unlike plants, 3 algal species had 38X better affinity for bicarb and 1.7X greater affinity for CO2 than 5 bicarbonate-using species of aquatic plants (Allen 81)

binding to sand grains- Meadows 66

bioassay- Brand 83; Fitzgerald 72; Goldman 72; Kuenzler 86; Linton 98; Martin 91; Sakaguchi 81

biofilm production by (Geesey 78); association with biofilm bacteria (Joint 02); colonization of macroalgae by mycobacterial biofilms (**Marsollier 04**)

black beard algae, a red algae, synergy with bacteria for Vit B12 (McDowell 17)

blue-green algae

adaptability of- Carmichael 94; King 72; W343
chelator, synthesis of own- Eichenberger 86; W313; Anderson 82 *See also* "Algae:siderophores...."
cytochrome changes with Fe and Cu availability- Raven 88
gas vacuoles- King 72; W358
heterocysts/N₂ fixation- N274; W225, 345; Wild 88
Mn, effect on species and selection- W313
mucilage production- W358
Na requirements- King 72; Wetzel 1972, W193; Wurtzbaugh 88
not palatable (Balls 89; King 72) and toxic to potential grazers (Keating 78)
nutrient requirments- Bowen 79
Prochlorococcus: ancestor of plant chloroplasts- Ash 02
secretion of diatom inhibitors- Keating 77, 78
tolerance of high temps and low CO2- King 72

toxins of (N276), kill predators (zooplankton, etc)- Carmichael 94; Gross 98

C content- W151

Ca uptake as a nutrient (Gerloff 75; Otsuki 74; W188) and in calcification (Reiskind 89)

carboxysome, cell body for storing high concentrations of RUBISCO- Bowes 93

CH storage by marine macroalgae- Mann 73

chelators produced by See 'siderophores'

- chlorophyll pigments, algal species, & light spectra- Elakovich 89; Reiskind 89; Richardson 83; W344; pigment flexibility (*See also* "Algae: chromatic adaptation" *and* "Pigments")
- chromatic adaptation (Bennet 73; Boston 89; Kirk 94; Lee 89; Rich 90; Richardson 83); some algae use green light for PS (Resikind 89); production of protective UV-absorbing pigments (e.g., mycosporine-like amino acids) is widespread in planktonic algae (Kaiser 97)

circadian rhythm of PS in Euglena- Lonergan 90

Co, beneficial element (Wild 88) that stimulates algal PS (Allen72; Goldman 72), but is not required by plants

CO2 uptake (Allen 81; Dodds 91; King 72; Morton 72; Otsuki 74; Sand-Jensen 91a); many marine species have very effective CCM (Bowes 93; Reiskind 89a); Rhodophyta can only use CO2

(Bowes 93; Reiskind 89); CO2 compensation points for 16 algal species (Birmingham 79)

communication between bacteria and algae via chemicals produced by bacteria- Joint 02

composition of algae: elemental (Fabregas 86; Tarifeno); DOC, proteins, etc (Marsollier 04); fatty acids (Proctor 59)

control in lab (Barko 81a, 86; Grise 86; Huebert 83; Smart 85; Titus 90); aquarium (Fitzgerald 69); ponds (Burton 78; Barrett 99); and in hydrophonic cultures (Kane 90)

critical concentration of nutrients- Gerloff 75

digestibility, 96% is biodegradable- Marsollier 04

ephiphytic (Moeller 88; Sand-Jensen 91; W571)-- attachment to SAMS and filamentous algae (Fitzgerald 69; Hough 75; Simpson 87; Underwood 91; W567); high productivity of (Adey 91; Borun 87; W555,580+); symbiosis with SAMS (Allen 71; Sand-Jensen 89; W534); P uptake from host SAM (Moeller 88; Wetzel 90)

extracellular enzymes secreted by- Kim 93; Gross 96; Wetzel 93

Fe uptake by- Anderson 82; Rich 90

fishfood, algae as component of-Fabregas 86

gluteraldehyde, toxicity to green alga, invertebrates and fish- Sano 05

heterotrophic augmentation- Mann 73

inhibition of SAMS (Balls 89; Borun 87; Ozimek 91; Roeloffs 84; Sand-Jensen 91; Simpson 86;

Szabo 98); by ephiphytic algae (Cuny 85; deVillele 95; Gopal 93)

light: light saturation of algae PS at low levels (Reiskind 89, 89b; Richardson 83; Riemer 84;

Thompson 89; W355; Wild 88); low compensation points (Sand-Jensen 91b); algal turfs are 'sun

plants' (Adey 87, 91; **Carpenter 85**); inhibition by UV (**Culotta 94; Richardson 83**); can lower the R/FR ratio by absorbing R light and trigger a shade signal to plants (**Mommer 06**)

- lignin, none in algae (Fries 74; Grisebach 81; Monties 89); digestibility, 96% is biodegradable-(Marsollier 04)
- marine macroalgae, including kelp forests, much more productive than phytoplankton (Boston 89;
 Mann 72, 73); readily available C allows them to do as well as terrestrials (Lee 89); parasitism of seagrasses (Cuny 95)
- marine phytoplankton, species of (Richardson 83); they account for 1/3 of global primary productivity (Bowes 93); rhodopsin photosynthetic pigments are common in marine phytoplankton (N226, 763)
- metal toxicity in- Borgmann 83; Eichenberger 86; Nieboer 80; Sposito 86; Winner 91
- motility (W396, 562) affected by allelochemicals- Stom 81
- N uptake by pond algae- Adey 98
- nutrient excretion- Brezonik 72; Mann 73; Sand-Jensen 91; W265,392+,407,503
- nutrient uptake (Falkowski 83; Gerloff 75; Kuenzler 86; Moeller 88; Nakajima 81; Prins 89; Tarifeno
- 82) within seconds (King 72); rate varies with species (Fabregas 86)
- nutritional requirements of marine algae have adapted to environment- Brand 83
- parasitism and grazing of (Mann 73; Saunders 72; Shapiro 90: Underwood 91; W376+);
 - consumption by Daphnia (**Saunders 72**; **Shapiro 90**) and bacteria (Geesey 78); UV light may stilmulate algae by kil +lling off grazers (Kaiser 97)
- periphytic algae use sediment as a nutrient source- Hansson 91; W567
- pH, lake acidification to pH 5 has no effect on growth- Kelly 84
- phytoplankton, low productivity of- Adey 87; Mann 73; W582+
- PS and C uptake- Bowes 93; W390
- respiration higher than SAMs, because there's more PS machinery to maintain- Sand-Jensen 91b seasonal succession of species- Keating 77, 78; King 72; W373+
- siderophores in blue-green algae as iron chelators (**Wilhelm 94**; Anderson 82); responsible for solubilizing iron in sediments (Ash 02)
- size (Anderson 82), surface area and uptake of nutrients (King 72; Kuenzler 86; W150, W401+); cell volume of (Thompson 89)
- spores persist for years (Anderson 94; Ash 02); attach preferentially to bacterial biofilms (Joint 02)
- temperature optimum varies with species (W376); seaweed growth even at 0° C (Mann 73)
- terrestrial soils, algae live on or just below the surface- Vickery 84
- translocation of nutrients by marine macroalgae- Mann 73
- toxins of-- cyanobacteria (Saito 89; Carmichael 94), marine algae (Hallegraeff 93; Harvell 99);
 - 'Red Tide' algae (**Anderson 94**), *Caulerepa* (deVillele 95), dinoflagellates (Barker 97); toxins inhibit gram positive bacteria (Rheinheimer 85);
- turf algae, high productivity- Adey 87; Carpenter 85

ultrastructure-Pollio 93

UV inhibits bacteria more than algae because of protective pigments and larger size (Kaiser 97) viruses and bacteria pathogeneic to algae (**Adolph 71**; Fitzgerald 69; Freeman 77; Geesey 78;

Proctor 90; Safferman 63; Suttle 90; W376); phage keep bacteria and algae in check (N326) vitamin requirements- W363 wastewater tx- Adey 91; Tarifeno 82 water movement, growth- Adey 87; Ghosh 94; Mann 73; Proctor 59 zooxanthellae of corals- Adey 91

Algal advantages over SAMS-

can concentrate CO2- Bowes 93
can drive pH up to 11 where SAMs can no longer PS- Allen 81; Gopal 93
CO2 diffusion across boundary layer much quicker- Prins 89; Sand-Jensen 91; W528
ecology of- Sand-Jensen 91
heterotrophic augmentation- Allen 71; Mann 73; Sand-Jensen 91; W217; 366
light use efficiency (Berry 82) greater for phytoplankton than SAMS (Sand-Jensen 91b); a PS pigment for every wavelength (Reiskind 89)
nutrient uptake faster- Barko 86; Gerloff 75
review- Gopal 93; Sand-Jensen 91
smaller size- Kuenzler 86; W362
tolerance of high pH, high oxygen, and low CO2 (Allen 81; Simpson 86) and low light (Sand-Jensen 91b)

Allelopathy-

aquatic plants, allelopathy in (Elakovich 95)

- alga allelochemicals not like those of SAMS (Anderson 94; Carmichael 94; Hallegraeff 93; Hay 88) designed to inhibit zooplankton (Keating 87)
- algae v. algae (**Juttner 81**; **Keating 77, 78, 87**; **Rice 84**)-- fatty acid inhibitor (**Proctor 59**) or heat labile agent (Keating 77, 78; **Wolfe 79**); related to water N (Fitzgerald 69) and water P (Forsberg 90); algal inhibition of red tide algae (Moon 85)
- algae v. bacteria (Hay 88; Fujimoto 95; Juttner 81; Nielsen 55); dialyzable inhibitor (Dor 78)
- algae v. fish- Anderson 94; Carmichaeal 94; Hallegraeff 93; Hay 88; Lee 89; Paul 93; Rheinheimer 85; Saito 89
- algae v. plants (Gopal 93); allelochemical inhibition of brackish water SAMs (van Viersen 85), duckweed (**Szabo 98**) and water hyacinth (Sharma 85)

algal blooms, succession of species due to allelochemicals- Keating 77,78;87; release of toxins by

Blue Green Algae- Lee 89

algal production of phenols and tannins limited (Boyd 69; Hay 88; Lodge 91)

alkaloids common in lilies but not in SAMS (Elakovich 91; Hutchinson 75; McClure 69; Newman

91; Su 73); none in marine algae (Hay 88; Paul 93); some in SAMs (Ostrofsky 86), but no

- correlation with herbivory (Lodge 91); toxicity of nicotine and other alkaloids to duckweed (Wink 92); waterlily alkaloid (**Elakovich 96**)
- allelochemical concentration of aquatic plants: tannin content is 5 to 6% (**Boyd 68**); phenol content is 7% (Planas 81); release of phenols is 0.003% of content in 10 days (Saito 89)

allelochemicals released by live aquatic plants into water (McClure 70; Pennak 73; Saito 89; van Aller 85; WW571); type of natural phenols in water related to plant category (Buikema 79) and are toxic to algae at 10 mg/l (Kim 93; Planas 81; Serrano 90); effect of phenols on extracellular enzymes (**Wetzel 93**); review and meta-analysis of field studies (**Hilt 08**); inhibit phytoplankton more than epiphytic algae (Hilt 08)

aquarium- Fitzgerald 69

- autoinhibition (Barko 88; **Chou 87**; Gopal 93; **McNaughton 68**; Patrick 64; Putnam 86; Rice 84; Szczepanski 77; Whittaker 71)
- bacteria, effect of allelochemicals on (Gopal 93; Elakovich 87; Jobidon 92; Leather 86; Planas 81;
 Putnam 86; Rice 74, 84; Wetzel 93); production of allelochemicals by (Fujimoto 95); allelopathy is part of bacterial competition (Leclerc 03)

bioassay using duckweed (Einhellig 85; Elakovich 89; Gopal 93; Leather 85; Rowe 82); continuous root exudate trapping system (Tang 86); or algae (Greca 92; van Aller 85)

charcoal removal of allelochemicals- Keating 87; Maida 93; Rice 84

chemical nature of allelochemicals (Ashton 85; Harborne 89; Newman 91; Seigler 81; Stevens 81;

Tang 86; Whittaker 71); activity of allelochemicals depends on specific compound structure (**Greca 92**; Hay 88; Stenlid 70)

chlorosis from allelopathy- Elakovich 89; Frank 80; Leather 86; Steven 81

corals and sponges, allelopathy in- Berenbaum 95; Maida 93

cost to producing plant is considerable (Coley 85; Hay 88; Stafford 90); 25% of plant genes devoted to secondary metabolites (Szathmary 01)

- cyanogenic allelochemicals (Bell 81; Whittaker 71), in watercress (Newman 92), and Myriophyllum (Hutchinson 75)
- decaying SAM leaves release allelochemicals (**Harrison 80**) and become less toxic (Kerfoot 89; Newman 92); DOC release by dead SAMS is 40% of PS (Otsuki 74)

decomposition of allelochemicals (Wetzel 93) by bacteria (Buikema 79; Gunnison 89; Keating 78;
Romheld 83); water hydrolysis of allelochemicals (Aliotta 92; Center 91); internal detoxification (Harborne 88) by plant enzymes (Pridham 64), vacuolar storage and protection by cell walls (Pollio 93)

- defensins (Ganz 94); of humans (Diamond 93) and plants, etc (Broekaert 95; Terras 95; Thevissen 96) See 'phytoalexins' below
- detoxification of phenols by sulphation and glycosylation (Harborne 75; Marchand 87; Whittaker 71) or the animal synthesis of large amounts of proline-rich proteins (Stafford 90)

distribution of allelochemicals among all non-motilie, non-parasitic organisms (Berenbaum 95)

- DOC toxicity in soils (Donahue 83), straw mulches (Jobidon 92), sediments (Barko 82, 83a, 86; Dooris 82; Wetzel 93), and lake water can be phytotoxic (Wetzel 93); majority of DOC in lake water is probably humic acids (Hama 80; Wetzel 93); 10 mg/l is toxic to algae (Kim 93; Planas 81; Saito 89)
- emergent plant allelochemicals v. algae (Aliotta 90; Saito 89); emergent plants contain more algicides, phenols and alkaloids than submerged plants (Boyd 69; Gross 96; Kerfoot 89; Les 90); DOC release from (Mann 96)
- evolution of allelochemicals in aquatic plants- Les 90; McClure 70; Newman 91
- extracellular enzymes inhibited by phenols- Kim 93; Wetzel 93

extraction of plants by different solvents yields different results- Alliota 91; Saito 89; Vergeer 97 FAM allelochemicals v. algae- Aliotta 91

- flavonoids are common in higher plants (Harborne 89; Jacobs 88) and some can be allelopathic (Dreyer 81; Jacobs 88; Nicholson 87; Rice 84, 74; Saito 89; **Stafford 90**; Stenlid 70); proanthocyanins are condensed tannins (Stafford 90); sulphation of flavonoids (Harborne 75); synthesis induced by stress (Stafford 92)
- genetics of, heterogenous nature of plant defensins and thionins (Florack 94; Terras 95); 25% of plant genes devoted to secondary metabolites (Szathmary 01)
- glycosylation of phenols (Harborne 88; McClure 69; Pridham 64; Wallace 69) and flavonoids (Hosel 81; Marchand 87; McClure 70; Stafford 90; Wallace 69) makes them less toxic (Stenlid 70); and more water soluble (Stafford 90)
- hardwater, toxicity of phenols is less in-Wetzel 93
- herbivores: growth stunted by unpalatable (Dreyer 81) allelochemicals (Center 91); reaction with digestive proteins of insects (Haslam 89; Haukioja 00)
- herbivory of aquatic plants (Hay 88; Newman 91; Paul 93) releated to leaf age (Center 91), tannin content (Boyd 69); phenols (Lodge 91) but not to alkaloids (Lodge 91); decaying SAMs, after allelochemicals have leached out, are prefered (Newman 91, 92); herbivory a trade-off between plant nutrient and allelochemical levels (Boyd 68; Center 91; Hay 88; McKey 78; Newman 91)
- humic acids are allelopathic phenols (Wetzel 93) that are toxic to algae at 10 mg/l (Kim 93; Planas

81; **Serrano 90**); formed from tannins and other polyphenols (Haslam 89) insecticides produced by terrestrial plants- Grossman 94; Haslam 89 interconversion of related allelochemicals- McClure 70; Wallace 69

invertebrates and insects, effect of SAMs on (Center 91; Dhillon 82; Gopal 93; Newman 92; Pennak

73); effect of Java moss, Hornwort and Cabomba on Neocaridina shrimp (**Vazquez 22**); insects avoid Elodea and Vallisneria (Newman 92)

leaf v. root production- Elakovich 87; Muller 72

leaf exudation- Muller 72; Serrano 92

light, effect on phenol content and disease resistance (Vergeer 95)

lignin, none in algae (Grisebach 81; Monties 89) and reduced in aquatic plants (Sculthorpe 67) as they evolved (Kerfoot 89; McClure 69; Monties 89; Ostrofsky 86); 20-30% of terrestrial plants is lignin (Westerman 93)

luteolin, a flavenoid, found in *Spirodela*, duckweed (McClure 70; Wallace 69), spikerush (Stevens 81), and Potamogeton sp. (Les 90)

mechanism of action of allelochemicals (Rice 84); phenols on algae ultrastructure (Pollio 93;
Harrison 80), extracellular enzymes (Kim 93; Wetzel 93), ATP formation (Stenlid 70), hormone transport (Jacobs 88), -SH groups, peroxidases, cation fluxes and DOC leakage (Baziramakenga 95); complexation with proteins (Gross 99; Haslam 89)

metabolic blockers of phenol synthesis (Kerfoot 89); decrease disease resistance (Carver 94) metabolism and turnover of allelochemicals in the producing plant is dynamic- Barz 81; McClure 70;

Nakai 99; Wallace 69

Myriophyllum species and allelopathy (Gross 96, 99): water extracts of *M. spicatum* and *M. aquaticum* are toxic to duckweed and lettuce seedlings (Elakovich 89); benzene/methanol extracts of *M. spicatum* are toxic to mosquitos (Dhillon 82); HCl/methanol extracts of *M. spicatum* contain phenols that are toxic to algae, enzymes, and nitrifying bacteria (Gross 96,99; Planas 81); *M. verticillatum* contains carotenoids, polyprenols, sterols, hydroxy fatty acids, phenylpropanoid glucosides that are toxic to algae (Aliotta 92); cyanogenic compounds in *M. proserpinacoides* (McClure 70) and *M. aquaticum* (Hutchinson 75); water leachates of *Myrioplyllum* sp. repel daphnia (Pennak 73; W555); *M. brasiliense* extracts toxic to cyanobacteria (Saito 89); *M. spicatum* continuously releases allelochemicals against blue-green algae (Nakai 99)

N₂ fixation inhibited by allelochemicals- Rice 92

new growth most toxic- Center 91; Hay 88; Paul 93

nitrification inhibited by allelochemicals (Jobidon 92; Planas 81; Rice 74, 84); inhibition specific to nitrification and increases with species succession (Rice 92)

PAL, stimulation by light- Vergeer 95

pH, effect on phenol toxicity- Rice 84; Wetzel 93

- phenol cells, disease resistance (Carver 94; Center 91; **Martyn 83a,b**; Nicholson 87); in seagrasses (Cuny 95; de Villele 95)
- phenol chemistry- phenols are derived from shikimic acid and the phenylpropane metabolic pathway (Whittaker 71) and form lignins, flavonoids, tannins, stilbenes (Grisebach 81; Harborne 89; Haslam 81; Ibrahim 81); phenols bind to proteins (Mole 87; Wetzel 93) and clay (Muller 72), and

chelate iron (Hopkins 95; Romheld 83); phenols are water soluble (Harrison 80; Muller 72; Zapata 79) and can be oxidized to quinones (Vergeer 95)

- phenol occurence in: aquatic plants (Aliotta 91, 92; Boyd 68; Cuny 95; de Villele 95; Lodge 91; Kerfoot 89; McClure 70; Planas 81; Steven 81; Su 73; Vergeer 97); sediment humus (Buikeima 79; Hoagland 85), and DOC of lake water (Hama 80; Serrano 90; W678; Wetzel 93); is only about 5-25 ug/l (Thurman 85)
- phenols are toxic to plants, algae, yeast, terrestrial and aquatic plants (Aliotta 91, 92; DeDonder 71; Greca 89, 92; Ibrahim 89; Kim 93; McKey 78; McNaughton 68; McPherson 71; Muller 72; Planas 81; Pollio 93; Rice 74; Rowe 82; Saito 89; Serrano 90; Smith 90; Stom 81; Sutton 86; van Sumere 72; Vergeer 97; Whittaker 71); phenols more toxic to cyanobacteria than algae (Aliotta 92; Kim 93; Planas 81) not too toxic to aquatic plants (Rowe 82; Smith 90; Stom 81; Sutton 86)
- phytoalexins and disease resistance (Jacobs 88; Ebel 86; Nicholson 87; Vergeer 95, 97);
 phytoalexins are mainly isoflavonoids and are induced by stress (Nicholson 92; Stafford 90);
 phenols induced in aquatic plants by disease (Cuny 95; de Villele 95; Vergeer 95,97) or bacterial LPS (Fujimoto 95); thionins and defensins against fungus are induced in terrestrial plants (Broekaert 95; Florack 94; Ganz 94; Terras 95; Thevissen 96); are similar to mammalian defensins (Diamond 93) *See also* stimulation of allelochemical production
- quantitation of allelochemicals (Center 91; Paul 91) and phenols (Buikema 79; Greenberg 92;Harborne 89; Mole 87; Serrano 92); fluorescence of phenols (Carver 94)
- release of allelochemicals by live plants (Gross 96,99; Romheld 83; Tang 86,95) is continuous (**Nakai 99**); intercellular transfer by algae (Gross 99)
- review, allelopathy (Bell 81; Elakovich 89; Fuerst 83; Newman 91; Rice 84; Rizvi 92; Szczepanski 77; Whittaker); in aquatic plants (Gopal 93; van Vierssen 85)
- SAMS v. algae (Balls 89; Elakovich 87; Greca 89; Gopal 93; Harrison 80; Hasler 49; Kim 93;
 Planas 81; Serrano 90), particularly blue-green algae (Aliotta 92; Elakovich 87; Kim 93; Planas 81; Saito 89; van Aller 85); water-soluble inhibitory compounds identified (Aliotta 92; Ashton 85; Greca 89; Gross 96; Planas 81; Saito 89; van Aller 85; Wium-Andersen 82, 83); anionic nature of Hydrilla inhibitor (Dooris 82); bacterial-mediated allelopathy (Fitzgerald 69); marine macroalgae (Cuny 95); continuous low-level release controls algae (Nakai 99)
- SAMs v. bacteria (Elakovich 87; Harrison 80; Hutchinson 75), nitrifying bacteria (Planas 81; Rice 74, 84), and cyanobacteria (Aliotta 92; Elakovich 87; Greca 89; Kim 93; Planas 81; Saito 89; van Aller 85)

SAMs v. fish- Newman 91

- SAMs v. insects- Center 91; Dhillon 82; Gopal 93; Newman 92; Pennak 73
- SAMS v. SAMS (Agami 90; Barko 81a; Gerloff 75; Gopal 93; Kulshreshtha 83; McCreary 83;
 Smith 90; Sutton 86a; Titus 83)-- water-mediated inhibitors (Agami 85; Elakovich 89;
 Kulshreshtha 83) or soil-mediated inhibitors (Ashton 85; Frank 80; Stevens 81; Sutton 86a;
 Szczepanska 71, 77; Tang 86); in the aquarium [Krombholz T5(4)]

SAMs v. slime-moulds- Vergeer 95,97

SAMSs v. snails- Barlocher 94; Newman 91,92

- SAMS v. terrestrial plants (Elakovich 89; El-Ghazal 86) including rice (Gopal 93)sediment organic matter (from trees), inhibition of Hydrilla but stimulation of algae (Dooris 80, 82)
- seasonal production of different allelochemicals thwart insects (Haukioja 00)
- soil, most persistent allelochemicals in are caffeic, ferulic, p-coumaric, and p-OH benzoic acids (Rice 84); allelochemicals bind to clay & humus (Chou 87; Fisher 87)
- stimulation of allelochemical production (Hay 88; Newman 92; Whittaker 71) by wounding and infection (Cuny 95; de Villele 95; Hanson 81; Jacobs 88; Newman 91; Nicholson 87; Santamaria 94; Stafford 90; Vergeer 95,97), bacterial exudates (Raskin 99), light (Hanson 81; Hay 88; McClure 69; Santamaria 94; Stafford 90); UV light (Grossman 94; Tang 95); fungal penetration (Carver 94); and nutrient deficiency (Tang 95); increased DOC release by SAMs with epiphytic algae (Hough 75) *See also* phytoalexins and disease resistance
- stimulation of growth by low concentrations of allelochemicals- DeDonder 71; **Fries 74**; Gopal 90,93; van Sumere 72
- storage of allelochemicals (Hay 88; Martyn 83a,b; Pollio 93; Whittaker 71) as glycosides (Aliotta 92; Hosel 81; Les 90; McClure 70; Newman 91; Stafford 90; Wallace 69) in the cell wall (Marchand 87)
- substrate type, effect on allelopathy- McKey 78; McPherson 71; Szczepanska 71

sulphation (Stafford 90) detoxifies phenols (Harborne 75)

synergistic activity of phenols; yes (Aliotta 92; Einhellig 83; Muller 72; Rice 84); no (Stevens 81) tannins (Gross 96; Haslam 81; Hay 88; Saito 89); none in algae as compared to aquatic plants (Boyd 68; Haslam 81); correlation with palatability (Boyd 68; Haukioja 00; McKey 78; Stafford 90); confounds of Folin assay for (Center 91; Harborne 89; Hay 88); condensed tannins are proanthocyanin flavonoids and are found in the vacuoles (Martyn 83a; Stafford 90); origin of Tellimagrandin II (Gross 99; Haslam 89)

- terrestrial plants, allelopathy in- Donahue 83; McPherson 71; Muller 72; Nicholson 87; Putnam 86; Tang 86; Whittaker 71
- theories: production of multiple allelochemicals most effective herbivory deterrent (Paul 93);
 terrestrial herbivorous insects are specialists, aquatic ones are generalists (Hay 88; Newman 91);
 quantitative (phenols) versus qualitative (alkaloids) defense (Center 91; Coley 85; Hay 88;
 McKey 78; Newman 91); and allelochemical production higher in depleted environments (Coley 85; Gross 99; Janzen 74; McKey 78); mature, climax systems are tight with little leakage of nutrients (Rice 92); overview of theories (Berenbaum 95); paradox of autoinhibition (Chou 87); complexity of aquatic systems (Keating 87)

thionins (Florack 94) and fungal inhibition by (Thivessen 96)

- universality, allelochemicals are common to all organisms (Whittaker 71), but are less common in animals and parasitic organisms (**Berenbaum 95**) and have general toxicity (Elakovich 87; Greca 91; Harrison 80; Kim 93; Newman 92; Wetzel 93)
- water lily extracts are highly toxic (Elakovich 91); plants have high phenol (Kerfoot 89) and alkaloid content (Hutchinson 75; McClure 70); used for tanning (Sculthorpe 67)

Ammonia/Ammonium-

acidity produced by ammonium uptake (Brix 02)

algae- phytoplankton preference and better growth with ammonium (Trommer 20)

- amino acids formed directly from ammonia via glutamate- Boussiba 90; Givan 79; Hageman 80; Lewis 86;
 - N162
- ammonia is the toxic component of ammonium solutions (Dendene 93; Vines 60) and what crosses cell membrane (Barr 74; Kleiner 81; Russo 85; Spotte 79); cell entry depends on cell pH (Milne 58; Stabenau 59) and increases pH of cell (Kleiner 81; Twitchen 94; Warren 62)
- ammonium cellular transport mechanisms (**Boussiba 90; Jayakumar 85; Kleiner 81**); uptake by plants requires energy (Koch 90; Trought 81; Yamasaki 92) or not (Nelson 80); no evidence for ammonium transport in higher plants (**Kleiner 81**), but probably K+ exchange or co-transport with Cl- (Paradiso 94-PC); crystal structure of ammonia transporter (**Khademi 04**); excretion by fish gills often coupled with Na+ uptake (Bond 96, p 404; **Morris 21**)

anammox is anaerobic ammonia oxidation by bacteria (**Jetten 99; Pynert 03; Strous 99**); slow doubling time of 29 days v. 1.2 days for nitrifiers (**Jetten 99**) *See also* "Bacteria:anammox"

AOA v. AOB in aquarium filters- Sauder 11

bacterial production of: from nitrates via 'DAP', from 'ammonification' of OM (See under 'Bacteria')

C skeletons are required for plant uptake- Givan 79; Hageman 80; Koch 90; Lewis 86; Santamaria 94

competition with K uptake in calcicoles but not calcifuges- Roelofs 86

- detoxification, biochemical mechanisms of plant- **Givans 79** See also 'Ammonia/Ammonium: Anammox' *and* 'Nitrification'
- enzyme for ammonia oxidation is ammonia monooxygenase (*amoA*) is used for detecting ammonia-oxidizing bacteria, both AOB and AOA- **Sauder 11**

exchange for KCl in sediment- Nichols 76; Ross 89

fish excretion of N: most N is excreted as ammonia from the gills, while the kidneys excrete some urea while rest is urea (kidneys) (Bond 96, p404; Hinshaw 92; Kleiner 81; Spotte 79); gill excretion of NH3 is coupled to Na+ uptake (via several membrane transporters and enzymes) (**Morris 21**), but not in cardinal tetras

(Cremazy 16)

hypolimnion accumulation- W241

inhibition of nitrate uptake See under 'Nitrates'

invertebrate susceptibility and tolerance for ammonia- Chen 89

- K release, antagonism (Barko 88; **Barr 74**; Beck 91; Roelofs 84; Ross 89; Schuurkes 86); but only in calcicoles (Roelofs 86; Rorison 86); NH4+ leakage in K+ channels, but no K+ leakage in NH4+ channels (Khademi 04)
- leaf uptake preferred- Iizumi 82; Pedersen 97; Schuurkes 86; Thursby 82

oxidation by bacteria See "Nitrification"

- pH: ratio of ammonium to ammonia (**WW 214**); toxicity and uptake (**Warren 62**); ammonia more toxic at lower pH (Russo 85); pH on ammonia toxicity to fish (**Frank 91**)
- rapid penetration of cell membranes (Barr 74; Bennet 71; Boussiba 90: Kleiner 81; Milne 58; Warren 62), but

NH3 channels may increase the supply (Khademi 04)

- root uptake of ammonium, most translocated to leaves- Caffrey 92
- sediment acidity- Kirk 95
- sediment anoxia reduces root uptake- Koch 90; Yamasaki 92
- sediment association (Kirk 95; Jones 82; W248); levels of 80 ppm in pore water not toxic (Painter 88)
- sediment levels of (Santamaria 94); no need for it in the water (Huebert 83)
- storage in vacuoles as NH₄⁺- Barr 74
- temperature: effect on toxicity to fish (Frank 91)

terrestrial leaf uptake- Cowling 81; Hutchinson 72; Sommer 91; Whitehead 87

toxicity: mechanisms of toxicity (Crofts 67: Santamaria 94); toxicity to bacteria (Anthonisen 76; Burrell 01);
to aquarium fish (Frank 91); to fish (Ackerman 06; Russo 85; Spotte 79; Twitchen 94) at concentrations greater than 0.1 mg/l (Sauder 11), recommended levels for aquaculture ponds are 0.2-0.3 ppm (Gross 03), effect on fish immune system and disease susceptibilitiy (Ackerman 06); to plants (Abrol 90; Best 80; Hageman 80; Holtz 79; Lewis 86; McGrath 82; Vines 60; W233; Wild 88), root symptoms of (Bennet 71); to aquatic plants (Dendene 93; Painter 88; Roelofs 84; Santamaria 94), toxic levels to aquatic plants are 1.8 to 9 mg/l (Jampeetong 09); to brine shrimp nauplii (Chen 89) and shrimp on contaminated sediments (Lee 07)

uptake by live plants only-Porath 82

uptake similar day and night (Nelson 80; Toetz 71) affected by N limitation (**Dodds 91**; Fitzgerald 69); causes acidification of nutrient media (Edwards 56; Cary 83)

volatilization from water (Dendene 93; Edmond 93; Reddy 87) and soils (Wild 88, p. 670)

water movement required for effective ammonia uptake by duckweed- Porath 82

Ammonium versus nitrate-

Al either stimulatory or non-toxic when given to calcifuge plants fed NH₄⁺ (Foy 78; Rorison 85)

algae- Brezonik 72; Broussiba 84; Dortch 90,91; Doucette 91a,b; Falkowski 83; Guerrero 81;

Kuenzler 86; Martin 91; McKee 62; Ohmori 77; Serra 90; Thompson 89; W226,234

emergents (Reddy 83a, Yamasaki 92, Zhang 09); cattails prefer NH₄⁺ (Brix 02); reeds grow better with NH₄⁺ (Tylova 05)

energetics of-Hageman 80; Lewis 86; McKee 62; Nelson 80; Thompson 89

FAMS- Beck 91; Cary 83; Fang 07; Ferguson 69; Gaudet 73; Gopal 87; Holst 79;
 Ingemarsson 84, 86; Jampeeton 09; Nelson 80; Orebamjo 75; Porath 82; Reddy 83a, 83b;
 Tucker 81

growth: aquatic plants grow better with NH4+ (**Best 80; Brix 02; Cary 83**; Edwards 56; **Jampeetong 09**)

light (Dodds 91; Dortch 90; Kuenzler 86; Thompson 89; Toetz 71; Ullrich 84) required for assimilation of nitrates (Canvin 74; Hageman 80; Notton 83), and stimulation of nitrate reductase (Lewis 86; Schwoerbel 74); effect on N uptake rates (Miyazaki 85; Nelson 80; Toetz 71)

Mo requirements- Howarth 85; Notton 83; Raven 88

liverworts prefer ammonium- Katoh 80; Miyazaki 85

mosses- Jauhiainen 98; Paffen 91

metal toxicity and calcium inhibition of growth enhanced by nitrates in calcifuge species-

McGrath 82; Rorison 84,85

negative charge of cell interior favors ammonium over nitrate uptake- Ullrich 84

nitrate inhibits growth, chlorophyll, etc (**Boedeltje 05; Jampeetong 09**) due to metabolic disturbance (Boedeltje 05)

pH changes resulting from NH₄⁺ uptake (Beck 91; Cary 83; Wild 88); plants acidify lab media when they take up NH₄⁺ (Cary 83); effect on uptake by calcicoles and calcifuges (**Gigon 72**); pH affects uptake differently (Brix 02)

reduction of water levels *in situ* (Brezonik 72; Kuenzler 86; Reddy 87; Short 84; Toetz 71; W243) and in a duckweed pond (Porath 82)

SAMS-- (Best 80; Edwards 56; Holst 79; Iizumi 82; Nichols 76; Ozimek 90; Reddy 87;
Roelofs 84, 94; Schuurkes 86; Schwoerbel 72, 74; Short 84,87; Toetz 71; Underwood 91;
WW548); isoetids prefer nitrates (Roelofs 94; Schuurkes 86); *Potamogeton alpinus* (Boedeltje 05)

seagrasses preferring ammonia- Lee 99; Paling 94; Terrados 97; Touchette 00; Vonk 08

- terrestrials (**Abrol 90**; Cowling 81; Donahue 83; **Hageman 80**; Hutchinson 72; **Lewis 86**; McKee 62; Porath 82; Rice 84; Ross 89; Tinker 79; Whitehead 87; Wild 88); ammonium preference of climax terrestrials (Rice 92) and ammonium-adapted conifers (Krajina 78); calcicoles prefer nitrates (Foy 78; Gigon 72; McGrath 82; Rorison 85)
- theory for NH_{4^+} preference: NH_{4^+} in sediments 10X >than NO_3^- making NH_{4^+} the natural N source (Boedeltje 05); situation reversed in terrestrial soils where NO_3^- predominates (Brix 02)

translocation- Beck 91; Iizumi 82; Toetz 74

turnover times of N in Pistia stratiotes- Nelson 80

uptake rates of NH₄⁺ in roots and leaves of seagrasses shows higher NH₄⁺ uptake for than NO₃⁻ in the two species compared (**Touchette 00**); uptake rates in *Salvinia molesta* (**Jampeetong 09**)

Aquatic plants-

- aerenchyma (lacunae), gas transport from plant tops to roots, X-section photos of FAM roots (Jedicke 89); formation in plants, protective diaphrams, etc for transport of all gases including methane, review (Vroom 22); lacunae act as source of CO2 for recycling respiratory CO2 (Wetzel 90)
- algae v. SAMS, competitive pressure for light and nutrients (Balls 89; Fitzgerald 69; Gerloff 75; Hasler 49; Jones 90; **Ozimek 91**; Roelofs 84; **Sand-Jensen 91**; **Simpson 86**; Smart 85; W553); survey of 319 Florida lakes (Bachmann 02)

alkaloid content low- McClure 70; Ostrofsky 86; Su 73

allelopathy in- Elakovich 95 See also under Allelopathy

aquarium plants (de Wit 64; Kasselmann 03)

Azolla (**Chakraborty 86**; Reddy 84; Riemer 84; Wild 88) harbors bacteria that fix N₂ (N275, 774) bacteria biofilma on (**Marsollier 04**)

- benefits to fish (Sand-Jensen 89) are removal of CO2 more than O2 generation (Atz 52)
- boom and bust growth of Myriophyllum in situ (Trebitz 93) due to insect predation (Painter 88)
- boundary layer of SAM leaves (WW541); thickness can be greater than 0.1 mm (**Madsen 93**) or several mm (WW541);
- brackish water (van Vierssen 85), poor adaptation to (W198); species that grow in (Gopal 90); salt tolerance of *B. monnieri* (Ali 97)
- buoyancy in water; Hornwort protects itself from strong water movement by becoming less buoyant (Kasselmann 03); ethylene used for buoyancy (Blotnick 80)
- C uptake strategies in aquatic plants (**Bowes 87**): survey of 30 plants (**Yin 17**) *See also* 'CO2 Uptake Strategies'
- Ca channels in (**Felle 91**); Ca and Mg widely interchangeable as nutrient (WW01, p. 182) *See also under* Calcium
- C:N is 17:1 (Gaudet 73; Hill 79) much lower than terrestrial plants (Misra 38) and the 6.6 of marine algae (Riesbesell 07)
- cell interior always has a negative charge (duckweed Em is about 240 mV), which attracts cations such as K⁺ and NH₄⁺ (Ullrich 84), and is necessary for RUBISCO (Pokorny 85)

classification (W520, 524) as possessing C3 photosynthesis (Bowes 91; W533)

- clonal variants of *Vallisneria* species- (**Biernacki 97**) and *P. pectinatus* from different longitudes (**Pilon 02**)
- competition and allelopathy (Gopal 90,93); competition between FAMS- Agami 90; Gopal 93

- competitive advantages of certain aquatic plants from canopy formation (Barko 91b); tubers v.
 turions (Spencer 89); shoot elongation (Barko 81a); carbohydrate storage (Barko 81a; Brinson 76;
 Titus 79); low light PS of Hydrilla (Van 76)
- Cryptocoryne, habitat and water parameters for (**Mansor 94**); lighting changes can induce Crypt meltdown (Kasselmann 03)

Cu requirement lower than terrestrials- Gerloff 75

cytoplasmic streaming- Stom 81

disease resistance in terrestrial plants from phenols (Nicholson 92); thionins (Florack 94) and defensins (Terras 95; Thevissen 96)

diseases (Vergeer 95) and herbivory general, not specialized like in terrestrial systems (Newman 91); slime-mold of *Z. marina* (Vergeer 95,97); fungal pathogens of *M. spicatum* (Smith 93); bioform formation on plants by *Mycobacterium ulcerans* (Marsollier 04); ultrastructure of leaf cells being invaded by bacteria (Rogers 83)

DOC release from SAMs, both living (**Hough 75**; **Wetzel 72, 69**) and dead (Harrison 80; **Otsuki 74**); from emergents (**Mann 96**)

- drawings- de Witt 64; Fassett 57; Godfrey 79; Hellquist 80; Hotchkiss 67; Kansas 67; Mason 57; Muenscher 44; Preston 97; Subramanyam 62; van Vierssen 82; Watson 81
- electrical neutrality maintained within plant by ion excretion- Amundsen 82; Hageman 80; Lewis 86; W532; Wild 88

element composition of: 5 different SAMS from multiple sources (**Zimba 93**); water hyacinth (**Gopal 87**)

emergent v. submerged form of same plant; purchased aquarium plants, which are usually grown emersed, need to shed emersed leaves and grow new submersed leaves (**Kasselmann 03**); morphological adaptations to submergence (W525, 533); emergent forms characterized by lacunae, stem/petiole rigidity and hairy leaves (**Kasselmann 03**); keeping photoperiod at 12 hr discourages emergent growth and reproduction in water lilies (Kasselmann 03); leaf gas films on emergent plants facillitate gas exchange and prevent algal growth (**Pedersen 10**) *See also* 'Aquatic Plants:submergence', 'Heterophylly...' and 'CO2, Strategies: 'aerial growth'

ethylene used for water buoyancy (Blotnick 80) and petiole extension (W526)

evolution of aquatic plants and algae (Brown 99; Les 90; Madsen 91; McClure 70; Monties 89; Newman 91; Riemer 84; W520) and their chemicals (Les 90; McClure 70; Monties 89)

FAMs (Boston 89; Huebert 91; W527); aqueous CO2 use (Boston 89; Gopal 86; W528); N and P uptake in wastewater treatment (DeBusk 89; Reddy 83b); oxygen depletion of water (Aliotta 91; Reddy 81, 83a, 84; Riemer 84; W554); all FAMs are C3 and can benefit from CO2 fertilization (Bowes 93); FAMs transpire, so the upper side of their leaves needs to be above water (Kasselmann 03); evapotransmission so have active root pressure kinetics making translocation more efficient (WW546)

flowering- See under 'Reproduction' and 'Light, biological effects'

general- Barko 86b; Gopal 93; Sculthorpe 67

growth- takes 8 days for new growth to actually contribute to the plant (Madsen 93)

hardwater v. softwater plants, habitat of- Seddon 72; Smits 92

herbicides (Spencer 89); fluridone treatment of Hydrilla (MacDonald 08)

- Hydrocharitaceae (Val, Elodea, Hydrilla, Hornwort, , etc) are true aquatic plants, are often dioecious and don't have lacunae (Kasselmann 03); Hydrilla and Egeria densa can use CAM and bicarbonates simultaneously (Hussner 16); *Ottelia alismoides* can use CAM, C4, and bicarbonates (Han 20)
- isoetid communities (Roelefs 83); isoetids v. eloetids (Sand-Jensen 79)

lacunae See 'aerenchyma'

leaf senescence and decomposition part of the normal life cycle for submerged aquatic plants; more with a short (8 hr) photoperiod- **Sultana 2010a**

light effects on plants: photoperiod, flowering, photorespiration, etc See under 'Light, biological effects'

- lignin and cellulose content lower than terrestrials and emergents (Barko 91a; McClure 70; Monties 89; W543); lignin content of terrestrials is 20-30% (Westerman 93)
- low productivity of submerged plants (**Boston 89**; Bowes 89; Mann 72; Reddy 87; W544+) and low PS due to water boundary layers (Bowes 87; Madsen 91; Prins 89); inefficient carboxylation (Salvucci 82; Van 76); and overcapacity (Madsen 91a)
- macroalgae (Chara and Nitella) have no lacunae (W538); have similar allelochemicals (Forbsberg 90; Wium-Andersen 82); holdfast absorbs P (Forsberg 90)
- marine v. freshwater-- marine plants have PS efficiency (Madsen 91), higher productivity (Boston 89; Mann 73); and greater resistance to H₂S (Koch 90)
- membrane potential is -260 mV in Riccia but only -90 mV in mammalian cells- Fells 91

methane (CH4) transport in SAMs, FAMs, and wetland plants from roots to atm (**Vroom 22**) morphology- Val has a basal meristem with biomass concentrated near the base, while Myriophyllum has an apical meristem with biomass concentrated near the surface (Madsen 01); hydrathodes (stomata-like organ) control internal water flow (Pedersen 93, 97); hydropotes on the bottom of waterlily pads absorb nutrients and water (Kasselmann 03); pneumatophores (aerial roots) are adaptation to anaerobic substrates (Kasselmann 03); leaf gas films form on water-repellent leaves

(Pedersen 10)

mosses use DIC only (Bowes 87; **Paffen 91**; W529) and have no lacunae (Jaynes 86; W538); Sphagnum (Roelofs 84) is a cation exchanger (W209) associated with the filling in of swamps (W736, 743)

mycorrhizal fungi associated with aquatic plant roots- Christensen 98; Raven 88b; Sharma 98

- N and P requirements lower than in algae- Sand-Jensen 91; inhibition of *P. wrightii* growth with an excess of N and P (**Sultana 2010b**)
- pH, optima for plants (Gopal 93; Pokorny 85); pH polarity of leaves (Adamec 93; Prins 89)

phenols are phenylpropanes while terrestrials have vanillin and syringyl- Buikema 79; McClure 70 photorespiration (**Lloyd 77; Salvucci 82**) takes up O2 and releases CO2 (Raven 92); reduces net

- productivity (Bowes 91) by as much as 50% and it is affected by temperature, O2 conc. and light intensity, assoc. with C₃ type PS (WW540); may be counteracted by refixation of CO2 (Salvucci 82)
- polluted waters, associated with a decline in SAMs (e.g., seagrasses), excess N and P inhibited growth of *Potamogeton wrightii* **Sultana 2010b**
- Potamogeton and Zostera evolved from seagrasses- Iida 06
- protein source for animals- Boyd 68; Porath 82
- pruning can kill or harm plants (Gopal 90); leaf removal from *Myriophyllum* shows huge release of ³²P (DeMarte 74)
- PS inefficiency (W533), plasticity, and overcapacity (Bowes 87; Madsen 91a) due to inefficient carboxylative enzymes (Van 76)
- PS system mostly C3 (>90% of plants) (Bowes 93; Lloyd 77; Madsen 91a; W532), but the more efficient C4 (CAM) can be induced for 'weed' species during the summer (Boston 89); CAM (malic acid storage of C) is used by unproductive isoetids (Boston 89)
- red and brown color in, is stimulated by intense light (Kasselmann 07) See also 'Pigments:anthocyanins' and 'Pigments:carotenoids'
- release of nutrients and DOC into water- Brinson 76; Christiansen 85; DeMarte 77; Gopal 87; Kufel 91; Mayes 77; McRoy 72
- reproduction (Attridge 90; Blotnick 80; Grise 86; Huang 94; Jacobsen 76; Kane 88b; Smart 85; Spence 81; Spencer 89; Sutton 85; Titus 83; W527) in aquarium plants (**Kasselmann 03**); reproduction mostly vegetative, not sexual (Rao 81); sexual reproduction rare, so there is less species diversity (McClure 70); plant propagation by tissue culture yields bushier plants; cultivating *Echinodorus* from adventitious plants (Kasselmann 03) *See also* 'Reproduction' *and* 'Light; biological effects'
- resistance to herbivory (Lodge 91; Newman 91) and disease (W543)
- respiration (Barko 81a; Madsen 91; Rich 78; Salvucci 82; Sand-Jensen 91b; Steward 84; W530; Wild 88); stored O2 from daytime PS is used for respiration at night such that plants do not draw on O2 from the surrounding water (**WW538**); dark respiration measured in 10 species shows consumption of 1 mg O2/g dry wt/hr, whereas O2 provided by PS is ~1 mg at with low CO2 and 10-15 at high CO2 (**Hussner 16**); respiration in SAMs does not use water O2 (**Sorrell 89**; WW538)
- resting period necessary for some species (Aiken 80)
- root O2 release: See under 'Root Oxygen Release (ROL)'
- salinity, effect on plants: 0.1% salinity = 1,000 ppm = 1 ppt; most SAMs inhibited at 0.1% salinity (Gopal 90); salinity via NaCl involves ion toxicity as well as osmotic stress, plants show immediate osmotic stress in 40 mM NaCl (0.23% salinity) (Iida 06); survival of 12 marine,

brackish water, and freshwater species when tested in 0, 5, 10, and 15 ppt salinity; P. stratiotes and Lemna minor most tolerant plant (Izzati 15); Potamogeton wrightii and P. perfoliatus were undamaged by 1 wk in 1/6 saltwater (0.58% salinity), needed acclimation to reach 1.2% salinity (**Iida 06**); 4-16 week effect of 0.5, 1, 1.5, and 2% salt (NaCl) on *Bacopa monniera* showed flattened morphology but continuous growth by 0.5% (Ali 97); salt-tolerant plants Potamogeton pectinatus found in brackish water with up to 2.2% salinity, B. monnieri could be grown in 0.5-3.0% salt (NaCl) and Salvinia molesta grew at a reduced rate in 0.75% salinity (Gopal 90) and is known to grow at 0.7% salinity (via seawater) (Jampeeton 09a); growth of Salvinia natans, considered a salt-sensitive species, was not inhibited by 0.29% salt but morphology stunted; salt inhibits K+ uptake, which probably causes the injury; smaller FAMs more vulnerable than larger FAMs (Jampeetong 09a); diluting 33 ppt seawater to 0, 5, 10, 20 inhibits the PS of the seagrass Zostera marina (Hellblom 99); interaction of light and salinity in Vallisneria americana, which is not found in nature above 5 ppt, requires 50% more light at 5 ppt salinity than 0 ppt salinity (French 03); salinity injured plants become chlorotic, P. stratiotes most tolerant; *Elodea* sp the least (Iida 06); *Najas gramenia* grows luxuriantly in 2% seawater salinity (**Rout 01**); involvement of anti-oxidative enzymes SOD (superoxide dismutase), catalase in salt tolerance (**Rout 01**) See also 'Water Chemistry: salinity, seawater, etc.

seagrasses, high productivity of (Adey 91; **Duarte 99**); carbon uptake in (**Hellblom 99**) seasonal growth: bimodal growth of *M. heterophyllum*, increased biomass in May and August;

bimodal flowering of *M. spicatum* (Blotnick 80); seasonal rates of temperate plant *M. spicatum* growth (**Huebert 83**); tropical plants grow same year around (WW47)

spaghnum (peat) mosses inhibit aquatic plants (Kazda 20)

spores of water ferns (Isoetes, Marsilea and Salvinia)- Raven 92, p.352 and 335

submerged duckweed (Lemna trisulca)- Gopal 93; Huebert 91

submergence, adaptation to counteract the 10,000 lower diffusion rate of CO2, which lowers PS and plant's ability to keep its roots safely oxygenated: in a semi-aquatic plant (*Rumex palustris*), gas diffusion resistance is 40 times lower in aquatic leaves v. terrestrial leaves when underwater, but 25 X greater when in air (**Mommer 06**); shoots elongate to contact air, roots develop gas-tight barriers to prevent O2 loss, develop thinner, more filamentous leaves, reduced cuticle thickness, greater surface area, chloroplasts move from deeper layers in the plant to epidermal surface, closer to the CO2 source (Mommer 06) *See also* 'Heterophylly'

surface area (SA) increased exponentially by plants (Wetzel 90; WW588); 500 to 1,000 cm² SA per g plant dry wt. (**Sher-Kaul 95**)

taxonomy of plants, new cladistic system- Brown 99

- temperature requirements, species variation (Gopal 90; Kasselmann 03); effect on emergent and submerged leaf morphology of *Ranunculus flabellaris* (WW532)
- transpiration rates of FAMs > terrestrials (Reddy 83b, 84; W522); non-transpiration in SAMS not the reason for their lower productivity (Pedersen 97)

transport of nutrients within SAMs driven by osmotic pressure not transpiration (Hostrup 91;

Pedersen 97,93)

tropical plants, must have efficient P uptake?- Raven 92, p. 240

Utricularia (Rutishauser 93); culturing of (Kasselmann 03; Pringsheim 62)

Vallisneria, preference for alkaline water (Grise 86; Overath 91; Titus 90); clones of (Biernacki 97); taxonomy (Lowden 82)

water lilies, small ones for the aquarium- Kasselmann 07

water chemistry and species variation:

acidic, temperate waters (Arts 90; Catling 86; Roelofs 83); plants tolerant of acidic pH (Arts 90) alkalinity and Ca: in Japan (Kadono 82); in Himalayan lake (Singh 81); in The Netherlands (Roelofs 83) alkalinity: in Minnesota lakes (Moyle 45); Potamogeton distribution in New England (Hellquist 80); in central Canada (Pip 84); in Ontario (Fraser 86) brackish water - Ali 97; Ferguson 89; Gopal 96 hardwater and bicarbonate uptake- Sand-Jensen 83 Lake Tanganyika, plants in- Coulter 91; Kasselmann 03 Myriophyllum veticillatum cannot use HCO₃ as C source and is not found in Swedish waters with a pH above 7.3 (Hutchinson 75) salt and polluted waters, tolerance to (Ali 97; Gopal 90) softwater and hardwater sites of North and South Carolina- McMillan 97 soil Ca in Indian pond (Nasar 74), The Netherlands (Roelofs 83) species correlate with alkalinity and hardness, not N&P- Linton 98, Vitt 90 swamps and aquatic mosses- Vitt 90 tropical softwater of the Amazon basin (Junk 80; Kalliola 91; Kasselmann 03; Marlier 67) water content high (Boyd 68; Bowes 87; McClure 70); dry wt of Hydrilla is 8.8% in contrast to 22% for a soybean leaf (Van 76) water lily N. peltata needs hardwater; N. lutea and N. alba do not-Smits 92

Artificial propagation-

aeration used to provide air CO2 during growth studies (Nielsen 91)
axenic culturing (Ashton 85; Durako 87; Edwards 56; Elakovich 89; Gaudet 73; Kane 88a,b; Kasselmann 03; Linsmailer 65; Porath 82; Smith 90) of Cryptocoryne (Kane 99,T6(5)); and Anubia (Huang 94); Utricularia (Pringsheim 62)
bulbs from *Barclaya longifolia*- Schaeffer T6(4)
cold treatment and ethanol on germination- Kasselmann 03; Smits 95 DIC for general culture media is 0.85 ppm alkalinity (HCO3 conc) provided by 58.4 mg/l of NaHCO3 and 15.4 mg/l of KHCO3 for final pH of 7.9 and conductivity of 280 uS/cm, N = 16 ppm, K = 6 ppm (Smart 85); for DIC of 0.85 mM, use 0.5 mM NaHCO3 (10 ppm Na) plus 0.5 mM KHCO3 (20 ppm K) (Yin 17)

embryos- Kane 88b

emersed plants- Kane 90; Kutty T5(2); Speirs T5(2)

general- Smart 85

gravel-nutrient solution cultivation of emergent plants- Kasselmann 03; Steinberg 94

growing conditions for Salvinia (Gaudet 73), water hyacinth (Gopal 87), and Marsilea (Edwards

56); cultivation of submerged plants for measuring growth rates (**Dulger 17; Nielsen 91**) growing season (Florida) is March through November (**Barko 86**)

hormones used in- Hartman 83; Kane 88b, 90; Smits 95

hydroponic cultures of aquatic plants don't grow as well as those in sediment- Pedersen 97

nutrient media for plants (Barko 83a; Bertani 87; Bowen 79; Bristow 71; Gaudet 73; Gerloff 75;

Gopal 87; Huebert 91; Kane 90; Linsmailer 65; Moorhead 88; Nichols 65; Roelofs 84; Rorison

60b; Schat 84; Smart 85; Sutcliffe 81; Tucker 81) and bacteria (Bowen 79); effect of

bicarbonates in (Smith 93); KHCO3 worked ~40% better than NaHCO3 for PS in P. pectinatus

(Sand-Jensen 83);); used 1 mM bicarbonate (0.5 mM K and 0.5 mM Na) in expt media (Yin 17) root rhizome- Kane 88b, 90; Rao 81

sand culturing of Hydrilla with slow-release fertilizers- Sutton 96

seeds from Crypt. and Aponogeton [Clark T4(1); Jacobsen 76; Speirs T4(2); Stevenson T4(3)] and water lilies (Smits 95); *Aponogeton* mainly propogated by seeds (Kasselmann 03) shoot tips from Crypt. (Kane 90,99) and Anubia (Huang 94)

soil for (Andreasen T4(2); Hartman 83; Kane 90; Smart 85; Sutton 85) for Cryptocorynes (Clark T4(1); **Jacobsen T5(5)**)

stem internodes- Kane 87, 88a

water movement and aeration: water movement greater than 15 mm/sec can inhibit PS (WW 541); in measuring growth rates, water was constantly stirred and aerated with atm air by a submersible pump to avoid O2 buildup and thick boundary layers (**Dulger 17; Nielsen 91**); high flow rates inhibit PS (**Ghosh 94; Madsen 83**); can get growth of Hydrilla and M. spicatum with air CO2, but must include bicarbonates; aeration should be provided to enhance air/water exchange of CO2 (**Smart 85**); aquatic plants (8 species) exposed to 8.6 cm/sec showed reduced photosynthesis, but when their shoots and leaves were adjusted so that they did not flutter in the current, they were fine (**Madsen 01**)

B (Boron)-

available from leachings of borosilicate glass- **Hutner 72** borax contains 11% B- Sauchelli 69 deficiency symptoms (Krombholz T6(5); Sauchelli 69; Wild 88) essential for higher plants, but not algae or bacteria (Bowen 79) or animals (Wild 88) general- W195 necessary for developmental tissue- Glass 89; Wild 88 ocean is the source- Bowen 79 pollen germination requires- Brewbaker 63

Bacteria and Microbes-

acetate, as exclusive energy source for Geobacteria (Methe 03); acetate oxidation yields 8 electrons

(Bond 03); most of energy (98%) from acetate goes to methane, while only 2% goes to

synthesizing new bacteria cell mass (McKinney 04)

actin recruitment by intracellular pathogens- Stamm 04

Actinobacteria See 'mycolata'

Actinomycetes are filamentous bacteria related to fungi- McKinney 04

aerosolized bacteria in tiny water droplets travel long distances (McKinney 04; hydrophobic bacteria

(e.g., the mycolata), which accumulate in surface scum, are the most likely candidates for aerosolization *See* 'MB...: aerosolized *M. avium*...'

aggregation and clumping of bacteria: polysaccharidases (cellulase, hyaluronidase, etc) used to declump bacteria during isolation (Thorel 04) *See also* 'Biofilms: floc...'

air contains 600 bacteria per liter- Angenent 03

algae-bacteria interaction (Joint 02); bacteria produce Vit Bs that black beard algae can use

(McDowell 17)

allelochemicals of bacteria that inhibit algae and stimulate phytoalexins in plants (Fujimoto 95); plant allelochemicals altered by bacteria (Gunnison 89; Keating 78) *See also* 'bacteriocins'

ammonification (N770); decomposition of OM (proteins, amino acids, urea, etc) (WW 214), release from anoxic sediments (Edmond 93; Kemp 90; Westerman 93); the ammonia generated is used by wetland plants (Neori 17)

amoeba encystment of pathogenic bacteria See under 'MB...'

anaerobic bacteria raise pH in water and sediment (Kelly 84) and dominate when organic matter is plentiful (**Pfeiffer 01**); maximize conversion of organic matter to methane instead of bacteria cell mass (McKinney 04)

anammox (N770): bacteria responsible for anaerobic conversion of ammonia plus nitrite to N₂ gas are autotrophic, slow-growing, but efficient N processors. Metabolic pathways, energy transformations, characteristics of the bacteria (**Jetten 99**) *See also* "Bacteria:Planctomycetes" antibiotics (Abs): types of antibiotics and mode of action (N495, 500); multi-drug resistance

(**D'Costa 06**) kill good bacteria allowing surviving pathogens to grow more rapidly (Moriarty 98); antibiotic resistance transfer between bacteria (Hong 05) on R plasmids (N209, N214)

that can be lost with passage (N69); chloramphenicol stops RNA synthesis and preserves RNA samples (**Keith 05**); antibiotic resistance of normal soil bacteria (**D'Costa 06**), may have a competitive cost (**Gagneux 06**); genetic transfer between bacteria via conjugation, transformation, transduction, and transposons (**N204**); abrupt bacterial lysis releases antigens and causes problems (N655); penicillin discovered serendipitously in 1928 and streptomycin in 1943; *Streptomyces* produces half of all ABs (D'Costa 06)

aquariums, initial colonization can be by almost any bacteria- Verschuere 97); natural bacteria micoroflora within fish mostly *Aeromonas* and *Pseudomonas* (del Rio-Rodriguez 99)

Archaea domain- ammonia oxidizing archaea (AOA) role in aquarium biofilters (Sauder 11); paddy soils (Wang 05); and rhizosphere of SAMs (Huang 16) See also methane producers

arsenic as a respiratory electron acceptor for some bacteria and as an energy source for other bacteria (**Oremland 03**)

Artemia-associated bacteria- Austin 81; Verschuere 97

assimilatory reduction is when bacteria and plants reduce inorganic cpds (e.g., nitrates) in order for an element (e.g., N of NH₄⁺) to be used as a nutrient, while dissimiliatory reduction is bacteria using inorganic cpds as e- acceptors (Zindev 78)

Bacillus spores for disease control- Hong 05; Moriarty 98 See also 'probiotics'
bacteriocins: antibacterial substrances released by bacteria (Hong 05) tested against Vibrio infections in trout (Spanggaard 01)

binding of bacteria to solid and air surfaces (Mills 96) driven by nutrient depletion (Marshall 76);
binding to detritus by acidic polysaccharides (Floodgate 72) and sand grains (Duarte 88;
Meadows 66; Wild 88); the finer the sediment the more bacteria (Adey 91); interaction with soils

(Mills 96); binding to transparent organic colloids (Azam 98) See also 'Biofilms'

biofilms and polysaccharides of- See 'Biofilms'

chemosynthetic bacteria (Rheinheimer 85; W328; 310+); also called 'lithotropic' bacteria (IT); species that use arsenic III as an energy source (Oremland 03); CO2 fixation by (**Dodds 91**;

W328, 515+, 682, 687); nitrifying bacteria use RUBISCO to fix CO2 (Schramm 98); most

bacteria are heterotrophic not chemototrophic (Rheinheimer 85) *See also* 'Nitrification:bacteria' colony of bacteria becomes visible when it has 10^6 cells (N90)

competition with SAM roots for nutrients (Ross 89; Russel 73; van Wijck 92; Wild 88) and oxygen

(Drew 80); competion between bacteria in fish diseases (Spanggaard 01) and in mineral water

(Leclerc 03); competition between phage and bacteria (N326)

counting bacteria- N103

cyanobacteria See 'Algae:Blue-green algae'

DAP (dissimilatory ammonium production) (Gilbert 97) [also called 'DNRA' (dissimilatory nitrate reduction to ammonium) (Christensen 00); 'nitrate ammonification' (Kemp 90; Rheinheimer 85; Rysgaard 96); 'ammonia fermentation' (Takaya 02)]; assoc. with sulfate-reducing bacteria (Daalsgaard 94; Rysgaard 96), fungi (Takaya 02), performed by fermentative bacteria *Vibrio*,

Citrobacter, Clostridium, and Enterobacteriaceae (MacFarland 82; Phillips 02; Smith 82); competes directly with denitrification for nitrates and has a nitrite intermediate, equations for (Phillips 02); metabolic pathway of DAP (Takaya 02); DAP rates 7X more than denitrification underneathe trout sea cages; DAP generally dominates in anaerobic C-rich environments (Christensen 00) or those with high C/N ratio (Gilbert 97; MacFarlane 82); DAP rates about 10% of denitrification rates in shrimp ponds; neither process great enough to prevent ammonia accumulation (**Burford 01**); with shellfish aquaculture, 98% of nitrate goes to NH_4^+ and only 2% to N_2O (Gilbert 97); DAP rates equal those of denitrification rates in coastal sediments (**Rysgaard 96**); high ammonia due to ammonification not DAP (Boon 86a; Burford 01); 13% to 28% of NO₃⁻ recovered as NH₄⁺ in seagrass sediments (Boon 86a); DAP a fermentative process that yields energy, while denitrification is a respiratory, cytochromelinked process (Boon 86a); DAP requires NADH (MacFarlane 82; Tayaka 02); denitrification occurs at +75 to -225 Redox, whereas DAP keeps increasing to \geq -275 in coastal marine sediment (Sorensen 78); rate measurements using ¹⁵N-NO₃ conversion to ¹⁵N- NH₄⁺ (Boon 86a; Gilbert 97; Sorensens 78); bacteria that produce NH_4^+ from $NO2^-$ are more numerous than those that denitrify it (Smith 82); DAP becomes more important than nitrification/denitrification with increasing eutrophication (Kemp 90); DAP increases with greater water depth and reducing conditions in a freshwater lake (Jones 81, 82); DAP accounts for 70% of nitrate dissimilated in wastewater sludge (Jones 82); nitrate and nitrite reductase enzymes are different for assimilation, denitrification, and DAP (MacFarland 82; Takaya 02); when you add more glucose, Vibrio produces nitrite instead of ammonia (MacFarland 82)

defense mechanisms of bacteria are: biofilm formation, clumping, production of cytotoxins, and survival in macrophages/amoeba (Mura 06)

detoxification of substrate- Gunnison 89

digestion of DOC and POC by pelagic bacteria- Azam 98

disease control by bacterial competition See 'probiotics' and 'bacteriocins'

- disinfectants (**N123**), household bleach, which is 5.25% NaHypochlorite, diluted 1:100 gives 500 ppm Chlorine (N124) *See also under* 'MB (mycobacteriosis) and 'WasteWater Treatment'
- DNA, 100 fg = 20 mycobacteria cells (Puttinaowarat 02); DNA repair mechanisms that are stimulated by light (**Kaiser 97**)
- DOC stimulation of population growth (LeChevallier 04); DOC released by humus photo-oxidation stimulates growth (Kaiser 97; Williamson 95)

dormant, enzymatically inactive state of *Nitosospira* in biofilm interior (Schramm 99); nitrifiers in anaerobic Anammox biofilm (Jetten 99); EMin amoeba cysts (**Adekambi 06; Mura 06**)

doubling time of 20 min for most bacteria, but much longer for mycobacteria (N87; Wolinsky 73); growth rates faster in biofilms than in planktonic cultures (**Hall-Stoodley 98**; Marsollier 04); rich culture conditions select for fast-growers (**Verschuere 97**); fungi doubles every 2h (McKinney 04); fast doubling time provides major competitive advantage (N761) *See also* 'MB...: doubling time...'

electricity generated by bacteria- Bond 02

enzymes (mucinase, protease, lipase, DNase and RNase) activities analyzed in mycobacateria (**Chen 97**); extracellular used to hydrolyze DOC & POC (Azam 98)

epiphytic, symbiosis with plants and algae- Underwood 91; W571; Wetzel 90

essential for plant growth- Durako 87

evolution of bacteria, effect of host immune system on genetic changes over time (Musser 00);
antibiotic resistance not due to selection pressure but to innate, underlying genetic diversity of
bacteria (**D'Costa 06**); bacteria lose genetic material as their pathogenicity increases (**Ochman 06**)

extracellular products of bacteria (**Chen 97**); specific proteins released by *M. tuberculosis* (**Musser 00**); organic polymeres in oceans (Azam 98); EPS produced by bacteria degrade slowly (McKinney 04)

Fe cycling: oxidation by root-associated bacteria (Ash 02; **Emerson 99**); Fe reduction and solubilization by *Geobacter* (Ash 02); Fe reduction by bacteria not that relevant, review of

(**Lovley 91**; WW304); clay Fe reduced by bacteria (Kostka 02) *See also* 'siderophores' feces contain 10¹¹ bacteria/g and bacteria make up 1/3 fecal wt (N612)

fermentation (N152) by facultative aerobes even under aerobic conditions (Pfeiffer 01); competition between fermenters and respirators (**Pfeiffer 01**); an extracellular process involving extracellular enzymes in conversion of large bio-molecules into small organic acids, ethanol, etc; which are then used by separate microbes for methanogenisis (WW640)

filamentous bacteria (Actinomycetes) differ from fungi (pics)- McKinney 04

filter (wastewater treatment) bacteria in two tx plants identified as α- (34%), β- (20%), γ- (6%) Proteobacteria, CF (4-20%), and mycolata (1%) (**Keith 05**); β-Proteobacteria common in filters and include ammonia oxidizers (**Gieseke 01**) and PAO bacteria (Crocetti 00); hospital pool bacteria are mostly α- (30%), γ- (30%) Proteobacteria, *Sphingomonadaceae* (30%) (**Angenent 05**); ammonia oxidizers are mainly β-Proteobacteria (**Burrell 01**)

FISH studies of bacteria- Burrell 01; Crocetti 00; Gieseke 01; N236; Pynaert 03; Schramm 98,99; Strous 99

- fish- bacteria species (and quantities of) found in the internal organs, whole fish and shipping water (**del Rio-Rodriguez 99**)
- fungi, characteristics and chemical composition of; competition with bacteria in wastewater treatment (McKinney 04); one species Fusarium oxysporum can do DAP and denitrify, so its an anaerobe (Takaya 02)

gases produced by- Ash 02 See also 'Sediment:gases'

general- Kerr 72; Rheinheimer 85; Spotte 79; Tenny 72; Westerman 93

Geobacter, charactericteristics (**Methe 03**); Fe clay reduction by (Kostka 02); electricity generated by (Bond 02)

geochemical processes, bacterial involvement in- Ash 02; Oremland 03; Warren 03

gram stain (N50, 61); gram-negative, gram-positive, and mycobacteria differ in cell wall lipid content (20%, 1-4%, and 60%, respectively (Wolinsky 73); gram-negatives contain the pathogens (Moriarty 98) and sequester more carbon as organic matter than gram-positives (Verrschuere 00b)

growth rates See 'doubling time'

- identification of bacterial species: biolog assay monitors metabolism of 95 different carbon sources (Verschuere 97); DNA/PCR v. FISH techniques (Schramm 98) See 'FISH studies' and 'MB...': Genetic detection' and 'MB...': 'identification...'
- intestinal microbiota essential for fish in stimulating epithelial cell proliferation and metabolizing xenobiotics; without bacteria, fish die at 20 days post-fertilization (**Rawl 04**); intestine colonized by strict anaerobes with ≤0.1% facultative bacteria; different individuals have different bacteria (**Eckburg 05**); potential pathogens kept in check by immune cells in gut epithelium (**Ismail 09**; Rawls 04) *Artemia*'s gut bacteria (Verschuere 97) *See also* 'Fish: bacteria that colonize...'

lipid content of cell walls varies from 1-60% See 'gram-negative....'

lysis releases endotoxins (N686; N714) and harmful antigens (N655)

metabolism by (**N131**), types of (Tenny 72); about 1/3 of organic matter food used for energy and the other 2/3 used to synthesize new bacterial cell mass (McKinney 04)

metal dissolution by bacteria (Ash 02; Methe 03; Oremland 03)

metal toxicity (Bisson 92; Borgmann 83; Nieboer 80; N124; Sposito 86; **Tsai 88**) metals, which react with the bacteria's SH groups, used as disinfectants (N124); resistance to metals carried on the R plasmid (N209)

methane paradox- as greenhouse gas, CH4 makes up 20% of total radiative force with natural freshwaters contributing 70% of natural methane to the atm (Grossart 11) methane production much higher in freshwater than seawater but both contribute equal amounts to atm because seawater covers more of planet (Tang 16); in situ study in oligotrophic lake shows methanogenesis in oxygenated water, Archaea methanogens assoc. with micro-algae, using their H2 and acetate (**Grossart 11**); methanogen production same in presence of 4 different types (green, diatoms, chryptophyte, BGA), methane accumulation at night due to photoinhibition of methane oxidizers during the day (**Tang 16**); methanogenisis in oxic soils (wetlands, emergent plants, and open water) due to an archaea species (Methanothrix) with O2-detoxification gene *mcrA* is found in 97% of soil samples, could be due to biofilms (**Angle 17**); methane production by all wetland plants (trees to SAMs) (**Vroom 22**)

methane producers (i.e., Archaea Kingdom) (Ash 02; Carpenter 77; **N270**; Le Mer 02; Ohle 78; Rheinheimer 85; Russel 73; Westerman 93; W170, 599+); derive energy from H₂ and CO2 with

CO2 as the e- acceptor (Ash 02); methanogenesis in oxic freshwater lake (**Tang 16**); soil methanogenisis in soils, methane's impact on global warming (**Le Mer 02**); Nickle metal essential micronutrient for methane bacteria in wastewater tx (McKinney 04); closely linked to fermentation (WW640).

- methane rapidly oxidized by bacteria in aerobic waters (Westerman 93); effect of aquatic plants on
- (Grunfeld 99; Vroom 22) via root oxygenation of emergent plants (Calhoun 97)
- microbial mats with strict layers of S-processing populations- N762
- microscope methods for studying- N42
- mineral water, bacteria in- Leclerc 03
- mineralization (i.e., decomposition) (Brezonik 72; Burns 72; Kistritz 78; Mann 73; Spotte 79) converts OM to inorganic C (e.g., ammonification)
- Mn reduction to soluble Mn by *Shewanella* bacteria (Ash 02); Mn reduction by bacteria only a minor pathway; fermentative bacteria use other e- acceptors, review of (**Lovley 91**)
- movement: over surfaces (**Hall-S 05**; Lawrence 87; Recht 01); pelagic bacteria can swim 100 um/sec (Azam 98); motility essential for finding electron acceptors (O2 and Fe⁺³) in a fluctuating environment (Ash 02); sliding movement/biofilm formation/pathogenicity/glycopeptidolipids in mycobacteria (**Recht 01**); movement and chemotaxis (**N68**); actin recruitment for intracellular
 - motility (**Stamm 04**)
- mulm and regular sediment, #'s of bacteria 1,000X greater than in overlying water (Ash 02); POC formation by wastewater bacteria (*See* 'Biofilms: floc...')
- mycobacteria, MB (mycobacteriosis) and NTM Indexed in a totally separate file
- mycolata- mycolic acid containing, hydrophobic bacteria (e.g., Mycobacterium, Nocardia,

Rhodococcus, etc)- Angenent 05, de los Reyes 97)

- mycoplasma are small bacteria without cell walls (N65, 287)
- mycorrhizae, fungi symbiotically associated with roots of terrestrial plants (N766, **772**) and aquatic plants (Christensen 98; Raven 88b; **Sharma 98**); common in aquatic plants, dependent on root oxygenation (WW 545)
- N processes of (Gilbert 97; Payne 73; Rheinheimer 85) and genera of bacteria involved in various steps (WW513) *See also* 'Nitrification', 'Denitrification', *and under* 'Bacteria': 'DAP', 'Anammox', 'Ammonification', 'N2 fixation', *and* 'nitrate respiration'
- N2 fixation by various cyanobacteria (N275, 769, 773), converts detritus to food (Mann 72); and sediment bacteria, assoc. with aquatic plants (Barko 91a; Neori 17)
- nitrate respiration (Gamble 77; **Payne 73**; Rheinheimer 85); identification of nitrate-respiring bacteria genera in estuary mudflats (**MacFarlane 82**); *E. coli* convert nitrates to nitrite and then to ammonia (N151); *Pseudomonas aeruginosa* uses nitrates (N556); *Citrobacter* sp. produces mainly nitrite from added nitrates, and nitrites tend to go to NH₄⁺ more than N₂O (**Smith 82**); energy yield is only 10% less than when O2 is e- receptor (Rheinheimer 86); 10,000 X more

bacteria doing nitrate respiration than denitrification to N_2 (Jones 81); *Vibrio* bacteria that do nitrate respiration shift to DAP with higher C/N ratio (**MacFarland 82**)

- normal flora protects animal from pathogens by decreasing attachment sites and nutrients and producing acid and inhibitors (**N368**); dynamic nature of and changes in population with environmental factors (**N453**); bacteria accumulate on non-shedding surface like teeth (N613); Lactobacillus release H₂O2 and acid, which inhibits other bacteria (N651); bacteria invading the intestine must be able to attach (N623); menaquinone synthesis by intestinal bacterial provides Vitamin K (N151); intestinal bacteria synthesize vitamins that body can use (N614); specific examples of inter-bacterial competition; face skin (N524), genital tract (N651, 656), *Clostridium difficile* infections (N453), and botulism (N692); species associated with healthy fish are *Bacillus, Achromobacter, Pseudomonas, Aeromonas, Streptococcus* (**Walters 80**); gut bacteria kept in check by gut immune cells (**Ismail 09**; Rawls 04) *See also* 'probiotics'
- *Nocardia* in wastewater tx (de los Reyes 97; McKinney 04) don't compete well with ordinary bacteria (McKinney 04)
- nutrient uptake, advantage over algae- Kerr 72; W217, 498
- nutrient immobilization (Boon 87a,b; Durako 87; Elwood 88; Kistritiz 78; Lewis 86; Nichols 76; Reddy 77; Rheinheimer 85; Russel 73; Thimann 63; Wild 88); 2/3 of organic matter decomposition used for synthesizing new cell mass (McKinney 04)
- oxygen requirements are fairly fixed for bacterial species (Ash 02; **N95**); example with nitrifying species (Gieseke 01); fungi are aerobic (McKinney 04)
- oxygen toxicity: *mcr/A* gene (codes for catalase) for O2 tolerance by methanogenes (**Angle 17**; Grossart 11)
- pasteurization (72C for 15 sec), quick heat kills many pathogens (N115)
- pathogens, attentuated by passage in culture (N416); meningococcal strains from patient infections more virulent than those in normal flora (N687); to algae (Freeman 77); opportunistic fish pathogens found in normal fish microflora (**del Rio-Rodriguez 99**); pathogens shed their genomic material as they evolved from free-living bacteria- **Ochman 06**
- pelagic bacteria (**WW489**) feed on transparent organic colloids (**Azam 98**); planktonic bacteria in ocean is 105-107 (N326)
- pH, effect on activity (Connell 68; Kelly 84; Ross 89); adaptation to low pH (Ash 02)
- phage (**N319**), phage-typing (N218); phage conc. in natural waters high (2.5 X 10⁸) and probably controls bacteria populations (**N326**); phage reduced *Aeromonas* disease in trout (**Ellis 07**); viruses in wetland sediments (**Neori 17**)
- phosphate accumulation by PAO bacteria in wastewater tx (Crocetti 00; Gieseke 01; McKinney 04);
- P storage as volutin granules by *Spirillum* species useful for wastewater tx (N71, 286) photosynthetic bacteria (Raymond 02) include the purple and green anaerobic bacteria (**N273, 159**);
 - WW317) in addition to the aerobic cyanobacteria (N274)

pigments of *Psuedomonas aeruginosa*- N556); rhodopsin for photosynthesis and energy accumulation in marine bacteria (N763)

Planctomycetes responsible for anammox- Pynaert 03; Strous 99,

- plant-associated bacteria in soils is specific (N767) *Agrobacterium tumefaciens* and the Ti plasmid (N212, 281); plant hormone production (Donahue 83; Gunnison 89; Russel 73; Wild 88) *See also* mycorrhizae
- population distribution (Duarte 88; Kistritz 78; Mann 72; Spotte 79); Westerman 93; Wild 88); sediment top layer (oxidized microzone) has 1,000 X more than overlying water (WW636); distribution of a microbial species is worldwide due to small size (Ash 02); numbers in marine sediments/mulm/water (Ash 02); population turnover is 67-375 per year (WW661); 0.5 X 10⁶ to 4 X 10⁶ bacteria/ml of natural waters (WW493, 495, 651)
- probiotics: review of products and their efficacy in treating animals (**Hong 05**): Bacillus spores help control *Vibrio* disease in prawns (**Moriarty 98**); in *Artemia* culture (Verschuere 97) and aquaculture (**Verschuere 00b**); use in treating fish diseases (**Hong 05; Spanggaard 01**); bacteria from fish's normal flora protected frish from Vibrio pathogen (**Spanggard 01**)

prokaryotes include Bacteria and Archaea- N10

protozoa feed preferentially on bacteria (rich food source)- McKinney 04

Pseudomonads dominate aquatic environment (Leclerc 03; Spanggaard 01); their numbers increase in well-fed *Artemia* cultures (Gorospe 96); all Pseudomonads produce siderophores (Spanggaard 01) such they can be used to control disease (**Spanggard 01**) by removing the Fe required by pathogenic bacteria (Verschuere 00a,b); do well in nutrient-poor environments (e.g., distilled water) (N489)

purple and green bacteria- N273, 763

quorum sensing by bacteria of their population density based on lactone synthesis (N186)

- radiation resistance of: *Deinococcus radiodurans* can survive 1,000 X the lethal dose (to humans) of gamma radiation (N279).
- respiration of (N156): electron acceptor flexibility (Daalsgaard 94; **Methe 03**; Oremland 03); e.g., the same bacteria can switch from Fe⁺³ to sulfur reduction (Methe 03); Warren 03); competition between fermenters and respirators (**Pfeiffer 01**)

rhizosphere ecology in sediments and wetland plants (**Barko 1991a; Neori 17**); viruses and bacteriophages (**Neori 17**)

S oxidation and reduction (Connell 68; Jones 81; Joshi 77; Kemp 72; N156; Pulich 82; WW315; Westerman 93; Zinder 78); SRB also can reduce nitrate to ammonia (Daalsgaard 94) and remove Zn from wastewater (Labrenz 00); SRB (Connell 68; Ross 89; W324) grow best with a reducing agent (Daalsgard 94); sulfide oxidation combined with nitrate reduction (N268; Schulze-R 92) salt tolerance and requirements: halophiles require 9% NaCl and can tolerate 32% NaCl (N289);

tolerance of various *Mycobacterium* species (Astrofsky 00)

saprophytic bacteria defined as those that grow on culture media rich in labile organics- WW493

- sediment- bacteria of freshwater and saltwater sediments (review) (Nealson 97); Barko 91; Blotnick 80; Bristow 74; Duarte 88; Gunnison 89; Laabroek 90; Spotte 79; W593; Westerman 93); gram positive bacteria comprise 20% of sediment bacteria (Moriarty 98)
- Shewanella bacteria, compared to Geobacteria (Methe 03); several species inhabit Zebrafish gut (Rawl 04)
- siderophores produced to chelate Fe (**Tsai 88**) help dissolve Fe in sediments (Ash 02); all *Pseudomonas* produce siderophores (Spanggaard 01)
- size of a bacterium is 0.2 to 3.0 um (N10,14; WW519); sediment bacteria are 0.18 um, planktonic are 0.04 um (Duarte 88); volume is 0.03 um³ (Geesey 78); length about 1 um (Costerton 87); of *P. aeruginosa* (Marshall 76); weight of a bacterium is 2 X 10⁻¹³ g (Kistritz 78); size of mycobacteria rods are 1- 4 uM X 0.2- 0.6 uM (Decostere 04); largest bacteria are 200 um (N15)
- $\frac{1}{1}$
- snails, interactions with bacteria (Mann 73); as reservoir for mycobacteria (Decostere 04; Marsollier
 04a)
- species distribution is worldwide due to small size (Ash 02); in *Artemia* cultures, both environment and the starting inocculum determine the species composition of the bacterial microflora
 - (**Verschuere 97**); 4,000 species/g soil (N256)
- spore formation (N71), development, and survival in animal gut- Hong 05
- storage cpds of bacteria are mainly glycogen and poly-β-hydroxylbutyric acid polymer (McKinney
- 04); also, phosphate in volutin chambers (N70)
- surface area necessary for most bacteria involved in decomposition- Wetzel 92
- surface scum bacteria identified- de los Reyes 97 See also 'Biofilms': 'surface scum'

symbiosis with plants (Barko 91; Blotnick 80; Boon 86a,b; Capone 82; DeBusk 89; Duarte 88;

Durako 87; Gersberg 76; Gunnison 89; Pulich 82; Reed 88; Russel 73; Sand-Jensen 91;

Underwood 91; Wetzel 85) and algae (Allen 72; King 72; Tenny 72; W226, 504)

- taxonomy: 'tree of life', 3 domains—based on ribosomal RNA sequence analysis--are archaea, bacteria, and eukaryotes; bacteria and archaea are prokaryotes, comparison to old classification with 5 kingdoms (Nealson 97); classification of bacteria according to medical, environmental, and metabolic characteristics (N266), phyla/class grouping (N249), evolutionary relatedness (N260); bacteria of human intestinal bacteria (Eckburg 05); families of aquatic bacteria that decompose proteins (WW513); 70% similarity in DNA hybridization means same species (N261); higher temperature increases release of extracellular products (Chen 97); heat disinfection and pasteurization (N116); hyperthermophiles grow at >100C (N290)
- terrestrial bacteria are aquatic (Fair 94; Marshal 76; Mills 96); terrestrial soil bacteria used to study aquatic processes such as nitrification (Cox 80: Powell 92; Stephens 98); no evidence that dentrifying bacteria found in soils and sediments are different species (Gamble 77)
- toxins: endotoxins of gram-negatives and exotoxins of gram-positives (N467); enterotoxins of *Bacillus cereus* cause food poisoning and diarrhae (Hong 05); toxin of *Mycobacterium ulcerans* (Marsollier 04)

uranium ppt by bacteria- Methe 03

UV light kills bacteria (**Hijnen 06**; LeChevallier 04; N120) more than planktonic algae, because of smaller size and absence of protective pigments (Kaiser 97)

Vibrio assoc. with sea phytoplankton (N624); infections in prawns (Moriarty 98), Artemia

(Verschuere 97), and salmon (Maule 80) can tolerate the high salinity of the *Artemia* environment (Gorospe 96)

viruses See 'Bacteria/Phage'

Vitamin B production by (McDowell 17)

wastewater tx bacteria identified- de los Reyes 97; Keith 05

Zn ppt as ZnS by SRB- Ash 02; Labrenz 00

Bicarbonate-

acclimation required for bicarbonate use in aquatic plants that can use bicarbs, must be induced (**Hussner 16**); *H. difformis* doesn't need to change leaf morphology following submergence (**Horiguchi 19**)

algae, unlike SAMs, has no preference for CO2 over bicarbonates (Allen 81); many algae use bicarbonates (Prins 89)

alkaline habitat of *N. peltata* is due to its need for Ca, not bicarbonates- **Smits 92**

amphibious plant species (H. difformis, etc) that develop use of bicarbonates in their submerged

leaves following adaptation to submergence (Horuguchi 19; Nielsen)

aquarium plant depletion of bicarbonates within 4 wks, uptake is increased by intense light (Horst 86 p79)

benefits to plants in nutrient media: added to saturate PS for P. pectinatus (Pilon 02);

bicarbonate-using plants don't do as well as non-users (obligate CO2 users) with increased natural

CO2 levels (**Titus 17**); DIC enrichment comparison for 21 species (bicarb, sediment and nonbicarb users), <u>but</u> at the pH 6 used, it provides all plants with more CO2 as well as bicarbonates (**Pagano 07**)

biogenic decalcification: (Adamec 93; Allen 81; Horst 86; King 72; Prins 89; Reiskind 89; WW202); reaction for (Elderfield 02; WW203); crusts on upper surface of leaves (Frost 95; Kirk 94; Prins 89) or intercellular space of marine macroalgae (Reiskind 89); marl encrustations derive C from the plant (Hough 75); polar v. non-polar uptake (Prins 82);); summer decrease in lake water due to ppt of CaCO3 (WW178); polarized upper leaf with alkaline pH may impede epiphytic algae (Sand-Jensen 83); lower side of leaf has pH of 4-7, while uppper side can be 10-11 (Prins 89); removal from the water (KH decreases) within 4 weeks by 8 different aquarium plant species

(Horst 1986, p. 79)

buffering action- W203

C source in laboratory culture of plants (Smart 85; Smith 93); CO2 a much better source even for hardwater SAMs (Sand-Jensen 82)

Ca increases bicarbonate uptake (Barko 83a) but it is not essential (Adamec 93) carbonic anhydrase converts bicarbonates to CO2 (Kirk 94; Prins 89; Reiskind 89) within the extracellular space of aquatic plants (van Veen 21); extracellular action in seagrasses (**Beer 97**); effect of enzyme inhibitor on bicarbonate uptake in seagrasses (Hellblom 99); 3 types o global warming/acid rain: incr CO2 will not change species composition, because bicarb conc. so

great, but incr bicarb due to human acticity will incr the proportion of bicar users (Iversen 19)
growth and PS rates: growth of *V. americana* and *E. canadensis* was 4 and 13 X better in bicarb-containing media (4.4 mM) than Gerloff media (no bicarbs) (Smith 93); for *Ranunculus aquatilis* at air CO2 levels, growth increased 13-fold with increasing bicarb conc. (0.2 to 1.5 mM), saturated at 1.5 mM (Madsen 93); for *Elodea* at air CO2 got a 50% increase when bicarb increased (0.2 to 1 mM) while for *Elodea canadensis* at 1 mM bicarb, got a 6 -fold increase with CO2 increase (20- 600 uM) (Madsen 93); for *Potamogeton pectinatus*, PS two-fold better with 5 mM in media than 1.7 mM DIC at pH 7.5 when ~5% of DIC would be CO2 (Sand-Jensen 87); 4.6 mM DIC was high enough to saturate PS in *P. pectinatus* (Pilon 02); PS growth and PS of *E. canadensis* increased linearly with HCO3 increase from 0.1 to 1-2 mM, plants did poorly in soft water (Madsen 87); growth of 10 bicarbonate-using species in media with bicarbonates or CO2, growth rates correlate with PS (Hussner 16); in 21 species from Adirondacks, growth rate stimulation by CO2 fertilization correlates with bicarb use (Pagano 07)

hardwater SAMs need some in the water (Huebert 83; Smith 93) or not (Smits 92);

KHCO₃ worked about 30% better (PS rate) than NaHCO₃ added to tapwate r (Sand-Jensen 83)
levels in freshwater at pH 8.4 in equilibrium with air are 1 mM, while CO2 is only 10 uM (Prins 82); in normal hardwater lakes, 60% of anions are bicarb, bicarb con. > 100 ppm HCO3-, pH > 8 (WW 188); and seawater (W203) are 2- 2.3 mM (Madsen 91) representing 28 mg/l of DIC (Bowen 79); calculates to be 122-140 mg/l of bicarbonates (DLW 93); are 170X the CO2 concentration of 35 uM (Beer 97); free CO2 in seawater is 10 uM (Hellblom 99)

- lakes have bicarbonate users, streams obligate CO2 users; increased water HCO- magnifies the differences, incr CO2 does not (**Iversen 19**);
- levels in natural waters: ave for world's rivers is 58 mg/l (ranging from 31 for South America to 95 for Europe) (WW170) or up to 10 mM (Madsen 93); summer decrease due to ppt of CaCO3 (WW178)
- limitations of plant use (Allen 72, 81; Horst 85; Madsen 91; Nielsen 93; Prins 89; Svedang 92; Titus 90; W219), such as need for transport system (Bowes 91; Prins 89; Reiskind 89); one-half can be taken up as CO2, the other half is bound and unavailable for PS (Rabinowitch 69)
- mechanisms of uptake: three routes, two involving carbonic anhydrase and a third involving acidification by ATP ases (van Veen 21); main ones are direct uptake and extracellular leaf acidification converting HCO3 to CO2 (Beer 97; Hussner 16); active, energy requiring uptake of HCO3- (transport into the cell) followed by dehydration within cytoplasma--via carbonic dehydrase--and excretion of OH- (WW202)

measurement of uptake by adjusting pH to 6 for CO2 uptake v. pH 8.3 for bicarbonate uptake, using

10 mM NaHCO3 in the measurement media and measuring pH changes (**Horiguchi 19** pH changed to only 7.7 following addition of saturating conc (200 mg/l) of bicarbs (Pilon 02) reduction of Cu toxicity by CuCO₃ formation- Pagenkopf 86

SAMs need some in the water (Huebert 83) or not (Smits 92)

species variation: comprehensive list of bicarbonate v. CO2 users containing many aquarium plants (Iversen 19); native species from acidic lakes in Adirondacks (Pagano 07; Titus 17); about half of aquatic plants can use bicarbonates (Duger 17); plants from hardwater that can't use bicarbonates (Hutchinson 75; Sand-Jensen 83); species that can and cannot use bicarbonates (Iversen 19; Prins 82; Yin 17); bicarbonate use in 8 *Myriophyllum* species correlates with better growth rate (Dulger 17); amphibious plants can't use bicarbonates (Bowes 87, 93; Bristow 69), but some can (Frost 95) such as *H. difformis* (Horiguchi 19) and two stream species (Nielsen 93)

storage (battery-like) of CO2 for PS- Allen 72; King 72; Titus 90

streams See above under 'lakes'

uptake by plants (Allen 81; Madsen 91b; Prins 89; Sand-Jensen 87); is inhibited by high CO2 (Adamec 93); variation in 10 species, costly and must be induced; high CO2 will suppress bicarbonate capacity (Hussner 16); plants prefer CO2 to bicarbonates 10:1 (WW 202); causes release of OH- and biogenic decalcification (Adamec 93; Allen 81; Reiskind 89); confers competitive advantage (Madsen 91b); uptake by seagrasses (Hellblom 99) less efficient than marine macroalgae (Beers 97); polar v. non-polar uptake (Prins 82) world-wide distribution of bicarbonate users (Iversen 19)

Biofilms-

algae, biofilms formed on by mycobacteria (Marsollier 04)

amoeba and other protozoa feed on biofilm bacteria- LeChevallier 04; Lederberg 00; McKinney 04; anammox-nitrification- Pynaert 03

- antibiotics and bactericides less effective when used on bacteria in a biofilm: nitrifying bacteria from nitrapyrin (Powell 92), *Pseudomonas aeruginosa* from antibiotics (Costerton 86), and SDS (Davies 98); *Nitrosospira* from DNA extraction techniques (freeze-thawing/hot phenol/SDS)(Schramm 98); mycobacteria from bleach and other chemicals (Bardouniotis 03)
- *Bacillus* produce biofilms (Hong 05); degrade biofilms of gram-negative bacteria with extracellular enzymes (Moriarty 98)
- bacteria shedding from biofilms (Bardouniotis 03; Hall-S 98; 99); shedding of *S. aureus*, *P. aeruginosa*, and *M. fortuitum* (Hall-S 05); increased water nutrients stimulates shedding (Hall-S 99)

CaPO₄ ppt in a wastewater biofilm- Christensen 89 chemotaxis, motility, and O2 sensing in- Ash 02 clay particles trapped with a biofilm- Costerton 80 communication between bacteria essential for biofilm structure (Davies 98); communication with

algae (Joint 02)

degradation of biofilms by Bacillus enzymes- Moriarty 98

denitrification (Dalsgaard 92) better in a thicker biolfilm (Christensen 89); occurs throughout all layers (**Masuda 91**)

dental plaque- London 96; Ellen 96

dormant nitrifying bacteria within the center- Schramm 99

drinking water biofilms common (LeChevallier 04); vigorous EM growth on silastic rubber in sterile tapwater (Hall-S 99)

exopolysaccarides (EPS) of bacteria characterized (Davies 98; **Read 87**); most released into the media and can't be degraded by the producing bacteria (Read 87); formation has a metabolic cost (Belas 96); resistance to bacterial degradation but fungi can slowly degrade them (McKinney 04); EPS are an extension of the bacterium's capsule (N66; WW577); extracellular polymeric substances (EPS) in soil biofilms (**Cai 19**)

experimental models for studying biofilm development by mycobacteria under high and low nutrient conditions (Hall-S 99; LeChevallier 04)

FISH studies of filter bacteria- Burrell 01; Crocetti 00; Gieseke 01; Pynaert 03; Strous 99

floc formation in sewage tx; floc composed of ordinary soil bacteria species that aggregate once they have completed rapid growth phase (**McKinney 04**); when flocculants (e.g., alum) added, DOC colloids aggregate and bridge with living and/or dead cells (WW737); 19% of DOC becomes bacteria-rich, N-deficient POC aggregates during decomposition (WW 652)

genetic exchange in biofilms- London 96

glycopeptidolipids essential for biofilm formation in mycobacteria (**Recht 01**)

growth of bacteria faster in a biofilm than planktonic culture (**Hall-S 99; 98**; Marsollier 04); biofilm development under high and low nutrient conditions (**Hall-S 99**)

hydrophobicity of surface affects structure (**Dalton 94**), biofilm formation in mycobacteria requires a hydrophobic outer layer of glycopeptidolipids (**Recht 01**); formation on plastic and rubber (Hall-S 99)

intestinal microflora exist as mixed biofilms attached to mucosal epithelium- Eckburg 05; Hong 05 layer studies of biofilms show gradients of oxygen, bacterial activity (Masuda 91) cross-section wise and longitudinally (**Schramm 99**)

- maturation of wastewater biofilm took 5 weeks (Masuda 91); but only 48 hr for mycobacteria (Hall-S 98; 99); requires quorum sensing of bacteria's population density (N186), area and height of developing biofilm (Hall-S 99) See also 'Bacteria shedding...'
- metabolic activity and density in biofilm layer (**Dalsgaard 92; Masuda 91; Schramm 99**); e.g., fermenters and methanogens (Ash 02)
- metabolic exchange in biofilms- London 96
- metal corrosion due to SRB- Costerton 87

microenvironments, not just horizontal layers in a biofilm (**Masuda 91**; Peiffer 94); anaerobic microenvironments created by aerobes depleting all O2 (N270)

miscellaneous examples- natural flora of human body, ruminate digestion, infection of medical implant devices (**Costerton 87**; Potera 96); tapwater pipes (Hall-S 99; **LeChevallier 04**)

model of discrete columns of bacteria separated by water-filled voids (Dalton 94; Marshall 96;

Potera 96; WW584) show biofilm maturation (Hall-S 98); no homogeneity (Christensen 89) motility of bacteria within a biofilm- **Hall-S 05**

mulm See 'Biofilms': 'floc'

nature of a biofilm- Christensen 89; Dalton 94; Davies 98; Lion 88; N89; Read 87; Masuda 91

neuston (WW134) is a type of biofilm- Fletcher 96; Mills 96 See also 'surface scum'

nitrification (**Cox 80; Gieseke 01**); species of ammonia oxidizers and nitrite oxidizing bacteria are associated together (**Pynaert 03; Schramm 98,99**)

nitrification-denitrification (Masuda 91; Timberlake 88) and nitrification-Anammox (Jetten 99;

Pynaert 03)

nutrients in water stimulate shedding but don't affect the size of the biofilm (Hall-S 99)

oxidizing and reducing bacteria in same biofilm (Ash 02; Labrenz 00); dormant nitrifiers in an

anaerobic filter (i.e., anammox)- Jetten 99

periphyton is synonomous with biofilm- WW132

pipes, size and composition greatly affect biofilm growth- LeChevallier 04

polysaccharides See 'exopolysaccharides'

Pseudomonas aeruginosa linked to disease, material fouling, natural environment- Davies 93 quorum sensing (**Davies 93**)

S cycling (Habicht 03; Peiffer 94; Zinder 78); S ppt with Zn by SRB (Ash 02; Labrenz 00)

slime and bacteria in a nitrification filter (Cox 80) and in nature (Geesey 78)

soil biofilms, organization and structure, review (**Cai 19**); not the same as trickle filter biofilm (Cox 80)

soil processes- Mills 96

strategies for bacterial adhesion- Belas 96; Silverman 84

stream-associated bacteria and algae- Geesey 78

surface attachment activates gene for EPS production- Davies 93; Fletcher 96

surface scum, formation of foam by hydrophobic polysaccarides, which attract hydrophobic bacteria like the mycolata (*Nocardia*, etc) (de los Reyes 97; McKinney 04) and mycobacteria (Primm 04); fungi will grow at air-water interface (McKinney 04); neuston, water surface association of algae, bacteria, and protozoa (WW134); natural waters have a 0.1 mm "microlayer" consisting of hydrophobic organic molecules and enriched 1.6 to 341 X in nutrients N,P,C as compared to the bulk water (**Mills 96**); hydrophobic DOC collects at surface (Primm 04)

surfaces in nature possess a negative charge that attracts cations and food for bacteria- Marshall 96

wastewater biofilm contains aerobic and anaerobic heterotrophs throughout all layers (Larbrenz 00;

Masuda 91; Pfeiffer 01)

water treatment systems: water pipe biofilms are source of mycobacteria in drinking water

(Falkinham 01; Torvinen 04; Tsintzou 00)

water channels in biofilm (Bardouniotis 03) are 5-50 um- WW584

C (Carbon)-

- accclimation and loss of PS efficiency with increasing levels of either bicarbonates or CO2 in *Ranunculus aquaticus* (Madsen 93); acclimation in Elodea and Ranunculus but not CO2-obligate using Callitriche (Madsen 96) similar to terrestrial plant species (Hussner 16; Madsen 96); plants acclimated for 35 days to low CO2 showed much greater PS than non-acclimated plants for bicarbonates (Hussner 16)
- C:N ratios: 3:1 for bacteria, 10:1 for protozoa (NRCS 2007); 6.6 in seawater increases with increasing atm CO2 (Riesbesell 07); C:N of sediment humus is 20-26 and peat at 35 is low reflecting a low N content (WW 632) and 12 to 29 for POC and DOC in lake water (WW 224)
- cycling: in freshwater (**Allen 72**; **King 72**) and oceans (**Azam 98; Elderfield 02; Riesbesell 07**); lakes are a source (not a sink) of CO2 (Cole 94); DIC from both respiration and photo-oxidation of DOC (Graneli 96); oceans as a C sink (Ash 02); bacteria greatly affect oceanic primary production (**Azam 98**)
- DIC: DIC rises with CO2 injection from 0.40 mM to 0.8-0.95 mM in nutrient media; at 0.85 DIC, "high" CO2 at pH 6.7 is 263 uM and "low" CO2 (air equilibrium) at 8.2 is 12 uM (Hussner 16); *Myriophyllum* species tested with 0.5, 1, 1.5, and 2 mM DIC increasingly better with higher concentrations (Duger 17); LC (44 uM DIC) and HC (246 uM DIC) were kept--with HCl titration--at pH 6 where 71% of DIC was CO2; HC ('high CO2') produced much higher growth of plants (Pagano 07); DIC of seawater varies from 2 to 2.3 mM (Madsen 91); this is 24-28 mg/l C or 1 mM DIC = 12 mg/l; ½ tsp of baking soda added to 1 gal of tank water (KH = 3) increased KH by 2 degrees (from 3 to 5) (DLW 9/2022); alkalinity recommended for regular media and hardwater media is 0.85 and 1.8 DIC (Smart 85); with DIC of 0.85 mM for LC and HC, at pH 6.8 (HC), ~27% is CO2 (230 uM CO2) or about 23X air equilibrium while at pH 8.3 (LC), ~3% CO2 and is 26 uM or about 2X air equilibrium (Dulger 17, DLW 2022)
- drawdown of atmospheric CO2 increases water C (Martin 90; Post 90; Schindler 72); increases DIC and acidifies seawater (Riesebesell 07)
- freshwater median levels of C in freshwater are 11 mg/l with range of 6-19 (Bowen 79; or 5-5,000 uM DIC (Cole 94)
- seawater median levels of C are 28 mg/l (Bowen 79) or 2-2.5 mM of bicarbonates (Madsen 91; Reiskind 89)
- global cycling (Bowes 91, 93; Post 90; Rabinowitch 69; Raven 93); effect of oceans on (Riesbesell
 07) See also 'Eutrophication:global warming'

limiting nutrient of marine phytoplankton (Holbrook 88; Raven 93) and seagrasses but not macroalgae (Beer 97)
measurements of flux (Kelly 84; King 72; Rich 78; W694-704; Wild 88) in oceans (Riesbesell 07)
non-living C much more than living C- W506, 668
peat to coal- Brown 00
Redfield Ratio (C:N:P) is 106:16:1 for marine algae but 474:24:1 for seagrasses reflecting their structural demands for C (Touchette 00)
sources of DOC are PS (both aquatic and terrestrial)- W681
stability of concentration- Kelly 84; W680; Wild 88
strategies for plant C uptake (Bowes 87; Yin 17) See also 'CO2 Uptake Strategies'

Ca (Calcium)

ammonium preference linked to calcifuges- Foy 78; Gigon 72; Lewis 86; Rorison 60a, 60b, 84 binding to humus, DOC, vitamins, and metals (Otsuki 74) is less tight than heavy metals (Hepler 85; Martin 84; Nieboer 80)

biogenic decalcification removes Ca from hardwater lakes, especially during the summer months (WW178); depletes KH (Horst 86, p79) *See also* 'Bicarbonates:biogenic decalcification'

Ca ppts: in animals (Roesijadi 94); plant Ca in oxalate crystals is unavailable to the plant (Brewbaker 63); CaPO4 ppt in biofilms due to denitrification-induced pH increase (Christensen 89)

- calcicole versus calcifuge plants (Lewis 86; Rorison 60a, 60b, 84); organic acid composition or root exudates (Tyler 95; Huang 95); Ca requirements and tissue accumulation (Clarkson 65; Jeffries 64; Sabba 93)
- calcification is due to pH rise caused by PS use of either CO2 or bicarbonates (Reiskind 89); calcification causes Ca and C loss (**Otsuki 74**) and micronutrient loss from DOC binding to CaCO₃ (Wetzel 72) and a decrease in conductivity (W191)
- calcifuge plants, common in tropics and associated with Al tolerance and an ammonium-based nutrition (Davies 97; Donahue 83; Foy 78; Gigon 72; Lewis 86; Rorison 84, 86); P and micronutrient deficiencies when grown on calcareous soils (**Tyler 96; Zohlen 97**)
- deficiency symptoms in aquatic plants (Huebert 91; Krombholz T6(5); Newman 88); death without it in the water (Huebert 83; Newman 88) may be due to metal toxicity (Huebert 83; Smit 92)
 exocytosis, definition of- Cruetz 84
- functions as extracellular stabilizer (Nieboer 80; Wood 92); association with pectin (Brewbaker 63); secondary messenger role in animals (Alema 84; Creutz 84; Martin 84; Silbergeld 80) and plants (Bush 94; Hepler 85; Sabba 93); essential for lamina production and petiole extension in a waterlily (Smit 92), circadian rhythm in Euglena (Lonergan 90), exocytosis in barley grain (Gilroy 92; Zorec 92), chloroplast movement in duckweed (Thalke 93), red light stimulation of wheat phytochromes (Shacklock 92)

general-W188

growth and bicarbonate utilization- Barko 83a

inhibition of calcifuge species (Rorison 60A, 60B, 84; Sabba 93; Vickery 84) is enhanced by nitrates

(Rorison 84); no toxic effect on calcifuge mosses (**Bates 90**); moderate inhibition of Najas flexis above 20 ppm (Hutchinson 75)

intracellular Ca levels kept low to prevent precipitation of organic phosphates (Helpler 85) intracellular calcium channels: Fe uptake in pea plants (Cohen 98); types in terrestrial plants (Felle

- 91; Huang 94; Pineros 97) and Riccia fluitans (Felle 91) are common to all organisms (Hepler 85; Huang 94); inactivated by heavy metals (Huang 96; Marshall 94; Pineros 93, 97) heavy metals can compete with Ca for uptake by these channels in animals (Markich 94; Roesijadi 94; Scharff 96) and plants (Marshall 94; Shacklock 92); involvement in moss reproduction (Conrad 88)
- K antagonism (Donahue 83; Rorison 60a) and toxic metals (Markich 94; Winner 92) due to competitive uptake by calcium channels (Kostyuk 80; Markich 94; Roesijadi 94; Scharff 96; Zia 94) or gating control (Felle 91); assists Ca (Brewbaker 63)
- lake levels of: summer decrease due to ppt of CaCO3 (WW178)

lime-induced chlorosis (Rorison 60a, b, 84; Russel 73; Wild 88) not due to Fe (Tyler 96; Zohlen 97)

P and K deficiencies of plants on calcareous soils- Rorison 60a; Tyler 96

peat as metal chelator (Spinti 95: Bailey 99); can absorb 4% of its dry wt as metal (Brown 00)

plant development, role in- Bush 94; Hepler 85

release from clay during waterlogging- Ponnamperuma 81

- reproduction in animals (Weber 94) and plants (Bush 94; Gopal 69; Hepler 85; Sabba 93); required for pollen germination (**Brewbaker 63**), budding (**Conrad 88**), rhizoid elongation (**Miller 83**), and spore germination (Iino 87)
- resistance to Al toxicity (Davies 97; Lewis 86; Rorison 60a, 60b, 84; Russel 73; Wild 88) due to malate secretion in wheat roots (Huang 96)

root uptake from apical portion only- Wild 88

- sea shells contain CaCO₃ and about 15% MgCO₃- Dickson 02
- sediment levels of- Painter 88

storage of excess Ca in vacuoles (Rorison 84); high levels in cell walls (Hepler 85)

toxicity of Ca to organisms much less than heavy metals (Nieboer 80)

uptake by plants (Brinson 76; DeMarte 77; Gerloff 75; Glass 89; Gopal 86; Huebert 91; W188+), fish (Perry 85), and algae (Gerloff 75; Otsuki 74; W188); uptake competitive with K (Donahue 83; Rorison 60a) and metals (McCracken 87; Nieboer 80; Wood 92)

water Ca essential for some aquatic plants (Huebert 83; Newman 88; Smit 92); natural softwater with

4-5 ppm Ca is probably enough for aquatic plants (Huebert 83; Welsh 93); *Lemna triscula* needs

1.1 ppm of external Ca (Huebert 91); *N. peltata* needs 1.2 ppm (Smits 92), *Potamogeon pectinatus* needs 2 ppm (Huebert 83)

Zn toxicity to plants in soils can be neutralized by Ca and neutral pH- Foy 78; Rorison 84

Chelators-

Al toxicity decreased by root tip release of malate- **Huang 96**

artificial chelators, types of- Anderson 82; Polar 86; Whittaker T92a

caffeic acid as Fe chelator- Hether 84; Hopkins 95; Romheld 83

Cd toxicity and accumulation in duckweed reduced by chelators (Polar 86)

citric and oxalic acid are released by calcicole roots and do remove Fe and P from the soil (**Tyler 95**) definition of, binds at 2 or more sites- Nieboer 80

EDTA used to reduce metal toxicity in fish (Fitzgerald 69; Russo 85) and phytoplankton (Goldman 73); binds to metals more than Ca (Martin 84); prevents Hg uptake in duckweed (Mo 89); can be a source or sink for Fe (Anderson 82; Polar 86; Rich 90); chemical structure of (Hopkins 95)

Fe and Mn compete- Ponnamperuma 81

Fe binding inhibits algae (Anderson 82; Rich 90) and non-siderophore bacteria (Spanggard 01)

Fe chelators in blue-green algae (**Wilhelm 94**), diatoms (**Anderson 82**), and plants (Cohen 98; Hopkins 95; Romheld 83) *See also* Algae:siderophores

ferrozine traps Fe^{2+} and prevents algae growth; EDTA traps Fe^{3+} and is less effective- Rich 90

humic acid and EDTA both bind metals and prevent plant uptake by water hyacinth (Mo 89; Nor 86) and toxicity in fish (Sprague 85); humic, fulvic, hydrophillic acids make up 75% of lake water DOC (Thurman 85)

organic compounds, such as citrate (Lacroix 93) and amino acids are not efficient chelators (Martin 84; Nor 86); but may work *in situ* (Tyler 95); stability constants of EDTA v. organic acids

(Martin 84)

problems with cation switching- Lindsay 84; Reddy 77

siderophores and oxalate increase Fe dissolution rates (Ash 02) *See also* 'Bacteria: Siderophores' stability constants of EDTA and Ca, Mg, Mn, Fe, Zn (Anderson 82; Brand 83; Martin 84; Reddy 77; Romheld 83) and Hg, Cu, Pb, Zn, Ca, etc with humic acids (Markich 94; Thurman 85); EDTA &

DPTA v. organic acids (Martin 84)

stability of chelator (Reddy 77) and susceptibility to photooxidation (Bisson 92) studies using- Allen 72; Giesy 78; Goldman 72; Reddy 77; Wetzel 72; Wurtsbaugh 88

CO2-

aquarium levels- 23 ppm (Horst 1986, p. 167)

acclimation and down-regulation of PS with increasing CO2 (Dulger 17), both CO2 and

bicarbonates for Elodea and Ranunculus but not CO2 plant Callitriche (Madsen 96);

affinity of plants for (Allen 81; Barko 91b; Bowes 87, 89; Krombholz T4(4); Lloyd 77; Madsen 91;

Salvucci 82) correlates with their growth rate (Nielsen 91; Pagano 07)

air diffusion enough? <u>Yes</u> (Martin 90; **Morton 72**; Nielsen 93; **Schindler 72**); surveys of lakes show 3-30X more CO2 than would occur with air diffusion (WW189); diffusion of CO2 is generally

adequate to meet C requirements in lakes that are not ultra softwater or heavily contaiminated with N&P (WW277); <u>No</u>, even 10 X air equilbrium not enough (**Madsen 91b**; Smart 85), even for marine algae (Holbrook 88; Raven 93); air diffusion levels with adequate DIC are considered LC (Low-carbon, pH 9) in comparisons to HC (High-carbon at pH 6) (Hussner 16) *See also* 'Gases; CO2 levels...'

- air equilibrium conc. of CO2 is 10 uM and 0.5 mg/l at ~25°C in pure water (**WW188**) *See also* 'Gases; CO2 levels..."
- amount from metabolism of proteins, fats, CHs- Linder 91
- atmospheric v. decomposition as source- Cole 94; Otsuki 74; Titus 90; W205
- availability in hardwater lakes low despite huge carbonate reservoir- Wetzel 72
- bacterial metabolism as a source (Burns 72; Kelly 84; Kerr 72a,b; King 72; Nielsen 93; Rai 79;
 - Roeloffs 84; Sand-Jensen 91; Svedang 92; Wetzel 85); 90% of ocean CO2 from bacteria (Rheinheimer 85)
- biogenic decalcification reaction releases CO2 into marine waters- Elderfield 02
- cellular uptake decreases internal pH (Pokorny 85; Reid 00; Warren 62; Weber 79); nighttime acidification due to (Sharma 95)
- compensation points (Γ) (Allen 81; Frost 95; Lloyd 77; Madsen 91; Nielsen 93; Wetzel 90) and saturation levels (Allen 81; Bowes 87, 89; Madsen 91; Salvucci 82) as a measure of photorespiration (Salvucci 82); Γ is often 20-70 ul CO2/l or 1-3 uM in water (Sand-Jensen 83); Γ of 3 aquatic plants (Van 76)
- depletion due to PS- Allen 72; **Keeley 83**; King 72; Madsen 91; Otsuki 74; Svedang 92; Wetzel 85 diel cycling of (**Allen 72; Van 76**)
- diffuses across cell membranes (Warren 62), more easily than bicarbonates (Bowes 91)
- diffusion in water 10,000 X slower than in air (Ross 89), but its solubility in water is 200 X greater
- than O2 (W202; Wild 88); diffusion increases at higher pH (King 72; Morton 72)
- end pH as measurement of CO2 affinity- Allen 81; Nielsen 91
- equilibria with carbonate, bicarbonate- King 72; Titus 90; W202
- toxicity of: to <u>plants</u>, >1mM (or 50 mg CO2/l) inhibit PS (Adamec 93; Nielsen 93; **Pokorny 85**;
 Weber 79) by causing a reduction of cytoplasmic pH that inhibits RUBISCO (Pokorny 85; Weber 79); inhibition exacerbated by acidic pH (Allen 81; Pokorny 85) and fast water flow (Madsen 83); may be toxic during waterlogging (Ponnamperuma 81); decreased root biomass in terrestrial plants (Shaw 02); to <u>fish</u>, causes respiratory distress (Atz 52; Fivelstad 99; Reid 00); and disease susceptibility (Walters 80)
- fertilization with CO2 in terrestrial plants: causes increased DOC release (Jones 98) and marine algae (**Riesebesell 07**); decreased root biomass (Shaw 02)
- fertilization with CO2 for SAMs (Barko 91b; Bowes 91, 93; Bristow 69; Gaudet 73; Madsen 91;
 Nielsen 93; Smart 85; Smith 93; Svedang 92; Titus 90; Wetzel 85); stimulates growth in the short term but falls off with time due to starch accumulation (Hussner 16); short-term growth spurt but

long-term results are acclimation and neg. feedback/down-regulation (i.e., less chlorophyll, more starch stored in roots) and these effects are accentuated by high temp and high light intensitity similar to that of terrestrial plants (**Dulger 17; Hussner 16**; Titus 17) air for FAMs (**Idso 90**; Nielsen 93), algae (Morton 72) and marine algae (**Riesebesell 07**); poor response from species using bicarbonates and with C-concentrating mechanism, good response from C3 plants (Bowes 93; Titus 17); increased root biomass more than leaf biomass (**Dulger 17**)

- fertilization with CO2, growth rates: 14 species 3.5 mM DIC, above-ground parts, growth at pH 8 (Nielsen 91); measured growth for 35 day using 0.85 mM DIC, pH 6.7 for HC and 8.3 for LC 8 species of *Myriophyllum* (**Dulger 17**) and with same procedure (pH 6.7 and 8.2, 0.85 mM DIC) 10 species of bicarbonate users (**Hussner 16**); 21 Adirondack species tested with pH 6 where 71% of DIC would be CO2, LC = 44 uM DIC and HC 246 uM DIC, so **both** CO2 and DIC were 5.6 X higher for the HC (**Pagano 07**); growth of *V. americana* and *E. canadensis* grew best with bicarbs, but ± bicarbs (4.4 mM HCO3) had no effect with CO2 fertilization (1% CO2 in air (**Smith 93**)
- fixation enzymes (**Bowes 91**; Madsen 91; W218); RUBISCO most abundant protein on the planet (Bowes 91); lower concentration in submerged plants ? (Frost 95)
- global warming will have little effect on plant composition in natural waters because bicarbonates are so much greater, but increasing bicarbonate will (**Iversen 19**)
- groundwater has 30 X more than atmospheric equilibria (Otsuki 74); groundwater with Ca and CO2 from soil perking and CO2 dissolution of rock limestone (WW188)
- importance to plant- Boston 89; Bristow 69; Idso 90; Kane 87; Kerr 72; Madsen 91,91b; Morton 72;

Nielsen 91; Overath 91; Paffen 91; Riemer 84; Titus 90; Svedang 92

inhibition in plants: PS meaured in air saturates the aerial, floating and submerged leaves of

amphibious plants at 30 uM (700 ppm); it inhibits PS at 1900 to 2400 ppm (Nielsen 93)

interstitial water- Barko 83; Madsen 91; Roelofs 84; Sand-Jensen 79; Wild 88

- levels in nature: some Danish streams have 100 uM CO2 (Nielsen 93); in freshwaters, free CO2 may range from 0 to over 14 mg/l or 0.35 mM (Bowes 87); seawater are only 10 uM (Hellblom 99) lake waters have CO2 concentrations > atm. equilibria (Cole 94); natural streams have more obligate CO2 users than lakes, but with increased CO2 this difference is lost [reflects plant preference for CO2 by all SAMs (DLW)]; lakes have more bicarbonate users than streams; but with increased bicarbonates this difference increases (Iversen 19) two obligate CO2 users were able to compete successfully with two bicarbonate users in hardwater streams (Sand-Jensen 83); levels in lake water and the underlying sediment (4 cm depth) (Titus 17)
- measurement of water levels (Greenberg 92); calculated measurements agree with direct measurements (Cole 94)
- microzone- Boston 89; Caffrey 91; Paffen 91; Sand-Jensen 87; Wild 88
- N₂ fixation enhanced by increased atm CO2 (Riesbesell 07)

pH- 90% less CO2 at pH 5 than 7.5 because of bicarbonate loss (Titus 90; Wetzel 85); at pH 6, CO2 predominates; at pH 9, HCO3 predominates (Hussner 16); free CO2 predominates below 6.4; above HCO3- does (Pagano 07); general (Allen 72, 81; Bristow 9; Keeley 83; Morton 72; Nielsen 91; Prins 89; Raven 88; Riemer 84; Sand-Jensen 87; Schindler 77; Svedang 92; **Titus 90**; Wetzel 72, 85; WW189; Wild 88)

pH v. KH v. CO2 (Horst 1986, p. 182)

seagrasses, uptake of DIC- Hellblom 99

solubility in water 200 times greater than O2 (WW188)

temperature: effect on water solubility (Engineering Tool Box 2013)

terrestrial plant requirements for- Bowes 91, 93; Bristow 69

uptake as nutrient (**Allen 72**; Boston 89; Bowes 87; Bristow 69; Kerr 72; **Madsen 91**; Morton 72; Prins 89; Rai 79; Rattray 91; Sand-Jensen 87; Schindler 72; Sculthorpe 67; Titus 90; W202+, 219) corresponds to maleic acid accumulation (Keeley 84,87) and oxygen production (King 72; Raven 88) uptake increases with water movement (Keeley 83; Morton 72; W219) and decreases intracellular pH (Adamec 93; Pokorny 85; Sharma 95; Weber 79); but increases extracellular uptake (Reiskind 89); 'uptake' occurs as simple diffusion (Reiskind 89) sediment levels of (Barko 83; Bristow 69; Caffrey 91; Madsen 91; Painter 88; Roelofs 84; Sondergaard 79; Svedang 92), and as a source of CO2 (Kelly 84; Ohle 78; **Titus 90;** Wetzel 72); algae uptake enhanced by increased atm CO2 (**Riesbesell 07**)

CO2 Uptake Strategies-

- aerial growth (Blom 90; Boston 89; Bowes 93; Botts 90; **Frost 95**; Idso 90; **Salvucci 82**); CO2 fertilization counteracts aerial leaf strategy (**Madsen**)
- aerial, floating, and submerged leaf comparison (**Frost 95**; **Nielsen 93**) aerial leaf of amphibious plants in water with low levels of CO2 (Bowes 93)
- bicarbonate use by aquatic plants (Barko 83a; Bristow 69; Gaudet 73; Madsen 91a,b; Morton 72;
 Nielsen 93; Prins 89; Raven 88; Sand-Jensen 87; Smart 85; W219, 529; Wetzel 85) and marine macroalgae (Reiskind 89); carbonic anhydrase releases the CO2 (Lee 89)
- CAM (Boston 89; Hostrup 91; Madsen 91; Raven 88; Reiskind 89; WW543; Wild 88) and nighttime acidification within the plant (**Sharma 95**)

CCM (CO2 concentrating mechanism) (Bowes 93); Hydrilla's inducible mechanism (**Resikind 97**) emergents use pressurized gas flow and mostly atm CO2- Wetzel 90

FAM uptake from water of CO2 (Boston 89; Gopal 87) and bicarbonates (Gaudet 73) is probably less than atm. uptake (Wetzel 90)

leaf gas films on emergent plant leaves (**Pedersen 10**)

Ottelia alismoides has C₄, CAM, and bicarb uptake (Han 20)

refixation, internal (Boston 89; Bowes 93; Lloyd 77; W532; Wetzel 85); need for lacunal reservoir and PEPcase (Wetzel 90)

review (Boston 89; Bowes 87, 89, 93; Madsen 91; Sand-Jensen 87; Wetzel 85, 90; Yin 17)

sediment utilization- Bowes 87, 89; Dacey 82; Hostrup 91; Madsen 91; Raven 88; Roelofs 84; Sand-Jensen 79; Smits 90a; Sondergaard 79; W532; Wetzel 85); shown for *Eleocharis acicularis* and *Myriophyllum tenellum* as well as Isoetid—type plants, their competitive ability inhibited by increased water CO2 (Titus 17), but they still respond to increased CO2 (Pagano 07); uptake by plants (Val and Ludwigia) other than Isoetids, is substantial in DIC poor habitats, correlates with root porosity, small size, and low water CO2 (Winkel 09)

Cu (Copper)-

availability *in situ* (Bowen 79; Pagenkopf 86; W314); deficiencies common in peat soils (Davies 97) binding to DOC (Bingham 86; Bisson 92; Pagenkopf 86; Russel 73; W314; Wild 88); aquatic DOC

reduces toxicity to minnows (Welsh 93) and daphnia (Giesy 83; Winner 85)

cellular uptake via Fe transporter- Cohen 98

CuS formation results in deficiencies in some sediments- Binhgam 86; Ponnamperuma 81; Reddy 77; W308

deficiency symptoms in plants- Sauchelli 69; Wild 88

enzyme assoc.- Raven 88; Smith 84

free form taken up- Bingham 86; Pagenkopf 86

intracellular concentration of Cu is zero- Rae 99

Mo, competitive uptake- Martin 86; Sauchelli 69

sediment availability dependent on redox (Beckwith 75; Reddy 77; W340); toxic levels of (Gambrell

91; **Isolda 91**)

species of Cu in water and soil- see 'Metal Toxicity'

subcellular distribution of in plants- van der Werff 79

toxicity of (Bennet 71: Bingham 86; Bowen 79; Frank T5(1); Goldman 72; Keating 77; Smart 85;
W196, 313; Wild 88); toxicity to algae comparable to allelopathic phenols (Aliotta 90; Greca 89);
to daphnia (Giesy 83), minnows (Welsh 93) and duckweed (Mo 89) to adult brine shrimp v. fish (Trieff 80); to brine shrimp nauplii (MacRae 91); to Cardinal tetras, effect of black water DOC (Cremazy 16); effect of copper binding in its toxicity to rainbow trout (Cremazy 17)
uptake by algae (Bisson 92) and SAMs (Marquenie 79);

Decomposition and Metabolism-

acidity inhibits (Kelly 84; Roelofs 94; Ross 89; **Schoenberg 90**; W489; Westerman 93); adding bicarbonate can stimulate decomposition (**Roelofs 94**)

aerobic faster than anaerobic (Barko 91; Gambrell 91; Rheinheimer 85; Ross 89; Russel 73; W162, 504, 703; Wild 88) but more wasteful (Pfeiffer 01); organisms responsible for are protozoa, fungi,

bacteria (Westerman 93); results in less phenols and more carboxylic acid groups in aquatic

- humus v. soil humus (Thurman 85); fungi and protozoa are aerobic (McKinney 04)
- allelochemical leaching speed herbivore and snail consumption- Newman 91, 92
- ammonification (Barko 83; Boon 86b; Blotnick 80; Capone 82; Dennison 87; Furch 88; Gunnison
 - 89; Kemp 72; Kistritz 78; Nakajima 81; Reddy 84; Rheinheimer 85; Short 87; Toetz 71; Van Wijk
 - 92; W233, 669); a sediment process stimulated by plants (Boon 86b) and waterlogging
 - (Ponnamperuma 81; Ross 89; Wild 88)
- anaerobic (Furch 88; Russel 73; W599+; Westerman 93; Wild 88) raises pH (Kelly 84)
- aquatic plant decomposition, nutrient cycling in situ (Hill 79; Newman 91; Otsuki 74; Rai 79); by
 - snails/bacteria after SAM is dead (Rogers 83); DOC release from and decomposition (**Mann 96**); formation of humus (Thurman 85); POC formed from plant DOC (Alber 94)
- ATP generation in bacteria, rate v. yield (**Pfeiffer 01**)
- autolysis of cell contents of SAMs and algae is rapid, cell walls take longer; 4-34% of phytoplankton released immediately (**WW511**)
- bacterial and microbial population successions (Mann 73; **N762**; Ross 89; W610+; Wild 88); fermentors eventually replaced by respirous bacteria (Pfeiffer 01); bacteria replaced by Actinomycetes and fungi (McKinney 04)
- biphasic process (Mann 96; W612; Wild 88) mostly due to bacteria (Westerman 93); slow phase due to slower degradation of cellulose, lignin, bacterial polysaccharides (McKinney 04)
- C released from (Graneli 96; Kelly 84) is captured by 'alkalinity battery' (King 72)
- Ca release- Parmenter 91; W211
- cellulose and lignin, resist decomposition (Egglishaw 72; Parmenter 91; W489; Wild 88) but are slowly degraded by Actinomycetes (McKinney 04)
- CO2 release may be 5-10 X more than oxygen consumed- Rich 78
- composting, Actinomycetes important for- McKinney 04
- DOC decomposition as follows: 58% used by bacteria, 23% unused, 19% form aggregates containing large densities of bacteria (WW652); DOC versus bacterial growth in water distributions systems (LeChevallier 04)
- DOM formed from DOC-WW652
- energy gain from various energy sources and terminal e-acceptors (N156)
- fermentation (Ross 89) always uses pyruvate or an organic cpd as an e- acceptor (**N152**); bacterial fermentation v. aerobic respiration (**Pfeiffer 01**) provides H₂ for methanogenisis (Ash 02); anaerobic degradation of humic acids by EM(**Wang 06**)
- fungi are major decomposers in aerobic sediments (Westerman 93) and decaying plants (Barlocher
- 94); succeed bacteria because they require less N and tolerate acidity (~pH 4.5) (McKinney 04)
- humic acids, resistance to- Graneli 96; W516; Wetzel 93; Wild 88
- importance- Capone 82; Juttner 81; Mann 72, 73; Rich 78; W669, 688, 699
- lignin See 'cellulose and lignin'

marine environment, organic carbon fluxes are important- Azam 98

methanogenisis, most important route of decomposition in lake sediments where inorganic electron

acceptors are usually lacking; methanogens use CO2 as their e- acceptor (Westerman 93) (*See also* 'Bacteria:methane producers')

Mg and P release, less in animals than plants- Parmenter 91

N enrichment may occur with decomposition (Barko 91; **Egglishaw 72**; Hill 79; Mann 72; 73) from N₂ fixation (Ross 89);); N goes to colonizing fungi (Barlocher 94)

nutrient release from (Barko 83; Burns 72; Furch 88; Gopal 87; Hill 79; Kerr 72; Kistritz 78;

Newman 91; Parmenter 91; Rich 78; Ross 89; Sand-Jensen 79; Short 87; van Wijck 92; Wetzel

72; W211, 609; Wild 88) and use by aquatic bacteria (Mann 96)

open water, primary site for- W669

oxygen consumption and PS- DeBusk 89; King 72; Moorhead 88; W166+

oxygen consumption during- Andersson 78; Burns 72; Carpenter 83; Elwood 88; Furch 88; Kistritz 78; Rai 79; Sand-Jensen 89; W161, 168, 210, 688

P gains during- Elwood 88

photolysis/photo-oxidation: of humic substances, importance of (Morel 83); photo-mineralization of allochthonous DOC is responsible for 10% of greenhouse gas emissions (Morris 21); PAR effective in photolysis of a plant leachate, within 2 hr, PAR releases 43% of the CO2 released by full sunlight (WW 763); releases chelated metals (Bisson 92; Borgmann 83; Brezonik 94; Finden 84; Morel 83; Sunda 83), fatty acids from humic acids (WW506, 762), and enzyme-humic acid complexes (Wetzel 93); decomposition/Fe, Mn release/algal growth correlated (Finden 84; Morel 83; Rich 90); photolysis of humic acid releases DIC and DOC that can be used by bacteria (Kaiser 97; Williamson 95); oxygen radicals produced by photolysis can destroy hydrophobic pesticides (Latch 06) See also 'Light, general: photo-oxidation'

- plant release of nutrients and DOC into water (Brinson 76; Christiansen 85; DeMarte 77; Gopal 87; Kufel 91; Mayes 77; McRoy 72)
- protozoan decomposition of POM can accelerate decomposition- Wetzel 92

pH- Barko 83; Furch 88; Kelly 84; W211

plant growth enhancement from- Krombholz T4(4); Paffen 91; van Wijck 92

POC (W681+) decomposition regulated by N, particle size, temperature and O2 (Mann 72; W597, 612); accelerated by protozoa- Wetzel 92

rates of (Andersson 78; Barko 83; Furch 88; Kistritz 78; **Mann 96**; Parmenter 91; Rheinheimer 85; Rich 78): fastest to slowest is carbohydrates-amino acids-amino sugars > humic cpds > lipids

(WW632); faster in nutrient-rich streams (Egglishaw 72); DOC only 1% per day (Wetzel 90) respiratory quotients (RQ)- **Rich 78**; Wild 88

sediment loss due to decomposition- W688, 730, 740

snails and bacteria complete food chain by converting detritus into food for zooplankton (Mann 72;

73); snails consume fungi and bacteria (Barlocher 94; Rogers 83)

soluble cpds metabolized first- Newman 91 surface area necessary for bacteria-assoc. decomposition- Wetzel 92 surface scum from accumulation of hydrophobic cpds that resist decomposition- McKinney 04 stability of, in lake ecosystems- Kelly 84; W703 swamp conditions slow decomposition dramatically- WW736 water and sediment CO2- Allen 71, 72; Andersson 78; Barko 83b; King 71; Otsuki 74; Rai 79; Rich 78; W698+; Wetzel 85

Denitrification-

alkalinity generated by- McKinney 04

- aquarium filters, denitrification probably occurs as filter ages (Adey 91; Dalsgaard 92)
- bacteria species responsible for (Payne 73; W237) are mostly motile *Pseudomonas* (Gamble 77); but many bacteria denitrify in wastewater treatment (McKinney 04)

bacterial uptake of ammonia resulting from denitrification- Boon 86a

biofilms supporting denitrification (Christensen 89; Masuda 91) in trickle filters (Dalsgaard 92)

DAP v. denitrification (Boon 86a; Dalsgaard 94; Gilbert 97; Jones 81; Sorensen 78)

general- Armstrong 75; Bertani 87; Blotnick 80; Boon 86a; Brezonik 72; Burns 72; Chen 88; Ernst 90; Kuenzler 86; Laanbroek 90; Nakajima 81; Peverly 79; Reddy 83, 84; Ross 89; Seitzinger 84; Spotte 79; Tenny 72; WW217; Weber 85; Yamassaki 92

H₂S, inhibition of- Kemp 90; Ohle 78

Lake Tanganyika denitrification acts as a sink for N- Edmond 93

N-N bond formation as in N2O and N2 defines denitrification- Takaya 02

N losses- Burns 72; Edmond 93; Gambrell 91; Kurtz 80; Nakajima 81; Reed 88; Reddy 83a; Ross 89; Seitzinger 84; van Wijck 92; Weber 85; Westerman 93; Wild 88

N₂, CO2, N₂O gases generated by (Gamble 77; Ohle 78; Ross 89; **Seitzinger 84**); N₂ bubbling from (Christensen 89)

NO may be reduced because it is toxic- Takaya 02

N2O from denitrification destroys ozone- Seitzinger 84; Takaya 02; Wild 88

nitrate reduction to nitrites more common than denitrification- Gamble 77

nitrate removal enhanced by DOC (Masuda 91; Obenhuber 91) and sediment (Reddy 87)

nitrification-denitrification are linked (Kemp 90; Masuda 91; Seitzinger 84; Westerman 93), but

most denitrification is not linked to nitrification (Risgaard 94)

nitrite accumulation v. denitrification (Gamble 77); nitrites can be used in denitrification (Pynaert03)

O2 levels in water must be <5-20 uM (Dalsgaard 92; Edmond 93: Westerman 93); PS-generated O2

inhibits denitrification (Risgaard 94); effect on rates of N removal (Masuda 91)

organic C requirements- Kurtz 80; Lewis 85; Obenhuber 91; Ross 89; Sommer 91

raises pH of sediment (Giblin 91; Kelly 84) and biofilms, enough to precipitate CaPO4 (Christensen

rates of (Gersberg 76) limited by nitrification (Masuda 91; Westerman 93) and other factors during wastewater treatment (McKinney 04)
roots of aquatic plants stimulate (Caffrey 92)
sediment association- Reddy 87; Risgaard 94; Seitzinger 84; Spotte 79; W238
soil type influences- Ponnamperuma 81
temperature, effect on nitrate removal from wastewater (Masuda 91)

Diseases and Predators of Aquatic Plants-

bacteria plus fungi infection (Gunner 88; Pennington 85) stimulates synthesis of phytoalexins (Stafford 90)
bacterial secretion of pectinolytic enzymes and gibberellin (Gunner 88); enzymatic degradation of cell wall (Rogers 83)
bacterial infection of quiescent but not actively growing explants of Anubias (Huang 94); decomposition of dead SAM leaves, SEM of invasion (Rogers 83)
Cryptocoryne 'rot'- Triemer 89
disease and predation minimal- Newman 91; W543; Zattau 88
fungus of water hyacinth (Martyn 83a,b), only when plant dying (Sharma 85)
herbivory and grazing (WW 558)
insect herbivores (Newman 91); grazing of Myriophyllum (Painter 88)
marine plant diseases- Harvell 99
moth feeding on Hydrilla prevented with malathion- Sutton 96
review- Freeman 77

DOC and POC-

algal secretion of- Allen 72; Mann 73; W392, 407, 503

amount and composition (Allen 72; **Hama 80**; **Thurman 85**; W668, 676); the majority may be allelopathic phenols (Hama 80; Kim 93; Wetzel 93); decomposition only 1% per day (Wetzel 90) autochthonous DOC produced within aquatic ecosystem by algae and bacteria v. allochthonous DOC

(orignates from terrestrial sources, mainly from the breakdown of lignin) (Sadauskas 21;

Thurman 85)

- bacterial association with transparent colloids common (Azam 98); hydrophobic bacteria attach to particles (LeChevallier 04)
- bacterial respiration, 50% of DOC production (W698) is 2% per hour in wastewater tx (McKinney 04)
- binding to membranes of algae and fish gills, especially a low pH, promoting Na+ homeostasis, DOC protection from acidity not just due to metal chelating, acclimation protects, effects on Na+ transport, membrane permeability, and electrical properties (TEP) (**Wood 11**)

blackwater DOC from Amazon River basin has aromatic rings and protects fish best (Duarte 16)

- C:N ratios increase in lake waters containing high amounts of DOC (**WW224**), because the precious N has been taken up by organisms leaving only stripped DOC behind (DLW 23)
- Ca protection against metal toxicity similar but uses a different mechanism than DOC (**Cremazy 17; Morris 21**); (Martin 84; Otsuki 74; Wetzel 72); heavy metals, gill cells, and Ca suggested by fact
 - that protection persisted after an acclimation period (Morris 21)
- cAMP release may have diverse effects- Wetzel 90

clay binding to (Wild 88)

colloids are transparent, hydrophillic DOC of 0.001 to 1 uM size (WW736) that are colonization sites for 24-68% of bacteria (**Azam 98**); flocculation of colloids (**WW736**); in ocean C cycling, they increase flocculation of POC and and increase C uptake (Riesbesell 07)

cycling of, majority reenters food chain- Kerr 72; W690

destruction (mineralization) by photooxidation-Bisson 92

ecological stability, provision of-Reddy 83; W140, 673, 680, 703

- fish, DOC's effect on: 5 different DOC types (land and aquatic-based origins) protects Zebrafish by increasing activity of Na+, K+ ATPase and v-type H+ ATPase (two enzymes critical to ion fluxes) in fish gills at pH 7.0, but this protection lost at pH 4.0 (Sadauskas 21), but dramatic DOC protection of zebrafish at pH 4.0 shown in earlier study, 2 wk acclimation to DOC/pH 7 provides protection from acidity because DOC binds to surface membranes of gill cells (Duarte 16) including ammonia excretion (Duarte 18); DOC storage anomolies (Sadauskas 21); DOC can stabilize pH of the gill micro-environment (Sadauskas 21); protection against heavy metals (Morris 21); natural Amazon black water protects Cardinal tetras against Cu toxicity (Cremazy 16) and acid toxicity (Duarte 16); maple leaf-derived DOC protected trout (i.e., increased 3 day LC 50 from Cu over 10 fold) (Cremazy 17); multiple fish species protected from acidity by DOC (Duarte 18))
- general- W676): C content 50%, detailed example of a humic acid and a fulvic acid chemical structure (**Morris 21**)
- humic acid (Aldrich), which is derived from coal and peat, different from natural DOC (Morris 21) humus *See under* 'Humus'
- ionophores, DOC that increase metal uptake- Borgmann 83; Eichenberger 86; Winner 91 labile DOC: AOC and BDOC in drinking water is 0.1 and 0.38 ppm, respectively (LeChevallier 04) levels in natural waters, 1-30 mg/l (W668); much of it humic acids (Hama 80; Thurman 85; Wetzel
 - 93); SAC (specific absorption coefficient) at 300-350nm (normalized to [DOC] useful indicator of metal binding and effect on organism physiology (**Morris 21**)
- littoral zone, DOC source for pelagic zone- Allen 72; Serrano 92
- maple leaf degradation by bacteria over 100 days to produce DOC shown to protect against Cu toxicity in trout (Cremazy 17)

metal binding (Giesy 78; Otsuki 74; Russel 73; Thurman 85; Wetzel 72, 93; W196, 313, 315, 368)
correlates with reduction of Cu toxicity (Cremazy 16) as compared to EDTA (Martin 84) controls their toxicity (Bisson 92; Pagenkopf 86; Lacroix 93; Sculthorpe 67) and nutrient availability (Barko 83b; Brand 83; Glass; Rich 90; Serrano 90; Wetzel 72; W196, 303, 313+, 368, 677); humic acid prevents Cu uptake by plants (Nor 86); protects fish from Al toxicity (Gundersen 94) leaf increases survival from Cu in trout (Cremazy 17) and with Rio Negro DOC in cardinal tetras; effect on gill ion regulation (Cremazy 16); daphnia and minnows from Cu toxicity (Giesy 83; Welsh 93)

N decreases during ammonification of- Ross 89; W668+

N, equal amounts of DOC-N and inorganic N-W232, 239

oxygen consumption, chemical-W174

POC formation from DOC; 19% of macrophyte DOC forms aggregates containing bacteria and extracellular material (Alber 94; WW652) *See also* 'Sediment: organic matter: mulm' *and* 'Biofilms: floc...'

precipitation with metals in acidified lakes (Urban 90) and CaCO₃ in hardwater lakes (W206, 686) protein binding by phenols may inactivate enzymes (Wetzel 90; 92; 93)

quantity 10 X more than POC- Sutcliffe 81; W140, 506, 667+, 683; Wetzel 90

release by SAMs (Harrison 80; Wetzel 69, 72); DOC release by emergents, and bacteria decomposition of (Mann 96): 30-45% of macrophyte net productivity is released as DOC (Alber 94); SAMs excrete only 1-10% of fixed CO2 as DOC (Hough 75; W534; Wetzel 72), but in terrestrials, it may be 15% (Tang 86); release not related to photorespiration (Hough 75); but it was 2X greater in presence of algae (Hough 75); release is 4% in healthy plants and 40 % in senescing or dead plants (Hough 75; Mann 96; Otsuki 74; Wetzel 72) *See also* "DOC:root release...." *below*

root release increased by CO2 fertilization (Jones 98); root exudates of calcicoles identified (**Tyler 95**)

sediment and interstitial water- Barko 83

size, DOC \leq 0.5 microns and POC > 0.5 microns (WW736); or what can pass through a 0.45 μ pore

(Duarte 16; Thurman 85), but transparent organic colloids may be 0.02 to >100 μ (Azam 98) storage in lab for 2 years of refrigeration changes DOC chemistry and physiological effects on fish

(Morris 21; Sadauskas 21)

surface scum removal by protein skimmers (Spotte 79); DOC accumulation at water surfaces

(Marshall 96) See also 'Biofilms: surface scum...'

surface tension reduction- W13

toxicity in sediment- Barko 83b; Ponnamperuma 81; Wild 88

light: UV and blue light decomposes DOC (Giesy 83; **Graneli 96**; Wetzel 72, 92) and increases Fe and Mn availability; produces reactive oxygen radicals that can decompose a pesticide (Mirex)

and other hydrophobic cpds (Latch 06) *See* 'Fe:photoreduction', 'Mn:photoreduction', 'Light, general: photo-oxidation of DOC')

Ecology, natural interactions-

- acidification, effect on all ecosystems (**Roelofs** 86), species composition, nitrification (Roelofs 83); microorganisms in acidified lakes are more vulnerable to UV, because lakes have less protective humus (Williamson 95)
- algal/bacterial: bacteria feeeding off diatom mucus could affect algal blooms (Azam 98); symbiosis with SAMs (Allen 71; Moorhead 88; W534, 569+; Wild 88); epiphytic periphyton uptake of gases and nutrients (Wetzel 90); association within a natural biofilm (Geesey 78)

algae/protozoa interactions- Keating 87; Williamson 95

allelopathy and competition between SAMs and surrounding biota- Cuny 95; de Villele 95; **Gopal 93** anaerobic conditions and seed germination of water lilies- **Smits 95**

- artificial biosphere- BIOS 93
- aufwuchs (Riemer 84; Sand-Jensen 89; W569) role in control of algae (Burton 78; Saunders 72; W464); zooplankton find home on plants (Gopal 93; Newman 91; W587); sessile nature of rotifers (W411) and others (Fairchild 81; W563); DOC uptake by marl encrustration of SAMs (Hough 75)
- bacteria/geochemical processes; mineral ppt & solubilization (Warren 03)
- bacteria/protozoa (Wild 88); protozoan decomposition of POM can accelerate decomposition
- (Wetzel 92); bacteria/snail decomposition of dead leaves (Rogers 83)
- biofilms on the water surface- Lion 88; Potera 96
- C cycling in a soft water lake (Allen 72) and oceans (Azam 98)
- climax plants inhibit nitrification and the loss of N (Rice 92)
- CO2 fertilization, effect on terrestrial ecosystems- Jones 98
- decomposition processes- Rich 78; W167
- DOC, stabilization of lakes- W140, 680
- evolution and taxonomy of plants- Brown 99
- food chain- Riemer 84; Tarifeno 82; W145, 692
- fungi, freshwater (Gunner 88; Gunnison 89; Pennington 85; Rheinheimer 85; W606, 678; Westerman
- 93; Wild 88); saltwater marshes (Barlocher 94)
- lake fill-in not a eutrophic process (W737); evolution of SAMs to emergent growth (Barko 83b;
 - W741); Sphagnum moss accelerates (W736, 743)
- littoral zone, more important to lake that pelagial- W 135, 579-584
- man, lobsters, sea urchins, sea otters, and kelp allelochemicals- Hay 88; Mann 73
- marine ecosystems, diseases in- Harvell 99
- marine snow important for sequestering C in sediments and maintaining atmospheric O2 levels (Ash
 - 02)

N cycling (Brezonik 72; Nakajima 81; Raven 88) between bacteria, animals and plants (Porath 82) neuston, water surface association of algae, bacteria, protozoa- W139 nutrient pumping from sediment- McRoy 72; Nakajima 81; W266, 537; Wild 88 oxygen, earth's main source is Blue-green algae (Ash 02) phage keeps algae blooms and bacteria in check (**N326**) productivity linked to greater species diversity- **Hector 99** rhizosphere, root secretion of organics and oxygen linked to aufwuchs in the water (**Coler 69**) and sediment bacterial activity (**Blotnick 80**) rivers/streams are unstable habitats (Newman 91) SAMs, a metabolically active area- Fairchild 81; Sand-Jensen 89; W571; Wetzel 90 sludge filters- protozoa and bacterial succession during filter maturation (**McKinney 04**) snails, fungi, bacteria (**Barlocher 94**); decomposition of dead leaves (**Rogers 83**)

Elements and size of earth's inhabitants-

algae- Fabregas 86; Tarifeno 82 animals, fish, plants, bacteria, algae, crustaceae, fungi have same elemental composition and susceptibility to toxic metals- Bowen 79; Kirchgessner 86; Nieboer 80; Sposito 86 bacteria (Bowen 79; Kistritz 78; Rheinheimer 85; Ross 89; Tenny 72; Wild 88); size ranges from 1-5 um with most being 1 um (Internet) while protozoa are 2-2000 um (Ash 02); eukaryotic cells are 10 um (Internet); chemical composition of (McKinney 04) bioactivity determined by physical factors- Martin 86; Nieboer 80; Sposito 86 chemical composition of waters, soils, flora, fauna, etc- Bowen 79 covalent binding ability- Martin 86; Sposito 86 DNA- 100 fg DNA equivalent to 20 Mycobacteria- Puttinaowarat 02 duck- Parmenter 91 electron exciting ability- Shkolnik 84 electronegativity (electron-attracting ability)- Nieboer 80 enzymes with similar biochemical mechanisms contain same micronutrients- Eichenberger 86 eukaryote (10 um) has 1000 X the volume of a prokaryote (i.e., bacteria)- Internet Fe requirements universal- Smith 84 fish (Bowen79; Fraser 82; Kirchgessner 86; Parmenter 91; Shearer 88) are about 70% water (Parmenter 91) freshwaters, marine waters- Bowen 79; Sposito 86; W180+; Whittaker T92 fungi contain 5% N while bacteria contain 12% N (McKinney 04) hydrolysis in water- Martin 86; Nieboer 80; Sposito 86 invertebrates- brine shrimp (**Bengston 85**) and daphnia (Tarifeno 82) ionic potential (Martin 86; Nieboer 80; Sposito 86); as ratio of charge to ionic radius (Brown 00) ligand exchange rates- Martin 86

mammal- rat (Bernhart 66)

- marine phytoplankton fix 1/3 of earth's CO2- Bowes 93
- microorganisms: relative size of protozoan cysts, algae, bacteria, and viruses and filtration from
 - water (LeChevallier 04)
- oxidative state and form of elements required for biota- Smith 84
- protozoa are 2-2000 um (Ash 02)
- requirements of plants and animals (Bowen 79; Eichenberger 86; Wild 88) and horses (Maynard 79)
- sediment levels of elements (Huebert 83; Painter 88) and metal contaminants (Lee 07)
- size comparison of microbes/protozoa (LeChevallier 04; N10,14) See also "bacteria...."
- water content of bacteria is 70% (Nester, p.107); dry matter is 6.7% in SAMs but 20% in terrestrial plants (Bowes 87)

Energy transformations- (all numbers are per mole)

- aerobic respiration 3 X more efficient than fermentation (Ross 89); but more wasteful (**Pfeiffer 01**); generates 32 ATP v. only 2 ATPs for fermentation (Pfeiffer 01); maximum ATPs generated by aerobic respiration is 34 (N151)
- alcohol fermentation deprives plant of C skeletons for ammonium uptake (Koch 90) and deprives plant of energy (Koch 90; Wild 88)
- ammonium uptake by roots requires energy- Koch 90
- ammonium oxidation to nitrate by nitrifying bacteria is -84 Kcal (WW216); ammonia oxidizers get 42% of the energy contained in ammonia (McKinney 04)
- anammox: anaerobic autotrophic bacteria convert ammonium plus nitrite (as e- acceptor) to N_2 with
- hydroxylamne (NH₂OH) and hydrazine (N₂H₂) as intermediates- Jetten 99
- arsenic as an e- acceptor; As V to As II = 135 mV (Oremland 03)
- CH burning releases 470 KJ, CH synthesis requires 1,400 KJ- Lawlor 87; Wild 88
- CO2 reduction requires 460 KJ- Lawlor 87
- electricity generated by *Geobacteria* when provided with graphite electrodes (**Bond 02**)
- electron acceptors: O2 v. nitrate v. sulfate v. CO2 (N156; Payne 73); graphite electrodes (Bond 02);
 - energy gain comparison for various energy sources and electron acceptors (Nester, p156; Zinder 78)
- electrons, 24 generated from each glucose (Raven 92, p. 96); 8 generated from acetate (Bond 02)
- energy/synthesis relationships during aerobic decompositon about 1/3 of the energy obtained by
 - either bacteria or protozoa is used to convert the other 2/3 to new cell mass; a minor portion (2%/hr) is used for endogenous respiration (McKinney 04)
- glucose, bacterial oxidation (2,800 KJ) v. fermentation (75 180 KJ) (Ross 89: Wild 88); oxidation (670 Kcal) v. fermentation (21 Kcal) (Rabinowitch 69)
- iron oxidation inefficient (-11 Kcal) [W310];); growth of *Geobacter* using Fe³⁺ is 20% that of using O2 as e⁻ acceptor (Kostka 02)

- metabolism is aerobic, anaerobic or fermentative (**Nester, p148**; **Ross 89**); anaerobic metabolism in stressed fish lowers muscle pH to 6.8 and increases plasma levels of lactate (**Veiseth 06**)
- minimum requirements for reactions is -20 kJ (Ash 02)
- methanogenisis, primary route of decomposition in lake sediments, because of lack of inorganic electron acceptors (Westerman 93); methanogenisis of acetic acid yields 1/20th the energy of aerobic oxidation (Boyd 95; N156)

nitrate oxidation to nitrite = 66 Kcal (WW215)

- nitrate reduction by algae (162 Kcal) is 23.4% of energy from combustion of glucose (Hageman 80) which yields 670 Kcal (Adey 91)
- nitrate reduction by plants (-83 Kcal or 347 KJ) (Lewis 86); reduction by bacteria yields only 83% of the energy they could get using oxygen (McKinney 04)
- nitrification (-349 KJ) v. anammox (-358 KJ) provide same energy to bacteria (Jetten 99) v.
 - comammox (van Kessel 15)

nitrite oxidation to nitrate = 18 Kcal (WW216)

organic matter can be oxidized or used for synthesis- Rabinowitch 69

surface area/mass ratio greater for bacteria than fungi; this gives bacteria the advantage in obtaining nutrients (McKinnery 04)

Eutrophication-

acid mine wastes due to pyrite oxidation (Ash 02; Nester, p277; WW294); Thiobacilli speed up the process (**Zinder 78**)

acidification (Andersson 78; Fraser 82; Giblin 90; Grise 86; Kelly 84; Schuurkes 86; Titus 90; Urban 90; Wetzel 85) influences species succession (**Roelofs 84**); effect of lake liming (**Roelofs 94**); Al toxicity to fish (Lacroix 93); more susceptibility to UV of plankton (Williamson 95)

algal bloom pH and O2 changes (**Nakajima 81**); suppression of bacteria and other algal species (Juttner 81; Keating 77; 78); bloom associated with biomass of 10-40 mg/l dry weight (Morton 72); presence of Blue-green algae (King 72; Schindler 72); water levels of N and P > 0.3 and 0.015 ppm (Barko 91; Gerloff 75; Schindler 77; W256); release of toxins (Carmichael 94; Hallegraeff 93)

algal elimination of SAMs (Moeller 88; Ozimek 91; Simpson 86) not due solely to N and P (Balls

- **89**); but removal of zooplankton by fish (Balls 89; Ozimek 90; W464)
- arsenic release from well-drilling- Oremland 03
- aquaculture contamination of sediment and seawater- Burford 01; Christensen 00
- bioremediation (reversal of eutrophication) (Ozimek 90; Shapiro 90) using biostimulation and
 - bioaugmentation (N791)
- dead zones in the Gulf of Mexico- N765
- diseases in marine ecosystems- Harvell 99
- general- W293, 731 See also 'Wastewater Treatment'

global warming: CO2 increases, effect on PS (Bowes 93; Cowling 99); possible long-term negative effects on root biomass (Shaw 02); CO2 produced by marine biogenic decalcification (Elderfield 02); acidification of seawater (Riesebesell 07); methane from wetlands and oxic lake waters

(Tang 16; Vroom 22)

- gluteraldehyde: metabolism in sediment and water (Leung 01); effect on algae, invertebrates and fish fry (Sano 05)
- heavy metals in contaminated sediments (Lee 07)
- indicators are algal growth (Nakajima 81; W380, 384); CO2 accumulation (W214); oxygen deficit (W172+); and high R/Q (Rich 78)
- metal recovery from mixed ores using S-oxidizing, acid-generating bacteria (N157) the flip side of acid mine waste production (N277)
- methane, a greenhouse gas and IR absorber is increasing 1% per year (Westerman 93); source is human waste (**N784**) and ruminant belching (N775) *See also* 'global warming'
- nitrites in Indian drinking water, removal by aquatic plants (Rawat 12)
- nutrient excess (Balls 89; Sand-Jensen 91; W586), especially P (Forsberg 90; Schindler 77)
- oil spill clean ups using Geobacter and electrodes- Bond 02
- oxygen depletion of hypolimnion (Sand-Jensen 91; W176) decreases nitrification-denitrification (Kemp 90)
- P,N,pH, PS and O2 changes- Nakajima 81
- SAMs replaced by emergents with increasing eutrophication- Barko 83b, 86; Keeley 83; W586, 685, 741
- SAMSs modify nutrient levels in Florida lakes (Bachmann 02)
- sediment POM accumulation (Barko 83b, 86, 91; Kemp 72); contaminated sediments (Lee 07)
- size of algal species increases- W401
- species diversity is reduced- Keating 77; W379
- zooplankton predation by fish may cause algal bloom (Balls 89; Ozimek 90); UV killing of zooplankton may allow algae to grow (Williamson 95)

Fe (Iron)-

- ammonium fertilization increases Fe availability- Lindsay 84; Romheld 84; Wild 88
- Artemia cyst production stimulated by Fe- Versichele 80
- availability in water/sediment (Pulich 82; Spencer 89b; Urban 90; W303, 309, 314, Wild 88) and unavailability in terrestrial soils (Cohen 98)
- bacterial reduction to soluble form (Fe²⁺) is complicated and may not be relevant, because fermentation alone yields more energy, review of (**Lovley 91**); mostly involves an abiotic process with a humus intermediate (**WW304**); (Geobacter) solubilization of iron oxides (Ash 02) and clay Fe (Kostka 02)

biofilms entrap deposits of Fe and Mn- Lion 88

cellular transporter induced by Fe deficiency- Cohen 98

- chelation with organics (Dooris 82; Giesy 78; James 71; O'Connor 71; Ponnamperuma 81; Russel 73; Tyler 95; Urban 90; W303, 309; Wild 88) essential for surface water solubility (Bienfait 83; Bowen 79; Urban 90; W309); siderophores in blue-green algae (Anderson 82; Wilhelm 94) and plants (Hopkins 95); bacterial siderophores help release Fe into the environment (Ash 02); Fe sequestering by siderophores of *Pseudomonas* bacteria (Spanggard 01; Verscheure 00a) *See also* 'Chelators', 'Bacteria:siderophores' *and* 'Algae:siderophores'
- chelators of (Anderson 82; Romheld 83); recipe for FeEDTA stock sol (Versichele 80); humic acid analog AQDS for chelating Fe (Kostka 02)

citrate keeps Fe soluble in the xylem (Bienfait 83), in serum (Hutner 72), and is used for root washing (van Wijck 92); and as a root exudate for removing Fe from soil (Tyler 95; Zohlen 97) clay as Fe source- Kostka 02

- colloidal Fe (hydrous oxides in water) not taken up by algae (Rich 90), but adsorbs metals (Kirk 95;
 Otte 89), controlling Cu, Zn toxicity (Bingham 86) and micronutrient availability (Barko 91;
 Beckwith 75; Bingham 86; Gambrell 91; Ponnamperuma 81; Sauchelli 69; W316; Wild 88)
- competitive uptake with Mn (Basiouny 77; Foy 78); Zn in plants (Bingham 86; Sauchelli 9; Wild 88) and Zn in fish (Wekell 86)
- critical concentration for algae- Bowen 79; Gerloff 75
- cycling of Fe in the water (**Anderson 82**; Brand 83; **Rich 90**; Urban 90); bog iron deposits (Westerman 93); light dependence on diel cycling of Fe (McNight 88; Morel 83)
- deficiency and chlorosis induced by metal toxicity (Bingham 86), such as excessive Cu (Lindsay 84) or lime (Tyler 95)
- deficiency symptoms in terrestrials (Donahue 83; Horst 85; Rorison 60b; Wild 88) a little different from aquatic plants (Krombholz T6(5); Newman 88)
- EDTA and other chelators are traps for Fe³⁺- Anderson 82; Rich 90
- electroactivity highest of all elements- Smith 84; W300
- enzymes containing Fe- Bowen 79; Raven 88; Smith 84
- Fe-reducing bacteria (*Geobacteria*) are common and solubilize iron oxides (Ash 02; Meth 03) even in clay (Kostka 02)
- Fe/Mn/S interaction- Gambrell 91; Giblin 90; Peiffer 94; Ponnamperuma 81; Pulich 82; van Wijck 92; Wild 88
- ferrosoferric hydroxide and Fe as sediment buffer- Connell 68; Lindsay 84; Ponnamperuma 81; Ross 89; Wild 88
- ferrous form essential for utilization by plants (Bienfait 84; Smith 84; Spencer 89b; Wild 88) and fish (Roeder 66) and algae (Brand 83; Rich 90); oxidized at 0.14 ppm O2- James 71

fertilization with to counteract global warming- **Chisholm 91**; **Falkowski 95**; **Kerr 94**; Martin 90 function in plants- Doucette 91a; Krombholz T6(5); Raven 88; Smith 84; W308

- levels in freshwater: ave. for world's rivers (0.67 ppm), mostly as Fe3+ (**WW170**), typical conc. in oxygenated water, pH 5-8 is 0.05 to 0.2 ppm, mostly as bound Fe3+ (**WW294**); quantitation and testing of water levels (Greenberg 92)
- liver and eggs are good sources- Bowen 79; Maynard 79; NAS 77
- micronutrients, coprecipitation with FeOHs- Barko 91; Bingham 86; Gambrell 91; Otte 89;

Ponnamperuma 81; Russel 73; W316

N2 fixation- Raven 88; Wurtsbaugh 88

neutralization of H2S toxicity- Barko 83b; Connell 68; Ross 89; van Wijck 92; Wild 88

nitrate uptake- Doucette 91a, 91b; Hageman 80; Lewis 86; Martin 91; Raven 88; Reddy 84

nutrient requirements for phototrophic (v. heterotrophic) metabolism higher (Barko 83b; Sigel 86;

W302) and 1,000 X more Fe required than Zn or Mn for marine algae (Brand 83)

oceans levels potentially limiting- Brand 83; Bowen 79; Chisholm 91; Falkowski 95; Martin 90,

91; Rich 90

oxidation states- DeMarte 74; Kuenzler 86; O'Connor 71; Smith 84; Wurtsbaugh 88

P binding (Barko 91; Burns 72; Gunnison 89; Ponnamperuma 81; Riemer 84; Saleque 95; Wild 88;
Williams 72) on Fe root coatings (van Wijck 92); formation of Fe ppts and binding to Fe oxides (WW252)

peat used to remove Fe from water- Brown 00; Spiniti 95

pH, effect on availability- Glass 89; Grise 86; Lindsay 84; Romheld 84; Russel 73; Schat 84; Urban 90; Whittaker T92a; Wild 88

photoreduction of Fe³⁺ to Fe²⁺ (Brand 83; Faust 94; Rich 90) by blue light (Rich 90) releases Fe from the chelator (Anderson 82; Brezonik 94; Cohen 98; Finden 84; McNight 88; Morel 83)

precipitates (Barko 83b, 91; Burns 72; Chen 88; Giblin 90; O'Connor 71; Ponnamperuma 81; Rich 90; Wetzel 72; W302; Wild 88) due to water aeration (Cooley 80); can be filtered out with 0.1 um pore size (Anderson 82)

pyrite See "Fe (Iron):sulfides"

redox effect on availability (Burns 72; Chen 88; Lindsay 84; Ponnamperuma 81; Reddy 77; Wild 88; W301, 303) and algal uptake (Anderson 82)

root uptake (Romheld 83) from apical tip only (Wild 88); root coating of iron oxides (Otte 95;

Zohlen 97); associated with Fe-oxidizing bacteria (Emerson 99)

secretion of Fe chelators by plant roots- Cohen 98; Hether 84; Hopkins 95; Romheld 83; Tyler 95

sediment levels of (Painter 88) are higher in organic muds (Misra 38); iron not necessary in the water for pondweeds (Huebert 83)

sedimentation greater than release into water- Bowen 79; Urban 90

siderophores, bacteria and algae chelators See "Fe (Iron):chelation with organics"

solubility in sediment (Foy 78; Westerman 93) regulated by CEC, pH, S (Ponnamperuma 81) and

redox (Reddy 77); solubility in water regulated by O2 (O'Connor 71)

sorbitol/Fe complex, model for cytosolic Fe- Martin 91; Rich 90

species variation in uptake and translocation- Zohlen 97

stimulation of Cu, Mn, Mo uptake- Tarifeno 82

- stimulation of growth (Allen 72; Basiouny 77; Brand 83; Goldman 72; Wurtsbaugh 88) up to 33,000 mg/kg in Hydrilla tissue (Cooley 80)
- storage by plants (**Bienfait 83**; Raven 88; **Smith 84**; Spencer 89b); humans (Bowen 79; Maynard 79; Sigel 86; Tsai 88) and bacteria (Basiouny 77; Smith 84; Wild 88)
- strategies to increase uptake by plants (Bienfait 83; Hether 84; Lindsay 84; Romheld 83,84) and bacteria (Tsai 88) and blue-green algae (Ash 02; Wilhelm 94)
- sulfides of Fe exchange with more toxic metals such as Zn (Rozan 00); FeS₂ oxidation by bacteria generates acid mine wastes (Ash 02)
- toxicity (Allen 72; Dooris 82; Foy 78; Grise 86; Horst 85; Laanbroek 90; Ponnamperuma 81; Pulich 82; Smith 84; van Wijck 92; Wild 88) and mechanisms of (Bienfait 83; Halliwell 84; Rorison 86) and symptoms of excess in aquatic plants is brown, rusty deposits (Cooley 80; Horst 86; van Wijck 92)
- uptake from water (**Basiouny 77**; Spencer 89b) and sediment (Barko 83b, 86; Brinson 76; DeMarte 74; Grise 86); by algae requires light (Wilhelm 94)

Fish-

acidity kills due to reduced active Na and Cl uptake and their passive loss resulting in reduced

plasma levels and circulatory failure (Morris 21)

age of fish affects nutrient uptake and excretion- Newman 88

ammonia excretion coupled to Na intake (Morris 21)

anesthetics and euthanasia: natural opiates in some fish reduce hyper-respiration and

immunosuppression due to stress (Wendelaar 97); clove oil as fish anesthetic: did not depress

immune function (Bresslrer 04); clove oil suppressed cortisol and lactate response to stress

(Small 04); vet anesthetics (Lewbart 01; Noga 10)

aquaculture: water chemistry (N species, Cl, pH) of clean influx water and rearing water in 3 Tilapia fish facilities that had massive die-offs due to nitrite toxicity (**Svobodova 05**); disease transmission to wild fish (Diamant 00)

autopsy procedures for fish disease diagnosis (Stephen 09)

bacteria that colonize fish depend on site: Rainbow trout skin and gills have Pseudomonads and *Acinetobacter/Moraxella* with gills also having Enterobacteriaceae; gut has

Enterobacateriaceae and Vibrionaceae (**Spanggaard 01**); species that colonize Zebrafish gut (**Rawl 04**) normal microflora of undiseased tropical fish (**del Rio-Rodriguez 99**) EM colonize the intestine before other organs (**Harriff 07**); bacteria found in trunk kidneys of healthy fish were *Aeromonas, Edwardsiella tarda, Pseudomonas, Flavobacterium*, etc at 10^3 to 10^4 /g tissue whereas diseased fish had 10^7 to 10^8 (**Walters 80**); skin ulcers due to *Aeromonas* are common in Koi (Wildgoose 99); obligate pathogens are *Yersinia ruckeri, Edwardsiella tarda*

and *Aeromonas salmonicida* (del Rio-Rodriguez 99); innate immunity keeps intestinal microflora in check (**Ismail 09**; Rawlson 04)

Ca taken up by gills and skin (Perry 85); fish don't need any in the food (Flik 93); carp and trout easily get Ca from water containing 5-20 ppm (Hilton 89), but if there's none in the water, they'll get it from the food (Robinson 87); therefore, Ca deficiencies in fish rare (Hilton 89); depolarizes TEP in lung cells (Sadauskas 21); Ca can counteract gill damage from low pH but increased toxicity in acid lakes (**Morris 21**)

carp can efficiently suppress stress-induced hyper-ventilation (Wanderlaar 97)

catecholamines (epinephrine and norephinephrine), restingly levels are <5 nM but increase to 1,000

within 1-3 min following stress; can remain at high levels for hours and days (Wendelaar 97) chloride (Cl-) competes with nitrite so need to add NaCl to prevent nitrite toxicity problems,

especially in ponds and aquaculture facilities (Noga 00; Svobodova 05)

cortisol- regulates osmotic homeostasis ("seawater hormone") and energy metabolism; rapid elevated levels is classic indicator for stress (DiBattista 05; Wendelaar 97); resting level is <5 ng/ml and 10 ng/ml enough to reduce disease resistance...half of 82 investigations reported fallaciously high cortisol in control fish (Pickering 89); cortisol, like other corticosteroids, when injected into fish reduces immunity and resistance to pathogens (Wendelaar 97); cortisol injected into fish reduced growth rate and made fish behave submissively (**DiBattista 05**); chronically high cortisol blood levels due to injection and/or diet increased susceptibility to disease (**Davis 03; Wang 05**) but not to catfish challenged with *E. ictaluri* (Small 05); fish bred for lower cortisol response to stress (Pickering 89; Pottinger 99; Scott 97; Trenzado 03; Wendelaar 97; Veiseth 06) were resistant to opportunitistic disease (Pickering 89) and experimental diseases (Fevolden 93); cortisol elevation is a primary response to stress, while glucose, lactate, osmolarity, muscle pH changes are secondary effects (Veiseth 06) and immunosuppression is a tertiary effect (Wendelaar 97); huge individual variation in fish cortisol levels after stress, and association with small size (Ramsay **06**); stress-induced cortisol levels reduced within 6 h by exercise (Veiseth 06) and returned to normal within 24 –48 hr (Maule 80) from acute stress but required 4 weeks for chronic stress (Pickering 89), but doesn't return to baseline even at 14 days (Trenzado 03); clove oil reduced cortisol response 74% in stressed fish (Small 04); cortisol released by gills (Scott 07); water cortisol levels can be measured and reflect fish production of cortisol (Scott 07); release by infected fish (Ellis 07); effect on leukocytes in vitro (Esteban 04); higher cortisol concentration (after injection) correlated with susceptibility to opportunistic pathogens (Pickering 81); cortisol injected with cocoa butter has slow-release action (**Wang 05**)

decomposition of fish and nutrient release from- Parmenter 91

digestibility of fishfood ingredients- Lall 89; Hinshaw 92; NRC 83

disease susceptibility increased by poor water quality (Ackerman 06; Walters 80), stress (Davis 02;

Peters 88; Small 05), dietary cortisol (Davis 03; Small 05), injected cortisol (Pickering 81),

CO2 at 6 mg/l (Walters 80), and fish selected for high cortisol response (Fevolden 93); brief

stress (30-60 sec in a net) enhanced disease resistance (**Maule 80**); crowding with 5 days of fasting (**Ramsay 06**); carp immunity to viruses decreases in winter at cold temperature (van der Sar 04b)

- disease, experimental models of: Zebrafish model for studying specific viral and bacteria diseases; dissemination of fluorescent-labeled bacteria within the embryo (van der Sar 04b);
- diseases, non-parasitic: pondfish diseases and treatments (Lewbart 01); 10% of all cultured fish are lost to disease (Heppell 00); 63% of 70 Czech aquarium fish that died and were examined had MB (Lescenko 03); veterinarian for Florida fish farms discusses MB (Yanong 01); virus in carp common in winter months (van der Sar 04b); fish diseases that can be transmitted to humans (Novotny 04); diseased fish released cortisol into the water (Ellis 07); *Aeromonas* spreads from intestine to blood, kidney, liver, and spleen within 11 hr (Peters 88); opportunistic diseases are *Saprolegnia* (saphrophytic bacteria and fungi) fin-rot, and furunculosis (boils) (Pickering 81) *Salmonella* and *Mycobacterium* co-infection in frog model (Cosma 04); *Aeromonas* and VHS virus in salmon (Ellis 07) and trout (Peters 88); enteric septicemia in catfish (Small 05; Wise 93); CCV and Ich in catfish (Davis 02, 03); *Vibrio* in salmon (Maule 89); *Aeromonas* in catfish (Walters 80); opportunistic pathogens in salmon (Pickering 89) and catfish (Walters 80); *Aeromonas* in grass carp (Wang 05)
- DNA vaccines in fish (**Heppell 00; Pasnik 05**) are more stable than those injected into mammals and provide long-term protection (Heppell 00)
- eggs: disinfection with iodophor and methylene blue (Sanders 01); egg production and disinfection method for producing germ-free Zebrafish involves hypochlorite baths and antibiotics (**Rawl 04**); Zebrafish can lay up to 200 eggs/week (van der Sar 04b)
- element composition of fish (Kirchgessner 86) depends on tissue analyzed (Wekell 86)
- embryos of fish produce macrophages and granulocytes within 2 days (van der Sar 04b);
 - embryonic macrophages can quickly eradicate non-pathogenic bacteria (Davis 02); development of intestine and its flora in zebrafish (**Rawl 04**)
- excretion of N and P (Hinshaw 92) and Zn (Ishihara 86; Newman 88)

exercise speeds recovery of normal cortisol levels, etc following acute stress (Veiseth 06))

fatty acid requiirements of coldwater marine fish- Dhont 02

Fe, Ca, PO4 uptake from water opportunistic- Yarzhombek 87

- feces, release nutrients (**Windell 78**) and contain live mycobacteria (**Perez 01**); no species of mycobacteria found in normal Zebrafish gut (**Rawl 04**)
- foods for fish: livefoods for aquarium fish (**Malla 15**); nutrition, general- NRC 83); foods should be 30-40% protein and contain 9-11% lipids, pellets better than flake food, DHA (n-3 HUFA) enhance fecundity, growth, and stress resistance (Kithsiri 07); fish oil worked better than coconut, safflower, and linseed oil as food additive for guppies (**Kithsiri 07**)
- gill maintenance of electrolyte balance (**Bond 96**, p404; **Spry 85**; Twitchen 94; **Wendelaar 97**; Wood 92); effect of Al (Witters 90) and stress (**Wendelaar 97**); smaller fish always have a higher

gill surface area than larger fish (Scott 97); DOC affects respiratory exchange of CO2, O2, and ammonia gases (Morris 21)

gluteraldehyde toxicity to embryos and fry (Sano 05)

goldfish specific disease is GFHNV, a Herpes-live virus (Stephens 09)

gourami specific disease (Stephens 09)

growth- growth hormones stimulate, but catecholamines and cortisol are the major hormones that inhibit growth (Wendelaar 97); cortisol (slow-release injection) inhibited trout growth (diBattista 05); stress inhibited growth (Peters 85)

guppies See under its own heading 'Guppies'

- hsp (heat shock proteins)- indicators of cellular stress from heat, toxicants, and ammonia- Ackerman 06
- homeostatic control (Bowen 79; Eichenberger 86; Frieden 84; Hinshaw 92; Kirchgessner 86; Martin 86; Mertz 86, 87; Newman 88; Wekell 86); gill uptake of Na, Cl, gill excretion of NH3, pH regulation, DOC involvement (Duarte 16; Wood 11)
- hormones- review list of fish hormones, passive release from the water via the gills (**Scott 07**); degradation of hormones within days (Scott 07); rapid uptake from water, transfer between fish, and biomagnification within the fish (**Scott 07**); cortisol released into the water (**Ellis 07**)
- Ich disease severity increased by stress (**Davis 02**), chronic MB (Talaat 98) and dietary cortisol (**Davis 03**)
- immunity in fish (Heppell 00); white blood cells described (Peters 85); major components of, and relation to stress (Wendelaar 97), is evolutionary novelty of jawed fish, which contain both innate and adaptive immune system; macrophages and granulocytes appear within 2 day old embryos (Davis 02: van der Sar 04b); development of adaptive immunity in Zebrafish embryos requires 4 weeks (Rawls 04) genetic manipulation in Zebrafish of adaptive immunity and disease resistance (Swaim 06); stimulation of innate immunity to intestinal pathogens by gut bacteria (Ismail 09; Rawls 04); acute stress may stimulate and/or suppress immune system (Ackerman 06; Small 05; Wendelaar 97); brief stress *enhanced* disease resistance (Maule 80); immunologically activated wbc's release oxygen radicals during "respiratory burst" that can damage self wbc's (Ackerman 06); immune function of specific cells depressed by anesthetics (**Bressler 04**), stress and cortisol (Davis 03); cortisol on leukocytes in vitro (Esteban 04); APC's (antigen-producing cells) decreased after brief stress (Maule 80); brief stress v. strong or chronic stress on lysozyme activity (Mock 90; Wang 05); immune cells (neutrophils) get worn out from stress (Ackerman 06); stress destroys kidney and splenic tissues and cells (**Peters 85**); high dose cortisol shrank spleens significantly and hurt macrophage function (Wang 05); serum contains factors other than lysozyme that kill bacteria (Wang 05) See also 'Mycobacteriosis : immunity in fish' ion regulation: ion kinetics explained (e.g., Discus from Na+ depleted habitats have a high Km (>250 uM/l) meaning they take it up rapidly, while other species from same habitat have low Km (<50 uM/l) meaning they probably conserve Na+ instead to maintain homeostasis (Zimmer 21)

- intestine- development and microbial colonization of (Rawls 04); immunity in (Ismail 09; Rawls 04); gut of embryonic fish is colonized by what's in the water, so the microbial microflora of the rearing tank is critical (Verschuere 00b); EM enter through mouth and colonize intestine (Harriff 07); intestinal injury allows bacterial penetration (Ismail 09) *See also* 'Bacteria:intestinal...'
- kidney (anterior or head) primary blood-cell forming (haemopoietic) organ- Broussard 07; Esteban 04)
- lysozyme, part of innate immunity (Bressler 04; Wang 05); enzyme that degrades the peptidoglycan layer of gram positive bacteria (Mock 1990); levels correlated with blood levels of infectious bacteria (**Small 05**)
- melatonin- hormone produced in response to darkness (Scott 07)
- Mg, most (84%) taken up from food not the water (Flik 93)
- mineral requirements (Fabregas 86, Lall 89; NRC 83; Tacon 83)-- Ca, P (Andrews 73; Cowey 76); K (Maynard 66; Shearer 88); Zn (Eichenberger 86; Wekell 86); Mg (Cowey 76); Fe (Maynard 79; Roeder 66)
- muscus layer of fish See under 'Parasitic Diseasess of Fish'
- Na regulation and their K_m and J_{max} in various tropical fish with explanations of (**Zimmer 21**) neurotransmitters in, as affected by stress (diBattista 05; **Wendelaar 97**)
- O2 uptake highly efficient (Yarzhombek 87); stress increases repiratory rate of most fish, but not carp and eel, who can decrease their metabolic rates (Wendelaar 97)
- osmolarity balance- regulation by saltwater fish differs from that of freshwater fish; [salt] of fish blood 1/3 that of seawater and 100X that of freshwater; role of cortisol, metal toxicit, stress
 - (Wendelaar 97) ; plasma osmolarity increases from 330 to 423 mOsm/kg after fish are stressed
 - (Veiseth 06); salinity tolerance of (Stappen 02); stress resistance of aquarium fish (live bearers and black neon tetras) measured by their resistance to osmotic shock (2h of high saline) (Lim 02); acidity affects osmoregulation (Duarte 16)
- parasites of fish Separate indexes for 'Parasitic Diseases of Fish' and 'MB'

pH sensitivity of fish to pH <4.7 (Borgmann 83; Kelly 84; Wood 92); acid interferes with Ca uptake (Fraser 82); limit is pH 6 for some fish (Welsh 93); Rio Negro fish (pH 4) protected by DOC

(Duarte 16)

probiotics used in treating fish diseases- Hong 05; Spanggaard 01

- protein, not CHs, the energy source for fish (NAS 77); means high N (~10%) content of the fish (Parmenter 91) and the fishfood (Adey 91)
- quarantine, state sponsored- Australia requires a 1-3 week quarantine for all imported fish (Stephen 09)
- reproduction: aquarium fish that produce small fry; decapsulated Artemia eggs could replace rotifers as the food for fry (Dhert 97)

rigor mortis, stress, exercise and fillet quality in salmon (**Veiseth 06**) salinity tolerance and adjustment *See* 'osmolarity balance'

skeletal deformities from reduced Ca uptake- Fraser 82

smoltification- adjustment to saltwater by salmon (Ackerman 06)

- social behavior- submissive fish naturally have higher cortisol, lower plasma osmolarity, and lower tolerance for Cd toxicity (**Wendelaar 97**) and are darker (Baretto 06); within paired fish, 5% greater length and/or cortisol injections, significantly confers dominance of one fish over the other; a corticol antagonist (mifepristone) blocked cortisol's effect (**diBattista 05**); dominate fish were scored as those first to get food, didn't hide, & attacked the subordinate fish (**diBattista 05**); fish crowding induced several stress effects (**Veiseth 06**)
- stress: review (Scott 97; Wendelaar 97); 4 types of stress (Barreto 06); chronic stress requires 4 weeks for cortisol to return to normal (Pickering 81); chronic stress depresses growth (diBattista **05**) reproduction, osmotic homeostasis, immune system, disease resistance, resistance to further stress (Wendelaar 97) and filet quality (Veiseth 06); cortisol increases from stress due to handling, confinement, tagging, crowding (Veiseth 06), noise (Scott 07); acute stress increased plasma cortisol, lactate, osmolarity, and rigor mortis, while it decreased glucose and muscle pH (Veiseth 06); stress exacerbates metal toxicity (Nikinmaa 92), pollutant toxicity to immune system not the same as stress-induced immunosuppression (Wendelaar 97); social stress and electroshock equally raised cortisol levels (Baretto 06); high ammonia increased susceptibility to *Vibrio* disease in Salmon (Ackerman 06); 'low-water treatment' increased disease susceptibility to Ich (Davis 02) and E. ectaluri (Small 05; Wang); great variability in individual response to stress (Ramsay 06) may result from disturbed homeostasis (Peters 88); feeding greatly reduced the stress of crowding Zebrafish for 5 days (Ramsay 06); exercise brought stressed fish back to normal more quickly (Veiseth 06); stress from high nitrates and low oxygen causes fish skin to produce more mucus cells (Vatsos 10) See also 'catacholamines', 'cortisol' and 'social behavior'

transparent fish- "see-through Medaka" for disease study (Broussard 07) and Zebrafish embryos

(**Davis 02**)

vaccines in fish (Heppell 00; Pasnik 03, 05) See also 'DNA vaccines'

viral diseases in (Lewbart 01; van der Sar 04b); CCV in channel catfish (Davis 02); VHS in Rainbow trout (Ellis 07); phage reduced bacterial disease (**Ellis 07**)

water composition of a fish is ~30% - Kirchgessner 86

water quality parameters for pond fish (NH₃ and NO2 <0.01 ppm; NO₃ <20 ppm) (Lewbart 01) water uptake of cpds: nutrients (NRC 83: Tacon 83); Ca taken up equally from the gills or skin

(NRC 83; Perry 85; Wood 92), gill uptake of Fe (Roeder 66), and Zn uptake from water (Eichenberger 86; Newman 88; Wood 92); water uptake of DNA vaccine via skin and gills (Heppell 00)

Zebrafish as lab animal (Astrofsky 00; Christianson-H 04; Kent 04; Rawl 04; van der Sar 04a,
b) for real-time studying of immune system in embryos (van der Sar 04b); Sanger Institute to determine genome in 2005 (25 chromosomes with 1.7 X 10⁹ bp) (van der Sar 04b); re-infection

with *M. marinum* (**Cosma 04**); model for human tuberculosis (**Prouty 03**); model for bacterial colonization and intestinal ecology (**Rawl 04**) *See also* 'MB (mycobacteriosis):experimental infections'

Zn uptake- Kirchgessner 86; Newman 88; Wekell 86

Fishfood-

Artemia See under 'Invertebrates'

- Ca, Cu, Fe, Mn, N, P, Zn excreted in feces (Ishihara 86) and B, N, and Mo excreted in the urine by animals- Bowen 79; Hinshaw 92
- element composition of prepared fishfoods (**Crawford 72; Hardy 84; Shearer 88; Tacon 83**; Wekell 86); the ingredients used in fishfoods (Bowen 79; **NAS 77**; Parmenter 91) and live foods,
 - such as brine shrimp (Bengston 85), marine algae (Fabregas 86)
- metal toxicity of- Tacon 83
- mineral supplements (Bernhart 66; NAS 77; **Poston 76**; Wekell 86) considered unnecessary (Hardy 84)

probiotics See under 'Bacteria'

sediment fertilization using fishfood ingredients- Pulich 85

source of nutrients for aquatic plants- Krombholz T6(5); NAS 77

variation in element composition of fishfoods- Tacon 83

Vitamin C, importance of in stress resistance- Dhert 97

wound healing in Koi helped by either Stress Coat, povidone, or salt (3 g/l) (Shivappa 17)

Gases-

- air, CO2 is 0.035% (350 ul/l) and expected to double next century (Bowes 91; Post 90); air and water
- both contain 10 uM CO2 (WW188); density (mg/l) of water is 775 times that of air (WW12)

anoxia, < 30 uM oxygen v. oxic > 130 uM- Burns 72

bacterial generated gases include CH4, N2O, CH3Cl, CO2, dimethyl sulfides- Ash 02

bicarbonate- Allen 72; Bowes 89; King 72; Rai 79; Sand-Jensen 86; Schindler 72

- bubbling of N2 and CH4- Jones 81
- carbonate, bicarbonate, CO2- Allen 72

CO2 levels inside plant may be >70uM such that they counteract O2 effects on RUBISCO (Bowes 93); in waterlily, CO2 level is 0.6 to 5% (Dacey 82)

CO2 uptake (1 mg) corresponds to 0.507 ml of PS-generated O2- Johnson 74

degassing increased by aeration (

DIC in air equilibrium is about 10 uM (Madsen 91) or about 17 uM in NY lakes (Titus 90); for expts on RGR, 16 uM is air CO2 conc at 15 C (Madsen 96); range in most lakes is 5-2,500 uM, but DIC is much higher in African lakes (Cole 94); for example, it is 6 mM in Lake Tanganyika (Edmond 93)

- exchange within aquatic plants (Sorrell 91); leaf gas films of emergents (Pedersen 10); morphology for (Armstrong 91a, 91b; Hostrup 91; Jaynes 86; Madsen 91; Rao 90; Raven 88; Salvucci 82; Sand-Jensen 87; Smits 90a) due to transpiration (diel cycle), diffusion, and pressurized flow (water lilies, diel cycle) due to simple gas conc. factors (Vroom 22); active flow of emergents (Armstrong 91b; Bendix 94; Dacey 80, 82, 87; Grosse 91; Tornbjerg 94; W530); CO2 and O2 movement in waterlily (Dacey 82); gas movement in a lotus leaf (Dacey 87); molecular diffusion (only) in SAMs (Armstrong 91a; Madsen 91; Sorrell 91; Vroom 22);
- CO2 levels: "as air CO2 dissolves in water, the water contains CO2 at about the same conc. by volume (10 uM) as air and then forms bicarbonate by a slow reaction (half time of 15 sec) (**WW 188**); 0.35% CO2 in air = 350 ppm (by volume) (DLW); air equilibrium in pure water is 10 uM and 0.5 mg/l at ~25°C (WW188); if air contains 350 ul/l, water will contain 10-12 uM (Bowes 91; Cole 94); the amount of CO2 in 1 liter of water at air equilibrium is equal to amount of CO2 in 1 liter of air (Madsen 91a); in natural freshwaters, range is 0- 350 uM or 0-14 mg/l (Bowes 87) or 100- 4,100 u atm (Cole 94); CO2 in equilibrium with air is about 15 uM (Nielsen 93); CO2 in marine water is 10- 46 uM, while bicarbonates are 2-2.5 mM (Lee 89; Reiskind 89); high expt CO2 is >1000 uM, while ecologically relevant conc. is only 15-90 uM (Mommer 06)

conversion factors for CO2 (DLW 2022): m.w. CO2 = 44; 1 mM = 44 mg/l; 350 uM (0.35 mM) = 15 mg/l; 10 uM = 0.44 mg/l; if air contains 350 ul CO2/l or 0.35%, then water will contain ~10 uM CO2

- degassing much faster due to aeration, reduces KH as well as CO2 (Horst 86, p77)
- H2S is 30 uM in the thermocline of Lake Tanganyika (Edmond 93); release from landfills (Wang 06) methane (Barko 83b; Ohle 72); current atm levels is 1.6 ppm (Ash 02); release from sediments through rice lacunae (Westerman 93) and waterlily (Dacey 82); levels within waterlily are 0.7 to 1.5 % (Dacey 82); release from sediments by both bubbling and gaseous diffusion (Thurman 85); and landfills (Wang 06) and wastewater treatment (McKinney 04)
- N2 in water is 15-20 ml/l (Seitzeinger 84; W224); bubble formation in wastewater treatment filters (Christensen 89)
- N2O produced during denitrification destroys ozone- Seitzinger 84; Wild 88
- O2 in air is 21%; water levels in equilibrium with air are 240-260 um/l, but can become 500 uM (200% air saturation) in areas of active PS (Bowes 91; 93; Prins 89; W160); 80% air saturation is 228 uM (Gieseke 01)
- rice have air coating on the leaves that helps oxygenate the roots- **Raskin 83**; Wetzel 90 solubility of O2 and CO2 in water (Madsen 91); CO2 is 200X more soluble in water than O2 (WW 188)
- storage in lacunae (Madsen 91; W529), which makes up 70% of plant volume (W528)

Heterophylly and Emergent Growth-

- aerial growth of amphibious plants more productive (**Botts 90**); able to use more light and CO2 (**Lloyd 77**; Madsen 91; **Salvucci 82**)
- bicarbonate- *H. difformis* acclimates to the submergence by changing leaf morphology and using bicarbonates (Horiguchi 19); submerged leaf form of *Batrachium peltatum*, an amphibious plant, can use bicarbonates (Nielsen 93)
- cells of submerged leaves have higher turgor pressure than terrestrial leaves (turgor loss due to transpiration) such that they have longer epidermal cells; shoot apex is the part that responds to water levels (**DesChamp 84**; Raven p510; Lin 05)
- definition of heterophylly- extremely different leaf forms on a single plant, can be due to a variety of environmental changes (van Veen 21); leaf morphological changes due to temperature (20C to 25C) and light (15-90 PAR) not as great as those due changing water levels (Nakayama 14)
- factors other than water level inducing heterophylly (**van Veen 21**): blue light, gibberellin, phytochrome, osmotic stress, light intensity (Lin 05): cold temp and hypoxia all induce submerged form (**Kim 18**); high temp (30C), mannitol (0.2M), and ABA (**DesChamp 84**, Raven p510) and more FR light (i.e, a low R/FR) plus blue light (470 nm) induced terrestrial form (**Momokawa 11**)
- evolution of heterophylly in some Potamogeton species is from parallel evolution within the genera from true aquatics (**Iida 09; Koga 21**)
- flavonoid chemistry of aerial and submerged forms are different- Les 90
- gas diffusion resistance in terrestrial leaves was 15,000 X higher than in air (Mommer 06)
- general- recent review (van Veen 21); others (Boston 89; Botts 90; Bowes 87; Bristow 69; Hostrup 91; Huang 94; Kane 88; Kasselmann 03; Lloyd 77; Nielsen 93; Raven 88; Salvucci 82;
 - Sculthorpe 67; W525)
- hormonal control- hormones regulate genes for heterophylly (Kim 18; Koga 21); regulation of GA levels via KNOX1 genes (Nakayama 14); ethylene incr. submerged form, ABA (abscisic acid) incr terrestrial form (Koga 21) and the two hormones interact (Kuwabara 03); ethylene induced the same increased PS in *H. difformis* as submergence alone (Horiguchi 19); GA instead of ethylene stimulates submerged form in *Rorippa aquatica* (Nakayama 14)
- light wavelengths: High R/FR causes submerged leaves, while low R/FR causes aerial leaves, but blue required to show this effect (Monokawa 11)
- low O2, not just hormones, induced submerged form (Kim 18)
- leaf length:width ratio (L/W) increases over two-fold in stem plant due to either submergence or ethylene treatment (Kuwabara 03); used to measure effect of submergence (Monokawa 11) marsh plants: cannot adapt to submergence; cannot photosynthesize, they either elongate stems
- drawing on energy from roots or they enter a quiescent state: *A. philoxeroides* can survive for 3 months on stored CHs (**Peng 21**); because *R. palustris* is unable to get enought CO2, the plant cannot produce enough PS oxygen for aerobic respiration and survival (**Mommer 06**)

morphological changes in submerged v. emergent forms: pictures of *R. aquatica* (Nakayama 14) osmotic stress via polyethylene glycol (PEG) shows that true aquatic Potamogeton species more resistant than the amphibious cohort to osmotic stress, matches tolerance to NaCl findings (Iida

06)

plant species studied: <u>amphibious plants</u> (review) (van Veen 21), *Batrachium peltatum* (Nielsen 93), *Hygrophila difformis* (Horiguchi 19), *Callitriche heterophylla* (DesChamp 84, Raven, p510); *Callitriche palustris* v. land plant *C. terrestris* (Koga 21); *Ranunculus trichophyllus* v. land plant *R. sceleratus* (Kim 18); *Ludwigia arcuata* (Kuwabara 03); *Rorippa aquatica* (Nakayama 14), *Marsilea quadrifolia* (Lin 05), *Rotala hippuris* (Momokawa 11) *P. wrightii* v. true aquatic *Potamogeton perfoliatus* (Iida 06); <u>marsh plants</u> (*Alternanthera philoxeroides*, alligator weed) (Peng 21) and *Rumex palustris* (Mommer 06);

Potamogeton genera contains both amphibious and true aquatic species (**Iida 06**)

- R/FR light, increased R/FR (i.e., less FR) traits for submerged leaves (less stomata, narrower leaves, etc, but required blue light to do it (**Momokawa 11**)
- response to submergence: 40-fold lowering of resistance to CO2 diffusion in submerged leaves compared to emergent leaves in semi-aquatic *Rumex palustris*, lowering of CO2 compensation point from 14 to 4 umol/m2/s, morphological changes (**Mommer 06**); stem aquarium plant (*L. arcuata*) produces new leaves adapted to submergence--and vice versa (**Kuwabara 03**)
- response to desubmergence: more diffusion resistance in stimulation of (Bowes 86; Bristow 69; Raven p510; W526) by high temperature, intense light and more FR (i.e., low R/FR) (**Bodkin 80**; Spence 81); growth hormones (**Kane 87**; Raven p510); low CO2 (Bowes 93), turgor pressure (Raven, p 510), and photoperiod >12 hr (**Kasselmann 07**); 15 hr (v. 12hr) photoperiod for water lilies (Kasselmann 07); increased reproduction correlates with increased heterophylly (Kasselmann 07)
- salinity: increased salinity (osmotic stress) tolerated by true aquatics (e.g., *Potamogeton perfoliatus*) more than the amphibious species (e.g., *P. wrightii*) (**Iida 06**)
- stem aquarium plant (*Ludwigia arcuata*) produces new leaves adapted to water level changes (**Kuwabara 03**)
- sugars, exposure to sucrose stimulates aerial growth of Marsilea (Edwards 56) and mannitol stimulates aerial growth of Callitriche (Raven p510)
- temperature: cold temp. (4C), not just hormones, induced submerged form (**Kim 18**); increased temperature (20-25C) caused less dissected leaves (**Nakayama 14**); effect on emergent and submerged leaves of *Ranunculus flabellaris* (**WW532**)
- See also Aquatic Plants: emergent' Aquatic Plants: submergence', and 'CO2, Strategies ..: aerial'

Hormones, Plant-

abscisic acid (ABA), multiple effects (germination and growth) on a variety of terrestrial and floating plants, comparison of effect of ABA isomeres on *Marsilea quadrifolia* (Lin 05); stimulates aerial

morphology (Deschamp 84; Kane 87; Raven p510); precedes turion formation in Hydrilla

(MacDonald 08) See also 'Heterophylly...'

artificial propogation, use of hormones in- Hartman 87; Kane 88b, 90

bacterial production of (Donahue 83; Gunnison 89; Wild 88) ethylene (Smits 95)

Ca signaling in plant development (Bush 94; Hepler 85; Gilroy 92) and reproduction (Conrad 88)

cytokinin in a moss- Conrad 88

ethanol, stimulation of seed germination of water lilies- Smits 95

- ethylene (Armstrong 75; Blom 90; Bodkin 80; Bowes 87; Capone 82; Donahue 83; Gunnison 89; Hartman 83; Jackson 90; Ross 89; Smits 95; Wild 88; W526) produced in response to wounding (Stafford 90) effect on germination (Smits 95); used for plant buoyancy (Blotnick 80); a senescence hormone that can't diffuse out well when plant submered, so it causes emergent growth to senesce (P.C. Tom Barr, 2007) *See also* 'Heterophylly...'
- gibberellin (GA) (Gunner 88; **Lembi 92**); stimulates submerged growth (**Deschamp 84**) See 'Heterophylly...'

growth- Donahue 83; Hartman 83; Kane 87, 88a, 88b, 90; Linsmailer 65

heterophylly involves ethylene, abscisic acid (ABA) and gibberelin (GA) (Horiguchi 19) *See also* 'Heterophylly...'

Humus-

- absorbtion of UV light and fluorescence of (Graneli 96); photo-oxidation breaks humus down into more labile DOC that stimulates bacterial growth (Kaiser 97; Williamson 95); light-triggered release of reactive oxygen radicals (Latch 06)
- acidity of (Russel 73; W185; WW765) is mostly from carboxyl groups, which give humus its solubility and ability to bind metals (**Thurman 85**; Wilson 81); little effect except in very softwater (WW765)

aquatic v. soil humus- Myneni 99; Thurman 85

bacteria: degradation of humus, is considerable (WW504); humic and fulvic acids stimulate mycobacteria (**Kirschner 99**); but the phenols, quinones, phenolic, carboxylic acids of humus inhibit bacteria and fungi explaining the long-term preservation of human bodies in peat bogs (WW736)

bogwater humic acid and soil humic acid protect equally against Al toxicity in fish (Witters 90)

C, N, P, S composition- Barko 86; Russel 73; Thurman 85; Sutcliffe 81; W677

CEC is pH dependent- Ross 89; Wild 88

charcoal filtration used to remove DOC- Welsh 93

- chelator properties, comparison to EDTA (Anderson 82; W303; Wetzel 93); Fe chelation by humic acid analog increases bacterial access to clay Fe (Kostka 02)
- clay binding of (Hoagland 85; Thurman 85; Wild 88); precipitation and coating of soil and sediment particles (**Myneni 99**)

clear, uncolored water can still contain considerable amounts of humic substances- Graneli 96 colloidal nature- Hartman 83; Wild 88

- color of water a good general measure of DOC protection from metal toxicity in soft, acidic natural waters (Hutchinson 87)
- dead duckweed humic acids protect against metal toxicity- Mo 89
- DIC generated from humus- Graneli 96
- DOC makes up 50-80% humic substances (WW 504) with a significant organic colloids (Azam 98)
- fulvic acid solubilizing ability (W677; Wild 88); solubility greater than humic acid (Thurman 85)
- general- Donahue 83; Thurman 85; W591+, 676+; Wild 88
- humic acid (Aldrich Chemical Co) protects fish and daphnia from metal toxicity (Gundersen 94; Winner 85), but not fish against acidity (Duarte 16); humus as minor metal chelator in peat
 - (Brown 00); humic acids protects plankton from UV light (Williamson 95); nature of Aldrich humic acid (Latch 06)
- inhibition of decomposition (W678; Wetzel 93) in organic sediments (Myneni 99)
- levels in freshwaters are 1-10 ppm (Graneli 96; Serrano 92; Thurman 85)
- metal binding (Russel 73; Sutcliffe 81; W677; Wild 88) is 1 microequivalent per g humus (Thurman 85); changes structure (Myneni 99)
- mulm See under "Sediment:organic matter"
- nutrient availability increased by humic substances- Foy 78
- origin (Russel 73; W489; Wild 88) from algal DOC (Thurman 85) as well as plant phenols (Buikema 79; Hoagland 85; Wetzel 92); including allelochemicals (Wetzel 93); from polymerization of quinones from oxidation of plant phenols (Haslam 89; Serrano 92); origin of aquatic humus

(Thurman 85)

origin, potential precursors of humus are carbohydrates, lipids, amino acids and lignin (Wilson 81) peat *See under* "Soils, terrestrial"

- photooxidation of by light (Graneli 96) generates DOC and stimulates bacteria (Kaiser 97;
 Williamson 95; WW506, 762) releases oxygen radicals that degrade hydrophobic cpds (Latch 06)
 See also 'Light, general:photo-oxidation'
- protects organisms (Giesy 83; **Hutchinson 87**; Welsh 93; Winner 85) from metal toxicity and UV light (Graneli 96; Kaiser 97; Williamson 95) and possibly hydrophobic cpds (Latch 06)
- protein binding to, inactivation of extracellular enzymes (Wettzel 90, 92, 93)
- soil humic acid is more hydrophobic than aquatic humic acid (Thurman 86) and has less carboxyl groups (Wilson 81); comparison of functional groups (Thurman 85; Wilson 81) and protection of organisms from metal toxicity (Gundersen 94)

Invertebrates and Protozoa

aquaculture, penaeid shrimp in Indonesia- **Moriarty 98** amoeba *See under* 'MB...'

brine shrimp- See Artemia (Brine shrimp) below

- daphnia: element composition of (Tarifeno 82); food for (Winner 91); Ceriodaphnia not as good
 - a food source as decapsulated Artemia eggs (Adewolu 09; Lim 02) Moina not as good as naupli
 - or decapsulated eggs for survival and growth of guppies (Lim 02); inhibition by aquatic plants
 - (Newman 91; Pennak 73; W555) and heavy metals (Winner 91); main grazers of

phytoplankton (Saunders 72; Shapiro 90)

diseases of: Vibrio in penaeid shrimp controlled by *Bacillus* probiotics (**Moriarty 98**) hydra- use Flubendazole or Fenbendazole at 2 mg/l to kill (**Nogoa 10**)

nematodes are a major component of benthic invertebrates reaching densities of a million per m²

(1,000 liters) of substrate surface under certain conditions (springtime in oligotrophic sediments containing aquatic plants); intolerant of low oxygen so not found in eutrophic substrates; many different species not all parasites, some feed on debris, others bacteria; fertilized eggs laid outside the body develop in 1-10 days and hatch into well developed young; most species require 20-30 days for development and reproduction (WW670); soil nematodes include plant pathogens as well as those in organic-rich, but aerobic soils feeding on bacteria, protozoa and other nematodes (Russell 73, pp. 518-20)

population succession of protozoa and bacteria in wastewater tx (**McKinney 04**); bacteria, daphnia and dragonflies (**Kazda 00**)

protozoa, characteristics of (McKinney 04); stimuate plants and bacterial growth (NRCS 2009) *See also* "Ecology, natural interactions"

rotifers, densities higher in vegetated areas (W412); feed on bacteria and small algae (W409); value as a life food and disease transmission to fish (Verschuere 00b); common in wastewater tx

(McKinney 04); easier to boost with HUFA than Artemia (Dhert 97)

size and global distribution of protozoa and microbes- Ash 02

sea shells contain ~15% MgCO₃- Dickson 02

soil, # of portozoa in ranges from 1,000 to 106 per tsp (NRCS 2009, BLM 2009)

worms and intvertebrates in wastewater tx (McKinney 04); invertebrate burrowing in sediments can increase microbibal activity four fold (WW651); oxidation of sediments by (Ash 02)

Artemia (Brine shrimp)-

algae for brine shrimp food See 'foods....'

- ammonia (up to 50 ppm) tolerated (Bossuyt 80); 24 h LC50 for newly hatched Artemia is 840 ppm (Chen 89); high summer-time levels in GSL (Porcella 72)
- aquaculture industry need for brine shrimp cysts; past demands and future predictions (Lavens 00;
 - Sorgeloos 80, 01); probiotic cultures added to farmed shrimp, scallop, turbot larva help (Verschuere 00b)
- artificial culture of Artemia to adulthood (**Dhert 93)** using microalgae (**Sorgeloos 85**) not all that pracatical or that nutritious (Leger 86)

bacteria associated with culturing and population growth (Gorospe 96), no known fish pathogens (Austin

81); nauplii are born bacteria-free (Austin 81), population changes and *Artemia* survival; culture bacteria can come serendipitously from the cysts, food, tank, and seawater (**Verschuere 97**); only about 1 bacterium/dry cyst but this is often the starting inoculum, which consists of *Bacillus, Erwinia, Micrococcus, Staphylococcus* and *Vibrio* spp; once food added to brine shrimp tank, bacteria quickly multiply feeding on the food and unhatched eggs (**Austin 81; Gorospe 96**); *Pseudomonas* preferred by *Artemia* over other bacteria (**Gorospe 96**) adding helpful bacteria beforehand protect *Artemia* from a later disease challenge; bacteria that do best with *Artemia* can ferment (Verschuere 00a); effect of added bacteria differs with food quality fed to *Artemia* (**Marques 05**)

- boosting with fatty acids (Leger 86; Tamaru 1997) begins 8 after hatching when nauplii start feeding; require more DHA than EPA; necessary to increase the nutritional value of GSL nauplii for marine animals (Sorgeloos 01)
- cold storage of nauplii (Leger 83); for more convenient feeding; only 2.5% loss of dry wt with 24 hr storage at 4C (Sorgeloos 01); compared to a 26% decrease in total lipids at 25C, insignif loss at 4C; 90% of nauplii alive at 48 hr, don't advance to Instar II stage; store at up to 8,000/ml of saltwater at 4C (Leger 83)
- conditioning the culture media- adding brine shrimp to saltwater containing a thriving mixed culture of "good bacteria" greatly enhanced *Artemia* survival; in contrast, *Artemia* grown in sterile seawater or seawater conditioned by a bio-filter only showed much lower survival (**Verschuere 99**); preconditioned water benefits fish (Verschuere 00b)
- culture conditions (**Dwivedi 80**)– food mix of phosphates, pig dung, oil cake, and yeast (added to open ponds) stimulated algae and yielded excellent *Artemia* growth (Dwivedi 80); typical media is saltwater supplemented with NaCl to 0.5-8% with food such as algae or brewer's yeast (D'Agostino 80); rice bran for culturing (**Gorospe 96**)
- cyst harvesting and processing-- effect of dehydration time and temperature on later hatching efficiency (Versichele 80); effect of salinity (Lavens 00); country of cyst origin affects hatching efficiency and crab larva survival (Dhont 02)
- cysts produced by *Artemia*, culture conditions for (**Nambu 05**; **Versichele 80**); 1 g of San Franscisco Bay cysts contains 230,000 bacteria or ≤1 bacterium/cyst (Austin 81), contains 360,000 eggs (SFBB 06) and produces about 260,000 nauplii (Dhont 02; SFBB 06; Sorgeloos 80); cysts produced even under optimal conditions (Nambu 04); cysts from Great Salt Lake v. from San Francisco Bay (SFBB 06); hydration required for hatching (Stappen 02)
- cyst shells (chorion): undigestable and carries potential pathogens; chorion contains iron and air chambers conferring buoyancy (**Sorgeloos 77)**, cause starvation in fish (Karen O'Connell 2019 PC; **Leger 86**)
- decapsulated cysts; decapaulation procedure (**Sorgeloos 77**); have major advantages over nauplii in ornamental fish culture; promoted better growth, fecundity, and salt tolerance (stress) in livebearers and neon tetras; dried v. brine cysts; fatty acid, PUFA and HUFA composition of nauplii, cysts and

Moina (Lim 02); energy content of Decap-eggs is 30-57% higher than in freshly hatched nauplii (Leger 86); brine v. dried eggs for growth and survival of guppies (**Baboli 12; Dhert 97**); produced better results than those fed on top quality starter feed (Dhert 97); supported better growth and egg production in Zebrafish than nauplii (**Tye 04**); quality of a commercial preparation not as good for crab growth and survival as fresh preps (**Kouba 11**); superior to nauplii, live daphnia, and dry food for weight gain, growth, and survival of catfish (**Adewolu 09**); size of 0.2 mm (v. 0.4 mm of nauplii) makes them available as food for small fish fry (**Malla 15**); dry decap cysts better because they don't sink as fast (Leger 86)

- development: molted into 2nd instar stage at about 8 hr after hatching when their alimentary canals open up (Sorgeloos 01)
- diapause- hibernation/resting state encourages cyst production over live young; signifies less favorable conditions (Wang 17)
- disease process due to *Vibrio proteolyticus* is slowed by pre-emptive colonization with non-pathogenic Vibrio (**Verschuere 00a**); bacteria, fungi, and spirochetes that are pathogenic to Artemia (Verschuere 00a)
- *Dunaliella*, the primary food source in nature is a flaggelated green alga, grows at 1/3 the rate of green algae (**Porcella 72**) 1-3 day doubling time; culture conditions (**Abu-Rezq 10**); environmental niche-*Artemi*a, due to superior osmoregulation, prospers in hypersaline lakes safe from fish and other predators (Stappen 02; D'Agostino 80); life in hypersaline lakes around the world (**Mohebbi 10**); geographical distribution is in dry, non-humid environments (Stappen 02); poor source of EPA and not that great a food for nauplii (**Leger 86**)

exoskeleton thin (1 micron thick) making it more digestible- Sorgeloos 80

- fatty acids of Brine shrimp are same Omega-3 fatty acids (DHA and EPA) found in fish oil human supplements: explanation of their chemistry and importance (Tamaru 97); EPA levels in Artemia (and other live foods) correlate with successful rearing of marine fish and shrimp (Dhont 02); actual profiles of HUFA, PUFA, etc in nauplii and decapsulated eggs (Lim 02; Tamaru 97); boosting to get more DHA (Docosahexaenoic Acid or 22:6n-3) in and increase the DHA/EPA EPA (Eicosapentaenoic acid or 20:5*n*-3) ratios (Dhert 97); procedures and use of Selco, menhaden, cod liver, sardine oil for boosting (Leger 86; Tamaru 97); freshwater fish can make their own EPA so don't need it; marine fish can't, so EPA deficient Artemia from GSL cause real problems for marine fish (Leger 86)
- Fe contributes to brine shrimp fecundity, survival, bright color and cyst production; FeEDTA dosing (Versichele 80); haemoglobin and Fe involvement in production of cysts, which have haematine-like substance impregnated in outer shell (Versichele 80); *Artemia* hemoglobin contains 0.29% Fe (Bowen 76); Fe has low toxicity to nauplii (Gajbhyiye 90; Kokkali 11)
- foods for and feeding– in nature, feed on unicellular algae, mostly species of *Dunaliella* (**Mohebbi 10**); eat anything that is their particle-feeder size range, grow muct faster on *Dunaliella* than yeast, especially *nauplii* (**Porcella 72**); effect of separate strains of bacteria, yeast, algae on brine shrimp growth and survival (**Marques 05**); in oceanic flow-through system, brine shrimp fed on microalgae *Chaetoceros*

curvisetus culture (**Sorgeloos 85**); bacteria not a good sole food source (D'Agostino 80); suspension of brewer's yeast fed weekly (D'Agostino 80); powdered tropical fishfood (Holliday 90); *Artemia* as non-discriminate filter-feeders eat anything between 3-50 microns, but mostly algae and bacteria (Persoone 80), has mandibles that chew on the food (Mohebbi 10); but seem to prefer eating Pseudomonas over other bacteria (**Gorospe 96**); mix of rice bran and Spirullina recommended for cyst production (Versichele 80); pea/corn residue (80/20%) (Verschuere 97); agricultural byproducts such as rice bran, corn bran, soybean pellets, lactoserum as more cost-effective than algae; example of overfeeding is 100 mg food/ day/liter/25,000 brine shrimp and overpopulation is 10 to 20 nauplii/ml (**Verschuere 99**); yeast not a good food as cell wall hard to digest (**Marques 05**); "Baby Shrimp Food" (Nambu 04); rice bran works well (**Gorospe 96**); for reproduction studies, investigators used a 1:1 mix of spirulina algae and shrimp powder (Wang 17)

glycerol released by hatching brine shrimp is good feeding media for bacteria (Sorgeloos 01) growth and size increase of Artemia from 0.5 mm to 7 mm with artificial culture (**Dhert 93**) GSL (Great Salt Lake); ecology of the BS and the *Dunaliella* alga it feeds on, algae cultured in salinity of

- 20% to mimic GSL conditions (Porcella 72); in the spring of 1971, salinity 5-27% (Wikipedia 2019); GSL brine shrimp are deficient in HUFA (Bengston 91) especially EPA (**Leger 86**; Sorgeloos 98); ½ tsp of eggs = 1 gram = 280,000 eggs (GSL 2019); poor nutrient source for marine larva, because deficient in EPA; freshwater organisms okay with GSL eggs (**Leger 86**)
- guppies: growth, survival and salt tolerance for guppies fed on dry food, nauplii, daphnia, and both dry or wet decap-eggs (**Baboli 12**; Lim 02)

hatching requirements: optimum of 15-35 ppt salinity, minimum pH of 8.0, saturated oxygen, strong illumination, maxiumum egg-water density of 2 g eggs/liter (1 tsp/liter) (Sorgeloos 01)

hatching efficiency 70% in 3.5- 4% salinity but reduced to 45% in 7% (Dwivedi 80); hatching conditions for (**Sorgeloos 80**); can hatch at 0.5%, but won't hatch above 8.5% (Persoone 80); San Francisco strains won't hatch above 8.5% because hydration level is insufficient (Stappen 02); is 3X better for eggs produced in 9% v. 3.5% salinity (Versichele 80); 50% inhibition by copper at 0.0064 ppm and zinc at 0.065 ppm at 28°C(**MacRae 91**); "hatching efficiency" (HE) is #nauplii produced per gram of cysts, varies between <100,000 and >300,000 (**Bengston 91**)

hemoglobin development in nauplii required as cysts are anaerobic; HB makes up 20% of soluble protein (**Moens 89**) and contains 0.29% Fe (Bowen 76); red coloration due to hemoglobin, stimulated by iron supplementation and low oxygen (**Versichele 80**)

Instant Ocean salt mix, composition of- Trieff 80

intestinal colonization of nauplii during first two weeks is mainly *Vibrio* (**Gorospe 96**); gut of aquatic animals is colonized by what's in the water, so the microbial microflora of the rearing tank is critical (Verschuere 00b)

ionic composition of natural Artemia habitats shows wide variation- Stappen 02

iron See 'Fe'

juveniles are more nutritious than nauplii (Dhert 93; Sorgeloos 80)

life cycle- 2 weeks to maturity and 6 month potential life-span - Sorgeloos 80

- light- larvae don't grow or reproduce with only a 10 hr photoperiod at 20C (Nambu 04); *A. urmiana* grow better with a 12 hr photoperiod than continuous light (Asil 12); need some light (e.g., 2 hr photoperiod) to trigger hatching, but not 12 hr or 24 hr (Asil 12); effect of longer photoperiod favored live young over cyst production (Nambu 04; Wang 17); produced 92% nauplii with 18 hr photoperiod, but with 6 hr of light, only 28% (Wang 17); generally, 2000 lux at water surface required for hatching (Sorgeloos 01) but not growth (Asil 12), at least during first hours after complete hyrdration (Stottrup J and McEvoy L (eds). 2003. Biology, tank production and nutritional value of Artemia in book *Live Feeds in Marine Aquaculure*, p. 181); continuous light at 1,000 Lux recommended for best hatching (Sorgeloos 80)
- maintenance practices of cleaning and sterilizing ponds prior to stocking do not provide a stable bacterial community- Verschuere 00b
- metabolism, anaerobic under low oxygen- D'Agostino 80
- metal toxicity- hatching process extremely sensitive to heavy metals (Cu, Zn, Pb, Ni) (MacRae 91);
 however, the adult shrimp is extremely resistant with a Cu and Zn LD₅₀ of 2.33 and 63 ppm,
 respectively (Gajbhyiye 90; Kokkali 11; Trieff 80) toxicity to nauplii LC50s for Cd, Cu, Fe, Ni, Zn, acute synergistic effects (Gajbhyiye 90); low-dose effect of Cd, Cu, Fe and Zn on nauplii motility (Kokkali 11)

moult dailey- Verschuere 97; add a phyllopodia with sodium pumps after each of 11 molts (**Holliday 90**) nitrite nitrite, 24 hr. LC50 is 1610 ppm, 321X more than LC50 for penaeid shrimp (**Chen 89**) nutritional value of shrimp increases with growth (42% protein of nauplii v. 60% in adults)- (Gorospe 96;

Leger 86; Sorgeloos 80); afte 8 hr nauplii develop into Instar II, which provide less energy than freshly hatched (Dhert 97; Sorgeloos 80); nauplii are deficient in 4 amino acids (Sorgeloos 80); best food for many marine animals (**Sorgeloos 80**); decap eggs, nauplii, daphnia and food source for tropical fish (guppies, neon tetras, etc) (Lim 02)

osmoregulation system in brine shrimp best in animal kingdon (Leger 86; Persoone 80); energy-requiring process characteristic of freshwater organisms that excrete ingested NaCl (D'Agostino 80); increasing salinity from 1/2 (1.7%) to 4X (14%) that of seawater (3.5%) involves increased pumping and synthesis of Na/K ATP ase, brine shrimp use chloride cells similar to those of marine fish; anatomy of (**Holliday 90**); *Artemia* grow and reproduce just fine at 2% salinity (**Nambu 04**); isotonic at 30% seawater or 0.1% (Holliday 90); survive 0.5 to 1 hr in freshwater (Malla 15); adults better able to cope with salinity stress than nauplii (D'Agostino 80), probably because their chloride apparatus take about a week to respond by increasing Na/K ATP ase; requires Mg++ and K+ (**Holliday 90**); Artemia eggs-protected from high salinity by shell which is imperable to salts but not water; nauplii are born with temporary osmoregulation (via neck organ/dorsal salt gland) that is later replaced by coxal gill structures in adults; both invove Na pump (Na+/K+ ATPase) (**Charmantier 01**); pump needs K+ to work; chloride cell involve Na pump (Bond 96, p 411); chloride actively transported out (Holliday 90); add a phyllopodia with sodium pumps after each of 11 molts (**Holliday 90**)

- oxygen- *Artemia* tolerate oxygen levels down to ~2 ppm (Bossuyt 80; Leger 86) or 1 ppm because oxygen is inversely proportional to salinity (Personne 80); nauplii develop 3 types of hemoglobin (I,II,III) with different oxygen binding affinities (**Moens 89**; D'Agostino 80); co-colonization with fermenting bacteria (Verscheure 00); lower survival at 3.4 mm oxygen unless shrimp are supplemented with iron for increased hemoglobin (**Versichele 80**); saturated oxygen considered optimal for hatching (Asil 12)
- pH below 8.0 inhibits hatching; hatching requires ≥8.0 (Sorgeloos 80, 01); adults okay at 7.5-8.5 (SFBB 06)
- population density: in nature, GSL supports peak summer densities of 3 adults/liter; the more productive Mono Lake, 6-8 adults per liter (Mohebbi 10); lab density of 10,000/liter (Leger 86)
- probiotics used to protect fry/larva feeding on nauplii from destructive *Vibrio* species (Sorgeloos 01); development of effective probiotic bacteria must, in order to have long-lasting effect, be able grow well in the animal's environment or gut; potential mechanisms of probiotic action **(Verschuere 00b**); effect of *Vibrio alginolyticus* strain LSV8 not due to chemical release since filtrates had no effect on disease challenge, probably due to its ability to grow well in the *Artemia* culture (Verschuere 00a);; probiotic effect may be only nutritional (**Marques 05**)
- reproduction: 100% fecundity at 7% salinity v. 84% at 4.5% salinity; optimum fertility shown by females becoming sexually mature in 12 days with 76 eggs/brood sac; successive batches released every 4-5 days (Dwivedi 80; Sorgeloos 80); dual mode of reproduction where ovoviviparity (live young) insures population explosion under optimal conditions; however, under certain conditions they can form cysts (Persoone 80); live nauplii produced under favorable conditions (Wang 17); effect light & temperature on producing cysts (oviparity) v. live nauplii (ovoviviparity) (**Nambu 04; Wang 17**); 300 nauplii every 3-4 days (SFBB 06)
- salinity: for body length, fertility, survival, 7% was best (4% survival at 15 days with 30% salinity), but for hatching 3.5-4% was best (Dwivedi 80); *Artemia* can just survive at 34%; cysts won't hatch above 8.5% (Stappen 02); *Artemia* grow and reproduce just fine at 2% salinity (Nambu 04); cysts hatch in 0.5%-8.5% (Persoone 80); GSL has 20% salinity and hatched BS grew just fine in it (Porcella 72); tolerate 0.1% to 20% (D'Agostino 80); isotonic at 30% seawater or 0.1%; adults require 1 week to adjust to increased salinity (Holliday 90)
- salt, type for growth; non-iodized salt should be used for long term immersion of fish (Noga 10, p.414); iodized salt is toxic for fish and not recommended (**Wangen 12**)
- strain variations between GSL, SFBB, for size and as an animal food (SFBB; Leger 86; Sorgeloos 80); length of cysts and nauplii (Leger 86; D'Agostino 80); 6 species and where found (SFBB 06); GSL supplies 70% of world's eggs, but poor in fatty acids (Bengston 91), especially EPA (Leger 86)
- temperature: for producing cysts v. nauplii (Nambu 04; Wang 17); constant temperature of 25-28C is optimal (Sorgeloos 01)
- tolerate wide fluctuations in salinity (0.1-20%), temperature, oxygen (D'Agostino 80; Persoone 80), and ammonia/nitrite (**Chen 89**)

vitamin C requirements- Sorgeloos 01

Snails-

algal grazing protects SAMs (Borum 86; Bronmark 90; Gopal 93; Rogers 83; Sand-Jensen 91; Underwood 91)

aquarium- Reimer T91; Sliz T5(5)

association with SAMs may be species specific, a function of allelochemicals- Gopal 93
bacteria, interaction with during decomposition (Mann 73; Rogers 83); passively host EMand excrete viable EMin feces (Marsollier 04a)
consumption of live SAMs is minimal (Newman 91; Rogers 83); eat bacterial biofilms on plants (Marsollier 04a); damage to leaf after its dead and conditioned by bacteria (Rogers 83)
decomposition accelerated by reducing particle size- Mann 72
epiphytic consumption (Borum 87; Bronmark 91;Sand-Jensen 91; Underwood 91); shown graphically by SEM with photos (Rogers 83); protects plants (Jernakoff 97)
MTS recommended, because they aerate the substrate (Kasselmann 03)

nutrient release stimulates SAM growth- Underwood 91

K (Potassium)-

algal and plant interspecies competition for- Gerloff 75

Ca channels and membrane potential-Felle 91

competitve uptake with Ca/Mg (Donahue 83; Rorison 60a; Wild 88) but only in calcicoles not calcifuges (Roelofs 86; Rorison 86); K+ v. NH4+ (Beck 91; Khademi 04); K+ v. Na+

(Jampeetong 09a)

cycling in lakes minimal- W193

deficiency symptoms in aquatic plants [Krombholz T6(5); Newman 88] and terrestrials (Wild 88) limiting nutrient in situ?- Gerloff 75; Steward 84

preferential uptake from water- Amundsen 82; **Barko 82**, 88, 81b; Gerloff 75; Huebert 83; Overath 91

sediment a sink, not a source for (Barko 88: Carignan 85; Sutton 96)

sodium, competition with causes K deficiencies and injures plant (Jampeetong 09a); substitution by

Na to maintain internal ionic balance, is present at 25 ppm in his nutrient solution- Huebert 83 uptake (Barko 82, 88; Beck 81, 91; Gerloff 75; Glass 89; Reddy 89; Smart 85; Steward 84; W194)

from sediment very inefficient (Barko 82; Huebert 83)

water K necessary (Barko 82) for optimal growth and flowering (Huebert 83)

water levels of (Shearer 88; Steward 84); 0.01-0.1 uM (0.4 to 4 ppm) in natural habitat of *Riccia* (Felle 91)

Lake rhythms

daytime-

alkalinity decrease- Allen 72; W555

bicarbonates depleted- W219

Ca depleted- King 72

CO2 depleted (Allen 71, 72; Keeley 83; King 72; Svedang 92); greater CO2 uptake by liverworts

(Miyazaki 85)

DOC release increases- Allen 71, 72; W509

fish activity (Steele 89; Weber 94); larger zooplankton move to downward to darker depths to escape fish feeding on them during the daytime (Williamson 95)

general- Reddy 81; W509

light intensity fluctuations- Kasselmann 03

malate and acidity increase within plant- Raven 88; Sharma 95

nitrate uptake much greater- Nelson 80

oxygen increase (Allen 71; Burton 78; Hasler 49; King 72; WW154); O2 below masses of floating plants (Jedicke 89)

- pH/photosynthesis/CO2 (Allen 72)
- pH increase- Allen 72: Keeley 83; King 72; W555
- photorespiration increases as lacunal O2 accumulates- W533
- PS increase (Allen 72; W169); midday peak in Euglena under biological clock control (Lonergan 90)
- sediments O2 increase- Ash 02
- temperature increases- Allen 72
- zooplankton grazing decreases (W509); larger zooplankton move downwards and smaller ones move upwards (Williamson 95)

summertime-

ammonium/nitrate depletion of water- Kuenzler 86; W241

plant biomass high (Gopal 87; Sutton 85; Titus 83; W549); increased productivity under biological clock control (Huebert 83); seasonal effects on plant parts and elements (**Peverly 79**)

Ca depletion via biogenic decalcification (WW178)

carbohydrate accumulation by plants- Spence 81

CO2 accumulation- Burns 72; W214

DOC increase- Winner 91

fish, seasonal rhythms in behavior- Weber 94

fish kills from oxygen depletion- W168, 170

nutrient levels in sediment increase from enhanced decomposition of OM- Pulich 85

rosette, tuber, turion formation (Spence 81; Sutton 85; Titus 83) for winter hibernation (Kasselmann

springtime clear water phase due to bloom of zooplankton that graze on algae- Williamson 95 tissue levels of nutrients high- Gopal

Lake, River, Ocean and Aquarium Ecosystems-

- acidic waters (Catling 86; Miyazaki 85) due to acid rain will change plant species composition due to higher bicarbonates (**Iversen 19**); field study (Adirondacks) showing that acid lakes (pH < 6) favor obligate water CO2 users but not sediment CO2 users (**Titus 17**)
- Amazon basin: plants, animals, ecology, water chemistry of (Marlier 67); DOC characteristics of blackwater, clear water, and white water rivers (Kasselmann 03); comparison on white and black water Amazon rivers in Cardinal tetra physiology (Cremazy 16); DOC in Rio Negro protect fish against water's extreme acidity (Duarte 16)

aquaculture- Gilbert 97

aquarium (Fitzgerald 69; Moe 89; Spotte 79); balanced aquarium a myth (Atz 52; 71)

- Black water rivers (W185) are humus-rich (Janzen 74); Amazon black water rivers have low pH (pH ~4) and are inhospitable to plants (Kasselmann 03), but not fish which are protected by its DOC (**Duarte 16**); low pH (<4) and salts (e.g., 5-50 uM Na+) would be toxic to most fish, but contain they contain 8% of world's freshwater species, potential toxcity compensated for by high DOC (5.25 0.04) (M i. 21)
 - (5-35 mg C/l) (**Morris 21**);

bogs- Westerman 93; W743

- brown water lakes- W737+
- eutrophic- Ozimek 90
- hardwater lakes- (Allen 71; Otsuki 74; Rich 78; **Wetzel** 69, **72**; W733+) contain 40-60 ppm Ca and 15-25 ppm Mg (Wetzel 90)
- Lake Tanganyika (**Brichard 78**; Coulter 91; **Edmond 93**); plant species found in (Kasselmann 03) lakes (Gaudet 73; Goldman 72; Schindler 77; Wetzel 90); most lakes supersaturated with CO2 (**Cole**
- 94; Titus 90); lakes have more bicarbonate users than streams (Iversen 19)
- oceans- the water has less DOC (Bowen 79; Bulthuis 81; Williamson 95) and sediments have more sulfides than freshwaters (Jones 81); CO2 uptake by algae enhanced by increased atm CO2 (Riesbesell 07)
- oligotrophic natural waters- Goldman 60, 72; Sand-Jensen 79

productivity of marine ecosystems (Mann 73) and plant ecosystems (W547)

Sacramento River (CA), chemistry of water and sediment (Leung 01)

salt lakes- Wurtsbaugh 88; W187

- sewage lagoons- King 72; McKinney 04
- softwater, eutrophic (Allen 72); softwater lakes (Giesy 83; Hutchinson 87; Roelofs 91; Welsh 93)
- streams have more CO2 than lakes, which affects plant species composition; less obligate CO2 users

downstream due to decreased CO2 levels (Iversen 19)

swamps (Rai 79; Schoenberg 90; van Wijck 92; Westerman 93)

tropical waters of the rainforest (Cushing 91; Horst 86; Junk 80; Mansor 94; Marlier 67; Schmidt 72); water parameters of (Kasselmann 03)
USA lakes- aquatic plant species composition of hardwater v. softwater lates in MN (Moyle 45) wetlands- Westerman 93; Wetzel 90 world's waters, chemistry and evolution of- Gibbs 70
Light, biological effects-

absorption does not mean use- Lawlor 87; Rabinowitch 69; Wild 88 adjustment to new intensity or spectrum (**Richardson 83**) takes 3 days for algae (Rich 90); adjustment to low light, short photoperiod by *Potamogeton pectinatus* clones (Pilon 02) allelochemical production- Grossman 94; Hanson 81; McClure 70 Artemia reproduction- Nambu 05 Ca fluxes in response to light stimulation- Bush 94; Iino 89; Helpler 85; Shacklock 92 cell volume of algae, effect of light on- Thompson 89 chlorophyll in leaves increases as light decreases (Barko 83c; **Pilon 02**; Richardson 83); Chl b, relative to Chl *a*, the more efficient pigment, increases (Sultana 2010b) chloroplast movement (Attridge 90; Dong 95; Seitz 82); blue light photoreceptor and Ca fluxes required (Thalka 93) chromatic adaptation of PS pigments (Kirk 94; Lee 89; Richardson 83; Pilon 02; Spencer 86) and effect on morphology of blue-green algae (Bennet 73) cytoplasmic streaming and chloroplast movement in aquatic plants (Haupt 94; Hepler 85; Seitz 82) efficiency of light use for algae, shade or sun plants (Berry 82); is 5-10% (8-10 quanta) for terrestrials (Lawlor 87; Wild 88), but < 1% for aquatics (W390); increases in dim light (Lawlor 87); maximum possible efficiency is 18% (Kirk 94); adjustments to low light (Pilon 02) flowering (Lumsden 87; Wooten 78) stimulated by sunlight, heat, long photoperiod, chelating agents, phenols (Gopal 90) light, temperature, and photoperiod in tropical seagrasses (McMillan 82) depends on plant species (Thomas 97); occurred only with 16 hr photoperiod in *Potamogeton* wrightii, not 8h or 12 hr (Sultana 2010a) See under Aquatic Plants general effects on plants- Attridge 90; Spence 81 growth- Barko 81a, 91b; Gaudet 73; Madsen 91b; Pilon 02 heterophylly induced by low R/FR- Bodkin 80; Spence 81; W526

Hydrilla can PS in low-light, a competitive advantage- Van 76

latitude- Northern latitudes have more total light supply at summer soltice than tropical latitudes (WW52); log increase in daylength with increasing latitude (Pilon 02); clones from different latitudes respond similarly to changes in light intensity and photoperiod (Pilon 02); monoecious Hydrilla more adaptable to higher latitudes than dioecious Hydrilla (Spencer 86)

leaf morphology changes from dissected leaves at 90 PAR to less dissected leaves at 15 PAR, but changes not as great as those due to fluctuating water levels (Nakayama 14) minimal levels and compensation points (Balls 89; Berry 82; Boston 89; James 86; Lloyd 77;

Madsen 91b; Martin 91; Pokorny 85; Reiskind 89; Richardson 83; Riemer 84; Sand-Jensen 91,

91b; Thompson 89; W538; Wetzel 85); differences in species requirements (Trebitz 93);

competitive advantage for Hydrilla over other SAMS (Van 76)

morphological adaptations to photoperiod in grasses (Hay 90) and a submerged aquatic plant *P*. *wrightii* (Sultana 2010a), light levels and photoperiod in aquatic plants (Pilon 02)
nutrient uptake- Barko 91; DeMarte 74; Goldman 72; Thompson 89

photoinhibition (Barko 81a; Berry 82; Bowes 89; Carpenter 85; Gopal 90; James 86; Richardson 83;
Riemer 84; W355, 537; Wild 88); excess light can stimulate a systemic protective response in plants (Karpinski 99) and algae (Kaiser 97); when plants exposed to light intensity that exceeds their PS capacity, they undergo oxidative stress (generate excess energy and H202) (Horiguchi 19)

photooxidation/photolysis of DOC See under 'Decomposition'

photoperiod for plants (PP): flowering in tropical seagrasses need daylength of 14 hr or more (McMillan 82); scientists use 16:8 light dark cycle for bicarbonate user experiments (Husser 16); in nature, PP is 12 h in the tropics (Gaudet 73; Sculthorpe 67) and 10-14 in the subtropics (Kasselmann 03); recommended PP for aquarium plants is 12-13 hr (Kasselmann 03); 8-10 hr photoperiod for aquarium plants not enough for growth; need >12 hr for reproduction and emersed growth (Kasselmann 03, 07); effect of nutrient levels on PP of *Potamogeton wrightii* (Sultana 2010b); duckweed had 44% (37%-62%, 4 expts) more biomass after 8 days growth with 24 hr daylength than 18 hr (Polar 86); 3 clones of Potamogeton pectinatus grew 91% (25%-235%) better after 56 days with 24 hr than 13 hr in 6 expts (Pilon 02); decreasing daylength from 16 hr to 10 hr stimulated turion production but did not affect growth in *Hydrilla* (MacDonald 08); growth rate of grasses increased by extending the photoperiod but not the total light supply (Hay 90); physiological and morphological changes (Hay 90; Pilon 02; Sultana 2010a); no significant difference in *Hydrilla*'s growth rate with either 10, 12, 14 or 16 hr PP (Spencer 86); for Potamogeton wrightii, 16 hr PP produced longer stems/shoots and bigger leaves than plants raised with 8 and 12 hr PPs, especially under low nutrient conditions; more leaf senescence with 8 hr PP (Sultana 2010a); plants had low PS rate and collapsed at 56-70 days with 8 hr PP and high nutrient situation (Sultana 2010b); 8 h. of 200 PAR used for *H. difformis* study of heterophylly

(Horiguchi 19) and 24 hr photoperiod, 80 PAR for *L. arcuata* (Kuwabara 03) photoreduction of iron oxides and release of Fe (Anderson 82; Rich 90); release of DIC (Graneli 96) photorespiration- balance between electrons generated by photosynthesis v. availability of electron

acceptors (CO2 and O2), shading decreases electron generation and photorespiration (Mommer 06); can release 50% of fixed CO2 (**Bowes 93**)

phototrophism (bending to blue light)- Attridge 90; Hart 88; Huala 97

reproduction-- germination promoted by R, reversed by FR (Attridge 90; Hart 88; Spence 81) and turion formation in duckweed stimulated by high R/FR (Attridge 90); tuber formation in Hydrilla

(Barko 86b) strongly stimulated by shorter day (10 hr v. 16 hr photoperiod) (**MacDonald 08**); germination of water lily seeds (Smits 95); inhibition of flowering by FR at the end of the day (Lumsden 87); short day v. long day plants (Raven 92; Thomas 97); formation of adventitious plants requires a photoperiod longer than 12 hr (**Kasselmann 07**)

root oxygenation of sediment (Caffrey 90; Carpenter 83; **Pedersen 98**); root growth decreased with decreasing light, but stems/leaves increased (Pilon 02)

Salvinia, effect of light intensity on morphology- Kasselmann 03

saturation levels for plants (Barko 81; Berry 82; Boston 89; Bowes 86, 89; Gopal 87; Lloyd 77;

Thompson 89) much higher for aerial than submerged growth (Salvucci 82); low for marine algae

(Lee 89; Reiskind 89); Vallisneria can be acclimated to moderate levels [800 uE/m2/sec] (Boston

89); lower for growth than PS (Lee 89); comparison of plants and algae (Kirk 94)

shade avoidance as a competitive strategy (Smith 94) self-shading limits growth (W383)

shade plants may have more green and FR absorbing pigments (Berry 82); adaptation to shade

strategies via decreasing the Chlorophyll a/b ratio (more Chl b) and light compensation points

(Mommer 06)

species variation in light requirements (Kasselmann 03), growth v. light intensity (Hutchinson 75;

Pilon 02); clonal variation (Pilon 02)

stem length and leaf area increase with low R/FR and low light (Attridge 90; Holmes 77c; Spence

81; Tasker 77d); Crypts with large wide leaves are shade Crypts (Kasselmann 03) stimulus localized to one part of plant can trigger a systemic response- **Karpinski 99** synergism of R, B, G and FR light (Emerson effect)- **Emerson 57, 58**; Govindjee 82 temperature and light have combined effect on growth- Barko 81a; W538

UV light degrades DOC (Graneli 96; Wetzel 72) and releases enzymes from humic acid complexes (Wetzel 92); inhibits algae (Culotta 94) and kills microorganisms (Hijnen 06; Jacangelo 02; LeChevallier 04); UV inhibits bacteria more than algae because of algae's protective pigments and larger size, but bacteria can repair the UV damage via photoenzymatic repair mechanisms (Kaiser 97); complexity of UV light's effect of lake productivity (Williamson 95)
See also Pigments

Light Properties and Artificial Lighting-

- aquatic light not like any terrestrial light (Reiskind 89), depleted in B and R, rich in G, has high R/FR (1-23) [Attridge 90; Spence 81; W58] as compared to terrestrial light (0-1) [Smith 77b], because water absorbs longer wavelengths preferentially (Bodkin 80; W56); light quality a function of water depth (Wooten 78)
- blue light less efficient because of carotenoid absorbtion (Emerson 60; Lawlor 87); causes photoreduction of Fe and release of Fe2+ (Rich 90; Spiers T4:1)
- canopy shade, light passage through forest leaves, enriches G and FR (Attridge 90; Berry 82; Spence 81) and differs from ordinary shade which is rich in B (Holmes 77a); affected by season and tree

species (Tasker 77d); canopy shade (terrestrial) has more FR than aquatic light (Spence 81);

incandescent and FR light source used to simulate canopy shade (Holmes 77c)

colors- blue (430 nm); red (660 nm); far red (730 nm)

definition of light- Smith 75

depth, water: PAR decreases 18% and 32% with 10 and 20 cm distance from the water surface

(Mommer 06)

DOC absorbs UV and B- Graneli 96; Spence 81; W58

- fluorescent light: Cool-white alone used in artificial propagation of Crypts (Kane 90) and works well when combined with other light sources (Gaudet 73; **Richards 87**); Sylvannia Gro-Lux somewhat inefficient but good for plant growth (Kassselman 03)
- FR will rise underwater at dusk- Spence 81
- infrared light for physical therapy and electronic device sensing is 880 nm (Internet) v. FR which is 730 nm

intensity varies in nature due to cloud cover and time of day, LUX measurements of- **Kasselman 03** lighting sources for the aquarium- **Kasselmann 03**; Moe 92

PAR (photosynthetic active radiation of 400-700 nm wavelengths): PAR decrease with water depth in a clay pit, presence of floating algae decreases it 95% (**Mommer 06**); quantitation in µmol/m²/s PAR (Hopkins 95); PAR at water surface in my tanks is 100-200 µmol/m²/s and decreases to 1/3 and 1/10 at 6" below the water surface (**DLW 2020**); PAR decreases 18% and 32% with 10 and 20 cm distance from the water surface (**Mommer 06**)

PPFD- photosynthetic photon flux density- same as PAR

- quantitation: in uE units (Barko 86; Lee 89; Smith 75; Richardson 83; Thompson 89; W53); 5,000 lux = 115 mE (Dendene 93); full sunlight is 1,500 to 2,000 PAR (Richardson 83);
- R/FR is 8.2 for fluorescent daylight (Holmes 77c), but only 0.64 for incandescent (Holmes 77c; Smith 77b); decreases in summer (Tasker 77d); because of PS absorption of R light, the R/FR decreases via passage through aquatic leaves (Spence 81) and algae (Mommer 06) and the lowered R/FR triggers a shade canopy signal to plants (Mommer 06); R/FR increases via passage through water because water absorbs FR more than R (Momokawa 11)
- shade, defined as ≤20 PAR for plants and triggers a canopy shade signal (Mommer 06); it is diffuse light and richer in Blue than sunlight (Attridge 90; Holmes 77a)
- spectra- natural v. artificial light (Gaudet 73; James 86; Riemer 84; W47); shade, canopy shade, sunflecks, sunlight are different (Attridge 90; **Holmes 77a**)
- sunflecks are higher in R/FR (0.63) than surrounding canopy shade (0.10) [Attridge 90; Holmes 77c; Smith 77b], but lower than sunlight (1.15) [Smith 77b; Tasker 77d]; quantum flux is 4 X more for sunflecks than surrounding shade [Smith 77b]; and there is more R because passage through trees depletes the diffuse B light [Holmes 77a]
- temperature, (Kelvin color ratings)- 2700-4000 recommended for aquariums (Kasselmann 03)

UV absorption by glass (Wetzel 92) but passes through quartz (Kaiser 97); borosilicate glass absorbs all light below 300 nm (Graneli 96); UV-A (320-400 nm) and UV-B (280-320 nm) (Graneli 96); UV light penetrates >20 m (Kaiser 97) and affects zooplankton reproduction at 6 m (Williamson 95); UV-B radiation level of 0.4 watts/m approximates field conditions (Kaiser 97)

Metal toxicity, fish-

age and size of fish- Fraser 82; McKim 85; Newman 88 apetite suppression (Waiwood 78a) by Al (Gundersen 94) behavior, hormones, and neurotransmitters (Weber 94); courtship behavior of guppies (Schroder **88**); synchronous behavior (Weber 94) brine shrimp and fish, compared toxicity (LD50s) of Hg, Pb, Cu, and Zn to (Trieff 80); toxicity of Cu, Zn, Pb, and Ni to hatching efficiency (MacRae 91) Ca amelioration of metal toxicity symptoms (Bjerselius 93; Cremazy 17; Leland 85; Markrich 94; Miller 80: Silbergeld 80; Wood 92); metals enter through calcium channels (Zia 94) Ca concretions, storage of metals- Roesijadi 94 chelators prevent metal toxicity-Fitzgerald 69; Sprague 85 Cu toxicity in trout (survival) affected by DOC and Ca, but not Mg or pH (Cremazy 17); natural DOC has huge protective effect on cardinal tetras, correlated with Na+ influx and binding to gill tissue (Cremazy 16) cyanide poisoning, symptoms similar to those of metal toxicity on reproduction- Ruby 93 dirunal activity levels, effect of Cu on- Steele 89 early life stage tests are best predictors of toxicity- McKim 85 egg fragility increased- McKim 85 excretion of Pb by fish- Leland 85 feeding behavior of schooling fish, Pb- Weber 91 general- Borgmann 83; Fraser 82; Leland 85; Newman 88; Nikinmaa 92; Pagenkopf 86; Spotte 79; Spry 85; Tacon 83; Waiwood 78a, b; Wood 92 gills, ion fluxes disturbed by (Cremazy 16; Spry 85; Morris 21; Waiwood 78b; Witters 90; Wood 92); ulceration by (Lacroix 93; Leland 85) growth- Waiwood 78a hormone levels (Weber 91) and release (Ruby 93) ingested metals are not the problem; they are either insoluble or under homeostatic control-Eichenberger 86; Martin 86; Newman 88; Nieboer 80; Tarifeno 82 individual metals have different effects (Leland 85); Zn accumulation is regulated, but Pb is not (Kraak 94) mechanism of toxicity to fish: failure to maintain Na+ homeostasis. Mortality occurs when fish lose ~30% of their plasma Na+ (Cremazy 16) Metals compete with Na+ for intake gill cells. Metal

Na+ uptake. Metals also displace the extracelular Ca "glue" making the tissue leaky, thereby allowing Na" to diffuse out (Morris 21). Freshwater fish naturally lose Na+ by diffusion into the more dilute external media. To maintain blood plasma levels of Na+, they actively take up Na+ from the water.

metal release from animals is a two-stage process- Roesijadi 94

metallothioneins, protection against- Kraak 94; Leland 85; Roesijadi 94

mixture of Al, Zn, Cu as affected by natural DOC- Hutchinson 86

- mucus secretions protect (Wood 92) gills from Al toxicity (Lacroix 93)
- neurotoxic effect, Cd on touch sensitivity of worms (Rogge 93); Cu on olfactory receptors of fish (Bjerselius 93)
- neurotransmitters and hormones are essentially the same (**Wendelaar 93**), in that both require exocytosis (Creutz 84)

Pb, Ca, and neurotransmission- Leland 85; Silbergeld 80

RBC's effected by- Nikinmaa 92

reproduction (Sprague 85), decrease in spermatogenisis (Ruby 93)

sea catfish has a copper LC50 of 3.6 ppm (Steele 89)

smell, effect of Cu on- Bjerselius 93

stress increases toxicity (Nikinmaa 92); stressed fish are more susceptible to Cd showing lower plasma osmolarity and higher plasma cortisol (**Wendelaar 97**)

swimming performance altered because of gill problems- Waiwood 78b uptake of metals- Spacie 85

Metal toxicity, general-

absorbtion of heavy metals to FeOH, AlOH and SiOHs (Beckwith 75; Bingham 86; Eichenberger 86; Pagenkopf 86) and POC (**Giesy 78**); humic and fulvic acids (Nor 86; **Thurman 85**); chelators (Sprague 85)

acidity decreases (Sprague 85), because of H⁺ competition with metal uptake (Borgmann 83); however, metals are more toxic in acid waters (Miller 80; Waiwood 78a, 78b; Welsh 93)

Al toxicity (Fraser 82; Grise 86; Lacroix 93; Nieboer 80; Urban 90) to fish reduced by water hardness and humic acids (Gundersen 94)

alkalinity (carbonate formation) decreases- Borgmann 83; Miller 80; Pagenkopf 86

aquatic organisms, review- Borgmann 83; Eichenberger 86); on brine shrimp (Gajbhiye 90;

Kokkali 11; MacRae 91)

arsenic cycling in well water- Oremland 03

bacteria killed by (Bisson 92; Borgmann 83), but bacteria more tolerant than plants (Lederberg 00);

EM more resistant than other bacteria; metals used as disinfectants (N124) See 'MB

(mycobacteriosis) ...: metal toxicity'

bioaccumulation (Wang 97) and toxicity of Cu, Cd, Zn as affected by humic acid and water hardness (Winner 86)

- bioassays of (Bisson 92; Borgmann 83; Kraak 94; Sakaguchi 81; Winner 91); brine shrimp hatching (MacRae 91); toxicity to nauplii brine shrimp LC50s for Cd, Cu, Fe, Ni, Zn much less than for hatching, acute synergistic effects (Gajbhyiye 90); low-dose effect of Cd, Cu, Fe and Zn on brine shrimp nauplii motility (Kokkali 11)
- biological organisms share susceptibility (Borgmann 83; Nieboer 80; Sposito 86), because they all have Ca channels (Markrich 94; Roesijadi 94)
- Ca channels blocked in both animals (Zia 94) and plants (Marshall 94; Pineros 93)

Cd a strong Ca channel blocker- Kostyuk 80

chronic exposure- Bisson 92; Spry 85; Waiwood 78a, b; Winner 91; Wood 92

- Cu toxicity (Bingham 86; Bisson 92; Bjerselius 93; Borgmann 83; Eichenberger 86; Ernst 92; Frank T5(1); Marquenie 79; Miller 80; Pangenkopf 86; Waiwood 78a, 78b; Winner 91; Wood 92) reduced by natural aquatic DOC (Giesy 83; Welsh 93; Winner 85); reduced by metal sulfide formation (Rozan 00)
- DOC's effect unpredictable (W368; Winner 91) and provides less protection than metal ppt with sulfides (Rozan 00); DOC can decrease toxicity [Bingham 86; Bisson 92; Bowen 79; Eichenberger 86; Nieboer 80; Urban 90] through chelation by allelopathic phenols [Serrano 90; Wetzel 93], or increase toxicity (ionophores ?) [Beckwith 75; Bingham 86; Borgmann 83; Bowen 79; Eichenberger 86; Nieboer 80; Winner 91]; DOC reduces metal toxicity in fish and daphnia (Giesy 83; Welsh 93; Winner 85; Witters 90); no difference between aquatic and soil humus (Witters 90)

environmental cycling of toxic metals- Tarifeno 82

essentiallity and toxicity unrelated- Eichenberger 86; Martin 86

free metals only are taken up and toxic- Eichenberger 86; Nor 86; Pagenkopf 86

general- Bowen 79; Nieboer 80; Sposito 86

humans, nervous system affected by Pb poisoning (Silbergeld 80); neutrophil membrane depolarized

by (Scharff 96)

insolubility decreases- Nieboer 80; Reddy 77; Urban 90

mechanisms of toxicity- Eichenberger 86; Markrich 94; Nieboer 80

mercury inactivation by bacteria- N762

metallothionein proteins bind metals- Roesijadi 94; Weber 91

Mn toxicity- Bingham 867; Fraser 82; Urban 90; Wood 92

Mo toxity- Sakaguchi 81

mussels, bioaccumulation and toxicity of metals Pb and Zn- Kraak 94

N source influences toxicity to terrestrial plants- Rorison 84

OH- of Al and Cu are toxic- Gundersen 94; Welsh 93

peat as a metal remover (Bailey 99; Brown 00; Spiniti 95)

pH, effect on (Borgmann 83; Miller 80; Sprague 85; Waiwood 78a, 78b; Welsh 93); Al more toxic at pH 9 than 7 because of OH- (Gundersen 94); Cu less toxic at 7 than 5.4 (Welsh 93) photooxidative destruction of DOC- Bisson 92; Wetzel 93 protozoa and nematodes more vulnerable than bacteris (bioaccumulation?) (Lederberg 00) silver (1 mg/ml) used in water treatment- LeChevallier 04 soils contaminated with heavy metals don't accumulate plant organic matter- Lederberg 00 speciation of metal ions (Gundersen 94), binding and competitive uptake moderate toxicity (Borgmann 83; Geisy 83; Nieboer 80; Pagenkopf 86; Sculthorpe 67; Waiwood 78a, b; Winner **91**); even scientists can't predict lethality (Sprague 85) species of animals affected differently: clams (Markrich 94) and guppies (Schroder 88) sulfides decrease (Beckwith 75; Bingham 86; Pulich 82; Reddy 77) heavy metal levels such as Cd and Cu more than DOC (Rozan 00) uptake by cells (Scharff 96), metal carrier required (Leland 85) is both active and passive (Cohen 98) uranium removal- use Geobacteria to ppt it from solution- Ash 02 water hardness decreases (Gundersen 94; Winner 86) because of Ca/Mg competition with metal uptake (McCracken 87; Nieboer 80; Pagenkopf 86; Spry 85; Waiwood 78a, 78b; Wood 92); effect mainly due to Ca (Bjerselius 93; Huebert 83; Markrich 94); hardness more important than alkalinity (Miller 80), but not as important as DOC (Gundersen 94; Hutchinson 87; Winner 85)

Zn toxicity- Bingham 86; Bisson 92; Borgmann 83; Eichenberger 86; Ernst 92; Marquenie 79; Newman 88; Nikinmaa 92; Pagenkopf 86; **Spry 85; Wood 92**

Metal toxicity, plants-

accumulation and toxicity of Cd, Co, Cr, Cu, Ni, Pb, Zn- Charpentier 87; Gaur 94; Heubert 92; Jain 90; Polar 86; Sela 89; Wang 97

Ca channels blocked by heavy metals (Huang 96; Marshall 94; Pineros 93,97; Silbergeld 80); Mn enters wheat cells through Ca channels (Shacklock 92)

Ca must be in the water (Huebert 83; 91; Smits 92) to protect some plant species from metal toxicity (Huebert 83; Newman 88; Smits 92)

chlorosis and Fe deficiency from- Bingham 86; Mo 89; Sauchelli 69

Fe transporter, non-selectivity of metal uptake- Cohen 98

general- Bingham 86; Bowen 79; Ernst 92; Glass 89; Gopal 87; Kufel 91; Marquenie 79; Mayes 77;

Peverly 79; Reddy 84; Sneddon 91; Sutcliffe 81; Titus 90; Wehr 87; Wild 88; Wilkinson 89 loss of cations (K, Mg & Na) due to- Sela 89

mechanism of (**Ernst 92**); Ni replacement of Zn in carbonic anhydrase (Nieboer 80); metals block intracellular uptake (Marshall 96)

metals are part of particulate fraction of plants- Sela 89

N source and pH have an effect (Rorison 84); nitrates may decrease growth of calcifuges exposed to heavy metal and calcium (Rorison 84; 85)

release of Cu from plant after accumulation- Charpentier 87

root/shoot uptake of Pb and Cd- Mayes 77; Nakada 79

symptoms of for Cd, Cr, Cu, Ni, and Zn- Sela 89

tolerance to (Bingham 86; Ernst 92; Nieboer 80) associated with calcifuge, tropical plants (Davies

97; Foy 78; Rorison 84); plants less tolerant than bacteria; metal-tolerant plants can imporve soil

quality and bacterial ecology (Lederberg 00)

uptake of Hg and accumulation to 1800 ppm by duckweed- Mo 89

vacuolar storage, internal detoxifiers- Bienfait 83; Cohen 98; Ernst 92; Nieboer 80

Mg (Magnesium)-

aquatic plants may require some Mg in the water (Barko 86b); to grow well and flower (Huebert 83)

availability from decomposition of animals is limited- Parmenter 91

deficiency symptoms- Krombholz T6(5); Wild 88

functions as intracellular stabilizer and reaction center of chlorophyll (Nieboer 80)

general- W191+

levels in freshwater about 0.1 to 0.3 mM (Flik 93)

metal toxicity, Mg not a substitute for Ca in ameliorating metal toxicity- Bjerselius 93; Huebert 83;

Markrich 94; Rorison 60a

redox affects availability in sediment- Reddy 77

sea shells contain ~15% MgCO₃- Dickson 02

sediment levels of- Painter 88

toxicity of, to *P. pectinatus* (Huebert 83); inhibition of *Najas flexilis* (Hutchinson 75) and terrestrial plants (Foy 78)

Micronutrient Nutrition-

adsorption to MnOH, FeOH, AlOH controls availability (Bowen 79; Ponnamperuma 81; Sigel 86) of sediment Zn (Kirk 95)

animal metabolism as source- Bowen 79; Martin 86

availability of in terrestrial soils (Cohen 98; Sauchelli 69); soil depletion by plant uptake neglibible (Spositio 86)

bacteria requirements in wastewater treatment- McKinney 04

beneficial nutrients are Co, Na, and Si (Wild 88); Si use by Equistem (W334)

cycling in algae and daphnia- Tarifeno 82

deficiencies in calcifuges forced to grow on limestone soils- Tyler 96; Zohlen 97

enzyme needs for metals common to biota- Martin 86; Smith 84; Sposito 86

free metals only taken up- Bingham 86; Bowen 79; Brand 83; Rich 90; Wild 88

general- Allen 72; Barko 91; Bowen79; Brand 83; Eichenberger 86; Glass 89; Goldman 72;

Moorhead 88; Shkolnik 84; Smart 85; Wild 88

genetic linkage of micronutrient requirements- Brand 83
limitation on algal growth- Brand 83
membrane transporter for Fe also takes up micronutrients- Cohen 98
Ni as a required nutrient (Hopkins 95); essential for methane bacteria (McKinney 04)
no universal optimum composition- Eichenberger 86
bacterial reduction of Mn and Fe in sediments is complicated and may involve humus intermediate (Lovley 91; WW360)
sediments can provide all to *P. pectinatus* (Huebert 83) and Hydrilla (Smart 85)

Mn (Manganese)-

availability in situ- Brand 83; Fraser 82; Painter 88; Pulich 82; Urban 90; W305, 314+ bacterial reduction to soluble Mn is not that relevant or prevalent, review (Lovley 91); respiration of Shewanella bacteria solubilizes Mn oxides- Ash 02 binding to DOC, EDTA- Bingham 86; Brand 83; Giesy 78; O'Connor 71; Russel 73; Sunda 83; Urban 90; W304 chelator stability < ferric Fe- Bingham 86; Brand 83; Lindsay 84; Urban 90 deficiency symptoms (Shkolnik 84; Wild 88) depletion of P- Davelaar 89 Fe antagonism- Bingham 86; Lindsay 84; Pulich 82; Wild 88 nitrate reduction- McKee 62; Notton 83; Shkolnik 84 pH buffering action of Mn in sediment- Connell 68 photoreduction of Mn-DOC complexes- Sunda 83 redox effect on its solubility- Beckwith 75; Bingham 86; Reddy 77; W303; Westerman 93; Wild 88 reduced form required by plants- Glass 89; Sauchelli 69 release from sediments (Barko 83; Brand 83; Burns 72; Reddy 77; Urban 90) by Shewanella bacterial solubilization of Mn oxides (Ash 02) root secretions/microbial growth effect solubility- Russel 73 sediment levels of-Painter 88 solubility in water (O'Connor 71) greater than Fe (Pulich 82; Reddy 77; Urban 90; W305, 308) tissue levels regulated by sediment H₂S- Pulich 82 toxicity to plants (Bienfait 83; Bingham 86; Foy 78; Gambrell 90; Grise 86; Laanbroek 90; Rorison 60a,86; Sauchelli 69; W309) common in the tropics (Davies 97); symptoms of toxicity (Bingham 86; Foy 78; McGrath 82; Sauchelli 69); tolerance to of calcifuges (McGrath 82); toxicity to algae at > 1 ppm, neutralized by Ca (WW302) uptake and nutrition (Allen 72; Davelaar 89; McKee 62; Pulich 82; Shkolnik 84); requirements higher for phototrophic metabolism of algae (Eichenberger 86) See also Micronutrient Nutrition

Mo (Molybdenum)-

association with FeOH ppts- Ponnamperuma 81; Sauchelli 69; Wild 88
availability in situ, water/sediment (Kufel 91; Ponnamperuma 81; W314+) and ocean/freshwater
(Bowen 79; Howarth 85)
cycling in lakes- Goldman 60; Kufel 91
deficiency symptoms- Horst 85; Notton 83; Sauchelli 69; Shkolnik 84; Wild 88
enzyme association in plants (Lewis 86; McKee 62; Notton 83; Raven 88; Shkolnik 84; Smith) and
animals (Bowen 79; Sigel 86)
fertilization results in reduced water levels of N and P (Goldman 72) and increased PS (Goldman 60;
Wurtsbaugh 88)
levels in plant tissues- Kufel 91; Wild 88
methanogenisis, stimulation of- Capone 82
'mobile' nutrient- W315+; Wild 88
N cycle- Howarth 85; Kufel 91; Goldman 60; Raven 88; W236+; Wurtsbaugh 88 N ₂ fixation- Capone 82; Howarth 85; Raven 88; Shkolnik 84; Wild 88; Wurtsbaugh 88
nitrate processing, Mo required for- Eichenberger 86; Raven 88; Shkolnik 84; Wild 88
reduces toxicity of excess Cu, Co, Mn, Zn-Eichenberger 86; Sauchelli 69
stimulation of growth- Allen 72; Goldman 60, 72; Howarth 85; Wurtsbaugh 88
sulfate levels in ocean water reduce Mo uptake except in anoxic microzones? (Howarth 85;
Wurtsbaugh 88)
sulfate reduction by bacteria inhibited by Mo- Skyring 88
toxicity in ruminants (Sauchelli 69); algae (Sakaguchi 81) and bacteria (Skyring 88; Tsai 86)
uptake by algae- Howarth 85; Sakaguchi 81
water levels required by algae- Eichenberger 87

N (Nitrogen)-

algal growth-Fitzgerald 69

availability in sediment (Barko 91; Chen 88; Christiansen 85; Iizumi 82; Painter 88; Pulich 82; Short
84) and water (Beck 91; Brezonik 72; Gopal 87; Iizumi 82;Kuenzler 86; Nichols 76; Ozimek 90; Rattray 91; Reddy 83; Riemer 84; Sculthorpe 67; Short 84; van Wijck 92; W241)

bacteria processes for cycling (Al-Ajeer 22); (Boon 86a; Gilbert 97; Jones 81,82; Payne 73;

Rheinheimer 85); bacteria families involved in (**WW513**); nitrification and anammox (Pynaert 03)

cycling in the sediment (**Boon 86a**, **b**) and in the water (**Brezonik 72**; Edmond 93; **Reddy 83a**) leaf and root uptake rates equivalent for duckweed (**Fang 07**)

limiting nutrient in Lake Tanganyika is N- Edmond 93

marine water N limited by sulfate antagonism of Mo uptake? (Howarth 85; Wurtsbaugh 88) nitrite, nitric oxide pathway- **Darwin 03**

N₂ fixation (Adey 91; Barko 91; Blotnick 80; Brezonik 72; Bristow 74; Buckley 78; Capone 82;
Dennison 87; Egglishaw 72; Gunnison 89; Mann 72; Raven 88; Sand-Jensen 89; Schindler 77;
Shkolnik 84; W225+; Wurtsbaugh 88) only when there's an N deficit (Adey 91; Capone 82; Wild 88); N₂ fixation by algae and bacteria is common (W567); inhibition by allelochemicals (Rice 92);
Azolla (Chakraborty 86; Reddy 84; Riemer 84; Wild 88); enhanced by increased atm CO2 in marine algae (Riesebesell 07)

proteins, N conc is 16% (WW224)

symptoms of excesses and deficiencies in terrestrial plants (Wild 88) and aquatic plants (Fitzgerald 69; Huebert 91; Newman 88)

uptake and nutrition by plants- Barko 82, 83b, 91; Best 78; Bulthuis 81; Cary 83; Chen 88; Christiansen 85; Edwards 56; Gerloff 75; Huebert 91; Iizumi 82; Ingemarsson 84; Lewis 86; Nelson 80; Nichols 76; Ozimek 90; Pedersen 97; Reddy 83a, 87; 89; Schuurkes 86; Sculthorpe 67; Short 84; Thompson 89; Thursby 82; Toetz 71, 74; Tucker 81; Yamasaki 92; van Wijck 92; W241

- uptake rates for ammonia, nitrite, nitrates by pond algae (Adey 98); enzyme uptake rates for NH4 and NO3 (Jampeetong 09)
- urea as N source (Cary 83; Edwards 56; Gaudet 73; Katoh 80; Reddy 83b; van Wijck 92) hydrolyzed to NH3 and CO2 when added to sediment and stimulated growth (**van Wijck 92**); quickly hydrolyses to NH3 (via enzyme urease) when applied as a terrestrial fertilizer and a large NH3 dose is main cause of its toxicity (Wild 88, p691)
- water nitrogen not necessary if sediment has plenty (Huebert 83; Nichols 76), but leaf uptake much faster (**Pedersen 97**)

Na (Sodium)-

- baking soda additions: 1/2 tsp NaHCO3 per 10 gal tank provides 25 ppm Na and raises KH by 3-4 degrees (DLW 2022)
- culture media, general contains N = 16 ppm, K = 6 ppm (**Smart 85**) and Na = 10 ppm and K = 20 ppm (**Yin 17**); higher amounts for increased alkalinity contain up to 200 ppm Na and 59 ppm K stimulated increasing PS due to the increased associated bicarbonates (Horiguchi 19)
- freshwaters contain median of 6 ppm (range 0.7-25) (Bowen 79); N. American and S. American river waters contin 9 and 4 ppm, respectively (WW170)

levels of Na in 5 aquatic plants (SAMS) (Zimba 93)

quanitation: 0.1% NaCl = 1,000 ppm NaCl and 400 ppm Na (DLW 2022)

seawater: 1/3 artificial diluted seawater is ~160 mM NaCl (Iida 06);

sodium, competition with causes K deficiencies at 50 mM NaCl (0.58% salinity), less competition with Ca and Mg (**Jampeetong 09**); substitution by Na to maintain internal ionic balance, is present at 25 ppm in his nutrient solution (Huebert 83)

See also: 'Aquatic Plants:salinity'

Nitrates-

- absence in submerged soils (Ponnamperuma 81) and anoxic zones of lake waters (Edmond 93) ammonium inhibition of uptake- (Abrol 90; Chisholm 91; **Dortch 90, 91**; Guerrero 81; Ingemarsson
 - 84; Kuenzler 86; Nichols 76; Ohmori 77; **Orebamjo 75**; Paffen 91; Schwoerbel 74; **Ullrich 84**) even in terrestrial plants that prefer nitrates (Tinker 79); some terrestrial plants can bypass this inhibition (Foy 78)
- assimilation by plants (Ingemarsson 86; Lewis 86; Short 84; Thompson 89; **Touchette 00**) and bacteria (Payne 73); most energy requiring reaction in plants (Touchette 00)
- bacterial reduction of nitrates: association with fermentation (Boon 86a; Smith 82), metal sulfide oxidation (Schulz 99) and e- reduction of sulfates (**Daalsgard 94**); nitrates converted to ammonia for assimilation (Payne 73); to ammonia for respiration (*See* 'Bacteria:DAP process'); to N₂ (*See* 'Denitrification'); and to nitrite (*See* 'Bacteria:nitrate respiration')
- cell uptake of nitrates, because interior is negatively charged, requires active H+ extrusion (Ullrich 84) and a carrier (Guerrero 81; Touchett 00); sulfide-oxidizing bacteria that store nitrates (Schulz 99)
- concentration effects uptake rate- Nelson 80
- groundwater contamination- Obenhuber 91; Patrick 87; Ross 89; Wild 88
- light required for nitrate uptake (Nelson 80; Schwoerbel 74; Toetz 71; **Touchette 00**) except for Zostera marina (Burkholder 92)
- losses from agricultural soils- Kurtz 80; Rice 92
- metal toxicity, enhanced by nitrates for calcicoles- Rorison 84

micronutrient requirements for assimilation- **Doucette 91a, b**; Gaudet 73; Hageman 80; Howarth 85; Lewis 86; Martin 91; McKee 62; **Notton 83; Raven 88**; Shkolnik 84; W309

nitrite preferred over nitrate (Ferguson 69), or plant growth about the same (Edwards 56); easier to use by sulfate-reducing bacteria (Daalsgard 94)

protect plant roots (Bertani 86; Trought 81; Wild 88) by counteracting soil anaerobicity (Wild 88) NR (nitrate reductase enzyme) (Blotnick 80; Boon 86a; Goldman 60, 72; Gunnison 89; Ingemarsson

86; Kurtz 80; Lewis 86; Nichols 76; Notton 83; Orebamjo 74; Reddy 83a, 84; Seitzinger 84;

Thompson 89; **Touchette 00**) reduced levels of NR in climax terrestrials (Rice 92); lag phase in induction of nitrate uptake system (Nelson 80)

nitrite reductase competes with photosynthesis by using same ferredoxin complex- Touchette 00 reduction of nitrates via bacteria *See* 'DAP' *and* 'dentrification' under 'Bacteria'

- removal from water by epiphytic algae (Adey 91) and denitrification (Edmond 93; Obenhuber 91; Reddy 87; Risgaard 94; Seitzinger 94)
- storage by plants (McKee 62; Reddy 89; **Tucker 83**; Whitehead 87; Wild 88) and bacteria (Schulz 99)

- toxicity to fish: nitrates considered to be non-toxic to fish (Russo 85); toxic at 400 mg/l (Spotte 79) 3 day LC₅₀ to sturgeon is 400-1,000 ppm (Hamlin 06); are stressful at 700 ppm, caused an increase in mucus cells in sea bass (**Vatsos 10**)
- toxicity: to <u>aquatic plants</u>: at 100 mg/l (Best 80; Gaudet 73); inhibited growth under 4 different condition for alpine pondweed (**Boedeltje 05**); smaller leaves, less chlorophyll in nitrate-fed Salvinia plants (**Jampeetong 09**); to <u>seagrasses</u>: inhibits growth of *Zostera marina* (**Burkholder 92, 94, 07; Touchette 03**) due to unregulated nitrate uptake,but does not inhibit *Halodule wrightii* and *Ruppia maritima* (**Burkholder 94**); kills seagrass *Halophila decipiens* (**Bird 98**); 0.2 to 2 ppm nitrate causes disintegration of *Z. marina* (**Burkholder 92**)
- uptake requires light and energy and is substrate-dependent for *Pistia stratiotes* (Nelson 80) respiration doubled by nitrate uptake (Touchette 00); carbohydrates and sucrose required (Burkholder 94; Touchette 00); drains energy from the plant (Burkholder 07) water pollution from soil leaching- Alsaadawi 92; Lewis 86; Ross 89; Wild 88

Nitrification-

- acidity inhibits nitrification (Gigon 72; **McGrath 82; McKinney 04**); species of *Nitrosospira* inhabit both acid and neutral soils (**Stephens 98**); nitrification destroy 2 moles alkalinity for every mole produced by denitrification (McKinney 04)
- allelochemicals secreted by plants reduce nitrification (Planas 81; Putnam 86; Rice 74) especially in climax ecosystems (Rice 92)
- ammonia oxidizers: multiple species of *Nitrosomonas* in same biofilm (Gieseke 01); *Nitrosomonas* found in saturated ammonia (>1mM or 18 ppm) environments whereas *Nitrosospira* found in nature (Schramm 98); rate of ammonia oxidation by *Nitrosospira* is saturated at 300 uM or 6 ppm (**Schramm 99**); AOA at lower concentrations (0.1 mg/l) in freshwater biofilters (Sauder 11)
- ammonium concentration determines which genera (*Nitrosomonas v. Nitrosospira*) is doing the ammonia oxidation (**Burrell 01**; Schramm 98); AOA operate at low concentrations, below 0.1 mg/l (Sauder 11)
- amammox bacteria (N770): bacteria responsible for anaerobic conversion of ammonia plus nitrite to N2 gas (N770); is the anaerobic oxidation of NH3 (Al-Ajeer 22; Jetten 99) and found in wastewater tx along with nitrifiers (**Pynert 03**)

aquaponics (growing fish plus vegetable), nitrifiers dominated by CAOB (Al-Ajeel 22)

- archaea ammonia oxidizers (AOA), secondary organisms to comammox in freshwater aquarium biofilters (McKnight 21); share nitrification with AOB in saltwater filters (Sauder 11); predominate in low oxygen, low ammonia, low pH environments such as in rice paddy soils (Wang 15); share nitrification in rhizosphere of SAMs (Huang 16)
- bacteria, newer data recorded here in 2022: nitrifiers surveyed with PCR now include CAOB (comammox ammonia oxidizing bacteria), which are natural energy-efficient mutants of *Nitrospira* that do both nitrification steps; AOB (ammonia oxidizing bacteria), AOA (ammonia

oxidizing archaea) (**Osburn 20**); nitrification in terrestrial soils (**Osburn 20; Poghosyan 19**); nitrifiers found in aquarium filters (salt and freshwater) from 38 tanks (**McKnight 21**); nitrifier relationship with other N-processing bacteria (anammox and DAP) (**Al-Ajeel 22**);

- bacteria, old data (Anthonisen 76; Capone 82; Carpenter 77; Lewis 86; N277; Rheinheimer 85;
 Spotte 79; Thimann 63; Vanzella 90; W235; Wild 88) are delicate and not essential to the N cycling in many ecosystems (Gieseke 01; Rice 92); slow growth rate (McKinney 04); *Nitrospira* and *Nitrosospira* spp. work together (Schramm 98, 99); species involved (Hovanec 96)
- biofilm formed by pure cultures of nitrifying bacteria (Cox 80; Schramm 98), which form extracellular material (Powell 92); biofilm contains mixed cultures *See also* "Nitrification:FISH studies of"
- biofilters: review (Al-Ajeel 22); survey of 38 tanks with PCR showed nitrifiers in following rankings: for freshwater COAB>AOA; for saltwater AOA and AOB and no COAB (McKnight 21); RAS filters had following rankings: CAOB >> AOA > AOB (Al-Ajeel 22) freshwater aquariums mostly due to CAOB and AOA (McKnight 21); not due to the usual *Nitrosomonas* and *Nitrobacter*, which are AOB (Burrell 01; Hovanec 96); rather it is due to species of archaea or AOA (Sauder 11); nitrite oxidation due to *Nitrospira* not *Nitrobacter* (Burrell 01; Hovanec 98; Schramm 98,99)
- CO2 consumption (**Dodds 91**; O'Connor 71; Rich 78; Thimann 63; W235; Wild 88); CO2 fixed via RUBISCO by nitrifying bacteria (Schramm 98)
- comammox bacteria (CAOB), discovered in 2015, abundant in freshwater biofilters but not found in saltwater biofilters and uncommon in wastewater treatment (McKnight 21); terrestrial soils has both clades A and B (Poghosyan 19); abundant in forest soils and more relevant to nitrate production than AOB or AOA, because they are more energy efficient (Osburn 20); discovery of these new bacteria and energy gained from nitrification (van Kessel 15); niche bacteria for low ammonia environments (biofilters, aquaponics, soils), difficult to cultivate (Al-Ajeel 22) competition with heterotrophs in a biofilm- Burrell 01; Timberlake 88

control by PS-generated O2- Gersberg 76; Moorhead 88; Reed 88; Schuurkes 86; Weber 85 denitrification is linked to nitrification (Caffrey 92; Kemp 90; Masuda 91; Risgaard 94; Seitzinger

84; Timberlake 88) and DAP (Gilbert 97; Jones 82)

DNRA (dissimilatory nitrite reduction to ammonia) or DAP - Al-Ajeer 22

DOC inhibits nitrifiers in culture (Thimann 63); soil DOC inhibits nitrifiers AOA, COAB, and AOA

(Osburn 20)

dormant nitrifiers in an anammox biofilm- Jetten 99

energy obtained low, so do not produce a high cell mass- McKinney 04

enzymes required for: ammonia oxidation to nitrite = AMO (ammonia monooxygenase) and HAO

(hydroxylamine dehydrogenase); nitrite oxidation via NXR (nitrite oxidoreductase) (Poghosyan

19); AMO of the CAOB are different than AOA bacteria (**van Kessel 15**)

fertilizer losses from- Kurtz 80; Lewis 86; Ross 89; Wild 88; Yamasaki 92

FISH studies of- Burrell 01; Gieseke 01; Pynaert 03; Schramm 98,99

incomplete nitrification- accumulation of nitrites in biological filters (Russo 85) See also

'Nitrobacter' below

inhibition by Al, Ni, acid (Tsai 86), tannin/humus (W236), and allelochemicals (Rice 92)

interference with municipal water treatment systems- O'Connor 71

light senstivity of bacteria- Vanzella 90

- nitrite oxidizing bacteria (NOB); lineage of (Gieseke 01); nitrite oxidation *in situ* due to *Nitrospira* not *Nitrobacter* (Burrell 01; Hovanec 98; Schramm 98,99); *Nitrospira* not yet cultured, very small size (Schramm 99); rate of nitrite oxidation extremely low (i.e., 0.02 fmol/cell/h) up to 2,000 times lower than cultured *Nitrobacter* (Schramm 99); are difficult to study (Wang 15) *See also* 'comammox bacteria'
- *Nitrobacter* much more sensitive to several factors than *Nitrosomonas* resulting in incomplete nitrification, nitrite accumulation, and fish death in aquaculture facilicities (**Kroupova 05**); more sensitive to ammonia and nitrite than *Nitrosomonas* (**Anthonisen 76**), less tolerant of cold & high pH (WW216), low O2 (Pynaert 03), antibiotics erythromycin and neomycin (Noga 00, p67); and other environmental stressors (Zsoldos 98)
- Nitrosomonas eutropha does do anaerobic oxidation, but very inefficiently- Jetten 99
- oxygen depletion by (O'Connor 71; Seitzinger 84; Thimann 63; Weber 85); 4.3 mg O2 required for every mg of NH3 oxidized (Moorhead 88); bacteria stimulated by O2 (**Masuda 91**; Weber 85); competition with PAO for oxygen in wastewater tx (Gieseke 01)
- plants in acidic environments have developed an ammonium-based nutrition because the acidity inhibits nitrification and nitrate production (Davies 97; Lewis 86; Schuurkes);
- pollution from nitrate runoff and N2O generation make nitrification an environmental concern-Wang 15
- RAS (recirculating aquaculture systems) modeled on prevalence of *Nitrosomonas* and *Nitrobacter* may be misleading (**Al-Ajeel 22**)

rates of, in marine sediments- Gilbert 97; Kemp 90: Rysgaard 96;

reagents for inhibition- Lewis 86; Nichols 76; Powell 92; Putnam 86; Reddy 83b; Ross 89; Wild 88 redox above 400 mV required- W234

- salt: saltwater AOA species may differ from freshwater AOA species (Sauder 11); salt-tolerant nitrifiers (Gross 03)
- soil N leaching, water pollution, disease incidence due to- Alsaadawi 92
- soil containing nitrifiers: ammonia oxidation levesl v. soil pore or void size (**Fair 94**); *Nitrosomonas* and *Nitrosospira* in (Stephens 98); comammox in (**Osburn 20; Poghosyan 19**); disturbed forest soils with their increased O2 have more nitrifiers in following ranking CAOB > AOA >>AOB (**Osburn 20**)
- starter cultures for nitrification are ineffectual (Hovanec 98); soil used successfully to do nitrification in aquaculture biofilters (**Gross 03**)

symbiosis with FAMs- Moorhead 88; Reed 88

taxonomy: species reclassifications (Schramm 98); most ammonia-oxidizers are β-Protobacteria (Burrell 01) and AOA archaea (Sauder 11) and comammox (McKnight 21); PCR identification of bacteria using the *amoA* gene (McKnight 21) as their AMO enzymes are different (van Kessel 15); genetic difficulties distinguishing NOB from COAB, because the bacteria are so phylogenetically similar (Al-Ajeel 22)

Nitrites

- accumulation due to nitrate respiration, incomplete nitrification and denitrification and DAP
 - (Phillips 02; Russo 85)
- ammonium inhibits cellular transporter and nitrite reductase (Lindell 98; Stewart 72); inhibits nitrate uptake but not nitrite uptake (de la Haba 90)
- antimicrobial properties of (in macrophages) involve conversion to NO- Darwin 03
- aquarium levels should be kept below 0.10 mg/l (Noga 00)
- bacterial processes causing nitrite accumulation in aquatic environments, review (**Phillips 02**); from nitrate respiration, incomplete nitrification, denitrification, and DAP (Anthonisen 76; Gamble 77; Payne 73; Smith 82; Wild 88, p. 619, 691); *E. coli* detoxifies nitrite by converting it to ammonia (N151)
- cellular transporter for uptake must be induced (Lindell 98; Zsoldos 93)
- denitrification, nitrites can be used in (Pynaert 03)

chloride protects fish from nitrite toxicity- Palackova 94; Russo 85) via the Cl-/HCO3- exchanger;

- keep Cl:NO3 ratios at certain level to protect fish (Kroupova 05)
- invertebrate susceptibility and tolerance for nitrites- Chen 89
- levels used for culturing duckweed are over 50 ppm- Ferguson 69; Stewart 72
- nitrite preferred over nitrate (Ferguson 69) or growth about the same (Edwards 56)
- NO (nitric oxide) connection to nitrite via nitric oxide synthase (Darwin 03)
- nitrite reductase (enzyme for nitrite assimilation) must be induced (Lindell 98; Stewart 72); not inhibited by NH4+ (**de la Haba 90**); genes for found in Geobacteria suggest these bacteria can reduce nitrites (Methe 03)
- pH effect on toxicity (Anthonisen 76; Russo 85; Zsoldos 98); toxic to bacteria at pH 5.5 (Darwin 03); pH not a factor in fish toxicity (Kroupova 05); toxicity greater at lower pH (Anthonisen 76)
- soil accumulation of, not common (Gamble 77; Wild 88, p. 623, 658; Zsoldos 98)
- sulfate-reducting bacteria easily reduce nitrites- Daalsgard 94
- toxicity to: fish review (Kroupova 05) and (Darwin 03; Nikinmaa 92; Palackova 94; Russo 85;
 - Spotte 79); long-term (>6 months) exposure to 0.05 to 0.2 mg/l nitrite, so for tropical fish should keep nitrite levels below 0.1 mg/l, converts hemoglobin to methemoglobin and reduces blood's capacity to carry oxygen (Noga 00); massive deaths in 3 aquaculture facilities due to nitrite toxicity (**Svobodova 05**); need to maintain 50 mg/l NaCl to prevent problems (**Noga 00**); or 170

mg/l NaCl in overstocked aquaculture facilities (Svobodova 05); <u>shrimp</u> (Gross 03); <u>plants</u>, <u>terrestrial</u> (Hopkins 95; Wild 88, p619; Zsoldos 93); <u>bacteria</u> (Darwin 03; Gamble 77; N126) and nitrifying bacteria (**Anthonisen 76**)

uptake by aquatic plants (Edwards 56; Ferguson 69); 8 aquatic plant species tested for removal from nitrite polluted drinking water in India (**Rawat 12**), algae (Adey 98), and terrestrial plants (Lerdau 00)

water levels correlated with algal growth (Linton 98)

Nutrient Cycling (Seasonal)-

Al, Fe, Mn, DOC release into acidified lakes- Urban 90

bicarbonates/alkalinity (WW195)

C- Allen 72; Kerr 72; Kelly 84; King 72; Schindler 77

Ca (WW178)

Fe/Mn/P/Ca/S interaction- Pulich 82; Riemer 84; Ross 89; Williams 72); Fe/S/Mn cycling (WW295)

general- Brinson 76; Furch 88; Kuenzler 86; Kufel 91; Moeller 88; Peverly 79; Sondergaard 79;

Twilley 85; Urban 90

gas bubbling, upwelling of nutrients- Kemp 72; Kerr 72; Ohle 78; W606

- N- Brezonik 72; Bristow 73; Edmond 93; **Kuenzler 86; Lewis 86;** Nakajima 81; Riemer 84; Schindler 77; **WW220**
- P- Burns 72; Edmond 93; Elwood 88; Kuenzler 86; McRoy 72; Moeller 88; Nakajima 81; Riemer 84; Williams 72; WW258
- S- WW315

Nutrition-

alkalinity as a C source- Huebert 83; Overath 91

anion/H⁺ cotransport (for NO₃-, SO₄⁻², and NO2) requires energy - Ullrich 84

apical stem tip is the site of fastest N uptake- Miyazaki 85

assimilatory reduction is when inorganic cpds are used for nutrition (e.g., chemical reduction of

nitrates to ammonium so that the N can be assimilated into amino acids) (Zindev 78)

Ca uptake- DeMarte 77; Gerloff 75; Huebert 91; Smart 85; Smits 92

carbohydrate storage- Ralph 92

chloride is an essential element- Edwards 56

chlorosis can be caused by allelopathy (Elakovich 89; Frank 80); liming of terrestrial soils (Lindsay 84; Romheld 84; Rorison 60a,b; Russel 73; Wild 88); metal toxicity (Binhgam 86; Sauchelli 69; Wild 88); root anaerobiosis (Smart 85); S deficiency (Newman 88; Wild 88); measurement of chlorosis (Gaudet 73)

- competitive uptake of nutrients (Foy 78) such as NH4+ and K+ (**Beck 91**); Zn and Cd (Huebert 92; Polar 86); Mo and SO4 (**Howarth 85**); Fe and Mn (Basiouny 77); Ca and Mg (WW01, p. 182); K and Na (**Jampeeton 09a**)
- critical concentration- Barko 86; Christiansen 85;Donahue 83; Doucette 91a; Gerloff 75; Grise 86; Huebert 91; Peverly 79; Raven 88; Sutcliffe 81

deficiencies (Fitzgerald 72; Glass 89; Goldman 72; Huebert 91; Krombholz 6(5); Notton 83;Shkolnik 84; Sutcliffe 81; Wild 88); symptoms in aquatic plants (Newman 88) and terrestrial plants (Wild 88); induce increased allelochemical production (Tang 95)

diffusion distance for leaves (Bowes 87; Madsen 91; Prins 89; Sand-Jensen 91; W219, 528) and roots (Barko 86; Madsen 91; Wild 88)

dilution of nutrients and metals inside plant during rapid growth- Overath 91; Titus 90

DOC release- Barko 81a; Nichols 76; Russel 73; Wild 88

- essentiality and toxicity not correlated- Eichenberger 86
- Fe uptake- **Basiouny 77**; Chen 88; DeMarte 77; Hether 84; Lindsay 84; Pulich 82; Romheld 84; Smith 84
- fertilization with one nutrient increases uptake of another- Barko 86; Best 78; Davelaar 89; Goldman 72; Martin 91; Reddy 89; Schindler 72, 77

functions of nutrients- Eichenberger 86; Glass 89; Martin 86; Nieboer 80; Wild 88

- general- Gerloff 75; Glass 89; Huebert 91; Riemer 84; Smart 84
- growth, multiple and interactive influences of light, water, sediment and CO2- Barko 91; Overath 91

heterotrophic augmentation: glutamine and Bacto-tryptone as an N Source (Katoh 90)

- ionophores- Borgmann 83; Eichenberger 86
- leaf v. root uptake: leaf uptake easier than roots (Sculthorpe 67) required for Ca, K, and Mg in P.
- *pectinatus* (Huebert 83); N uptake by duckweed equal (Fang 07)
- light (Barko 91b; DeMarte 77); effect on N & C uptake (Miyazaki 85; Nelson 80)

lilies, uptake of nutrients from underside of leaf-W524

- limiting water concentrations of N, P, Ca for duckweed (Huebert 91) and of Ca for P. pectinatus (Huebert 83)
- luxury consumption- Barko 86; Brinson 76; Cary 83; Fitzgerald 72; Gaudet 73; Gerloff 75; Glass 89; Gopal 87; Huebert 91; Reddy 89; W535; Whitehead 87

metalloenzymes- Bowen 79

- metals stored as chelates- Ernst 92
- mobile nutrients (Mo, N, P, K, Cl) v. immobile nutrients (Fe, Zn, Cu, Ca, B, S)- Bienfait 83;

Donahue 83; Glass 89; Krombholz T6(5): Rorison 60b; Russel 73; Smith 84; Wild 88

nutrient medias- See under 'Artificial Propogation'

optimal composition of nutrients not necessary- Eichenberger 86

pH (Sutcliffe 81); effect on availability in soils (Ag. Ext 92; Wild 88)

reduction of C, Fe, H, N, S required before utilization- Smith 84; Thompson 89

root/shoot uptake (Best 78; Bristow 71; Gerloff 75; Hutchinson72; Iizumi 82; Marquenie 79;

Nichols 76; Overath 91; Rattray 91; Schuurkes 86; Short 84; Sondergaard 79; Thursby 82;

Whitehead 87); Ca, K, and Mg needed in the water (Huebert 83; 91)

storage of nutrients by young plants- Aiken 80; Pulich 82; Rorison 60a; Wild 88

- sugar (glucose or sucrose) as C source- Bodkin 80; Edwards 56; Gaudet 73; Katoh 80; Kane 87; Rao 81; Schindler 77; W287
- translocation of nutrients (Barko 88; Brinson 76; Bristow 71; Christansen 85; **DeMarte 74**; Hostrup 91; Iizumi 82; Kufel 91; Nichols 76; Pedersen 93; 97a; Schat 84; **Toetz 74**; van Wijck 92) *See also* 'water transport and nutrient translocation'

vacuole physiology- Ernst 92

water hardness, a source of Ca, Mg, Na, K, S, Cl (Barko 82; W179); water Ca, K, and Mg may be required for growth, flowering, and survival (Barko 86b; **Huebert 83**; 91; Newman 88)

water movement and nutrient uptake (Boeger 92; Boston 89; Keeley 83; Nichols 76; Prins 89; Weber 85; W219+, 528) See also 'artificial propogation/water movement'

water transport and nutrient translocation-Pedersen 93a,b, 97a

Oxygen-

aquatic plants don't contribute as much to aquariums as air diffusion- Atz 52

atm. levels determined by ocean algae- Ash 02

bacterial oxygen requirements quite specific- Ash 02

bubbles on plants is not a valid meausre of PS and represents only a small portion of the total

(WW538)

CO2 consumption and oxygen production- W153

diel cycling: O2 levels in eutrophic v. non-eutrophic planted streams (WW154); and underneath

floating plant masses in Amazon (**Jedicke 89**)

diffusion in water 10,000 X slower than in air- Ross 89

FAMs inhibit O2 diffusion- Reddy 84

inhibition of PS (Salvucci 82) and RUBISCO (Bowes 91)

loss due to chemical oxidation- Carpenter 83; W162, 174

minimal levels for fish is 2 mg/l (W170); for brine shrimp is 1 ppm (Persoone 80) or 2 ppm (Bossuyt

80); recommended range for aquariums is 5-8.6 ppm (Kasselmann 03); low levels (<4-5 ppm can

inhibit growth; fish stressed by 58% saturation levels (Vatsos 10)

regulation of decomposition (Allen 71; DeBusk 89; Dew 80; King 72; Moorhead 88; Patrick 64;

W162, 210) and aufwuchs activity (Burton 78)

sediment consumption by decomposition and nitrification- Burns 72

temperature and O2 saturation levels- Kasselmann 03

supersaturation due to PS- Hasler 49; W164, 168

toxicity of oxygen to bacteria- Ash 02; N96

uptake from water by fish- Yarzhombek 87

water movement used during SAM cultivation for growth rate determinations to decrease excess O2 and boundary layers (Nielsen 91)

P (phosphorus)-

- algae control by keeping it out of the water and in the sediment- Huebert 83
- aquarium levels of- Spotte 79
- availability in situ (Balls 89; Barko 91; Brinson76; Carignan 80; Chen 88; Christiansen 85; Edmond
 - 93; Jaynes 86; Kuenzler 86; McRoy 72; Ozimek 90; Pulich 82; Riemer 84; Schat 84; Twilley 85;
 - Wetzel 72; W256, 267); sediment and interstitial water (Painter 88)

bacterial removal of phosphates See under 'Wastewater Treatment' and 'Bacteria'

deficiencies in calcifuges growing in calcareous soils- Tyler 96; Zohlen 97

extracellular enzyme (phosphatase) stimulated by P deficiency- Foy 78; Kim 93

Fe limits availability (Riemer 84); P binding to Fe oxides (WW252)

general- WW239-288

- limiting nutrient *in situ-* Barko 83a; Edmond 93; Kemp 72; King 72; Schindler 77; W255, 287; Wild 88
- measuring water P levels, methods- Greenberg 92
- nutritient uptake and use in seagrasses (Touchette 00)
- organic and inorganic sources of (Greenberg 92; King 72; Saleque 95; Short 87; W255+); most P in water is organic (W255)

reaction with Ca in the water (Huebert 91) and in biofilms for denitrifying bacteria (Christensen 98) sediment: preferred P source for plants (Barko 82; Bristow 71; **Carignan 80**; Christiansen 85;

DeMarte 77; **McRoy 70**, 72; Reddy 87; W535); sediment uptake decreases slightly when P levels increases in water (Carignan 80; Steward 84); sediment components associated with P (Saleque 95), Fe oxides (**Jensen 95**), roots (van Wijck 92), and denitrifying bacteria (Christensen 98); sediment P mostly inorganic (Saleque 95; W261); P release from aquaculure contaminated sediments (**Christensen 00**)

solubilization (Andersson 78; Gunnison 89; Ponnamperuma 81; W258) from Fe precipitates (Edmond 93; **Jensen 95**; Saleque 95)

- species of P in the water (Nakajima 88) and sediment (Saleque 95)
- storage as phytates, indigestible to fish- Halver 89; NRC 83
- symptoms of P deficiency in terrestrial (Foy 78; Krombholz T6(5); Tyler 96; Wild 88) and aquatic plants (Huebert 91; Newman 88)
- tropical soils hold P tightly- Raven 92, p. 240
- uptake by plants (Best 78; **Brinson 76**; Bulthuis 81; Gerloff 75; Huebert 91; Moeller 88; Reddy 83b, 89; Steward 84) mostly from sediment minerals not the intersitial water (Brinson 76; Steward 84); P uptake by PAO bacteria (**McKinney 04**)

uptake by clay suspended in water (Kuenzler 86) or precipitation by Ca (Christensen 89; Reddy 87) water uptake by plants not necessary if sediment has it-Huebert 83

Photosynthesis (PS)-

- acclimation and down-regulation of PS with excess CO2 and bicarbonates (Madsen 96); CO2
 - fertilization shows short-term stimulation that decreases over time, terrestrial analogy (Hussner 16)

adjustment to changes in growth conditions (Madsen 91) and increased atmospheric CO2 (**Bowes 93**) aquatic plants, PS in: 50% bicarb use, 8% CAM and 4% C4 (Han 20)

bacteria that PS See under 'Bacteria'

alkalinity, effect on PS- Wetzel 85

biomass increase will decrease PS- Wetzel 69

- C₃ v. C₄ (Berry 82; Bowes 91; Cowling 99; Madsen 91; WW540; Wild 88); nearly all SAMS are C3, only 4% have C₄ (Han 20), which makes them vulnerable to O2 inhibition of RUBISCO, but this PEPCase can reverse this inhibition (WW541); terrestrial species are 95% C3, 1% C4, and 4% CAM; C3 plants can benefit from higher CO2 (Bowes 93); most submerged aquatic plants are C3, which is inefficient due to photorespiration and inhibition by O2 (WW540); association with climate conditions of earlier ages and evolution (Cowling 99); *Hydrilla* has a flexible PS (C3/C4 combination) (WW 541); *Ottelia alismoides* has CAM, C4, and bicarb uptake (Han 20)
- Ca depletion from bicarbonate uptake- Otsuki 74; W190

CAM- night time CO2 uptake in 5/30 SAMs (**Yin 17**), present in 8% of aquatic plants (Han 20) carbonate inhibits- Pokorny 85

- chloroplasts, because of their bacterial origin, are sensitive to antibiotics that target bacterial ribosomes (Raven p21); plastids as separate genetic entities (Gewolb 02)
- CO2 compensation point, above 40 ul/l for C3 plants v. 0-10 ul/l for C4 plants (Salvucci 82;
 WW540); lowered in plants adapting to shade due to decreased gas diffusion resistance (increased CO2 assimilation and decreased photorespiration) and lower dark respiration; shade adaptation in *R. paslustris* lowered it from 14 to 4 umol/m2/s (Mommer 06)

DOC release- Wetzel 69

effect of high pH (Allen 72; Wetzel 72); PS above pH 9 means bicarbonate use (Adamec 93)

efficiency (Madsen 91; W390, 530+), quantum yields (Berry 82; Kirk 94), rates of (Barko 81a;

Bowes 87; Lloyd 77; Nielsen 91; Raven 88; Salvucci 82), and rate measurements (Allen 72; W152)

general- Govindjee 82; Karpinski 99; Kirk 94; Rabinowitch 69; WW540

inhibitors of- Karpinski 99; Seitz 82

Kranz anatomy ('wreath') is assoc with C4 plants where vascular tissues have an outer ring of mesophyll cells and an inner ring of bundle sheath cells (van Veen 21) marine macroalgae- **Reiskind 89** Na⁺ increaes PS- Wetzel 69

- O2 pressure within plant increases during PS (Sorrell 91) decreasing PS (Bowes 93; Salvucci 82); O2 is slowly released into water and can be used for plant for respiration even in darkness (Santamaria 94; W529); oxygen atom generated by PS comes from water molecule (N159)
- oxygen production (from PS) & growth not always correlated (Santamaria 94); bubbles on plants is not a valid meausre of PS and represents only a small portion of the total O2 produced by PS (**WW538**); correlation coefficient for growth and PS was not significant (r= 0.333), whereas carbon affinity and growth was r=0.765 and was statistically significant (**Nielsen 91A**); Myriophyllum species with best growth (i.e., M. spicatum and M. triphyllum) produced the least amount of O2 (Net PS) and two with the worst growth produced the most PS oxygen (*M. tuberculatum and M. verticillatum*) (Dulger 17); O2 production at different light levels (**Jilon 02**)
- pearling and O2 bubbling on plants: See 'oxygen production'
 PEPC, assoc. with C4 metabolism and used to reverse photorespiration (WW540), was found in 6 of 12 SAMS (Yin 17); increased presence at low CO2 in *O. alismoides* (Han 20)
- pH increase due to either CO2 or bicarbonate uptake (Prins 89; Reiskind 89) can decrease CO2 levels and PS (King 72; Nielsen 91; Wetzel 69)
- photorespiration (**Cowling 99**) decreases PS efficiency (Reiskind 89) by about 20-25% for C3 plants and 50% of fixed CO2 (Bowes 91) or as much as 50% in C3 terrestrial plants (WW540); can be counteracted by high internal CO2 (Bowes 93); induced by high temp and low CO2 in terrestrial plants (**Cowling 99**); it is the reverse of PS (Rabinowitch 96); not related to DOC release in SAMs (Hough 75);

Prochlorococcus, the cyanobacteria ancestor responsible for all current PS- Ash 02

productivity: net PS of SAMs at C saturation is 10 to 250 umol C/mg chl/hr- Madsen 91

- respiration (dark time) measured in 10 species shows O2 consumption of 1 mg O2/g dry wt/hr, whereas O2 provided by PS is ~1 mg at with low CO2 and 10-15 at high CO2 (**Hussner 16**); maintaining the PS enzymatic machinery is a major respiratory cost (Sand-Jensen 91b); seasonal adaptation of respiration (Mann 73)
- root oxygenation of sediment- Caffrey 91; Carpenter 83
- Rubisco accounts for majority of earth's protein and organic N; functioning of RUBISCO (Bowes 91; Cowling 99); pH optima of 8 (Weber 79); inhibited by oxygen (WW540); genetic variants of Rubisco in *Potamogeton* genera provide information on its evolution into heterophyllous and homophyllous species (**Iida 06**); selection for *rbcl*, a chloroplast gene that encodes a catalytic subunit of RuBisCO is associated with land plants and heterophylly (**Iida 06**)
- shade adaptation, total chlorophyll conc. increases (Kirk 94); ratio of Chl *a* to Chl *b* increaes only slightly (Barko 83c); part of plant can be shade-adapted and another part can be sun-adapted (Karpinski 99)
- temperature- effect on growth, PS (**Barko 81a;** Bowes 87, 89, 91; **Cary 83;** W357) and photorespiration (Cowling 99; WW540)

water movement, high flow rates inhibit PS- **Ghosh 94; Madsen 83** *See also* Pigments

Pigments-

- anthocyanins- flavonoids for visual attraction (Hart 88); filtration of toxic UV light (Grossman 94;
 Les 90); sensitive indicator of allelopathy (Leather 86); relationship to flavonoid allelochemicals (Haslam 81; McClure 70); associated with red aquatic plants and shallow water (Spence 81) and P deficiency in terrestrial plants (Krombholz T6(5); Wild 88); protect plants from excess e- damage and O2 radicals at combined high light and low temperatures for aquarium plants (**Pedersen 2022**)
- bacteriochlorophyll is pigment unique to the purple and green anaerobic bacteria (N158, 273); bacteriorhodopsin of the extreme halophiles (N289); are widespread among marine bacteria (N226)
- blue light receptors in plants and animals (**Suarez-Lopez 98**; **Thomas 97**); one for seedling phototrophism not yet found (Attridge 90; Hart 88) but intermediate protein has been identified (**Huala 97**)
- carotenoids: structure and fat solubility (Raven p105); are found in green algae and plants only (not red algae or cyanobacteria (Raven p269); protect plant from oxygen radicals (Lawlor 87);
 carotenoid levels increase with increasing light (Spencer 86); protect zygote chlorophyll (Raven p279) and are found in younger plants (Schagerl 00); are not energy efficient (Emerson 60); inhibition of carotenoid synthesis by fluridone (MacDonald 08)
- chlorophyll (Gaudet 73; W343); chemical structure like heme (Hart 88); its quantity affected by light levels (Thompson 89; W354) and Fe (Basiouny 77); needs Mg to absorb red light (Nieboer 80); extinction coefficients and analysis of (Elakovich 89); reduction of synthesis by allelochemicals (Leather 86)
- chlorophyll *a*, the main light gathering pigment (**Emerson 60**; Lawlor 87); chemical structure of (Rabinowitch 69); absorbs light at 680-710 nm, but needs help from Chl *b* (Kirk 94)
- chromatic adaptation common in algae but not plants- Kirk 94
- classification (N158) can be chemical (chlorophylls, carotenoids or flavonoids) or functional (photosynthetic or photomorphogenic)- **Hart 88**
- color in flowering plants due to: (1) anthocyanins (a flavonoid), which are red, violet or blue; (2) flavonols, which are yellow or ivory; and (3) carotenoids, which are red, orange, or yellow (Raven p428)
- flavonoids include chalcones, flavones, flavonols, isoflavones, and anthocyanins (Hosel 81) photosynthetic pigments of plants, algae (W344), and bacteria (Kirk 94; **Lawlor 87;** Reiskind 89); Photosystem I (Chl *a*, 680 nm) and Photosystem II (Chl *b*, 546 nm) work together for maximum
 - efficiency (Kirk 94; N158)

- phycobilins are limited to red marine algae and Blue-green algae (Emerson 60; Hart 88; Lawlor 87; N158), absorb B and transfer energy to chlorophyll with 100% efficiency (Lawlor 87); aren't found in green algae or plants (Raven p269)
- phytochromes, main photomorphogenic pigment (Hart 88; Thomas 97); chemical structure (Attridge 90); different phytochromes for different purposes (Smith 94); detects shading (Smith 77b), controls terretrial seed germination (Hart 88), heterophylly (Spence 81) and stem elongation (Attridge 90; Holmes 77c)
- phytochrome involvement in detection of shading (Smith 77b); flowering (Lumsden 87; Wooten 78); heterophylly (Bodkin 80); turion formation (Chambers 85), turion germination (Augsten 88), and flavonoid production (Hanson 81; Ibrahim 81; McClure 70); and chloroplast movement in Vallisneria (Dong 95)

proanthocyanins are condensed tannins and they are allelopathic- Stafford 90

PS pigments of marine algae are adaptations to low light, not spectral quality- Reiskind 89 red leaves in aquatic plants: high light combined with low temp in aquarium plants (**Pedersen 22**) rhodopsin pigment of marine bacteria are used for their photosynthesis (N226,230) UV protective pigments of algae- Kaiser 97

Plant Composition and Components-

age dependent, seedlings store nutrients- Aiken 80; Center 91; Hay 88; Rorison 60a; Wild 88 alkaloids- Ostrofsky 86 amino acids- Best 80; Boyd 69; Gaudet 73 biomass- Nielsen 91; Peverly 79; Twiley 85 cell volume is 10⁻¹⁴ liters (Rae 99) C, ash-free, is 40-60% - Bowen 79; Tucker 81; W151 chlorophyll- Nielsen 91; Raven 88; Sharma 85; Sorrell 91 elements (Barko 88; Bowen 79; Christiansen 85; Donahue 83; El-Ghazal 86; Gaudet 73; Gerloff 75; Glass 89; Gopal 87; Grise 86; Hill 79; Hutchinson 75; Moeller 88; Peverly 79; Pulich 82; Rattray 91; Raven 88; Sutton 85; Titus 90; Twilley 85; W286) diluted during rapid growth (Overath 91); roots/shoots/sediment/growth (Painter 88; Roelofs 94) energy-Botts 90; Boyd 69 gases-Bowes 89 intracellular distribution- Marquenie 79 malate, internal buffer (Glass 89; Keeley 83; Sharma 95; W532) organic C increases best reflect increased CO2 fixation, ash increase does not-Sand-Jensen 91b P:N:C for algae/plants- Martin 91; Raven 88; W285 phenols- Boyd 69; Center 91; Kerfoot 89; McKey 78 pigments See "Pigments"

plant parts- Barko 88; Botts 90; Brinson 76; Bristow 71; Christiansen 85; Gopal 87; Raven 88; Twilley 85
protein, ash, CHs, fiber, water- Botts 90; Bowen 79; Boyd 69; Gopal 87; NAS 77; W544
roots/shoots- Agami 90; Best 78; Denny 72; Painter 88; Pulich 82; Roelofs 94; Ross 89; Sutton 85; W542; Whitehead 87
seasonal effects on plant parts and elements- Peverly 79
vacuoles- Ernst 92; Glass 89
water content high- Bowes 87; Boyd 69; McClure 70

Redox of Sediment-

anaerobic electron acceptors (CO2, Fe, Mn, NO₃, SO₄)- Ash 02; Connell 68; Reddy 77; Rich 78; Ross 89; W603; Westerman 93; Wild 88 See also "Energy Transformations" biofilms make Redox zones horizontal as well as vertical (Masuda 91); O2 gradients (Ash 02) decomposition of organic matter controls Redox- Chou 87; Ponnamperuma 81; Wild 88 denitrification- Reddy 83; Russel 73; van Wijck 92 See also 'Bacteria: DAP' electricity generated in sediment by Geobacteria in presence of electrodes- **Bond 02** eutrophication in lakes- W688 Fe/Mn/P reactions- Burns 72; Gambrell 91; W261+, 308, 339, 399+; Wild 88; Williams 72 fermentation- DeLaune 84; Koch 90; Ross 89; W603; Wild 88 invertebrate burrowing increases sediment Redox- Ash 02 liming of sediment (bicarbonate fertilization) increases pH, stimulates bacteria activity, lowers Redox, increases nutrients, and stimulates plant growth- Roelofs 94 measurements in situ (Chou 87; van Wijck 92) and in the laboratory (Misra 38; Steinberg 94); electrodes plus Geobacteria in sediment generate electricity (Bond 02) methane formation- Barko 83b; Russel 73 oxidative processes produce acid and solubilize Zn (Kirk 95) oxidation of FeS₂ produces the acidity of mine wastes (Ash 02) oxygen concentration and Redox do not correlate well in the substrate (Steinberg 94) plant growth- DeLaune 84; Pulich 85 poise dictated by Fe- Ross 89; Wild 88 Redox, general- Barko 83; Burns 72; Caffrey 91; Gambrell 91; Glass 89; Kemp 72; Ross 89; Russel 73; W298+, 688; Wild 88; Williams 72 reductive processes consume acid- Burns 72; Giblin 90; Kelly 84; Wild 88 sulfide formation (Connell 68; Kemp 72; Ross 89; Russel 73; Wild 88; W320) and micronutrient availability (Burns 72; Reddy 77)

Reproduction

adventitious plant production in water lillies (Kasselmann 07)

calcium- Brewbaker 63; Conrad 88; Iino 89; Miller 83; Sabba 93

- flowering induced in shallow but not deep water (Wooten 78); induced by clipping of the apical meristem in pondweeds (Sheldon 86); media fertilization with K and Mg promotes flowering in *P. pectinatus* (**Huebert 83**)
- light photoperiod of 15hr (v. 12hr) stimulates reproduction in water lillies (Kasselmann 07); shorter
- photoperiod stimulates turion production in Hydrilla (MacDonald 08; Spencer 86)

monoecious v. dioecious Hydrilla (Spencer 86)

- phytochrome control of flowering in duckweed- Lumsden 87
- spores of Marsilea last 100 years- Raven p352
- temperature, effect on flowering of seagrasses- McMillan 82
- *Utricularia*, stimulation of flowering by adding beef extract to growth media- Pringsheim 62 water ferns (*Salvinia*, *Azolla*, and *Marsilea*) produce spores- Raven p352

Roots-

- acid secretion (Donahue 83; **Romheld 84**; Ross 89; Wild 88), CO2 release (Wild 88), and O2 release (Kirk 95) causes rhizosphere acidity, which solubilizes Fe (Cohen 98), Zn, and P (Kirk 95; Saleque 95); effects growth of *Typha latifolia* (Brix 02)
- bacteria attached to roots (**Blotnick 80**; Russel 73) linked to DOC secretion by FAMs (Coler 69) and enhanced sediment denitrification (Caffrey 92); bacterial colonization inside the roots (Calhoun 97)
- biomass of roots and rhizome of aquatic (**WW559**); growth studies should always include root biomass (WW559); biomass decreases with sediment fertility (Barko 83b; Szczepanska 71; Wild 88) and long-term CO2 fertilization (Shaw 02); root and above-ground biomass behave differently when plant's environment is manipulated (Shaw 02)
- CH fermentation doesn't effect growth- DeLaune 84; Koch 90
- Fe oxide sheath (Bedford 91; Christensen 98; van Wijck 92; Wild 88) adsorbs Zn and Cu (Otte 89); bacteria that associate with it (Ash 02)
- gas transport within roots (Vroom 22)
- light required for root production and maintenance- Sand-Jensen 91b
- respiration almost solely at root tip that requires contstant O2 (Bedford 91; Caffrey 91; Glass 89;
 - Koch 90; Wild 88; Vroom 22; Yamasaki 92) (**Vroom 22**) and Fe solubilization (Lindsay 84; Romheld 84)
- methane transport to the atm from roots to atm (Vroom 22)
- porosity correlates with sediment CO2 uptake and use for PS (**Winkel 09**) and methane transport from roots to air (**Vroom 22**)
- rhizosphere bacteria, interaction with SAMs (Gunnison 89) and FAMs (Coler 69)
- Salvinia "roots" are actually leaves; they bear spores- Raven p353

secretion of DOC (Blotnick 80; Coler 69; Duarte 88; Holmer 98; Ross 89; Tang 86; W534; Wild 88) increased by CO2 fertilization (Jones 98); DOC as allelochemicals for interspecies competition (Donahue 83; Tang 86), Fe reductants and chelators (Cohen 98; Foy 78; Hether 84; Hopkins 95; Romheld 83; Russel 73; Tyler 95), acid phosphatases (Foy 78), and malate to block Al toxicity (Huang 96); use of DOC by soil bacteria (Ross 89); artificial stimulation of DOC release (Raskin 99)

sediment diffusion distance v. growth- Barko 86a; Wild 88

species variation in biomass (Barko 86a, 91; Madsen 91; W542) and its location in the sediment (Titus 83)

sulfhydryl groups on root surface take up metals- Cohen 98

translocation of nutrients between individual roots (Wild 88) and rhizomes (Haslam 78)

Root Oxygen Release (ROL)-

acidity generated from oxidation of Fe, solubilizes Zn (Kirk 95) and P (Saleque 95)
aerial advantage (Barko 83b; Chen 88); emergents can use air O2 not PS O2 (Dacey 80, 82)
bacterial activity stimulated (Carpenter 83; DeBusk 89; Gunnison 89; Pulich 82; Reed 88) resulting in destruction of phytotoxins (Gunnison 89), including H₂S (Joshi 77), and increased nitrification in the sediment (Schuurkes 86) and on the roots of water hyacinth (Weber 85); denitrification stimulated in rhizosphere of *P. perfoliatus* (Caffrey 92); methane (Calhoun 97; Grunfeld 99) and Fe oxidation stimulated by root oxygenation (Emerson 99)

FAMs: ROL into water (Moorhead 88) is not enough to make up for blocking O2 diffusion into water (Reddy 83a, 84); FAMs (*E. crassipes* and *P. stratiotes*) release O2 derived from air or PS not the water (Jedicke 89)

Fe toxicity (van Wijck 92; Wild 88); Fe oxidation by root-associated bacteria (**Emerson 99**); iron plaques on roots decrease root porosity and gas exchange, nutrient uptake, etc (Vroom 22)

general- Armstrong 72, 91a, 91b; Barko 91; Bedford 91; Caffrey 91; Carpenter 83; Chen 88; Dacey 81; Pedersen 98; Raven 88; Schat 84; Smits 90a; Sorrell 91; W530; Weisner 89; Wild 88

```
H<sub>2</sub>S oxidation stimulated by root oxidation (Joshi 77) protects plants (Westerman 93)
```

light dependence (Caffrey 91; Carpenter 83; Holmer 98; Pedersen 95; W521) and independence (Steinberg 94); root oxygenation maintained at night (**Pedersen 98**)

metal toxicity- Foy 78

- methane: ROL inadvertently enhances methane decomposition (Vroom 22)
- mycorrhizae able to function in sediments because of root oxygen release by SAMs, FAMs, and emergent plants (WW545)

neighboring plants- Ernst 90; Foy 78; Szczepanska 71; Titus 83

nutrient availability- Carpenter 83; Chen 88; Gunnison 89; Jaynes 86; Kirk 95; Moore 94; Salique 95

sediment oxidation greater for emergent plants than submerged plants (Barko 86, 91; Chen 88)

oxidized microzone a partial barrier to sediment toxicity- Pedersen 98; Wetzel 90 P release and uptake by rice- **Saleque 95** redox of bulk sedment not influenced very much by (Bedford 91; Jaynes 86; Steinberg 94) rice release methane (Westerman 93) and are surrounded by an air layer which aids gas exchange (Kirk 95; **Raskin 83**; Saleque 95; Wetzel 90) SAMs release 0.01- 0.2 ug/cm2/min (WW539) root tip, site of most O2 release- Koncalova 90; **Smits 90a** size of root's oxygenation zone- **Pedersen 98** species variation (**Calhoun 97; Pedersen 98**; Roelofs 84; Smits 90a); isoetids release a lot (Schuurkes 86; **Pedersen 95**; Roelofs 94); those that leak more O2 are vulnerable to low substrate Redox (Raun 07; Smits 90a) vascularization necessary- Bedford 91; Jaynes 86; Smits 90a; Wetzel 90 water lily requires atm. exchange via floating leaves- Smits 92 younger FAMs much more effective oxygenators- Moorhead 88 Zn release from soil particles and uptake by rice- **Kirk 95**

S (Sulfur)-

bacteria involved in oxidizing and reducing S (McKinney 04; **WW 315; Zinder 78**); Beggiatoa mats under marine aquaculture cages due to sediment overload (Christensen 00)

cycling (**WW 310**); in sediments (**Holmer 98**) with biofilm model (Labrenz 00; **Peiffer 94**); and prehistoric times (Habicht 03)

deficiency symptoms in terrestrial plants (Wild 88) and aquatic plants (Newman 88) enzyme association- Smith 84

H₂S-

ADH activity and ammonium uptake, inhibition of- Koch 90

Fe neutralizes H2S toxicity (Barko 83b; Connell 68; Ohle 78; Ponnamperuma 81; Ross 89; van Wijck 92; Westerman 93; Wild 88); ZnS ppts before FeS (Labrenz 00)

levels in anoxic water of Lake Tanganyika are 33 uM (Edmond 93); present in sediments with

growing plants (Misra 38); levels of metal-SH complexes in oxic waters (Rozan 00)

marine sediments more susceptible to H2S production (Koch 90; Schulz 99; Westerman 93); contain

67 X more sulfates (20 mM) than a freshwater sediment (300 uM) (Habicht 03)

metal exchange (Cu of Cd for Fe) in sulfide complexes (Rozan 00)

marine species are more tolerant of H2S- Koch 90; Pulich 82

neutralization of Fe toxicity (Pulich 82; van Wijck 92) and the availability of other metals, such as Cu

and Zn (Bingham 86; Reddy 77; Rozan 00)

nitrification-denitrification are inhibited by- Kemp 90

oxidation of H2S by bacteria (N771; **Zinder 78**) lowers pH (Giblin 90; Misra 38; Wild 88), is rapid (W319, 324) and energetically favorable (N156), such there is little release of H2S to the atmosphere (Westerman 93); process is common in the oxidized rhizosphere (Westerman 93), because it is stimulated by root release of O2 (**Joshi 77**); this H2S oxidation protects the plant from H2S toxicity (**Holmer 98**; Westerman 93); oxidation to S associated with nitrate reduction in bacteria (**Schulz 99**); bulking problem in wastewater treatment caused by excessive growth of filamentous S oxidizers like *Beggiatoa* and *Thiothrix* (N276); S, thiosulfate and sulfite are intermediates in H2S oxidation and can themselves be oxidized (**Zinder 78**)

protein degradation by some bacteria as a source (N253)

sediment availability (**Brouwer 95**; Painter 88) and enhancement of plant growth- Pulich 82, 85 SRB of freshwater sediments are adapted to low sulfates (Habicht 03)

toxicity to mammals, plants, fish and bacteria (Bowen 79; Brouwer 95; DeLaune 84; Kemp 90; Koch 90; Joshi 77; Ohle 78; Ponnamperuma 81; Ross 89; van Wijck 92; Wild 88) at 1 uM (Ross 89; Wild 88) or less (Brouwer 95); mechanism of toxicity (Koch 90)

source of H2S is half from decomposition and half from sulfate reduction (WW314)

levels of sulfates in freshwater lake sediment are 0.3 mM v. 20 mM in marine sediments- Habicht 03); sulfate levels (ave) in freshwater (0.3 mM) v. 28 mM in seawatera, which is 93X greater (Howarth 85

leaf uptake of SO2 gas by terrestrial plants (Hutchinson 72); bacteria and plants assimilate S as sulfate (N770)

Mo competes for uptake- Howarth 85

N association with-Wild 88

purple and green bacteria oxidize oxidize H2S to sulfur granules- N273

pyrite (FeS₂) oxidation causes acidity in acid-sulfate soils (Boyd 95) and the acidity of mine wastes (Ash 02); FeS (mackinawite) not pyrite is the expected iron sulfide below 100 degrees (Labrenz 00); oxidation is both chemical and biological (Zinder 78)

regulation of micronutrient availability and toxicity- Barko 83b; Bingham 86; Burns 72; Caffrey 91; Giblin 90; Kemp 72; Ohle 78; Ponnamperuma 81; Pulich 82; Reddy 77; Ross 89; W319+, 263; Wild 88

sediment availability (Bowen 79; Connell 68; Ponnamperuma 81; Pulich 82; van Wijck 92); S is rarely a limiting nutrient for plants (Westerman 93); species of sulfides in (**Brouwer 95**)

sulfate oxidation may be chemical or microbial (Peiffer 94); oxidation by Beggiatoa (Ash 02)

sulfate reduction by bacteria (SRBs) (Holmer 98; Westerman 93) raises pH (Burns 72; Giblin 90;

Kelly 84; Westerman 93) and is inhibited by Mo (Skyring 88); sufates reduced to H2S before bacteria can assimilate the S (Zinder 78)

sulfates from oxidation of FeS in rocks (Peiffer 94; W184; Wild 88) and aquatic plant roots (Holmer 98)

uptake by plants (Pulich 82; Smart 85) prefered from the water (Barko 91a)

water S not necessary for *P. pectinatus* if sediment has adequate S (Huebert 83) ZnS precipitation by SRBs- Ash 02; Labrenz 00

Sediment-

- ammonia in- Jones 82; Santamaria 94
- anaerobic condition, importance of- Barko 91; Pulich 82, 85; Russel 73; W534
- bacterial processes (Ash 02; Jones 82; Westerman 93; Nealson 97)
- Ca, effect on growth- Gopal 90
- carbonate buffering systems (Fe, Mn, Na, Ca) [Ponnamperuma 81] regulate P availability (Roelofs 94; Short 87)
- CEC- Kyuma 89; Nichols 76; Schat 84; W185
- chemical composition v. growth- Misra 38; Painter 88; Roelofs 94
- CO2 in: 10-250 times higher than atm level of 16 uM (Winkel 09) and used by some plants (Val, Isoetids, Ludwigia for PS (**Winkel 09**)
- composition of (Barko 81a, 82, 83b, 86; Bowen 79; Huebert 83; Kyuma 89; Peverly 79; Pulich 82; Rattray 91; Schat 84; Steward 84; van Wijck 92; W684); elements (**Painter 88**; Roelofs 94) in aquaculture pond soils (Boyd 95)
- conductivity- Barko 83b; Ponnamperuma 81
- Cu removal from solution by sediment- Boyd 95
- Saltwater v. freshwater- chemistry and bacteria of (Nealson 97)

decomposition-

- acetic acid generated under anaerobic conditions- Spencer 95
- bethnic respiration, source of C (Andersson 78; Rich 78; Titus 90; Wetzel 72, 85); 0.75 g CO2
 - released by aquaculture sediment per m2/day (Boyd 95)
- bicarbonates stimulate- Roelofs 94
- Fe availability- Gambrell 91; Lindsay 84; Ponnamperuma 81; Wild 88
- C, N, S and P release- Kistritz 78; Pulich 85; Sand-Jensen 79
- nutrient availability and growth- Roelofs 94
- O2 and acidity (Andersson 78; Kelly 84; W489); effect on allelochemical accumulation (Gopal 93)
- O2 consumption- Carpenter 83; W161, 259, 597
- particle size (Mann 72); finer sediments have more bacteria (Adey 91)
- rate affected by OM, acidity (Kelly 84; Roelofs 94) and temperature (Ponnamperuma 81; W598; Wild 88)
- density a function of mineral content, not OM (Barko 86); effect on growth (**Barko** 82, **86**, 91; van Wijck 92)
- depletion of N and P by plant growth- Barko 88; Chen 88
- diffusional resistance- Barko 86; Madsen 91; Russel 73

disturbance, lack of effect (Bulthuis 81; Isolda 91); bioturbation, site for nitrification-denitrification (Kemp 90), nutrient release into the water (W606), and oxygenation (Ash 02)

DOC toxicity- Barko 83b, 86, 91; Drew 80; Patrick 64; Ponnamperuma 81; Szczenpanska 71 exoenzymes (Donahue 83) such as ureases (van Wijck 92)

fertile sediments for SAMs (Aiken 80; Barko 81a, 82, 83b, 86; Best 78; Boeger 92; Denny 72; Huebert 83; Jacobsen T5(5); Langeland 83; Pulich 85; Rattray 91; Sand-Jensen 79; Short 87; Smart 85; Steward 84; Sutton 85; Szczepanska 71; Titus 83; van Wijck 92; Weisner 89); comparative study (Misra 38); mainly loams (Gopal 90)

fertility and bacteria population increases- Duarte 88

fertilization- **Barko** 82, 83b, **86**, 88, 91; **Bulthuis 81**; Chen 88; **Christiansen 85**; **Dennison 87**; Moeller 88; Pulich 85; Santamaria 94; Smart 85; Steward 84; Sutton 85, 96; van Wijck 92

gases (Barko 83; Kemp 72; Kerr 72; **Ohle 78**; Painter 88; Ross 89; W319, 599); CO2 (Misra 38) *See also* "Gases"

heavy metals in contaminated sediments (Lee 07)

interface between sediment and water- Andersson 78; Kelly 84; Sand-Jensen 91; W259+; Williams 72

interstitial water (Barko 86; Brinson 76; McRoy 72; Peverly 79; Ponnamperuma 81; Reddy 77; Short 87); homogeneity of (Ponnamperuma 81); elements in (**Painter 88**)

invertebrate burrowing can increase microbibal activity four fold (WW651); oxidation of sediments by (Ash 02)

liming, effect on growth (Roelofs 84; Wild 88); stimulates decomposition, nutrient release, and plant growth (**Roelofs 94**); beneficial to sediments of aquaculture ponds (Boyd 95); may alleviate Mn and Zn toxicity in acid soils (Rorison 60A, 84)

littoral (Dy) v. pelagic (Gyttja) sediments: major differences in composition, texture, color, N content; dy (C:N < 10) contains > 50% OM, remains of emergent plants, peat and unsaturated humic colloids; Gyttja contains remains of phytoplankton, inorganic ppts (C:N > 10) (WW632) major site of decomposition *in situ*- Kelly 84

methanogenisis, primary route of decomposition in lake sediments, because of lack of inorganic electron acceptors- Westerman 93

micronutrients, 10⁵ more in sediment than water (W315) can take care of plant needs (Huebert 83) microzone of nutrients- Weber 85; W261; Williams 72

N cycling (Blotnick 80; Boon 87a,b; Neori 17); NH4+ conc 100 X more than NO3 (Burkholder 92)

N2 fixation by bacteria associated with aquatic plants (Barko 91a; Neori 17)

nitrate removal, increased by presence of sediment (Reddy 87; Risgaard 94; Seitzinger 84); NO3

contaminated sediments recovered quickly (Burkholder 92)

nitrification-denitrification- Kemp 90; Risgaard 94; Seitzinger 84

nutrition- Amudsen 82; Barko 83b, 86, 88, 91a, 91b; Best 78; Brinson 76; Chen 88; Christiansen 85; Denny 72; Haslam 78; Huebert 83; McRoy 72; Moeller 88; Nichols 76; Nielsen 91; Peverly 79; Roelofs 94; Sculthorpe 76; Short 87; Smart 85; Sutton 85
rhizosphere ecology- Barko 1991a; Neori 17

viruses in rhizosphere associated with wetland plants (Neori 17)

organic matter-

allelopathy of- Gopal 93 denitrification, stimulation of-Kurtz 80 density is always 0.05 mg/l (Barko 86); compression (via centrifugation) increased plant growth because it decreased root-nutrient distance (Barko 86) humus See "Humus" inhibition of SAMs more than emergents- Barko 82, 83b, 86, 91; Dooris 82; Smits 90a, 90b labile v. refractory- Barko 83b; van Wijck 92 levels of OM reach a constant equilibrium in terms of type and quantity (Misra 38); levels above 20% are inhibitory to plants and affect sediment density (Barko 86) metals (AI, Fe) high but Ca low in organic sediments- Misra 38 micronutrient release- Beckwith 75; Bingham 86 mulm: marine fish farm sediment has 3 billion bacteria/cc (Ash 02); DOC aggregates into large particles such that 19% of POC is derived from DOC (WW652) N and P source- Langeland 83; Pulich 85; Sand-Jensen 79; Short 87; Spencer 92; van Wijck 92 numbers of bacteria- Duarte 88; W595 nutrient content high, but density low- Barko 83b, 86; van Wijck 92 organic acids (Ponnamperuma 81), inhibit SAM reproduction (Spencer 95) plant growth (Barko 82, 83a,b, 86; Denny 72; Donahue 83; Langeland 83; Overath 91; Sand-Jensen 79; Short 87; Spencer 92; Szczepanska 71; Titus 83; van Wijck 92; W548) depends on species (Dooris 82; Misra 38; Pulich 85; Sand-Jensen 79; Weisner 89); OM may be stimulatory (Misra 38; Spencer 92) sediment components- Barko 82, 83a, 83b, 86; Brinson76; Christiansen 85; DeMarte 74; Donahue 83; Kemp 72; Langeland 83; Peverly 79; Rattray 91; Riemer 84; Sand-Jensen 79; Smits 90a; Sondergaard 79; Weisner 89; van Wijck 92

Zn association with- Kirk 95

marine v. freshwater (**Nealson 97**): marine produces more sulfides (Jones 81); sulfate levels in freshwater lake sediment are 0.3 mM v. 20 mM in marine sediments (Habicht 03)

oxidized microzone keeps nutrients and toxins in the sediment (Boyd 95; Huebert 83; W261); 1,000 X more bacteria than overlying water (WW636); barrier to release of nutrients, especially Fe and P (**WW 248**)

- oxygen consumption is both chemical and biological (root respiration and microbes)- Carpenter 83; Ross 89; Wetzel 90
- P association with sediment fractions (Boyd 95; Saleque 95), removal from the water (Boyd 95; Misra 38)
- P/Fe/Mn/S interaction- Barko 83b; Burns 72; Connell 68; Jensen 95; Ponnamperuma 81; Pulich 82; Roelofs 94; Ross 89; van Wijck 92; W320; Wild 88

peat See "Soils, terrestrial:peats and potting soils"

pH (Andersson 78; Barko 83b; Connell 68; Kyuma 89; Ponnamperuma 81; Reddy 77; Roelof 84; Titus 90; van Wijck 92; Wild 88) determines nutrient availability (Donahue 83) with 6.6 ideal (Ponnamperuma 81); pH stability of sediments (Andersson 78; Connell 68; Kelly 84; Ponnamperuma 81); alkaline pH of acid soil after submergence (Kirk 95); Mn toxicity at pH 5.2 (Rorison 60a); pH where plants grow is 5.4 to 8.0 (Misra 38)

pore size, penetration of roots (Ross 89; Wild 88) and overlying water (Kelly 84) *See also* 'Soils:'void space'

protozoa pop., 100,000/ml (WW666)

species variation in plant growth on different sediments- **Biernacki 97**; Gopal 69; Hutchinson 75; Misra 38

surfaces of particles almost completely coated with OM- Thurman 85

toxicity of (Barko 83b; Bowes 89; Caffrey 91; Gamrell 91; W530), especially if there is no oxidized microzone (Boyd 95)

turbidity of sediment suspension in water can be reduced with alum, Ca, humus, or Mg- Boyd 95 *See also* 'Wastewater treatment: flocculents'

worms, their digging helps cycling- Barko 91; W296

Zn, bioavailable and unavailable forms in the sediment- Kirk 95

Soils, terrestrial-

acid-sulfate soils are a problem for aquaculture ponds (Boyd 95); association with Al toxicity in tropical soils (Davies 97); pyrite oxidation results in acidic mine wastes (Ash 02)

acidity v. fertility (Donahue 83; Kawaguchi 77; Wild 88); acid soils stress plants more than alkaline soils (Rorison 86; Vickery 84); adaptation of plant species to (**Rorison 86**)

- aggregation of soil particles due to microorganisms (Vickery 84) and organic matter (Donahue 83); filamentous, fungi-like bacteria (Actinomycetes) stabilize soil (McKinney 04)
- Al & Fe oxides are part of the clay fraction (Boyd 95); they coat the soil particles (Thurman 85),

which enhances bacterial attachment (Mills 96)

allelochemical binding to clay and humus- Chou 87

ammonium binding is specific for clay- Ponnamperuma 81; van Wijck 92

aquatic plant growth- Spencer 92

bacteria of (**N766**); 4,000 species per g. of fertile soil (N256); same bacteria found in soils and the natural environments are used in wastewater treatment (McKinney 04); 10⁹ to 10¹⁰ bacteria/g soil (Lederberg 00); acidic Finnish soils have 10⁷ to 10⁹/g (Iivanainen 97); bacteria colonizing ≤0.5% of surface area of soil particles (Lederberg 00); bulk soil contains mostly gram-positive spore-formers while rhizosphere contains more gram-negatives (N766)

biofilms, organization and bacteria involved, artificial construction of soil biofilm, review (Cai 19)

CEC of soils (Ag. ext.; Boyd 94; Kyuma 89; Kuenzler 86; Kurtz 80; Nichols 76; Ross 89; Russel 73; Sutcliffe 81; W185; Wild 88); ave for sand is 2.8 and clay loam 25 meq/100 g soil (Mills 96); exc.
CEC comparison of clays, organic matter, various soils (Marchinchin 19); OM has a CEC of 300-550 (Wild 88 p578)

clay removes metals from solution (Bailey 99); CEC of montomorillonite, v. kaolinite v. illite clays (Marchinchin 19)

composition is 50% void space containing variable amounts of water or air, 45% minerals, and 5% OM, pores allow gas and water exchange and are critical to soil biology (roots, microorganisms, etc) (Wikipedia 2022, 'Soil')

contamination with hazardous wastes (**McKinney 04**) *See also* MB.../PAH-contaminated soils' element composition of soils (Bowen 79; **Kawaguchi 77; Kyuma 89**); micronutrient composition

and deficiencies in tropical and temperate soils (Davies 97); analysis of Finnish coniferous soils (**Iivanainen 97**)

fungi essential for degrading lignin in decomposing plant matter (N767, 768)

general- Donahue 83; Mills 96; Ross 89; Russel 78; Wild 88

geosmins, metabolites of Streptomyces that give soil its musty odor (N766)

granite, an unweathered soil, is low in Fe- Bowen 79; Kawaguchi 77; Wild 88

H⁺ binding- Donahue 83; Russel 73; Sutcliffe 81; W185

humic colloid binding to clays- Mills 96; Russel 73; Vickery 84; Wild 88

laterite soils, characteristics of (Russel 78; Wild 88); incorrectly defined as any tropical soil with a

- high iron content (Davies 97); an infertile subsoil (Davies 97; Vickery 84)
- leaching of nutrients due to CO2 dissolved in rainwater- Vickery 84

loam is 40-40-20% mineral concentration of sand-silt-clay by weight, respectively (Wikipedia

'Loam')

metal absorption by various clays- Bailey 99

nitrifying bacteria species detected in (Stephens 98); included comammox Nitrospira (Poghosyan

19); seeding biofilters with soil to do nitrification (Gross 03)

nutrient binding (Brezonik 72; Donahue 83; Giesey 78; Glass 89; Kemp 72; Kuenzler 86; Riemer 84;

Russel 73; Sutcliffe 81; W261; Wild 88); copper and phosphates (Boyd 95)

organic matter benefits soils- Donahue 83

P binding to Fe oxides (WW252)

Peats and Potting Soils

acidification upon submergence (Boyd 95; Misra 38; Ponnamperuma 81; Ross 89)
acidity of (Misra 38) inhibits decomposition (Ross 89); and aquatic plants (Kazda 00)
composition of typical potting soil contains equal parts shredded tree bark, peat moss, perlite and sand, plus added fertilizers and lime - Hartman 83
deficient in Cu (Davies 97; Wild 88) and Mn, Zn (Sauchelli 69)
Finnish, coniferous soils have pH of 3, assoc. with mycobacteria (livanainen 97)
high (30-60%) organic matter (Donahue 83; Hartman 83) decreases AI toxicity (Ag. Ext.)
inherent infertility- Ross 89
metal removal from water- Bailey 99; Brown 00; Spinti 95
mycobacteria colonize the grey layer of Spaghnum moss in great numbers (10⁶/g soil) (Kazda 00)
origin of peat bog from partially decayed *Sphagnum* mosses and herbs (Kazda 00; WW818; Wild 88); lakes accumulate peat with time (Kazda 00; Misra 38); cellulose and lignin are major components (Bailey 99)
surface area of peat is >200 m²/q- Brown 00

pH of coniferous soils is 3 (Iivanainen 97)

protozoa in soils mainly amoeba, pics of- (Lederberg 00)

rainwater, ionic composition of, for USA, S. America and ocean (WW174)

sand is quartz, SiO2- Mills 96; Wright 93 (personal communication)

site of polymerization of decompositional products- Donahue 83; W678

size of mineral particles (Glass 89; **Mills 96**; Wild 88) that make up a loam soil (Hartman 83) and a fertile soil (Kyuma 89)

- surface area, size, and volume of classified mineral particles [**Mills 96** (from USDA and Foth 1978); is 8 m²/g for one clay, which is 20,000 times more than silt (Mills 96) but can be 1,000 m²/g for specific particles (humus?) in fine textured soils (Lederberg 00)
- tropical soils, characteristics (Donahue 83; Kyuma 89; Russel 78; Vickery 84; Wild 88); similar in micronutrient content to temperate soils (Davies 97); most nutrients replaced by Al (Vickery 84); more positively charged than temperate soils, so hold P tightly (Raven 92, p. 240)
- void space makes up 50% of terrestrial soil volume, half filled with gas, half with water (Wikipedia, 'Soil' 2022);); nitrifying bacteria most active in soil with larger pores of 100-200 micron diameter where they have greater access to O2 (Fair 94)
 weathering of soils (WW172)

Theories and Evolution-

alkalinity is a battery that stores CO2- King 72; Willliams 94 animal/plant interactions hard to measure- W679

Archean earth: low oxygen, low sulfates, high methane- Habicht 03 atmospheric gas evolution, bacteria are responsible for it (Ash 02); oxygen has increased since planet formation (Raven 88; Smith 84) due to marine algae (Ash 02) C cycling- W679 calcifuge v. calcicole plants- Davies 97; Lewis 86; Rorison 60a, 60b, 84; Vickery 84 earth's energy stored in chemical bonds- W300, 338 humic acid formation in natural waters- Thurman 85 ionic potential determines metal toxicty and essentiality- Sposito 86 Mars; basalt rock plus H₂O could yield H₂ necessary for methanogenisis (and life itself)- Ash 02 micronutrient requirements of algae are genetically linked- Brand 83 multicellular organisms, evolution of prompted by more efficient aerobic metabolism (Pfeiffer 01) natural habitat of a plant may not be optimal for that plant; it's just a competitive niche-Misra 38 nitrogen preference depends on habitat that the plant has evolved from- Krajina 73; Lewis 86 primary productivity, 90% enters detrial food chain- W691+ r/k strategists- rich culture conditions promote fast-growers (Verschuere 97) R/Q and oxygen debt describes electron energy stored in sediments- Rich 78; W686+ S- cycling, now and during prehistoric times- Habicht 03

Wastewater treatment-

acid mine wastes, proposed remedies using peat, clay (Bailey 99; Brown 00; Spiniti 95) alga species of marine 'turf algal' systems (Adey 91) and stabilization ponds (McKinney 04) ammonia removal from fish effluent using duckweed requires stirring (Porath 82) *See also*

"Wastewater treatment: biofilters for N removal"

anammox combined with first step in nitrification- Jetten 99; Strous 03

Azolla and duckweed, uptake, toxicity, and depletion of Pb & Zn from the media- **Jain 90** bacteria/algae system (**Tenny 72**)

bacterial regrowth and recontamination in drinking water distribution systems (Falkinham 09;

- **LeChevallier 04**); clear water can have 10^6 bacteria/ml and 10^7 barely turbid (N105); bacteria genera found in sludge are ordinary aquatic and soil bacteria (**McKinney 04**); bacteria in two tx plants are α (34%), β (20%), γ (6%) Proteobacteria, CF (4-20%), and mycolata (1%) (**Keith 05**)
- biofilters for N removal have *Nitrosomonas* ammonia-oxidizing bacteria, whereas natural systems will have *Nitrosospira* Schramm 98 *See also* 'nitrification'
- BOD (Biological Oxygen Demand)- N780); reduction by Waterhyacinth (Reed 88)
- bulking problem caused by excessive growth of filamentous S oxidizers like *Beggiatoa* and *Thiothrix* (N276)
- cationic polymers can be used as a primary coagulant or as an aid to coagulation by Alum or Fe (AWWA 84); their use is common (Biesinger 86; Cary 87; Fort 95; Hall 91); toxicity to fish and invertebrates (**Biesinger 86; Cary 87; Fort 95; Goodrich 91; Hall 91**); toxicity is enhanced by

Fe or Al (Fort 95) and flow-through exposure (Goodrich 91); reduction of toxicity by humic substances and clays (Biesinger 86; Cary 87; Goodrich 91; Hall 91); gill damage to fish (Biesinger 86), but no effect on growth (Goodrich 91); nonionic and anionic polymers much less toxic than cationic polymers (Biesinger 86; Hall 91); no concern to aquarium hobbyists, because water is treated with charcoal filtration **after** the cationic polymer treatment (OWASA 96, personal communication)

charcoal removal of DOC (AWWA 71, 84; James 71; Rosen 71; Symons 78; Welsh 93) and insecticides (Awwa 71; James 71; Symons 78); mechanism of action by adsorption (Spacie 85; Tang 86); charcoal as colonization site for bacteria (LeChevallier 04)

chlorine, chloramine, chlorine dioxide, ozone, UV, filtration- efficicacy of sterilization towards bacteria, protozoa, viruses, etc in processing drinking water (**LeChevallier 04**)

COD (chemical oxygen demand) is faster and has less variation than BOD- **McKinney 04** cyst removal *See* 'protozoa...'

diatomaceous earth will remove some algae, efficacy compared with other water purifiers-

LeChevallier 04

disinfectant efficacy in water treatment (LeChevallier 04; N123)

DOC in drinking water: median BDOC (biodegradable organic carbon) is 0.38 mg/l (LeChevallier 04)

duckweed, uptake and toxicity of Cd to, depletion of Cd from the medium- **Charpentier 87** *Elodea*, uptake of Pb, Cd, Cu, Zn- **Nakada 79**

FAMs, uptake and toxicity of Cd, Cr, Co, Cu, Ni, Pb, Zn- Gaur 94; Polar 86; Sela 89

Fe and Mn removal- O'Connor 71

filter pore size v. microbe size in removing protozoan cysts, bacteria, viruses, algae- LeChevallier 04

floc formation by colloidal aggregation and bridging with living and/or dead cells (WW737) *See also* 'Biofilms: floc...'

flocculents in wastewater treatment include FeCl₃, alum, FeSO₄, cationic polymers (LeChevallier 04; WW736); alum and Fe are much less toxic than cationic polymers (Fort 95; Hall 91); flocculation refers to formation of particles >1 um due to colloid aggregation (**WW736**)

foaming in wastewater treatment See 'surface scum...'

general- Crites 92; DeBusk 89; Moorhead 88; Reddy 83a, 83b, 84, 87; Reed 88; Sneddon 91;

Weber 85; W555); wastewater treatment (McKinney 04; N780-788)

groundwater has less EM (Falkinham 01) and less BDOC (labile DOC) than surface water (LeChevallier 04)

hazardous waste treatment- McKinney 04; N790

hydrogen peroxide used as a chemical oxygenizing agent- McKinney 04

Lemna trisulca, uptake and toxicity of Cd and Zn-Huebert 92

metal pipes, initial colonization by EM (LeChevallier 04), probably because they are resistant to

heavy metals See 'MB (mycobacteriosis) ...: metal toxicity'

N & P removal efficiency, combination of emergent and submerged growth best- Reddy 87 nitrate removal from groundwater by encouraging denitrification- Obenhuber 91; nitrate

contamination (>10 mg/l) in wells in USA (**Patrick 87**)' maximum allowable limits are 10 pp NO3-N, which is 44.3 ppm nitrate (Portland OR drinking water standards)

nitrite levels in groundwater, surface water, and rural water in India, removal by FAMs (**Rawat 12**) nitrification-denitrification more efficient than plant N uptake (Weber 85); aquatic (wetland) plants

(Crites 92); nitrifying bacteria and PAO compete for oxygen (Gieske 01)

EM removal from drinking water, review of- LeChevallier 04

organisms (bacteria, actinomycetes, fungi, protozoa, crustacea, and worms) are the same as those found in soil- McKinney 04

ozone (LeChevallier 04) beginning to replace chlorine in wastewater treatment (N124)

peat for metal removal from acid mine wastes (Bailey 99; Brown 00; Spiniti 95)

phenols (Buikema 79; Rowe 82); mycolata (but not other sludge bacteria) rapidly degrade phenol (Keith 05)

phosphate removal by filter bacteria (Crocetti 00; Gieseke 01) and wastewater treatment bacteria (N70); PAO bacteria require oxygen (McKinney 04); PAO bacteria identified by FISH as *Rhodocyclus* and *Propionibacter* (**Crocetti 00**); poly-β-hydroxybutyrate and Volutin granules as the P storage product (McKinney 04; N71,80)

POC removal removes NTM- LeChevallier 04

problems in wastewater treatment are filamentous bacterial growth and surface scum formation-McKinney 04

protozoa, rotifers, Actinomycetes in sludge filters (McKinney 04); *Cryptosporidium* oocysts most chlorine-resistant organism; *Giardia* cyst removal sets the disinfection standards (LeChevallier 04); protozoan cysts and their intracellular pathogen (i.e., NTM) survive water chlorination (Adelembi 06)

(Adekambi 06)

reverse osmosis reduces total dissolved solids by 95% to make softwater (8-12 ppm as CaCO₃)

```
(Gundersen 94); removes viruses and particles < 0.001 micron (LeChevallier 04)
```

SHARON (Single reactor high activity ammonium removal over nitrite) filter combined with

Anammox process in N removal- Jetten 99; Strous 03

silver (1 ppm) used as bacteriostatic agent- LeChevallier 04; N124

sludge recycling and multiple reactors- McKinney 04

stabilization ponds, ecology of- McKinney 04

surface scum and foaming (McKinney 04) create problems in wastewater treatment; 15-18% of the bacteria are mycolata and mostly *Gordona* spp (de los Reyes 97) *See* 'Biofilms: surface scum' tapwater and bottled water is not sterile as 'bacterial regrowth' often occurs (LeChevallier 04) *See*

also 'MB (mycobacteriosis)...: tapwater'

toxic metal uptake and depletion from media (Charpentier 87; Gopal 87; Huebert 92; Jain 90;

McCracken 87; Nor 86; Reddy 84)

waterhyacinth, uptake & depletion of Cu from media - Nor 86

UV sterilization, efficacy of (LeChevallier 04; N120); UV causes thymine dimeres in the DNA

(N197, 360); inhibits viruses, protozoa, microsporidia, and bacteria (Hijnen 06; Jacangelo 02) Zn removed by SRB (Labrenz 00)

Waterlogging, Effect on Plants

ADH enzymes, stimulation of- Koch 90: Smits 90b

aereation from neighboring plants- Schat 84

- aerenchyma: development (Armstrong 75, 79; Blom 90; Jackson 90; Smits 90a; Webb 86; Wild 88);
 - when stem is cut, flooding of aerenchyma is prevented by cross diaphrams and tubular capillarity

(Wetzel 90); lacunae are essential for SAMs (Wetzel 90)

aerial leaf- Armstrong 79; Barko 83; Blom 90; Dacey 82; Weisner 89

ammonia release substantial, due to decreased nitrification- Ross 89

bacterial cycling of plant nutrients- Laanbroek 90

CHs- Armstrong 79; Koncalova 90; Titus 77; Webb 83; Weisner 89

DOC injures roots (Patrick 65); fatty acids toxic to plant roots (Westerman 93)

energy (ATP) depletion in plant- Bertani 87; Koch 90; Wild 88

ethanol production (DeLaune 84; Drew 80; Ernst 90; Glass 89; Koch 90; Koncalova 90; Schat 84;

Smits 90a, b; Wild 88) not toxic and essential for survival (Smits 90a); CO2 production from

(Bertani 87); stimulation of seed germination (Smits 95)

ethylene- Jackson 90; Wild 88

H2S (Koch 90) and other phytotoxins (Armstrong 75, 79, 91a; Gambrell 91; Ernst 90; Koncalova 90; Laanbroek 90; Patrick 64; van Wijck 92; Wild 88)

general- Armstrong 75; Blom 90; Drew 80; Ernst 90; Koncalova 90; Patrick 64; Ponnamperuma 81; Russel 78; Schat 84; Wild 88

N losses from denitrification and ammonification- Armstrong 75; Bertani 87; Ernst 90; Laanbroek 90; Yamasai 92

N uptake by plant decreases- Koch 90; Trought 81; Yamasaki 92

nitrates added for protection of seedlings- Bertani 87; Trought 81; Wild 88

nutrient uptake during- Schat 84

rice leaves are surrounded by air layers which increase gas exchange with atm.- Wetzel 90

```
root adaptation (Jackson 90; Koncalova 90; Russel 73; Schat 84; Wild 88); just a single root provided
```

with O2 and nutrients can protect the entire plant (Trought 81)

soil reactions to loss of O2: ammonium release, conductance increase, macro and micronutrient

release (Beckwith 75; Bingham 86; Gambrell 91; Ponnamperuma 81; Reddy 77; Ross 89;

Sauchelli 69); instability is temporary (Beckwith 75; Gambrell 91; Kelly 84; Ponnamperuma 81; Wild 88)

survival, one month (Schat 84; W522; Wild 88), but symptoms are within hours (Bertani 87) symptoms of plant injury are NADH increase, release of amino acids, etc.- Bertani 87 waiting period recommended before planting rice- Wild 88

Water Chemistry, General-

- alkalinity defined as all anions (Roelofs 84; W207; Whitaker T92a); high levels of, reduce toxicity of Cu to fish (Pagenkopf 86); keep above 20 ppm for fish and 50 ppm for invertebrates in aquaculture ponds (Boyd 95); levels in 5 lakes (Smits 92); calculations of, and conversion factors (Booth 97); recommended levels for aquariums are 2-8 dH (Kasselmann 03); high natural alkalinity (3.7 meq/l) with a high DIC (3.3 to 3.8 mM) (**Nielsen 91**)
- aquatic plant species, relationship to water chemistry (*See* Aquatic Plants: water chemistry and species variation)

brackish water has >100 mg/l of Cl- (Kadono 82) or 0.2-0.5% NaCl (Ferguson 89)

buffering in lakes by carbonate (W203+) and reductive processes (Giblin 90; Kelly 84)

Ca, pH, bicarbonate, alkalinity highly correlated- Catling 86; Kadono 82; Vitt 90

chloride: average concentration in natural waters is 8.3 mg/l (WW01 p. 182)

CO2 solubility (Bristow 69; Keeley 83; Titus 90; Wetzel 72; W204); total DIC (Titus 90); and absorbtion from atmosphere (Morton 72; Titus 90; W205)

- color of water (absorbance at 310 nm) is a good indicator of DOC protection from metal toxicity (Hutchinson 87); may affect plant growth (Catling 86)
- conductivity (Barko 83a; Smart 85) related to K⁺ uptake (Amudsen 82), plant nutrients (Huebert 83;

Spencer 92), equation for conductivity (**WW173**)

coprecipitation of ions in oxygenated water- Barko 91

DIC levels in situ- Edmond 93; Titus 90

DOC mainly humic and fulvic acids- Thurman 85

DON v. inorganic N- Rattray 91; W232

element composition- Bowen 79; Edmond 93; Roelofs 84; W180+

- hardness (W207+) as a plant nutrient source (Barko 82, 86b; Huebert 83; W179); may decrease allelopathy (Wetzel 93) and metal toxicity (Huebert 83; Markrich 94; Miller 80); keep above 20 ppm for fish and 50 ppm for invertebrates in aquaculture ponds (Boyd 95); examples of soft, moderate, and hardwater have 58, 115, and 230 mg/l of CaCO₃ (Winner 86); quantitative scale for (**Adey 91**); 1 dGH = 7.1 ppm Ca (DLW 2021)
- ions: competition for sites on nutrient uptake carriers (Glass 89); especially Ca and divalent metals (Markrich 94)

measurement of CO2, Fe, phenols, Zn, and phosphate- Greenberg 92; Serrano 92 mechanisms that determine chemistry of natural waters- **Gibbs 70**

- moderately hardwater, description of- pH = 7.2-8.2; conductivity = 230-320 umhos/cm2; alkalinity = 46-70 pp as CaCO₃; hardness = 90-140 ppm as CaCO₃ (Hall 91)
- movement, high flow rates inhibit plant (Barko 86b; Madsen 83) and alga PS (**Ghosh 94**); circulation required for ammonium uptake (Porath 82) and possibly bicarbonate uptake (Sand-Jensen 83)
- nutrient uptake (Sutcliffe 81) and plant growth (Bowes 87, 89; **Grise 86**; Overath 91; Roelofs 84; Titus 90)
- osmolarity (Elakovich 91); effect on seagrasses (Hellblom 99)
- pH (W208+) reactions that change pH (Spotte 79)
- phenols from degradation of plant matter (Buikema 79; Wetzel 93) make up only a small part of DOC (Thurman 85)

quality standards & current levels of contamination, hardness, alkalinity- van der Leeden 90

rain water, ionic composition of- Cushing 91; Gibbs 90

reactions that change pH- Spotte 79

salinity: salinity from NaCl due to both ionic toxicity and pure osmotic stress via PEG (polyethylene glycol) (**Iida 06**) *See also*, 'Aquatic Plants: salinity'

saltwater Instant Ocean, mineral composition of-Trieff 80

- seawater is 3.5% salt and a density of 1.028 g/ml at 4C (WW 12,185); Na/K ratio is 28, Cl/carbonate is 137, Cl/sulfate is 7 (Stappen 02); seawater contains10.8 g/l Na and 0.4 g/l K (for a 27:1 ratio)
- (Bowen 79); "Instant Ocean"; contains 10.2 g/l Na and 0.370 g/l K (for a 2:1 ratio (**Trieff 80**) softwater, composition of- Hutchinson 86; **Kasselman 03**; Welsh 93
- turbidity of sediment suspension in water can be reduced with alum, calcium, humus, or magnesium-Boyd 95

Zn (Zinc)-

analysis for- Greenberg 92

bacterial removal of Zn from water by SRB- Labrenz 00

binding to DOC, EDTA, FeOH (Bingham 86; Bisson 92; Brand 83; Kirk 95; Pagenkopf 86; W315;

Wild 88), root iron plaque (Otte 89), and sulfides (Labrenz 00)

composition of plant tissue (Bingham 86; Marquenie 79; **Wehr 87**); and enzyme carbonic anhydrase (Nieboer 80)

deficiencies common in tropical soils (Davies 97) and due to sulfide formation in some sediments

(Bingham 86; Ponnamperuma 81; Reddy 77)

deficiency symptoms- Shkolnik 84; Wild 88

- excretion of Zn by animals mainly in the feces- Ishihara 86
- Fe competes with Zn uptake in plants (Bingham 86; Lindsay 84; Sauchelli 69; Wild 88) and fish (Wekell 86)

free metal only is biologically active- Bingham 86; Brand 83; Kirk 95

malic acid binding within plant prevents Zn toxicity- Nieboer 80

peat moss removes Zn from water very effectively- Spiniti 95
Redox, effect on availability- Beckwith 75; Bingham 86; Reddy 77
root oxygenation of sediment, acidity, effect on availability- Kirk 95
swamp levels fairly high- Kirschner 92
toxicity (Bennet 71; Bingham 86; Sauchelli 69; Marquenie 79; Wild 88) LD50 to adult brine shrimp and fish (Trieff 80) and brine shrimp nauplii (MacRae 91)
uptake (Marquenie 79; Sauchelli 69; Wild 88) is passive, affected by temperature and plant maturity (Shkolnik 84)

ABBREVIATIONS

ADH- alcohol dehydrogenase enzyme AOA- archaea ammonia oxidizers AOB- ammonia oxidizing bacteria AOC- assimilabile organic carbon B- blue light BBA- black beard algae, a red alga BDOC- biodegradable dissolved organic carbon CAOB- comammox ammonia oxidizing bacteria CCM- CO2 concentrating mechanism (See Bowes 1993) CEC- cation exchange capacity CF- Cytophaga-Flavobacteria CH- carbohydrates CO2- carbon dioxide; Γ - symbol for CO2 compensation point (where CO2 fixation = CO2 loss due to respiration) DAP (dissimilatory ammonium production)- bacterial reduction of nitrates to ammonium DGGE- denaturing gradient gel electrophoresis DIC- dissolved inorganic carbon (CO2, bicarbonate, carbonate) DNRA- dissimilatory nitrate reduction to ammonium DOC- dissolved organic carbon (same as DOM) DON- dissolved organic nitrogen DT-population doubling time EM- environmental mycobacteria EPS- exopolysaccharides See under 'Biofilms' and 'Bacteria' FAMS- floating aquatic macrophytes FISH- fluorescent in situ hybridization See under "Bacteria" FR- far red light, 730 nm G- green light GFP- green fluorescent protein HS- humic substances HUFA- highly unsaturated fatty acids **IR-** infrared LC₅₀- 'lethal concentration of toxicant' is the ppm conc that kills 50% of organisms within a specified time period MB- mycobacteriosis mulm, fish See under 'Sediment:organic matter' and 'Biofilms: floc'

N- Nester's textbook *Microbiology*. A Human Perspective (2007) NO- nitric oxide NOB- nitrite oxidizing bacteria NR- nitrate reductase enzyme of plants PAH- polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons PAL- phenylalanine ammonia lyase, diverts phenylalanine from synthesis of proteins to allelochemicals PAO- polyphosphate-accumulating organisms PAR- photosynthetically active radiation PEPcase- phosphoenolpyruvate carboxylase- C4 type metabolism & refixation of CO2 POC- particulate organic carbon See also 'Biofilms: floc' PS- photosynthesis R- red light, 660 nm R/Q- respiratory quotient RAS- recirculating aquaculture system (aquaculture biofilters) Raven- author of textbook The Biology of Plants (1992) RBC- red blood cells ROL- root oxygen release RUBISCO- ribulose bisphosphate carboxylase/oxygenase SA- surface area SAMs- submersed aquatic macrophytes SEM- scanning electron microscope SRB- Sulfate-reducing bacteria W- Wetzel's second edition of Limnology published in 1983

WW- Wetzel's third edition of Limnology published in 2001

REFERENCES

Α

Abrol YP. 1990. Nitrogen in Higher Plants. John Wiley & Sons (New York), pp 57-59.

- Abu-Rezq TS et al. 2010. Optimum culture conditions for the locally isolated Dunaliella salina. J Algal Biomass Utilization 1:12-19
- Ackerman PA, Wicks BJ, Iwama GK and Randall DJ. 2006. Low levels of environmental ammonia increase susceptibility to disease in Chinook salmon smolts. Physiol Biochem Zoology 72: 695-707.
- Adamec L. 1993. Rapid inhibition of HCO₃⁻ use by high concentration of free CO₂ in *Elodea canadensis*. Aquatic Botany 45: 311-324.
- Adekambi T *et al.* 2006. Survival of environmental mycobacteria in *Acanthamoeba polyphaga*. Appl Environ Microbiol 72: 5974-5981.
- Adewolu, MA, Akintola SL and Akinwunmi OO. 2009. Growth performance and survival of hybrid African catfish larvae (*Clarias gariepinus X Heterobranchus bidorsalis*) fed on different diets. The Zoologist 7: 45-51.
- Adey WH and Goertemiller T. 1987. Coral reef algal turfs: master producers in nutrient poor seas. Phycologia 26: 374-386.

Adey WH and Loveland K. 1991. Dynamic Aquaria. Building Living Ecosystems. Academic Press (New York).

- Adey WH and Loveland K. 1998. Dynamic Aquaria. Building Living Ecosystems. 2nd edition. Academic Press (New York).
- Adolph KW and Haselkorn R. 1971. Isolation and characterization of a virus infecting the Blue-Green alga *Nostoc muscorum*. Virology 46: 200-208.

- Agami M and Reddy KR. 1990. Competition for space between *Eichhnornia crassipes* (Mart.) Solm and *Pistia stratiotes* L. cultured in nutrient-enriched water. Aq. Bot. 38: 195-208.
- Agami M and Waisel Y. 1985. Inter-relationships between *Najas marina* L. and three other species of aquatic macrophytes. Hydrobiologia 126: 169-173.
- Aiken SG and Picard RR. 1980. The influence of substrate on the growth and morphology of *Myriophyllum exalbescens* and *Myriophyllum spicatum*. Can. J. Bot. 58: 1111-1118.
- Al-Ajeel S....JD Neufeld. 2022. Ammonia-oxidizing archaea and complete ammonia-oxidizing *Nitrospira* in water treatment systems. *Water Research X* 15: 100131 (11 pp)
- Alber M and Valiela I. 1994. Production of microbial organic aggregates from macrophyte-derived dissolved organic material. Limnol. Oceanogr. 39: 37-50.
- Alema S. 1984. Calcium and brain proteins. In: Sigel H (ed), Metal Ions in Biological Systems (Vol 17). Calcium and Its Role in Biology, pp 275- 317.
- Ali G, Purohit M, Saba, Iqbal M, and Srivastava PS. 1997. Morphogenic response and isozymes of *Bacopa monniera* (L.) Wettst cultures grown under salt stress. Phytomorphology 47: 97-106.
- Aliotta G, Greca MD, Monaco P, Pinto G, Pollio A, and Previtera L. 1990. In vitro algal growth inhibition by phytotoxins of *Typha latifolia* L. J. Chem. Ecol. 16: 2637-2646.
- Aliotta G, Molinaro A, Monaco P, Pinto G, and Previtera L. 1992. Three biologically active phenylpropanoid glucosides from *Myriophyllum verticillatum*. Phytochemistry 31: 109-111.
- Aliotta G, Monaco P, Pinto G, Pollio A, and Previtera L. 1991. Potential allelochemicals from *Pistia stratiotes* L. J. Chem. Ecol. 17: 2223-2234.
- Allen ED and Spence DHN. 1981. The differential ability of aquatic plants to utilize the inorganic carbon supply in fresh waters. New Phytol. 87: 269-283.
- Allen HL. 1971. Primary productivity, chemo-organotrophy, and nutritional interactions of epiphytic algae and bacteria on macrophytes in the littoral of the lake. Ecol. Monographs 41: 97-127.
- Allen HL. 1972. Phytoplankton photosynthesis, micronutrient interactions, and inorganic carbon availability in a softwater Vermont lake. In: Likens GE (Ed.), Nutrients and Eutrophication: The Limiting Nutrient Controversy. Special Symposium, Am. Soc. Limnol. Oceanogr. 1:63-83.
- Alsaadawi IS. 1992. Allelopathic research activity in Iraq. In: Rizvi SJH and Rizvi V, Allelopathy, Basic and Applied Aspects, Chapman and Hall (New York), pp. 251-269.
- Amano, Takashi. 1994. Nature Aquarium World. TFH Publications (Neptune City, NJ), 192 pp.
- American Water Works Assoc. 1984. Introduction to Water Treatment (vol. 2): Principles & Practice of Water Supply Operations. Am. Water Works Assoc. (Denver CO), 381 pp.
- Amundesen CC and Brenkert AL. 1982. Plant-Substrate Interactions and Below Substrate Biomass Dynamics: A Continuation of Studies Concerning Potential Restriction of the Introduced Aquatic Weed *Myriophyllum spicatum* L. Water Resources Research Center, Univ. of Tennessee (Knoxville TN), 63 pp. (PB8 3 191841)
- Anderson DM 1994. Red tides. Scientific American, August 1994.
- Anderson MA and Morel FMM. 1982. The influence of aqueous iron chemistry on the uptake of iron by the coastal diatom *Thalassiosira weissflogii*. Limnol. Oceanogr. 27: 789-813.
- Andersson G, Fleischer S, and Graneli W. 1978. Influence of acidification on decomposition processes in lake sediment. Verh. Int. Ver Limnol. 20: 802-807.
- Andrews JW, Murai T, and Campbell C. 1973. Effects of dietary calcium and phosphorus on growth, food conversion, bone ash and hematocrit levels of catfish. J. Nutrition 103: 766-771.
- Angenent LT *et al.* 2005. Molecular identification of potential pathogens in water and air of a hospital therapy pool. Proc Natl Acad Sci 102: 4860–4865.
- Angle JC et al. 2017. Methanogenesis in oxygenated soils is a substantial fraction of wetland methane emissions. Nature Communications 8: 1567 (9 pp).
- Anthonisen AC, Loehr RC, Prakasam TBS, and Srinath EG. 1976. Inhibition of nitrification by ammonia and nitrous acid. J. Water Pollution Control Fed. Proc. 48: 835-852.

- Armstrong J and Armstrong W. 1991b. A convective through-flow of gases in *Phragmites australis* (Cav.) Trin. ex Steud. Aq. Bot. 39: 75-88.
- Armstrong W, Justin SHFW, Beckett PM, and Lythe S. 1991a. Root adaptation to soil waterlogging. Aq. Bot. 39: 57-73.
- Armstrong W. 1979. Aereation in higher plants. Adv. Bot. Res. 7: 225-332.
- Armstrong W. 1975. Waterlogged Soils. In: Etherington JR (Ed.). Environment and Plant Ecology. Wiley (London), p. 181-218.
- Arts GHP, Roelofs JGM, and De Lyon MJH. 1990. Differential tolerances among soft-water macrophyte species to acidification. Can. J. Bot. 68: 2127-2134.
- Ash C. 2002. Earth, Air, Fire, and Water. Science 296: 1055-1077. (Science News articles on environmental microbiology)
- Ashton FM, Di Tomaso JM, and Anderson LWJ. 1985. Spikerush (*Eleocharis* spp.): A source of allelopathics for the control of undesirable aquatic plants. In: Thompson AC. (Ed.). The Chemistry of Allelopathy, ACS Symposium Series 268, pp 401-414.
- Asil SM, Fereidouni AE, Ouraji H and KJ Khalili. 2012. The influence of light (intensity and duration) on the cysts hatching parameters and nauplii growth of *Artemia urmiana* (Günther 1890). World J. Zoology 1:60-64.
- Astrofsky KM, Schrenzel MD, Bullis RA, Smolowitz RM and Fox JG. 2000. Diagnosis and management of atypical *Mycobacterium* spp. Infections in established laboratory Zebrafish (*Brachydanio rerio*) facilities. Comparative Medicine 50: 666-672.
- Attridge TH. 1990. Light and Plant Responses. Edward Arnold Publishers (New York), 148 pp.
- Atz JW. 1952. The balanced aquarium myth. In: Axelrod HR (Ed.). Tropical Fish as a Hobby. McGraw-Hill (New York), pp 215-227.
- Atz JW. 1971. Aquarium Fishes. Viking Press (New York).
- Aubry A, Jarlier V, Escolano S, Truffot-Pernot C and Cambau E. 2000. Antibiotic susceptibility pattern of *Mycobacterium marinum*. Antimicrobial Agents and Chemotherapy 44: 3133-3136.
- Augsten H, Kunz E, and Appenroth K-J. 1988. Photophysiology of turion germination in *Spirodela polyrrhiza* (L.) Schleiden. I. Phytochrome-mediated responses of light- and dark-grown turions. J. Plant Physiol. 132: 90-93.
- Austin B and Allen DA. 1982. Microbiology of laboratory-hatched brine shrimp (*Artemia*). Aquaculture 26: 369-383.
- Austin, B and Austin DA. 1993. Bacterial fish pathogens. Disease in farmed and wild fish (Second Edition). Ellis Horwood Publisher (NY, NY), p. 48.
- Azam F. 1998. Microbial control of oceanic carbon flux: The plot thickens. Science 280: 694-696.

В

- Baboli MJ *et al.* 2012. The potential dried decapsulated *Artemia urmiana* cysts on growth and survival guppy fry, *Poecilia reticulata*. Int. J Agr Crop Sci 4: 1391-1393.
- Bachmann RW, Horsburgh CA, Hoyer MV, Mataraza LK and Canfield Jr DE. 2002. Relations between trophic state indicators and plant biomass in Florida lakes. Hydrobiologia 470: 219-234.
- Bailey SE, Olin TJ, Bricka RM, and Adrian DD. 1999. A review of potentially low-cost sorbents for heavy metals. Water Res. 33: 2469-2479.
- Balls H, Moss B, and Irvine K. 1989. The loss of submerged plants with eutrophication. I. Experimental design, water chemistry, aquatic plant and phytoplankton biomass in experiments carried out in ponds in the Norfolk Broadland. Freshwater Biol. 22:71-87.
- Bardouniotis E, Ceri H. and Olson ME. 2003. Biofilm formation and biocide susceptibility testing of *Mycobacterium fortuitum* and *Mycobacterium marinum*. Current Microbiology 46: 28-32.
- Barreto RE and Volpato GL. 2006. Stress responses of the fish Nile tilapia subjected to electroshock and social stressors. Brazilian J Med Biol Res 39: 1605-1612.

Barker R. 1997. And the Waters Turned to Blood. Simon & Schuster (New York), 346 pp.

- Barko JW and Smart RM. 1981a. Comparative influences of light and temperature on the growth and metabolism of selected submersed freshwater macrophytes. Ecological Monographs 51: 219-235.
- Barko JW and Smart RM. 1981b. Sediment-based nutrition of submersed macrophytes. Aq. Bot. 10: 339-352.
- Barko JW and Smart RM. 1983b. Effects of organic matter additions to sediment on the growth of aquatic plants. J. Ecol. 71: 161-175.
- Barko JW and Smart RM. 1986a. Sediment-related mechanisms of growth limitation in submersed macrophytes. Ecology 67: 1328-1340.
- Barko JW, Adams MS, and Clesceri NL. 1986b. Environmental factors and their consideration in the management of submersed aquatic vegetation: A review. J. Aquat. Plant Manage. 24: 1-10.
- Barko JW, Gunnison D, and Carpenter SR. 1991a. Sediment interactions with submersed macrophyte growth and community dynamics. Aq. Bot 41: 41-65.
- Barko JW, Smart RM, and McFarland DG. 1991b. Interactive effects of environmental conditions on the growth of submersed aquatic macrophytes. J. Freshwater Ecology 6: 199-207.
- Barko JW, Smart RM, McFarland DG, and Chen RL. 1988. Interrelationships between the growth of *Hydrilla verticllata* (L.F.) Royle and sediment nutrient availability. Aq. Bot. 32: 205-216.
- Barko JW. 1982. Influence of potassium source (sediment vs. open water) and sediment composition on the growth and nutrition of a submersed freshwater macrophyte (*Hydrilla verticillata* (L.F.) Royle). Aq. Bot. 12: 157-172.
- Barko JW. 1983a. The growth of *Myriophyllum spicatum* L. in relation to selected characteristics of sediment and solution. Aq. Bot. 15: 91-103.
- Barko JW. 1983c. Influences of light and temperature on chlorophyll composition in submersed freshwater macrophytes. Aq. Bot. 15: 249-255.
- Barlocher F and Newell SY. 1994. Phenolics and proteins affecting palatability of *Spartina* leaves to the gastropod *Littoraria irrorata*. Marine Ecology 15: 65-75.
- Barr T. 2009. Dry-Start Method. Freshwater and Marine Aquarium (Dec issue), pp 54-61.
- Barr CE, Koh MS and Ryan TE. 1974. NH₃ efflux as a means for measuring H⁺ extrusion in *Nitella*. In: Zimmermann U and Dainty J (eds.). Membrane Transport in Plants. Springer-Verlag (New York), pp. 180-185.
- Barrett PRF, Littlejohn JW and Curnow J. 1999. Long-term algal control in a reservoir using barley straw. Hydrobiologia 415: 309-313.
- Barz W and Koster J. 1981. Turnover and degradation of secondary (natural) products. In: Conn EE (ed.), The Biochemistry of Plants, vol 7, Academic Press (New York), pp. 35-80.
- Basiouny FM, Garrard LA and Haller WT. 1977. Absorption of iron and growth of *Hydrilla verticillata* (L.F.) Royle. Aquatic Botany 3: 349-356.
- Bates JW and Farmer AM. 1990. An experimental study of calcium acquisition and its effects on the calcifuge moss *Pleurozium schreberi*. J. Botany 65: 87-96.
- Baziramakenga R, Leroux GD, and Simard RR. 1995. Effects of benzoic and cinnamic acids on membrane permeability of soybean roots. J. Chem. Ecol. 21: 1271-1285.
- Beck T and Feller U. 1991. Ammonium-stimulated K release from *Lemna minor* L. grown on a medium containing nitrate as N-source. Aq. Bot. 255-266.
- Beckwith, RS, Tiller KG, and Suwadji E. 1975. The effects of flooding on the availability of trace metals to rice in soils of differing organic status. In Nicholas DJD and Egan AR, Trace Elements in Soil-Plants-Animal Systems. Academic Press, Inc. (New York), pp135-141.
- Bedford BL, Bouldin DR, and Beliveau BD. 1991. Net oxygen and carbon-dioxide balances in solutions bathing roots of wetland plants. J. Ecology 79: 943-959.
- Beer S and J. Rehnberg. 1997. The acquisition of inorganic carbon by the seagrass *Zostera marina*. Aq. Bot. 57: 277-283.

- Belas R. 1996. Sensing, response, and adaptation to surfaces: Swarmer cell differentiation and behavior. In: Fletcher M (ed), Bacterial Adhesion, John Wiley (NY), pp 281-331.
- Bell EA. 1981. The physiological role(s) of secondary (Natural) products. In: Conn EE (ed.), The Biochemistry of Plants, vol 7, Academic Press (New York), pp. 1-17.
- Bendix M, Tornbjerg T, and Brix H. 1994. Internal gas transport in *Typha latifolia* L. and *Typha angustifolia* L. 1. Humidity-induced pressurization and convective throughflow. Aq. Bot. 49: 75-89.
- Bengston DA, Beck AD and Simpson KL. 1985. Standardization of the nutrition of fish in aquatic toxicological testing. In: Mackie AM and Bell JG (eds). Nutrition and Feeding in Fish. Academic Press (New York), pp 431-445.
- Bengston DA, Leger P and P Sorgeloos. 1991. Use of *Artemia* as a food source in aquaculture. In: Browne RA, Sorgeloos P and Trotman CNA (Eds.), *Artemia Biology*, CRC Press (Boca Raton, FL), pp.255-285.
- Bennett A and Bogorad L. 1973. Complementary chromatic adaptation in a filamentous blue-green algae. J. Cell Biol. 58: 419- 435.
- Bennett AC. 1971. Toxic effects of aqueous ammonia, copper, zinc, lead, boron, and manganese on root growth. In: Carson EW (ed.). The Plant Root and Its Environment. Univ. Press of Virginia (Charlottesville VA), pp. 670-683.
- Beran V, Matlova L, Dvorska L, Svastova P and Pavlik I. 2006. Distribution of mycobacteria in clinically healthy ornamental fish and their aquarium environment. J. Fish Diseases 29: 383-393.
- Berenbaum MR. 1995. The chemistry of defense: Theory and practice. Proc. Natl. Aca. Sci. 92: 2-8.
- Bernhart FW and Tomarelli RM. 1966. A salt mixture supplying the National Research Council estimates of the mineral requirements of the rat. J. Nutrition 89: 495-500.
- Berry JA and Downton WJS. 1982. Environmental regulation of photosynthesis. In: Govindjee (ed), Photosynthesis. Vol II. Development, Carbon Metabolism, and Plant Productivity, Academic Press (New York), pp ~289-~294.
- Bertani A, Brambilla I, and Reggiani R. 1987. Effect of exogenous nitrate on anaerobic root metabolism. In: Crawford RMM (ed), Plant Life in Aquatic and Amphibious Habitats. Blackwell Scientific Publications (Boston, MA), pp 255-264.
- Best EPH. 1980. Effects of nitrogen on the growth and nitrogenous compounds of *Ceratophyllum demersum*. Aq. Bot. 8: 197-206.
- Best MD and Mantai KE. 1978. Growth of *Myriophyllum*: Sediment or lake water as the source of nitrogen and phosphorus. Ecology 59: 1075-1080.
- Bhatty MA et al. 2000. *Mycobacterium marinum* hand infection: case reports and review of literature. Br J Plastic Surgery 53: 161-165.
- Bienfait HF and van der Mark F. 1983. Phytoferritin and its role in iron metaboloism. In: Robb DA and Pierpoint WS (eds.). Metals and Micronutrients: Uptake and Utilization by Plants. Academic Press (New York), pp. 111-123.
- Biernacki M and Lovett-Doust J. 1997. *Vallisneria americana* (Hydrocharitaceae) as a biomonitor of aquatic ecosystems: comparison of cloned genotypes. Am. J. Botany 84: 1743-1751.
- Biesinger KE and Stokes GN. 1986. Effects of synthetic polyelectrolytes on selected aquatic organisms. Water Pollution Control Federation 58: 207-213.
- Bingham FT, Peryea FJ, and Jarrell WM. 1986. Metal toxicity to agricultural crops. In: Sigel H (ed), Metal Ions in Biological Systems (Vol 20). Concepts on Metal Ion Toxicity, pp 119-145.
- Bird KT, Johnson JR and J Jewett-Smith. 1998. In vitro culture of the seagrass Halophila decipiens. Aquatic Botany 60: 377-387.
- Birmingham BC and Colman B. 1979. Measurement of carbon dioxide compensation points of freshwater algae. Plant Physiol 64: 892-895.
- Bisson S, Blaise C, and Bermingham N. 1992. Assessment of the inorganic bioaccumulation potential of aqueous samples with two algal bioassays. In: Nriagu JO and Lakshminarayana JSS (ed), Aquatic Toxicology and Water Quality Management, vol 22. John Wiley & Sons (New York), pp. 205-215.

Bjerselius R, Winberg S, Winberg Y, and Zeipel K. 1993. Ca²⁺ protects olfactory receptor function against Cu(II) toxicity in Atlantic salmon. Aquatic Toxicol. 25: 125-138.

Bl

- Bland CS et al. 2005. Mycobacterial ecology of the Rio Grande. Appl Environ Microbiol 71: 5719-5727.
- Blom CWPM, Bogemann GM, Laan P, van der Sman AJM, van de Steeg HM, and Voesenek LACJ. 1990. Adaptations to flooding in plants from river areas. Aq. Bot 38: 29-47.
- Blotnick JR, Rho J and Gunner HB. 1980. Ecological characteristics of the rhisosphere microflora of *Myriophyllum heterophyllum*. J. Envir. Qual. 9: 207-210.
- Bodkin PC, Spence DHN and Weeks DC. 1980. Photoreversible control of heterophylly in *Hippuris vulgaris* L. New Phytologist 84: 533- 542.
- Boedeltje G, Smolders AJP and JGM Roelofs. 2005. Combined effects of water column nitrate enrichment, sediment type and irradiance on growth and foliar nutrient concentrations of *Potamogeton alpinus*. Freshwater Biology 50: 1537-1547.
- Boeger RT. 1992. The influence of substratum and water velocity on growth of *Ranunculus aquatilis* L. (Ranunculaceae). Aq. Bot. 42: 351-359.
- Bone CE. 1996. Biology of Fishes. Second Edition. Saunders College Publishing (New York), 750 pp.
- Bond DR, Holmes DE, Tender LM, and Lovley DR. 2002 Electrode-reducing microorganisms that harvest energy from marine sediments. Science: 295: 483+.
- Boon PI, Moriarty DJW, and Saffigna PG. 1986b. rates of ammonium turnover and the role of amino-acid deamination in seagrass (*Zostera caricorni*) beds of Moreton Bay Australia. Mar. Biol. 21: 259-268.
- Boon PI, Moriary DJW, and Saffigna PG. 1986a. Nitrate metabolism in sediments from seagrass (*Zostera capicorni*) beds of Moreton Bay, Australia. Mar. Biol. 21: 269-275.
- Boos S et al. 1995. Effectiveness of oral rifampicin against mycobacteriosis in tropical fish. Berl Munch Tierarztl Wochenschr. 108: 253-255.
- Borgmann U. 1983. Metal speciation and toxicity of free metal ions to aquatic biota. In: Nriagu JO. Aquatic Toxicology. Wiley-Interscience Publication (New York), pp 47-72.
- Borum J. 1987. Dynamics of epiphyton on eelgrass (*Zostera marina* L.) leaves: Relative roles of algal growth, herbivory, and substratum turnover. Limnol. Oceanogr. 32: 986-992.
- Bossuyt E and Sorgeloos P. 1980. Technological aspects of the batch culturing of *Artemia* in high density. In: Persoone G, Sorgeloos P, Roels O and Jaspers E (Eds). The Brine Shrimp *Artemia* (Vol 2). Universa Press (Wetteren, Belguim), pp 55-82.
- Boston HL, Adams MS, and Madsen JD. 1989. Photosynthetic strategies and productivity in aquatic systems. Aq. Bot 34: 27-57.
- Botts PS, Lawrence JM, Witz BW, and Kovach CW. 1990. Plasticity in morphology, proximate composition, and energy content of *Hygrophila polysperma* (Roxb.) Anders. Aq. Bot. 36: 207-214.
- Bowen HJM. 1979. Environmental Chemistry of the Elements. Academic Press (New York).
- Bowen, ST, Moise HW, Waring G and Poon M-C. 1976. The hemoglobins of *Artemia salina*–III. Characterization. Comp. Biochem. Physiol. 55B: pp 99-103.
- Bowes G and Salvucci ME. 1989. Plasticity in the photosynthetic carbon metabolism of submersed aquatic macrophytes. Aq. Bot. 34: 233-266.
- Bowes G. 1987. Aquatic plant photosynthesis: Strategies that enhance carbon gain. In: Crawford RMM (ed), Plant Life in Aquatic and Amphibious Habitats. Blackwell Scientific Publications (Boston, MA), pp. 79-98.
- Bowes G. 1991. Growth at elevated CO₂: photosynthetic responses mediated through Rubisco. Plant, Cell and Environment 14: 795-806.
- Bowes G. 1993. Facing the inevitable: plants and increasing atmospheric CO₂. Annu. Rev. Plant Physiol. Plant Mol. Biol. 44: 309-332.

- Boyd CE. 1968. Fresh-water plants: a potential source of protein. Economic Bot. 22: 359-368.
- Boyd, CE. 1995. Bottom Soils, Sediment, and Pond Aquaculture. Chapman & Hall (New York), 348 pp.
- Bozzetta E, Prearo M, Penati V, Pungkachonboon T and Ghittino C. 1995. Isolation and typing of mycobacteria in cultured tropical fish. Boll. Soc. Ital. Patol. Ittica 7: 13-21.
- Brand LE, Sunda WG, and Guillard RRL. 1983. Limitation of marine phytoplankton reproductive rates by zinc, managanese, and iron. Limnol. Oceanogr. 28: 1182-1198.
- Bressler K and Ron B. 2004. Effect of anesthetics on stess and the innate immune system of gilthead seabream (*Sparus aurata*). Israeli J Aquaculture 56: 5-13.
- Brewbaker JK and Kwack BH. 1963. The essential role of calcium ion in pollen germination and pollen tube growth. Am J Bot 50: 747-858.
- Brezonik PL. 1972. Nitrogen: Sources and transformations in natural waters. In: Allen HE and Kramer JR (eds.), Nutrients in Natural Waters. Wiley-Interscience Publications (New York), pp. 1-50.
- Brezonik PL. 1994. Chemical Kinetics and Process Dynamics in Aquatic Systems. Lewis Publishers (Ann Arbon MI), pp 688-697.
- Brichard P. 1978. Fishes of Lake Tanganyika. T.F.H. Publications, Inc. (Neptune City, NJ).
- Brinson MM and Davis GJ. 1976. Primary Productivity and Mineral Cycling in Aquatic Macrophyte Communities of the Chowan River, North Carolina. Water Resources Research Institute. University of North Carolina (Chapel Hill, NC).
- Bristow JM and Whitcombe M. 1971. The role of roots in the nutrition of aquatic vascular plants. Amer. J. Bot. 58: 8-13.
- Bristow JM. 1969. The effects of carbon dioxide on the growth and development of amphibious plants. Can. J. Bot. 47: 1803-1807.
- Bristow JM. 1974. Nitrogen fixation in the rhizosphere of freshwater angiosperms. Can. J. Bot. 52: 217-221.
- Brix H. 1990. Uptake and photosynthetic utilization of sediment-derived carbon by *Phragmites australis* (Cav.) Trin. ex Steudel. Aquatic Botany 38: 377-389.
- Brix H, Dyhr-Jensen K and Lorenzen B. 2002. Root-zone acidity and nitrogen source affects *Typha latifolia* L. growth and uptake kinetics of ammonium and nitrate. J Expt Bot 53: 2441-2450.
- Broekaert WF, Terras FRG, Cammue BPA, and Osborn RW. 1995. Plant Defensins: Novel antimicrobial peptides as components of the host defense system. Plant Physiol. 108: 1353-1358.
- Bronmark C. 1990. How do herbivorous freshwater snails affect macrophytes? A comment. Ecology 7: 1212-1215.
- Broussard GW and Ennis DG. 2007. *Mycobacteriium marinum* produces long-term chronic infections in medaka: A new animal model for studying human tuberculosis. Comp Biochem Physiol (Part C): 145:45-54.
- Broussiba S, Resch CM, and Gibson J. 1984. Ammonia uptake and retention in some cyanobacteria. Archiv. Microbiol. 138: 287-292.
- Brouwer H and Murphy T. 1995. Volatile sulfides and their toxicity in freshwater sediments. Environ. Toxicology and Chem. 14: 203-208.
- Brown KS. 1999. Deep green rewrites evolutionary history of plants. Science 285: 990-991.
- Brown PA, Gill SA, and Allen SJ. 2000. Metal removal from wastewater using peat. Water Res. 34: 3907-3916.
- Bruno DW, Griffiths J, Mitchell CG, Wood BP, Fletcher ZJ, Drobniewski FA and Hastings TS. 1998. Pathology attributed to *Mycobacterium chelonae* infection among farmed and laboratory-infected Atlantic salmon *Salmo salar*. Dis Aq Org 33: 101-109.
- Buckley BM and Triska FJ. 1978. Presence and ecological role of nitrogen fixing bacteria associated with wood decay in streams. Verh. Int. Ver Limnol. 20: 1333-1339.
- Buikema AL and McGinniss MJ. 1979. Phenolics in aquatic ecosystems: a selected review of recent literature. Marine Environ. Res. 2: 87-181.
- Bulthuis DA and Woelkerling WJ. 1981. Effects of in situ nitrogen and phosphorus enrichment of the sediments on the seagrass *Heterozostera tasmanica* (Martens ex Aschers) den Hartog in Western Port, Victoria, Australia. J. Exp. Mar. Biol. Ecol. 53: 193-207.

- Burford MA and Longmore AR. 2001. High ammonium production from sediments in hypereutrophic shrimp ponds. Marine Ecol Prog Series 224: 187-195.
- Burkholder JM, Mason KM, and Glasgow Jr HB. 1992. Water-column nitrate enrichment promotes decline of eelgrass Zostera marina: evidence from seasonal mesocosm experiments. Marine Ecology Progress Series 81: 163-178.
- Burkholder JM, Glasgow Jr, HB and Cooke JE. 1994. Comparative effects of water-column nitrate enrichment on eelgrass *Zostera marina*, shoalgrass *Halodule wrightii*, and widgeongrass *Ruppia maritima*. Marine Ecology Progress Series 105: 121-138.
- Burkholder JM, Tomasko DA and BW Touchette. 2007. Seagrasses and eutrophication. J Expt Marine Biology and Ecology 350: 46-72.
- Burns NM and Ross C. 1972. Oxygen-nutrient relationships within the Central Basin of Lake Erie. In: Allen HE and Kramer JR (eds.), Nutrients in Natural Waters. Wiley-Interscience Publications (New York), pp. 193-250.
- Burrell PC, Phalen CM and Hovanec TA. 2001. Identification of bacteria responsible for ammonia oxidation in freshwater aquariua. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 67: 5791-5800.
- Burton RE. 1978. Ecological system and method. U.S. Patent 4,086,161.
- Bush AO, Lafferty KD, Lotz JM, and AW Shostak. 1997. Parasitology meets ecology on its own terms: Margolis *et al.* revisited. *J. Parasitology* 83: 575-583.
- Bush DS. 1995. Calcium regulation in plant cells and its role in signaling. Annu. Rev. Plant Physiol. Plant Mol. Biol. 46: 95-122.

С

- Caffrey JM and Kemp WM. 1991. Seasonal and spatial patterns of oxygen production, respiration and root-rhizome release in *Potamogeton perfoliatus* L. and *Zostera marina* L. Aq. Bot. 40: 109-128.
- Caffrey JM and Kemp WM. 1992. Influence of the submersed plant, *Potamogeton perfoliatus*, on nitrogen cycling in estuarine sediments. Limnol. Oceanogr. 37: 1483-1495.
- Cai Peng *et al.* 2019. Soil biofilms: microbial interactions, challenges, and advanced techniques for *ex-situ* characterization. *Soil Ecol Lett.* https://doi.org/10.1007/s42832-019-0017-7
- Calhoun A and King GM. 1997. Regulation of root-associated methanotrophy by oxygen availability in the rhizosphere of two aquatic macrophytes. Applied Environ. Microbiol. 63: 3051-3058.
- Cangelosi J *et al.* 2004. Biology of waterborne pathogenic mycobacteria. In: Pedley S *et al* (eds). *Pathogenic Mycobacteria in Water*. IWA Publishing (London) for the World Health Organization, pp. 39-54.
- Capone DG. 1982. Nitrogen fixation (acetylene reduction) by rhizosphere sediments of the eelgrass *Zostera marina*. Mar. Ecol. Prog. Series 10: 67-75.
- Carignan R and Kalff J. 1980. Phosphorus sources for aquatic weeds: Water or sediments? Science 207: 987-988.
- Carignan R. 1985. Nutrient dynamics in a littoral sediment colonized by the submersed macrophyte *Myriophyllum spicatum*. Can J. Fish. Aquat. Sci. 42: 1303-1311.
- Carmichael WW. 1994. The toxins of cyanobacteria. Scientific American, Jan 1994.
- Carpenter PL. 1977. Microbiology (Fourth Ed.) WB Saunders Co. (Philadelphia, PA)
- Carpenter RC. 1985. Relationships between primary production and irradiance in coral reef algal communities. Limnol. Oceanogr. 30: 784-793.
- Carpenter SR, Elser JJ, and Olson KM. 1983. Effects of roots of *Myriophyllum verticillatum* L. on sediment redox conditions. Aq. Bot. 17: 243-249.
- Carver TLW, Zeyen RJ, Robbins MP, Vance CP, and Boyles DA. 1994. Suppression of host cinnamyl alcohol dehydrogenase and phenylalanine ammonia lyase increases oat epidermal cell susceptibility to powdery mildew penetration. Physiological and Molecular Plant Pathology 44: 243-259.
- Cary GA, McMahon JA, and Kuc WJ. 1987. The effect of suspended solids and naturally occurring dissolved organics in reducing the acute toxicities of cationic polyelectrolytes to aquatic organisms. Environmental Toxicology and Chemistry 6: 469-474.

- Cary PR and Weerts PGJ. 1983. Growth of *Salvinia molesta* as affected by water temperature and nutrition. 1. Effects of nitrogen level and nitrogen compounds. Aq. Bot. 16: 163-172.
- Catling PM, Freedman B, Stewart C, Kerekes JJ, and Lefkovitch LP. 1986. Aquatic plants of acid lakes in Kejimkujik National Park, Nova Scotia; floristic composition and relation to water chemistry. Can. J. Bot 64: 724-729.
- Center TD and Wright AD. 1991. Age and phytochemical composition of waterhyacinth (Pontederiaceae) leaves determine their acceptability to *Neochetina eichhorniae* (Coleopetera: Curculionidae). Environ. Entomol. 20: 323-334.
- Chakraborty M and Kushari D. 1986. Influence of domestic sewage on growth and nitrogen fixation of *Azolla pinnata* R. Br. Aq. Bot 24: 61-68.
- Chalker BE, Dunlap WE and Oliver JK. 1983. Bathymetric adaptations of reef-building corals at Davies Reef, Great Barrier Reef, Australia. II. Light saturation curves for photosynthesis and respiration. J. Exp. Mar. Biol. Ecol. 73: 37-56.
- Chambers PA, Prepas EE, Bothwell ML, and Hamilton HR. 1989. Roots versus shoots in nutrient uptake by aquatic macrophytes in flowing waters. Can. J. Fish. Aquat. Sci. 46: 435-439.
- Chambers PA, Spence DHN, and Weeks DC. 1985. Photocontrol of turion formation by *Potamogeton crispus* L. in the laboratory and natural water. New Phytol. 99: 183-194.
- Chan K et al. 2002. Complex patterns of *Mycobacterium marinum* gene expression during long-term granulomatuous infection. PNAS 99: 3920-3925.
- Charmantier G and M Charmantier-Daures. 2001. Ontogeny of osmoregulationin in crustaceans: The embryonic phase. *Amer. Zool.* 41: 1078-1089.
- Charpentier S, Garnier J, and Flaugnatti R. 1987. Toxicity and bioaccumulation of cadmium in experimental cultures of duckweed, *Lemna polyrrhiza* L. Bull. Environ. Contam. Toxicol. 38: 1055-1061.
- Chen RL and Barko JW. 1988. Effects of freshwater macrophytes on sediment chemistry. J. Freshwatr Ecol. 4: 279-289.
- Chen, J-C, Chen K-J, and Liao J-M. 1989. Joint action of ammonia and nitrite on *Artemia* nauplii. *Aquaculture* 77: 329-336.
- Chen, S-C, Adams A and Richards RH. 1997. Extracellular products from *Mycobacterium* spp. in fish. J. Fish Dis 20: 19-25.
- Cheng TS and Riemer DN. 1989. Characterization of allelochemicals in American eelgrass. J. Aquatic Pl. Managem. 27: 84-89.
- Chisholm SW and Morel FMM. 1991. Preface. Limnol. Oceanogr. 36 (8), front pages.
- Chou C-H. 1987. Allelopathy in subtropical vegetation and soils in Taiwan. In: Waller GR (ed), ACS Symposium Series 330 (American Chemical Society, Washington DC), pp 102-117.
- Christensen FR, Kristensen GH, and Jansen JLC. 1989. Biofilm structure-an important and neglected parameter in waste water treatment. Water Science & Technol. 21:805-814.
- Christensen KK and Wigand C. 1998. Formation of root plaques and their influence on tissue phosphorus content in *Lobelia dortmanna*. Aquatic Botany 61: 111-122.
- Christensen PB, Rysgaard S, Sloth NP, Dalsgaard T and Schwaerter S. 2000. Sediment mineralization, nutrient fluxes, denitrification and dissimilatory nitrate reduction to ammonium in an estuarine fjord with sea cage trout farms. Aquatic Microbial Ecol 21: 73-84.
- Christiansen R, Skovmand Friis NF, and Sondegaard M. 1985. Leaf production and nitrogen and phosphorus tissue content of *Littorella uniflora* (L.) Aschers, in relation to nitrogen and phosphorus enrichment of the sediment in oligotrophic Lake Hampen, Denmark. Aq. Bot 23: 1-11.
- Christianson-Heiska I...and Isomaa B. 2004. Effects of the wood extractive betulinol and 17β-oestradiol on reproduction in zebrafish, *Danio rerio* (Hamilton)- complications due to a bacterial infection. J. Fish Dis 27: 267-276.
- Cirillo JD *et al.* 1997. Interaction of *Mycobacterium avium* with environmental amoebae enhances virulence. Infect Immun 65: 3759-3767.

- Clarkson, DT. 1965. Calcium uptake by calcicole and calcifuge species in the genus *Agrostis* L. J. of Ecology 53: 427-435.
- Cohen CK, Fox TC, Garvin DF and Kochian LV. 1998. The role of iron-deficiency stress responses in stimulating heavy-metal transport in plants. Plant Physiol. 116: 1063-1072.
- Cole JJ, Caraco NF, Kling GW, and Kratz TK. 1994. Carbon dioxide supersaturation in the surface waters of lakes. Science 265: 1568-1570.
- Coler RA and Gunner HB. 1969. The rhizosphere of an aquatic plant (Lemna minor). Can. J. Microbiol. 15: 964-966.
- Coley PD, Bryant JP, and Chapin SF. 1985. Resource availability and plant antiherbivore defense. Science 230: 895-899.
- Connell WE and Patrick WH. 1968. Sulfate reduction in soil: Effects of redox potential and pH. Science 159: 86-87.
- Conrad PA and Hepler PK. 1988. The effect of 1,4-dihydropyridines on the initiation and development of gametophore buds in the moss *Funaria*. Plant Physiol. 36: 684-687.
- Conville PS, Andrews JWB and Witebsky FG. 1995. Effect of PANTA on growth of *Mycobacterium kansasii* in BACTEC 12B Medium. J. Clin Microbiol. 33: 2012-2015
- Cooley TN, Dooris PM, and Martin DF. 1980. Aeration as a tool to improve water quality and reduce the growth of *Hydrilla*. Water Research 14: 485-489.
- Cosma CL, Humbert O, and Ramakrishnan L. 2004. Superinfecting mycobacteria home to established tuberculous granulomas. Nature Immunology 5: 828-835.
- Cosma CL *et al.* 2006. *Mycobacterium marinum* Erp is a virulence determinant required for cell wall integrity and intracellular survival. Infect Immun 74: 3125-3133.
- Costerton JW, Cheng KJ, Geesey GG, Ladd TI, Nickel JC, Dasgupta M, and Marrie TJ. 1987. Bacterial biofilms in nature and disease. Ann. Rev. Microbiol. 41:435-464.
- Costerton JW. 1980. Some techniques involved in study of adsorption of microorganisms to surfaces. In: Bitton G and Marshall KC, Adsorption of Microorganisms to Surfaces, John Wiley & Sons (NY), pp 403-425.
- Coulter GW. 1991. Lake Tanganyika and its Life. Oxford University Press (New York), pp 215-218.
- Cowey CB. 1976. Use of synthetic diets and biochemical criteria in the assessment of nutrient requirements of fish. J. Fish Res. Board Can 33: 1040-1045.
- Cowling DW and Lockyer DR. 1981. Increased growth of ryegrass exposed to ammonia. Nature 292: 337-338.
- Cowling SA. 1999. Plants and temperature CO₂ uncoupling. Science: 285: 1500-1501.
- Cox DJ, Bazin MJ, and Gull K. 1980. Distribution of bacteria in a continuous-flow nitrification column. Soil Biol. Biochem. 12: 241-246.
- Crawford DL and Law DK. 1972. Mineral composition of Oregon pellet production formulations. The Progressive Fish-Culturist 34: 126-130.
- Cremazy A, Wood CM et al. 2016. Investigating copper toxicity in the tropical fish cardinal tetra (*Paracheirodon axelrodi*) in natural Amazonian waters: measurements, modeling and reality. Aquatic Toxicol 180: 353-63..
- Cremazy A, Wood CM et al. 2017. Experimentally derived acute and chronic copper Biotic Ligand Models for rainbow trout. Aquatic Toxicol 192: 224-40.
- Creutz CE. 1984. The roles of Ca²⁺ in the regulation and mechanism of exocytosis. In: Sigel H (ed), Metal Ions in Biological Systems (Vol 17). Calcium and Its Role in Biology, pp 319-351.
- Crites RW and Tchobanoglous G. 1992. Nitrogen removal in experimental wetland treatment systems: evidence for the role of aquatic plants (Discussion). Water Environment Research 64: 120.
- Crocetti GR, Hugenholtz P, Bond PL, Schuler A, Keller J, Jenkins D and Blackall LL. 2000. Identification of polyphosphate-accumulating organisms and design of 16S rRNA-directed probes for their detection and quantitation. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 66: 1175-1182.
- Culotta E. 1994. UV-B effects: Bad for insect larvae means good for algae. Science 265: 30.
- Cuny P, Serve L, Jupin H, and Boudouresque CF. 1995. Water soluble phenolic compounds of the marine phanerogam *Posidonia oceanica* in a Mediterranean area colonized by the introduced chlorphyte *Caulerpa taxifolia*. Aquatic Botany 52: 237-242.

- d'Agostino A. 1980. Physiology and nutrition of *Artemia*. In: Persoone G, Sorgeloos P, Roels O and Jaspers E (Eds). The Brine Shrimp *Artemia* (Vol 2). Universa Press (Wetteren, Belguim), pp 55-82.
- Daalsgaard T and Bak F. 1994. Nitrate reduction in a sulfate-reducing bacterium, *Desulfovibrio desulfuricans*, isolated from rice paddy soil: sulfide inhibition, kinetics, and regulation. App. Environ. Microb. 60: 291-297.
- Dacey JWH and Klug MJ. 1982. Tracer studies of gas circulation in *Nuphar*: ¹⁸O₂ and ¹⁴CO₂ transport. Physiol. Plant 56: 361-366.
- Dacey JWH. 1980. Internal winds in water lilies: An adaptation for life in anaerobic sediments. Science 210: 1017-1019.
- Dacey JWH. 1987. Knudsen-transitional flow and gas pressurization in leaves of *Nelumbo*. Plant Physiol. 85: 199-203.
- Dailloux M, Laurain C, Weber M and Haretmann PH. 1999. Water and Nontuberculous Mycobacteria. Water Research 33: 2219-2228.
- Dailloux M, Mariotti P and Laurain C. 1996. Mycobacteria in the Lorraine region, France. Medecine et Maladies Infectieuses 26: 761-764.
- Dalsgaard T and Revsbech NP. 1992. Regulating factors of denitrification in trickling filter biofilms as measured with the oxygen/nitrous oxide microsensor. FEMS Microbiol. Ecol. 101: 151-164.
- Dalton HM, Poulsen LK, Halasz P, Angles ML, Goodman AE, and Marshall KC. 1994. Substratum-induced morphological changes in a marine bacterium and their relevance to biofilm structure. J. Bacteriol. 176: 6900-6906.
- Dao TH. 1987. Sorption and mineralization of plant phenolic acids in soil. In: Waller GR (ed), ACS Symposium Series 330 (American Chemical Society, Washington DC), pp 358-370.
- Darwin KH, Ehrt S, Gutierrez-Ramos J-C, Weich N, and Nathan CF. 2003. The proteasome of *Mycobacterium tuberculosis* is required for resistance to nitric oxide. Science 302: 1963-1966.
- Davelaar D. 1982. Manganese: A necessary micronutrient to enhance biological phosphorus removal. Water Science & Technology 21: 1711-1716.
- Davies BE. 1997. Deficiencies and toxicities of trace elements and micronutrients in tropical soils: Limitations of knowledge and future research needs. Environ. Toxic. Chem. 16: 75-83.
- Davies DG, Chakrabarty AM and Geesey GG. 1993. Exopolysaccaride production in biofilms: Substratum activation of alginate gene expression by *Pseudomonas aeruginosa*. Applied Environ. Microbiol. 59: 1181-1186.
- Davies DG, Parsek MR, Pearson JP, Iglewski BH, Costerton JW and Greenberg EP. 1998. The involvement of cellto-cell signals in the development of a bacterial biofilm Science 280: 295-298.
- Davis JM, Clay H, Lewis JL, Ghori N, Herbomel P and Ramakrishnan L. 2002. Real-time visualization of *Mycobacterium*-macrophage interactions leading to initiation of granuloma formation in zebrafish embryos. Immunity 17: 693-702.
- Davis KB, Griffin BR and Gray WL. 2002. Effect of handling stress on susceptibility of channel catfish *Ictalurus punctatus* to *Ichthyophthirius multifiliis* and channel catfish virus infection. Aquaculture 214: 55-66.
- Davis KB, Griffin BR and Gray WL. 2003. Effect of dietary cortisol on resistance of channel catfish to *Ichthyophthirius multifiliis* and channel catfish virus disease. Aquaculture 218: 121-130.
- D'Costa VM, McGrann KM, Hughes DW and Wright GD. 2006. Sampling antibiotic resistance resistome. Science 311: 374- 377.
- de Groote MA. 2004a. Pulmonary infection in non-HIV infected individuals. In: Pedley S et al (eds). Pathogenic Mycobacteria in Water. IWA Publishing (London, UK) for the World Health Organization, pp. 115-130.
- de Groote MA. 2004b. Disease resulting from contaminated equipment and invasive procedures. In: Pedley S et al (eds). Pathogenic Mycobacteria in Water. IWA Publishing (London, UK) for the World Health Organization, pp. 131-142.
- de Haan H. 1984. Effects of metal speciation on growth of phytoplankton with special reference to iron. Hydrobiological Bulletin 18: 85-94.

- de Haan H. 1984. Effects of metal speciation on growth of phytoplankton with special reference to iron. Hydrobiological Bulletin 18: 85-94.
- de la Haba P, Aquera E, and JM Maldonado. 1990. Differential effects of ammonium and tungsten on nitrate and nitrite uptake and reduction by sunflower plants. *Plant Science 40*: 21-26.
- de los Reyes FL, Ritter W and Raskin L. 1997. Group-specific small-subunit rRNA hybridization probes to characterize filamentous foaming in activated sludge systems. App Environ Microbiol 63: 1107-1117.
- de Villele X and Verlaque M. 1995. Changes and degradation in a *Posidonia oceanica* bed invaded by the introduced tropical alga *Caulerpa taxifolia* in the North Western Mediterranean. Botanica Marina 38: 79-87.
- DeBusk TA, Reddy KR, and Clough KS. 1989. Effectiveness of mechanical aereation in floating aquatic macrophytebased waste water treatment systems. J. Envir. Quality 18: 349-354.
- Decostere A, Hermans K and Haesebrouck F. 2004. Piscine mycobacteriosis: a literature review covering the agent and the disease it causes in fish and humans. Veterinary Microbiol. 99: 159-166.
- DeDonder A and van Sumere CF. 1971. The effect of phenolics and related compounds on the growth and the respiration of *Chlorella vulgaris*. Z. Pflanzenphysiol. 65: 70-80.
- Del Rio-Rodriguez RE and Turnbull JF. 1999. Aerobic microflora of imported tropical ornamental fish from Singapore and South America. Part 1: Characterization. Fish Veterinary J 4: 1-16.
- DeLaune RD, Smith CJ, and Tolley MD. 1984. The effect of sediment redox potential on nitrogen uptake, anaerobic root respiration and growth of *Spartina alterniflora* Loisel. Aq. Bot. 18: 223-230.
- DeMarte JA and Hartman RT. 1974. Studies on absorption of ³²P, ⁵⁹Fe, and ⁴⁵Ca by Water-Milfoil (*Myriophyllum exalbescens* fernald). Ecology 55: 188-194.
- Dendene MA, Rolland T, Tremolieres M, and Carbiener R. 1993. Effect of ammonium ions on the net photosynthesis of three species of *Elodea*. Aq. Bot. 46: 301-315.
- Dennison WC, Aller RC, and Alberte RS. 1987. Sediment ammonium availability and eelgrass (*Zostera marina*) growth. Marine Biology 94: 469-477.
- Denny P. 1972. Sites of nutrient absorption in aquatic macrophytes. J. Ecology 60: 819-829.
- De Voss et al. 1999. Iron acquisition and metabolism by Mycobacteria. J Bacteriol 181: 4443-4451.
- DeWit HCD. 1964. Aquarium Plants. Blandford Press (London).
- Dhert P, Lim LC, Candreva P, Van Duffel H and P Sorgeloos. 1997. Possible applications of modern fish larviculture technology to ornamental fish production. Aquarium Sciences and Conservation 1: 119-128.
- Dhert Ph, Bombeo RB and P Sorgeloos. 1993. Use of ongrown Artemia in nursery culturing of the tiger shrimp. Aquaculture International 1: 170-177.
- Dhillon MS, Mulla MS and Hwang Y. 1982. Allelochemics produced by the hydrophyte *Myriophyllum spicatum* affecting mosquitos and midges. J. Chem. Ecology 8: 517-526.
- Dhont J and Sorgeloos P. 2002. Applications of Artemia. In: Abatzopoulos Th J, Beardmore JA, Clegg JS, and Sorgeloos P (eds). Artemia: Basic and Applied Biology. Kluwer Academic Publishers (Boston, MA), pp 251-271.
- Diamant A, Banet A, Ucko M, Colorni A, Knibb W and Kvitt H. 2000. Mycobacteriosis in wild rabbitfish *Siganus rivulatus* associated with cage farmng in the Gulf of Eilat, Red Sea. Dis Aquat Organ 39: 211-219.
- Diamond G, Jones DE, and Bevins CL. 1993. Airway epithelial cells are the site of expression of a mammalian antimicrobial peptide gene. Proc. Natl. Acad. Sci. 90: 4596-4600.
- DiBattista JD, Anisman H, Whitehead M and Gilmour KM. 2005. The effects of cortisol administration on social status and brain monoaminergic activity in rainbow trout *Oncorhynchus mykiss*. J Expt Biol 208: 2707-2718.
- Dickson JAD. 2002. Fossil echinoderms as monitor of the Mg/Ca ratio of Phanerozoic oceans. Science 298: 1222-1224.
- Dodds WK and Priscu JC. 1991. Ammonium stimulation of dark carbon fixation as an indicator of nitrogen deficiency in phytoplankton: Potential errors caused by ammonium-oxidizing bacteria. J. Phycology 27: 79-82.

- Donahue RL, Miller RW, and Shickluna JC. 1983. Soils. An Introduction to Soils and Plant Growth (Fifth Ed.). Prentice-Hall (Englewood Cliffs, NJ).
- Dong X-J, Takagi S, and Nagai R. 1995. Regulation of the orientation movement of chloroplasts in epidermal cells of *Vallisneria*: cooperation of phytochrome with photosynthetic pigment under low-fluence-rate light. Planta 197: 257-263.
- Donnelly TM. 2002. Mass in the oral cavity of cultured summer flounder. Lab Animal 31: 25-26.
- Dooris PM, Silver WS, and Martin DF. 1982. Effect of Hydrilla-growth inhibiting extracts upon the growth of *Scenedesmus obliquus*. J. Environ. Sci. Health, A17: 639-645.
- Dor I. 1978. Effet of the green algae *Scenedesmus obliquus* and *Chlorella vulgaris* on heterotrophic bacteria in polluled waters. Verh Int. ver Limnol. 20: 1930-1933.
- Dortch Q. 1990. The interaction between ammonium and nitrate uptake in phytoplankton. Marine Ecol. Prog. Series 61:183-201.
- Dortch Q. Thompson PA and Harrison PJ. 1991. Short-term interaction between nitrate and ammonium uptake in *Thalassiosira pseudonana*: Effect of preconditioning nitrogen source and growth rate. Marine Biol. 110: 183-194.
- dos Santos NMS, do Vale A, Sousa MJ and Silva MT. 2002 Mycobacterial infection in farmed turbot *Scophthalmus maximus*. Dis Aquatic Organisms 52: 87-91.
- Doucette GJ and Harrison PJ. 1991a. Aspects of iron and nitrogen nutrition in the red tide dinoflagellate *Gymnodinium sanguineum*: I. Effects of iron depletion and nitrogen source on biochemical composition. Marine Biol. 110: 167-174.
- Doucette GJ and Harrison PJ. 1991b. Aspects of iron and nitrogen nutrition in the red tide dinoflagellate *Gymnodinium sanguineum*: II. Effects of iron depletion and nitrogen source on iron and nitrogen uptake. Marine Biol. 110: 175-182.
- Drew MC and Lynch JM. 1980. Soil anaerobiosis, microorganisms, and root function. Ann. Rev. Phytopathol. 18: 37-66.
- Dreyer DL and Jones KC. 1981. Feeding deterrency of flavonoids and related phenolics towards *Schizaphis* graminum and Myzus persicae: Aphid feeding deterrents in wheat. Phytochemistry 20: 2489-2493.
- Duarte CM and Chiscano CL. 1999. Seagrass biomass and production: a reassessment. Aq. Bot. 65: 159-174.
- Duarte CM, Bird DF, and Kalff J. 1988. Submerged macrophytes and sediment bacteria in the littoral zone of Lake Memphremagog (Canada). Verh Int. ver Limnol. 23: 271-281.
- Duarte RM et al. 2018. Physiological protective action of dissolved organic carbon on ion regulation and nitrogenous waste excretion of zebrafish (Danio rerio) exposed to low pH in ion-poor water. J Comp Physiol B 188: 793-807.
- Dulger E and A Hussner. 2017. Differences in the growth and physiological response of eight *Myriophyllum* species to carbon dioxide depletion. Aq. Bot. 139: 25-31.
- Durako MJ and Moffler MD. 1987. Nutritional studies of the submerged marine angiosperm *Thalassia testudinum* I. Growth responses of axenic seedlings to nitrogen enrichment. Am. J. Bot. 74: 234-240.
- Dwivedi SN, Ansari SKR and Ahmed MQ. 1980. Mass culture of brine shrimp under controlled conditions in cement pools at Bombay, India. In: Persoone G, Sorgeloos P, Roels O and Jaspers E (eds). The Brine Shrimp Artemia (Vol 3). Universa Press (Wetteren, Belguim), pp. 175-183.

Ε

- Ebel J. 1986. Phytoalexin synthesis: The biochemical analysis of the induction process. Ann. Rev. Phytopathol. 24: 235-264.
- Eckburg PB,and Relman DA. 2005. Diversity of the human intestinal microbial flora. Science 308: 1635-1638.
- Edelstein H. 1994. *Mycobacterium marinum* skin infections- report of 31 cases and review of the literature. Archives Internal Med. 154: 1359-1364.
- Eddy FB and EM Williams. 1987. Nitrite and freshwater fish. Chem Ecol 3: 1-38.

- Edmond JM, Stallard RF, Craig H, Craig V, Weiss RF, and Coulter GW. 1993. Nutrient chemistry of the water column of Lake Tanganyika. Limnol. Oceanogr. 38: 725-738.
- Edwards PSJ and Allsopp A. 1956. The effects of changes in the inorganic nitrogen supply on the growth and development of *Marsilea* in aseptic culture. J. Expt. Bot 7: 194-202.
- Egglishaw HJ. 1972. An experimental stuy of the breakdown of cellulose in fast-flowing streams. Mem. Ist. Ital. Idrobiol. 29 Sup. 405-428.
- Eichenberger E. 1986. The interrelation between essentiality and toxicity of metals in the aquatic ecosystem. In: Sigel H (ed), Metal Ions in Biological Systems (Vol 20). Concepts on Metal Ion Toxicity, pp 67-81+.
- Einhellig FA, Leather GR and Hobbs LL. 1985. Use of *Lemna minor* L. as a bioassay in allelopathy. J. Chem. Ecology 11: 65-72.
- Einhellig FA, Schon MK, and Ramussen JA. 1983. Synergistic effects of four cinnamic acid compounds on grain sorghum. J. Plant Growth Regul. 1: 251-258.
- Elakovich SD and Wooten JW. 1987. An examination of the phytotoxicity of the water shield, *Brasenia schreberi*. J. Chem. Ecology 13: 1935-1941.
- Elakovich SD and Wooten JW. 1989. Allelopathic Aquatic Plants for Aquatic Plant Management; A Feasibility Study. Environmental Laboratory, Univ. of Southern Miss. (Hattiesburg, MS). 40 pp. (AD A217 441)
- Elakovich SD and Wooten JW. 1991. Allelopathic potential of *Nuphar lutea* (L.) Sibth. & Sm. (Nymphaeaceae). J. Chem. Ecol. 17: 707-714.
- Elakovich SD and Wooten JW. 1995. Allelopathic, herbaceous, vascular hydrophytes. In: Inderjit, Dakshini KMM, and Einhellig FA (eds), Allelopathy: Organisms, Processes, and Applications. ACS Symposium Series 582 (American Chemical Society, Washington D.C), pp. 58-73.
- Elakovich SD and Yang J. 1996. Structures and allelopathic effects of *Nuphar* alkaloids: Nupharolutine and 6,6'dihydroxythiobinupharidine. J. Chem. Ecol. 22: 2209- 2219.
- Elderfield H. 2002. Carbonate mysteries. Science 296: 1618-1621.
- El-Etr SH et al. 2001. Fish monocytes as a model for mycobacterial host-pathogen interactions. Infect Immun 69: 7310-7317.
- El-Ghazal RAK and Riemer DN. 1986. Germination suppression by extracts of aquatic plants. J. Aquat. Plant Manage. 24: 76-79.
- Ellen RP and Burne RA. 1996. Conceptual advances in research on the adhesion of bacteria to oral surfaces. In: Fletcher M (ed), Bacterial Adhesion, John Wiley (NY), pp 201-247.
- Ellis T, Bagwell N, Pond M, Baynes S and Scott AP. 2007. Acute viral and bacterial infections elevate water cortisol concentrations in fish tanks. Aquaculture 272: 707-716.
- Elwood JW, Mulholland PJ, and Newbold JD. 1988. Microbial activity and phosphorus uptake on decomposing leaf detritus in a heterotrophic stream. Verh. Int. ver Limnol. 23: 1198-1208.
- Emerson D, Weiss JV, and Megonigal JP. 1999. Iron-oxidizing bacteria are associated with ferric hydroxide precipitates (Fe-plaque) on the roots of wetland plants. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 65: 2758-2761.
- Emerson R. 1957. Dependence of Yield of photosynthesis in long-wave red on wavelength and intensity of supplementary light. Science (Abstract) 125: 746.
- Emerson R. 1958. Yield of photosynthesis from simultaneous illumination with pairs of wavelengths. Science 127: 1059-1060.
- Emerson R. and Rabinowitch E. 1960. Red drop and role of auxiliary pigments in photosynthesis. Plant Physiology 35: 477-485.
- Ernst WHO, Verkleij JAC, and Schat H. 1992. Metal tolerance in plants (Review). Acta Bot. Neerl. 41: 229-248.
- Ernst WHO. 1990. Ecophysiology of plants in waterlogged and flooded environments. Aquatic Botany 38: 73-90.
- Esteban MA, Rodriguez A, Ayala AG and Meseguer J. 2004. Effects of high doses of cortisol on innate cellular immune response of seabream (*Sparus aurata* L.). Gen Comp Endocrinol. 137: 89-98.

F

- Fabregas J and Herrero C. 1986. Marine microalgae as a potential source of minerals in fish diets. Aquaculture 51: 237-243.
- Fair RJ, Jamieson HM and Hopkins DW. 1994. Spatial distribution of nitrifying (ammonium-oxidizing) bacteria in soil. Let Appl Microbiol 18:162-164.
- Fairchild GW. 1981. Movement and microdistribution of *Sida crystallina* and other littoral microcrustacea. Ecology 62: 1341-1352.
- Falkinham JO *et al.* 2001. Factors influencing numbers of *Mycobacterium avium*, *Mycobacterium intracellulare*, and other mycobacteria in drinking water distribution systems. Appl Environ Microbiol 67: 1225-31.
- Falkinham JO et al. 2004. Natural ecology and survival in water of mycobacteria of potential public health significance. In: Pedley S et al (eds). Pathogenic Mycobacteria in Water. IWA Publishing (London, UK) for the World Health Organization, pp. 15-23.
- Falkinham JO. 2004. Environmental sources of *Mycobacterium avium* linked to routhes of exposure. In: Pedley S et al (eds). Pathogenic Mycobacteria in Water. IWA Publishing (London, UK) for the World Health Organization, pp. 26-37.
- Falkowski PG. 1983. Enzymology of nitrogen assimilation. In: Carpenter EJ and Capone DG (eds). Nitrogen in the Marine Environment. Academic Press (New York), pp 839-868.
- Falkowski PG. 1995. Ironing out what controls primary production in the nutrient rich waters of the open ocean. (Commentary). Global Change Biology 1: 161-163.
- Fang YY, Babourina O, Rengel Z, Yang XE, and PM Pu. 2007. Ammonium and nitrate uptake by the floating plant *Landoltia punctata*. Annals of Botany 99: 365-370.
- Fassett NC. 1957. A Manual of Aquatic Plants. The University of Wisconsin Press (Madison WI).
- Faust BC. 1994. A review of the photochemical redox reactions of iron (III) species in atmospheric, oceanic, and surface waters: influences on geochemical cycles and oxidant formation. In: Helz GR, Zepp RG, and Crosby DG (eds.), Aquatic and Surface Photochemistry. Lewis Publishers (Boca Raton), pp.3-30.
- Felle HH. 1991. Aspects of Ca²⁺ homeostasis in *Riccia fluitans*: reactions to perturbations in cytosolic-free Ca²⁺. Plant Science 74: 27-33.
- Ferguson AR and Bollard EG. 1969. Nitrogen metabolism of *Spirodela oligorrhiza* 1. Utilization of ammonium, nitrate and nitrite. Planta (Berlin) 88: 344-352.
- Ferguson RL, Rivera JA, and Wood LL. 1989. Submerged aquatic vegetation in the Albemarle-Pamlico Estuarine System. Project No. 88-10 of the National Marine Fisheries Service, NOAA, (Beaufort NC 28516).
- Fevolden SE, Nordmo R, Refstie T and Roed KH. 1993. Disease resistance in Atlantic salmon (*Salmo salar*) selected for high or low responses to stress. Aquaculture 109: 215-224.
- Finden DAS, Tipping E, Jaworski GHM, and Reynolds CS. Light-induced reduction of natural iron(III) oxide and its relevance to phytoplankton. Nature 309: 783-784.
- Fitzgerald GP. 1969. Some factors in the competition or antagonism among bacteria, algae, and aquatic weeds. J. Phycology 5: 351-359.
- Fitzgerald GP. 1972. Bioassay analysis of nutrient availability. In: Allen HE and Kramer JR (eds), Nutrients in Natural Waters. Wiley-Interscience Publications (New York), pp 147-169.
- Fivelstad S, Olsen AB, Kloften H, Ski H, and Stefansson S. 1999. Effects of carbon dioxide on Atlantic salmon (*Salmo salar* L.) smolts at constant pH in bicarbonate rich freshwater. Aquaculture 178: 171-187.
- Fletcher M. 1996. Bacterial attachment in aquatic environments: a diversity of surfaces and adhesion strategies. In: Fletcher M (ed), Bacterial Adhesion, John Wiley (NY), pp 1-24.
- Flik G, van der Velden JA, Dechering KJ, Verbost PM, Schoenmakers TJM, Kolar ZI, and Wendelaar Bonga SE. 1993. Ca²⁺ and Mg²⁺ transport in gills and gut of tilapia, *Oreochromis mossambicus*: A review. J. Exp. Zoology. 265: 356-365.
- Floodgate GD. 1972. The mechanism of bacterial attachment to detritus in aquatic systems. Mem. Ist. Ital. Idrobiol. 29(Sup.): 309-323.

- Florack DEA and Stiekema WJ. 1994. Thionins: properties, possible biological roles and mechanisms of action. Plant Mol. Biol. 26: 25-37.
- Flynn JL. 2004. Mutual attraction: Does it benefit the host or the bug? Nature Immunology 5: 778-779.
- Forsberg C, Kleiven S, and Willen T. 1990. Absence of allelopathic effects of Chara on phytoplankton in situ. Aq. Bot. 38: 289-294.
- Fort DJ and Stover EN. 1995. Impact of toxicities and potential interactions of flocculants and coagulant aids on whole effluent toxicity testing. Water Environ. Res. 67: 921-925.
- Foy CD, Chaney RL, and White MC. 1978. The physiology of metal toxicity in plants. Ann Rev Plant Physiol 29: 511-566.
- Francis-Floyd, R and Yanong R. 1999. Mycobacteriosis in Fish. University of Florida. http://edis.ifas.ufl.edu/VM055>
- Frank PA and Dechoretz N. 1980. Allelopathy in dwarf spikerush (*Eleocharis coloradoensis*). Weed Science 28: 499-505.
- Fraser D, Morton JK, and Jui PY. 1986. Aquatic vascular plants in Sibley Provincial Park in relation to water chemistry and other factors. Canadian Field-Naturalist 100: 15-21.
- Fraser GA and Harvey HH. 1982. Elemental composition of bone from White Sucker (*Catostomus commersoni*) in relation to lake acidification. Can. J. Fish. Aquat. Sci. 39: 1289-1296
- Freeman TE. 1977. Biological control of aquatic weeds with plant pathogens. Aquatic Botany 3: 175-184.
- French GT and KA Moore. 2003. Interactive effects of light and salinity stress on the growth, reproduction, and photosynthetic capabilities of *Vallisneria americana* (Wild Celery). *Estuaries* 26: 1256-1268.
- Frieden E. 1984. Biochemistry of the Essential Ultratrace Elements. Plenum Press (New York).
- Fries L. 1974. Growth stimulation of axenic red algae by simple phenolic compounds. J. Expt. Mar. Biol. Ecol. 15: 1-9.
- Frost-Christensen H and Sand-Jensen K. 1995. Comparative kinetics of photosynthesis in floating and submerged *Potamogeton* leaves. Aquatic Botany 51: 121-134.
- Fuerst EP and Putnam AR. 1983. Separating the competitive and allelopathic components of interference: Theoretical Principles. J. Chem. Ecology 9: 937-944.
- Fujimoto DK, Weller DM, and Thomashow LS. 1995. Role of secondary metabolites in root disease suppression. In: Inderjit, Dakshini KMM, and Einhellig FA (eds), Allelopathy: Organisms, Processes, and Applications. ACS Symposium Series 582 (American Chemical Society, Washington D.C), pp. 330-347.
- Furch K, Junk WJ, and Campos Zes. 1988. Release of major ions and nutrients by decomposing leaves of *Pseudobombax munguba*, a common tree in the Amazonian floodplain. Verh. Int. ver Limnol 23: 642-646.

G

- Gajbhiye SN and R Hirota. 1990. Toxicity of heavy metals to brine shrimp *Artemia*. J. Indian Fisheries Assoc. 20: 43-40.
- Gagneux S, Long CD, Small PM, Van T, Schoolnik GK and Bohannan BJM. 2006. The competitive cost of antibiotic resistance in *Mycobacterium tubrculosis*. Science 312: 1944-1946.
- Gamble TN, Betlach MR, and Tiedje JM. 1977. Numerically dominant denitrifying bacteria from world soils. Applied Environ. Microb. 33: 929-939.
- Gambrell RP, DeLaune RD, and Patrick WH Jr. 1991. Redox processes in soils following oxygen depletion. In: Jackson MB, Davies DD, and Lambers H. Plant Life Under Oxygen Deprivation. SPB Academic Publishing (The Hague, Netherlands), pp. 101-117.
- Ganz T and Lehrer RI. 1994. Defensins. Current Opinion Immunology 6: 584-589.
- Gao L-Y et al. 2004. A mycobacterial virulence gene cluster extending RD1 is required for cytolysis, bacterial spreading and ESAT-6 secretion. Mol Microbiol 53: 1677-1693.
- Gaudet JJ. 1973. Growth of a floating aquatic weed, Salvinia under standard conditions. Hydrobiologia 41: 77-106.

- Gaur JP, Noraho N, and Chauhan YS. 1994. Relationship between heavy metal accumulation and toxicity in *Spirodela polyrhiza* (L.) Schleid. and *Azolla pinnata* R. Br. Aquatic Bot. 49: 183-192.
- Gauthier, DT, Rhodes MW, Vogelbein WK, Kator H, and Ottinger CA. 2003. Experimental mycobacteriosis in striped bass *Morone saxatilis*. Diseases Aquatic Org. 54: 105-117.
- Gauthier DT, Latour RJ, Heisey DM, Bonzek CF, Gartland J, Burge EJ and Vogelbein WK. 2008. Mycobacteriosisassociated mortality in wild striped bass (*Morone saxatilis*) from Chesapeake Bay, USA. Ecological Applications 18: 1718-1727.
- Geesey GG, Mutch R, Costerton JW, and Green RB. 1978. Sessile bacteria: An important component of the microbial population in small mountain streams. Limnol. Oceanogr. 23: 1214-1223.
- Gerloff GC. 1975. Nutritional Ecology of Nuisance Aquatic Plants. National Environmental Research Center (Corvallis OR), 78 pp.
- Gersberg R. 1976. Denitrification studies with ¹³N-labeled nitrate. Science 192: 1229-1231.
- Gewolb J. 2002 (News Release). Science 295: 258-259.
- Ghosh M and Gaur JP. 1994. Algal periphyton of an unshaded stream in relation to in situ nutrient enrichment and current velocity. Aq. Bot. 47: 185-189.
- Giblin AE, Likens GE, White D, and Howarth RE. 1990. Sulfur storage and alkalinity generation in New England lake sediments. Limnol. Oceanogr. 35: 852-869.
- Gieseke A, Purkhold U, Wagner M, Amann R, and Schramm A. 201. Community structure and activity dynamics of nitrifying bacteria in a phosphate-removing biofilm. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 67: 1351-1362.
- Giesy JP, Newell A, and Leversee GJ. 1983. Copper speciation in soft, acid, humic waters: Effects on copper bioaccumulation by and toxicity to *Simocephalus serrulatus* (Daphnidae). The Science of the Total Environ. 28: 23-36.
- Giesy Jr, JP and Briese LA. 1978. Trace metal transport by particulates and organic carbon in two South Carolina streams. Verh. Int. ver Limnol. 20: 1401-1417.
- Gigon A and Rorison IH. 1972. The response of some ecologically distinct plant species to nitrate- and to ammonium-nitrogen. J. Ecology 60: 93-102.
- Gilbert F, Souchu P, Bianchi M, and Bonin P. 1997. Influence of shellfish farming activities on nitrification, nitrate reduction to ammonium and denitrification at the water-sediment interface of the Thau lagoon, France. Mar Ecol Prog Ser 151: 143-153.
- Gilroy S and Jones RL. 1992. Gibberellic acid and abscisic acid coordinately regulate cytoplasmic calcium and secretory activity in barley aleurone protoplasts. Proc. Natl. Acad. Sci. 89: 3591-3595.
- Givan CV. 1979. Metabolic detoxification of ammonia in tissues of higher plants. Phytochemistry 18: 375-382.
- Glass ADM. 1989. Plant Nutrition: An Introduction to Current Concepts. Jones & Bartlett Publishers (Boston MA).
- Godfrey RK and Wooten JW. 1979. Aquatic and Wetland Plants of Southeastern United States. Monocotyledons. Univ. of Georgia Press (Athens GA).
- Goldman CR. 1960. Molybdenum as a factor limiting primary productivity in Castle Lake, California. Science 132: 1016-1017.
- Goldman CR. 1972. The role of minor nutrients in limiting the productivity of aquatic systems. In: Likens GE (ed.), Nutrients and Eutrophication: The Limiting Nutrient Controversy. Special Symposium, Am. Sol. Limnol. Oceanogr. 1: 21-38.nts in limiting the productivity of aquatic systems.
- Gomez S. 2008. Prevalence of microscopic tubercular lesions in freshwater ornamental fish exhibiting clinical signs of non-specific chronic disease. Dis Aquat Organisms 80: 167-171. [Investigation from Spain]
- Goodrich MS, Dulak LH, Friedman MA, and Lech JJ. 1991. Acute and long-term toxicity of water-soluble cationic polymers to rainbow trout (*Oncorhynchus mykiss*) and the modification of toxicity by humic acid. Environ. Toxicology and Chem. 10: 509-515.
- Gopal B and Goel U. 1993. Competition and allelopathy in aquatic plant communities. Botanical Review 59: 155-210.

- Gopal B and Sharma KP. 1990. Ecology of Plant Populations I: Growth. In: Gopal B (ed.), Ecology and Management of Aquatic Vegetation in the Indian Subcontinent, Kluwer Academic Publishers (Boston MA), pp 79-106.
- Gopal B. 1987. Water Hyacinth. Elsevier Science Publishing Co. (New York).
- Gopal, B. 1969. Ecological studies on the genus Marsilea. II. Edaphic factors. Tropical Ecology 10: 278-291.
- Gorospe J and Nakamura K. 1996. Associated bacterial microflora in *Artemia*-rice bran culture. Israeli J. Aquaculture 48: 99-107.
- Goulder R and Linton S. 1998. The duckweed *Lemna minor* compared with the alga *Selenastrum capricornutum* for bioassay of pond-water richness. Aq. Bot. 60: 27-36.
- Govindjee and Whitmarsh J. 1982. Photosynthesis. In: Govindjee (ed), Photosynthesis, vol 1. Energy Conversion by Plants and Bacteria. Academic Press (New York), pp. 1-11+.
- Grady AW, Wolff A, and Besch-Williford C. 1992. Diagnostic exercise: visceral granulomas in a fish. Lab Animal Sci. 42: 316-317.
- Graneli W, Lindell M, and Tranvik L. 1996. Photo-oxidative production of dissolved inorganic carbon in lakes of different humic content. Limnol. Oceanogr. 41: 698-706.
- Greca MD, Monaco P, Pollio A, and Previtera L. 1992. Structure-activity relationships of phenylpropanoids as growth inhibitors of the green alga *Selenastrum capricornutum*. Phytochemistry 31: 4119-4123.
- Greca MD, Monaco P, Previtera L, Aliotta G, Pinto G, and Pollio A. 1989. Allelochemical activity of phenylpropanes from *Acorus gramineus*. Phytochemistry 28: 2319-2321.
- Greenberg AE, Clesceri LS, and Eaton AD (Eds). 1992. Standard Methods for the Examination of Water and Wastewater. (18th Edition). American Public Health Association (Washington, D.C.)
- Grise D, Titus JE, and Wagner DJ. 1986. Environmental pH influences growth and tissue chemistry of the submersed macrophyte *Vallisneria americana*. Can. J. Bot. 64: 306-310.
- Grisebach H. 1981. Lignins. In: Conn EE (ed.), The Biochemistry of Plants, vol 7, Academic Press (New York), pp. 457-477.
- Gross A, Nemirovsky A, Zilberg D, Khaimov A, Brenner A, Snir E, Ronenn Z and Nejidat A. 2003. Soil nitrifying enrichments as biofilter starters in intensive recirculating saline water aquacultures. Aquaculture 223: 51-62.
- Gross EM, Meyer H, and Schilling G. 1996. Release and ecological impact of algicidal hydrolysable polyphenols in *Myriophyllum spicatum*. Phytochemistry 41: 133-138.
- Gross EM. 1999. Allelopathy in benthic and littoral areas: Case studies on allelochemicals from benthic cyanobacteria and submersed macrophytes. In: Dakshini, Inderjit, and Foy (***eds), Principles and Practices in Plant Ecology: Allelochemical Interactions, pp. 179-199.
- Grossart H-P et al. 2011. Microbial methane production in oxygenated water column of an oligotrophic lake. PNAS 108: 19657-61.
- Grosse W, Buchel HB, and Tiebel H. 1991. Pressurized ventilation in wetland plants. Aq. Bot. 39: 89-98.
- Grossman J. 1994. Botanical bug busters. Fine Gardening, July/August, pp 43-45.
- Greub G and Raoult D. 2004. Microorganisms resistant to free-living amoebae. Clin Microbiol Rev 17: 413-433.
- Grunfeld S and Brix H. 1999. Methanogenesis and methane emissions: effects of water table, substrate type and presence of *Phragmites australis*. Aq. Bot. 64: 63-75.
- GSL (2019) for brine shrimp of Great Salt Lake: https://saltlakebrineshrimp.com/hatching-brine-shrimp/
- Guerrero MG, Vega MJ, and Losada M. 1981. The assimilatory nitrate-reducing system and its regulation. Annual Re. Plant Physiol. 32: 169-204.
- Gundersen DT, Bustaman S, Seim WK, and Curtis LR. 1994. pH, hardness, and humic acid influence aluminum toxicity to rainbow trout (*Oncorhynchus mykiss*) in weakly alkaline waters. Can. J. Fish. Aquat. Sci 51: 1345-1355.
- Gunner HB, Limpa-Amara Y, and Weilerstein PJ. 1988. Field Evaluation of Microbiological Control Agents on Eurasian Water milfoil. Dept. of Environmental Sciences, Univ. of Mass (Amherst MA). (Technical Report A-81-1).

Gunnison D and Barko JW. 1989. The rhizosphere ecology of submersed macrophytes. Water Resources Bulletin 25: 193-201.

Η

- Habicht KS, Gade M, Thamdrup B, Berg P, and Canfield DE. 2002. Calibration of sulfate levels in the Archean ocean. Science 298: 2372-2374.
- Hageman RH. 1980. Effect of form of nitrogen on plant growth. In: Meisinger JJ, Randall GW, and Vitosh ML (eds). Nitrification Inhibitors-- Potentials and Limitations. Am.Soc. of Agronomy (Madison WI), pp. 47-62.
- Hall WS and Mirenda RJ. 1991. Acute toxicity of wastewater treatment polymers to *Daphnia pulex* and the fathead minnow (*Pimephales promelas*) and the effects of humic acid on polymer toxicity. Res. J. Water Pollut. Control Fed. 63: 895-899.
- Hallegraeff GM. 1993. A review of harmful algal blooms and their apparent global increase. Phycologia 32: 79-99.
- Halliwell B and Gutteridge MC. 1984. Oxygen toxicity, oxygen radicals, transition metals and disease. Biochemical J. 219: 1-14.
- Hall-Stoodley L and Lappin-Scott H. 1998. Biofilm formation by the rapidly growing mycobacterial species *Mycobacterium fortuitum*. FEMS Microbiology Letters 168: 77-84.
- Hall-Stoodley L and Stoodley P. 2005. Biofilm formation and dispersal and the transmission of human pathogens. Trends in Microbiol. 13: 7-10.
- Hall-Stoodley L, Keevil CW and Lappin-Scott HM. 1999. *Mycobacterium fortuitum* and *Mycobacterium chelonae* biofilm formation under high and low nutrient conditins. J Appl Microbiol. (Supplement) 85: 60S-69S.
- Hama T and Handa N. 1980. Molecular weight distribution and characterization of dissolved organic matter from lake waters. Arch. Hydrobiol. 90: 106-120.
- Hamlin HJ. 2006. Nitrate toxicity in Siberian sturgeon (Acipenser baeri). Aquaculture 253: 688-693.
- Han S and...W Huang. 2020. Structural basis for C₄ photosynthesis without Kranz anatomy in leaves of the submerged freshwater plant *Ottelia alismoides*. *Annals Botany* 125: 869-79.
- Hanson KR and Havir EA. 1981. Phenylalanine ammonia-lyase. In: Conn EE (ed.), The Biochemistry of Plants, vol 7, Academic Press (New York), pp. 577-621.
- Hansson L-A. 1990. Quantifying the impact of periphytic algae on nutrient availability for phytoplankton. Freshwater Biology 24: 265-273.
- Harb OS et al. 2000. From protozoa to mammalian cells: a new paradigm in the life cycle of intracellular bacterial pathogens. Environ Microbiol. 2: 251-265.
- Harborne JB. 1975. Flavonoid sulphates: A new class of sulphur compounds in higher plants. Phytochemistry 14: 1147-1155.
- Harborne JB. 1988. Introduction to Ecological Biochemistry. Third Edition. Academic Press (New York).
- Harborne JB. 1989. General procedures and measurement of total phenolics. In: Dey PM and Harborne JB (eds), Methods in Plant Biochemistry, vol 1, Plant Phenolics. Academic Press (NY), pp 1-28.
- Hardy RW, Shearer KD and King IB. 1984. Proximate and elemental composition of developing eggs and maternal soma of pen-reared Coho salmon (*Oncorhynchus kisutch*) fed production and trace element fortified diets. Aquaculture 43: 147-165.
- Harms CA, Howard KE, Wolf JC, Smith SA and Kennedy-Stoskopf S. 2003. Transforming growth factor-β response to mycobacterial infection in striped bass *Morone saxatilis* and hybrid tilapia *Oreochromis* spp. Vet Immunol Immunopathol 95: 155-163.
- Harriff MJ, Bermudez LE and Kent ML. 2007. Experimental exposure of zebrafish, *Danio rerio* (Hamilton), to *Mycobacterium marinum* and *Mycobacterium peregrinum* reveals the gastrointestinal tract as the primary route of infection: a potential model for environmental mycobacterial infection. J. Fish Diseases 30: 587-600.
- Harriff MJ, Wu M, Kent ML and Bermudez LE. 2008. Species of environmental mycobacteria differ in their abilities to grow in human, mouse, and carp macrophages and with regard to the presence of mycobacterial virulence genes, as observed by DNA microarray hybridization. Appl Envir Microb 74: 275-285.

- Harrison PG and Chan AT. 1980. Inhibition of the growth of micro-algae and bacteria by extracts of eelgrass (*Zostera marina*) leaves. Marine Biology 61: 21-26.
- Hart JW. 1988. Light and Plant Growth. Unwin Hyman (Bostom MA).
- Hartman HT and Kester DE. 1983. Plant Propogation. Principles and Practices. (4th ed.). Prentice-Hall, Inc (Englewood Cliffs, NJ). (Index card only)
- Harvell CD, Kim K, Burkholder JM, Colwell RR, Epstein PR, Grimes DJ, Hofmann EE, Lipp EK, Osterhaus ADME, Overstreet RM, Porter JW, Smith GW, and Vasta GR. 1999. Emerging marine diseases– Climate links and anthropogenic factors. Science 285: 1505-1510.
- Haslam E. 1981. Vegetable tannins. In: Conn EE (ed.), The Biochemistry of Plants, vol 7, Academic Press (New York), pp. 527-554.
- Haslam E. 1989. Plant Polyphenols. Vegetable Tannins Revisited. Cambridge Univ. Press (New York), 230 pp.
- Haslam SM. 1978. River Plants. The Macrophytic Vegetation of Watercourses. Cambridge Univ. Press (New York).
- Hasler AD and Jones E. 1949. Demonstration of the antagonistic action of large aquatic plants on algae and rotifers. Ecology 30: 359-364.
- Haukioja E. 2000. How an old tree outwits its foes. Science 289: 2032.
- Haupt W and Hader D-P. 1994. Photomovement. In: Kendrick RE and Kronenberg GHM (eds), Photomorphogenesis in Plants (2nd edition), Kluwer Acad Publishers (The Netherlands), pp 707-732.
- Hay ME and Fenical W. 1988. Marine plant-herbivore interactions: The ecology of chemical defense. Ann. Rev. Ecol. Syst. 19: 111-145.
- Hay RKM. 1990. The influence of photoperiod on the dry-matter production of grasses and cereals. New Phytologist 116: 233-254.
- Heckert RA, Elankumaran S, Milani A and Baya A. 2001. Detection of a new *Mycobacterium* species in wild striped bass in the Chesapeake Bay. J Clin Microbiol. 39: 710-715.
- Hector A et al. 1999. Plant diversity and productivity experiments in European grasslands. Science 286: 1123-1127.
- Hedrick RP, McDowell T and Groff J. 1987. Mycobacteriosis in cultured striped bass from California. J Wildlife Dis 232: 391-395.
- Heide, OM, Bush MG and Evans LT. 1985. Interaction of photoperiod and gibberellin on growth and photosynthesis of high-latitude *Poa pratensis*. Physiologia Plantarum 65: 135-145. (find attached to Hay RKM 1990 paper)
- Helguera-Repetto C *et al.* 2004. The pathogen *Mycobacterium marinum*, a faster growing close relative of *Mycobacterium tuberculosis*, has a single rRNA operon per genome. FEMS Microbiol Let 235: 281-288.
- Hellblom F. and Bjork M. 1999. Photosynthetic responses in *Zostera marina* to decreasing salinity, inorgainic carbon content and osmolality. Aq. Bot. 65: 97-104.
- Hellquist CB and Crow GE. 1980. Aquatic Vascular Plants of New England. New Hampshire Agricultural Experiment Station (Univ. of New Hampshire, Durham NH). Station Bulletins 515 and 518.
- Hellquist CB. 1980. Correlation of alkalinity and the distribution of *Potamogeton* in New England. Rhodora 82: 331-344.
- Hepler PK and Wayne R. 1985. Calcium and plant development. Ann. Rev. Plant Physiol. 36: 397-439.
- Heppell J and Davis HL. 2000. Application of DNA vaccine technology to aquaculture. Advanced Drug Delivery Reviews 43: 29-43.
- Herbst LH, Costa SF, Weiss LM, Johnson LK, Bartell J, Davis R, Walsh M and Levi M. 2001. Granulomatous skin lesions in moray eels caused by a novel *Mycobacterium* species related to *Mycobacterium triplex*. Infect Immunity 69: 4639-4646.
- Hether NH, Olsen RA, and Jackson LL. 1984. Chemical identification of iron reductants exuded by plant roots. J. Plant Nutrition 7: 667-676.
- Hill BH. 1979. Uptake and release of nutrients by aquatic macrophytes. Aquatic Botany 7: 87-93.
- Hilt S and EM Gross. 2008. Can allelopahthically active submerged macrophytes stabilise clear-water states in shallow lakes? Basic Applied Ecology 9: 422-432.

- Hilton JW. 1989. The interaction of vitamins, minerals and diet composition in the diet of fish. Aquaculture 79: 223-244.
- Hijnen WAM, Beerendonk EF and Medema GJ. 2006. Inactivation credit of UV radiation for viruses, bacteria and protozoan (oo)cysts in water: A Review. Water Reseach 40: 3-22.
- Hinshaw J. 1992. Conversation about measuring CO₂ and N and P conversion efficiencies by fish.
- Hoagland RE and Williams RD. 1985. Soil microorganism-- plant root associations. In: Thompson AC. (Ed.). The Chemistry of Allelopathy, ACS Symposium Series 268, pp 311-325.
- Holbrook GP, Beer S, Spencer WE, Reiskind JB, Davis JS, and Bowes G. 1988. Photosynthesis in marine macroalgae: evidence for carbon limitation. Can. J. Bot. 66: 577-582.
- Holliday CW *et al.* 1990. Salinity-induced changes in branchial Na⁺/K⁺-ATPase activity and transepithelial potential difference in the brine shrimp *Artemia salina*. *J. Exp. Biol.* 151: 279-296.
- Holmer M, Jensen HS, Christensen KK, Wigand C, and Andersen FO. 1998. Sulfate reduction in lake sediments inhabited by the isoetid macrophytes *Littorella uniflora* and *Isoetes lacustris*. Aquatic Botany 60: 307-324.
- Holmes MG and Smith H. 1977a. The function of phytochrome in the natural environment--II. The influence of vegetation canopies on the spectral energy distribution of natural daylight. Photochem. Photobiol. 25: 539-545.
- Holmes MG and Smith H. 1977b. The funciton of phytochrome in the natural environment--IV. Light quality and plant development. Photochem. Photobiol. 25: 551-557.
- Holst RW and Yopp JH. 1979. Comparative utilization of inorganic and organic compounds as sole nitrogen sources by the submergent duckweed, *Lemna trisulca* L. Biologia Plantarum (Praha) 21: 245-252.
- Hong HA, Duc LH and Cutting SM. 2005. The use of bacterial spore formers as probiotics. FEMS Microbiology Reviews 29: 813-835.
- Hongslo T and E Jansson. 2016 Mycobacteria occurrence in aquarium fish from Swedish wholesalers. Bull. Eur. Assoc. Fish Pathol. 36 (2): pp. --.
- Hopkins WG. 1995. Introduction to Plant Physiology. John Wiley (New York, NY), 464 pp.
- Horiguchi G et al. 2019. Photosynthetic acclimation of terrestrial and submerged leaves in the amphibious plant Hygrophila difformis. AoB Plants 11: doi: 10.1093/aobpla/plz009
- Horst K and Kipper HE. 1986. The Optimum Aquarium. AD aquadocumenta Verlag GmbH (Bielefeld, West-Germany).
- Hosel W. 1981. Glycosylation and glycosidases. In: Conn EE (ed.), The Biochemistry of Plants, vol 7, Academic Press (New York), pp. 725-750.
- Hostrup O and Wiegleb G. 1991. Anatomy of leaves of submergd and emergent forms of *Littorella uniflora* (L.) Ascherson. Aquatic Botany 39: 195-209.
- Hotchkiss N. 1967. Underwater and Floating-leaved Plants of the United States and Canada. Bureau of Sport Fisheries and Wildlife (Washington D.C.). Resource Publication 44.
- Hough RA and Wetzel RG. 1975. The release of dissolved organic carbon from submersed aquatic macrophytes: Diel, seasonal, and community relationships. Verh. Int. ver. Limnol. 19: 939-948.
- Hovanec TA and DeLong EF. 1996. Comparative analysis of nitrifying bacteria associated with freshwater and marine aquaria. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 62: 2888-2896.
- Hovanec TA, Taylor LT, Blakis A, and DeLong EF. 1998. *Nitrospira*-like bacteria associated with nitrite oxidation in freshwater aquaria. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 64: 258-264.
- Howarth RW and Cole JJ. 1985. Molybdenum availability, nitrogen limitation, and phytoplankton growth in natural waters. Science 229: 653-655.
- Huala E, Oeller PW, Liscum E, Han I-S, Larsen E, and Briggs WR. 1997. *Arabidopsis* NPH1: A protein kinase with a putative redox-sensing domain. Science 278: 2120-2123.
- Huang JW, Pellet DM, Papernik LA, and Kochian LV. 1996. Aluminum interactions with voltage-dependent calcium transport in plasma membrane vesicles isolated from roots of aluminum-sensitive and -resistant wheat cultivars. Plant Physiol. 110: 561-569.

- Huang L-C, Chang Y-H, and Chang Y-L. 1994. Rapid *in vitro* multiplication of the aquatic angiosperm, *Anubias barteri* var. undulata. Aquatic Botany 47: 77-83.
- Huang Rui *et al.* 2016. Abundance and community composition of ammonia oxidizers in rhizospere sediment of two submerged macrophytess. *J Freshwater Ecol* 31: 407-419.
- Huebert DB and Gorham PR. 1983. Biphasic mineral nutrition of the submersed aquatic macrophyte *Potamogeton pectinatus* L. Aq. Bot. 16: 269-284.
- Huebert DB and Shay JM. 1991. The effect of external phosphorus, nitrogen and calcium on growth of *Lemna trisulca*. Aquatic Botany 40: 175-183.
- Huebert DB and Shay JM. 1992. Zinc toxicity and its interaction with cadmium in the submerged aquatic macrophyte *Lemna trisulca* L. Environ. Toxicol. Chem. 11: 715-720.
- Hussner A.... and K Sand-Jensen. 2016. Acclimation of photosynthesis to supersaturated CO2 in aquatic plant bicarbonate users. Freshwater Biol 61:1720-32.
- Hutchinson GE. 1975. A Treatise on Limnology. Vol III. John Wiley & Sons (New York).
- Hutchinson GL, Millington RJ, and Peters DB. 1972. Atmospheric ammonia: absorption by plant leaves. Science 175: 771-772.
- Hutchinson NJ and Sprague JB. 1987. Reduced lethality of Al, Zn and Cu mixtures to American flagfish by complexation with humic substances in acidified soft waters. Environ. Toxic. Chem. 6: 755-765.
- Hutner SH. 1972. Inorganic nutrition. Annual Reviews Microbiol. 26: 313-346.

I

- Ibrahim R and Barron D. Phenylpropanoids. In: Dey PM and Harborne JB (eds), Methods in Plant Biochemistry, vol 1, Academic Press (NY), pp 76-106.
- Idso SB, Allen SG, and Kimball BA. 1990. Growth response of water lily to atmospheric CO₂ enrichment. Aq. Bot. 37: 87-92.
- IFAS Aquatic plant line drawings are the copyright property of the University of Florida Center for Aquatic Plants (Gainesville). Used with permission.
- Iida, S *et al.* 2006. Molecular adaptation of *rbcL* in the heterophyllous aquatic plant *Potamogeton*. *PLOS ONE* 4: e4633.
- Iino M, Endo M, and Wada M. 1989. The occurrence of a Ca²⁺-dependent period in the red light-induced late G1 Phase of germinating *Adiantum* spores. Plant Physiol. 91: 610-616.
- Iivanainen EK et al. 1997. Mycobacteria in boreal coniferous forest soils. FEMS Microbiol Ecol 23: 325-332.
- Iizumi H and Hattori A. 1982. Growth and organic production of eelgrass (*Zostera marina* L.) in temperate waters of the pacific Coast of Japan. III. The kinetics of nitrogen uptake. Aq. Bot. 12: 245-256.
- Ingemarsson B, Johansson L, and Larsson C-M. 1984. Photosynthesis and nitrogen utilization in exponentially growing nitrogen-limited cultures of *Lemna gibba*. Physiol. Plant. 62: 363-369.
- Ingemarsson B. 1986. Patterns of N uptake, accumulation and assimilation in *Lemna gibba* when grown with exponentially increasing daily doses of N. In: Lambers H, Neeteson JJ, and Stulen I (eds). Fundamental, Ecological and Agricultural Aspects of Nitrogen Metabolism in Higher Plants (Martinus Nijhoff Publishers (Boston MA), pp. 65-69.
- Ishihara N and Matsushiro T. 1986. Biliary and urinary excretion of metals in humans. Arch. Environ. Health 41: 324-330.
- Ismail AS, Behrendt CL and Hooper LV. 2009. Reciprocal interactions between commensal bacteria and γδ intraepithelial lymphocytes during mucosal injury. J Immunol 182: 3047-3054.
- Isola A and Hayasaka _____. 1991. Effect of herbicide residues on microbial processes in pond sediment. Biological Abstracts 91: 67744.
- Iversen LLO Pedersen. 2019. Catchment properties and the photosynthetic trait composition of freshwater plant communities. Science 366: 878-81.

Izzati, M. 2015. Salt tolerance of several aquatic plants. *Proc. of 6th Inter. Conference on Global Resource Conservation (ICGRC)*: 154-58.

J

- Jackson MB. 1990. Hormones and developmental change in plants subjected to submergence or soil waterlogging. Aquatic Botany 38: 49-72.
- Jacobs JM, Stine CB, Baya AM and Kent ML. 2009. A review of mycobacteriosis in marine fish. J Fish Diseases 32: 119-130.
- Jacobs M and Rubery PH. 1988. Naturally occurring auxin transport regulators. Science 241: 346-349.
- Jacobsen N. 1976. Notes on Cryptocoryne of Sri Lanka (Ceylon). Bot. Notiser 129: 179-190.
- Jacobsen N. 1995. The narrow leaved Cryptocoryne of mainland Asia. 'The Aquatic Gardener' 8: 71-86.
- Jacangelo JG, Patania NL, Trussell R, Haas CN and Gerba C. 2002. Inactivation of Waterborne Emerging Pathogens by Selected Disinfectants. American Water Works Association Research Foundation (Denver, CO), 145 pp.
- Jain SK, Vasuldevan P, and Jha NK. 1990. *Azolla pinnata* R.Br. and *Lemna minor* L. for removal of lead and zinc from polluted water. Water Reserach 24: 177-183.
- James B. 1986. A Fishkeeper's Guide to Aquarium Plants. Salamander Books Limited (New York).
- James GV. 1971. Water Treatment. A Survey of Current Methods of Purifying Domestic Supplies and of Treating Industrial Effluents and Domestic Sewage (4th ed.). CRC Press (Cleveland OH).
- Jampeetong A and Brix H. 2009. Nitrogen nutrition of *Salvinia natans*: Effects of inorganic nitrogen form on growth, morphology, nitrate reductase activity and uptake kinetics of ammonium and nitrate. *Aquatic Botany* 90: 67-73.
- Jampeetong A and Brix H. 2009a. Effects of NaCl salinity on growth, morphology, photosynthesis and proline accumulation of *Salvinia natans*. *Aquatic Botany* 91: 181-186.
- Jauhiainen J, Wallen B, and Malmer N. 1998. Potential NH₄⁺ and NO₃⁻ uptake in seven *Sphagnum* species. New Phytologist 138: 287-293.
- Jaynes ML and Carpenter SR. 1986. Effects of vascular and nonvascular macrophytes on sediment redox and solute dynamics. Ecology 67: 875-882.
- Jedicke A, Furch B, Saint-Paul U and U-B Schluter. 1989. Increase in the oxygen concentration in Amazon waters resulting from the root exudation of two notorious water plants, *Eichhornia crassipes* (Pontederiaceae) and *Pistia stratiotes* (Araceae). Amazoniana XI: 53-69.
- Jefferies RL and Willis AJ. 1964. Studies on the calcicole-calcifuge habit. II. The influence of calcium on the growth and establishment of four species in soil and sand cultures. J. Ecology 52: 691-707.
- Jensen HS, Mortensen PB, Andersen FO, Rasmussen E, and Jensen A. 1995. Phosphorus cycling in a coastal marine sediment, Aarhus Bay, Denmark. Limnol. Oceanogr. 40: 908-917.
- Jernakoff P and J Nielsen. 1997. The relative importance of amphipod and gastropod grazers in *Posidonia sinuosa* meadows. Aq. Bot. 56: 183-202
- Jetten MSM, Strous M, van de Pas-Schoonen KT, Schalk J, van Dongen UGJM, van de Graaf AA, Logemann S, Muyzer G, van Loosdrecht MCM, and Kuenen JG. 1999. The anaerobic oxidation of ammonium. FEMS Microbiology Reviews 22: 421-437.
- Jobidon R. 1992. Allelopathy in Quebec forestry-- case studies in natural and managed ecosystems. In: Rizvi SJH and Rizvi V, Allelopathy, Basic and Applied Aspects, Chapman and Hall (New York), pp 341-356.
- Johnson WS, Gigon A, Gulmon SL, and Mooney HA. 1974. Comparative photosynthetic capacities of intertidal algae under exposed and submerged conditions. Ecology 55: 450-453.
- Joint I, Tait K, Callow ME, Callow JA, Milton D, Williams P, and Camara M. 2002. Cell-to-cell communication across the Prokaryote-Eukaryote boundary. Science 298: 1207.
- Jones JG and Simon BM. 1981. Differences in microbial decomposition processes in profundal and littoral lake sediments, with particular reference to the nitrogen cycle. J. Gen. Microbiol. 123: 297-312.

- Jones JG, Simon BM, and Horsley RW. 1982. Microbiological sources of ammonia in freshwater lake sediments. J. Gen Microbiol 128: 2823-2831.
- Jones RC. 1990. The effect of submersed aquatic vegetation on phytoplankton and water quality in the tidal freshwater Potomac River. J. Freshwater Ecology 5: 279-288.
- Jones TH, Thompson LJ, Lawton JH, Bezemer TM, Bardgett RD, Blackburn TM, Bruce KD, Cannon PF, Hall GS, Hartley SE, Howson G, Jones CG, Kampichler C, Kandeler E and Ritchie DA. 1998. Impacts of rising atmospheric carbon dioxide on model terrestrial ecosystems. Science 280: 441-443.
- Joshi MM and Hollis JP. 1977. Interaction of *Beggiatoa* and rice plant: Detoxification of hydrogen sulfide in the rice rhizosphere. Science 195: 179-180.
- Junk WF and Furch K. 1980. Quimica da agua e macrofitas aquaticas de rios e igarapes na Bacia Amazonica e nas areas adjacentes. ACTA AMAZONICA 10: 611-633 (in Portuguese).
- Juttner F. 1981. Biologically active compounds released during algal blooms. Verh. Int. Ver Limnol. 21: 227--230.

Κ

- Kadono Y. 1982. Occurrence of aquatic macrophytes in relation to pH, alkalinity, Ca⁺⁺, Cl⁻ and conductivity. Japanese J. Ecol. 32: 39-44.
- Kaiser E and Herndl GJ. 1997. Rapid recovery of marine bacterioplankton activity after inhibition by UV radiation in coastal waters. Appl Environ Microbiol 63: 4026-4031.
- Kane ME and Albert LS. 1987. Abscisic acid induces aerial leaf morphology and vasculature in submerged *Hippuris vulgaris* L. Aq. Bot. 28: 81-88.
- Kane ME, Davis GL, McConnell DB, and Gargiulo JA. 1999. In vitro propagation of *Cryptocoryne wendtii*. Aq. Bot. 63: 197-202.
- Kane ME, Gilman EG, Jenks MA, and Sheehan TJ. 1990. Micropropagation of the aquatic plant *Cryptocoryne lucens*. HortScience 25: 687-689.
- Kane ME, McConnell DB, Sheehan TJ, and Dehgan B. 1988a. A laboratory exercise to demonstrate adventitious shoot formation using stem internodes of Parrotfeather. HortScience 23: 408.
- Kane ME, Sheehan TJ, and Ferwerda FH. 1988b. *In Vitro* growth of American lotus embryos. HortScience 23: 611-613.
- Kansas State Teachers College. 1967. Common Aquatic weeds of Kansas Ponds and Lakes. The Emporia State Research Studies.
- Karpinski, S et al. 1999. >>>> Science 284: 654.
- Kasselmann C. 2008. *Nymphaea micrantha* and *N. gladulifera*, two small-leaved waterlilies for the foreground, pt. 1. TAG 20 (4). 2008.
- Kasselmann C. 2003. Aquarium Plants. (Krieger Publishing; Malabar, FL), 518 pp.
- Katoh K, Ishikawa M, Miyake K, Ohta Y, Hirose Y, and Iwamura T. 1980. Nutrient utilization and requirement under photoheterotrophic growth of *Marchantia polymorpha*: improvement of the culture media. Physiol. Plant. 49: 241-247.
- Kawaguchi K and Kyuma K. 1977. Paddy soils in tropical Asia. Their material nature and fertility. The Univ. Press of Hawaii (Honolulu, HI).
- Kazda J. 2000. The Ecology of Mycobacteria. Kluwer Academmic Publishers (Boston MA). 72 pp.
- Kazda J, Pavlik I, Falkinham III JO, Hruska K (editors). 2009. *The Ecology of Mycobacteria: Impact on Animal's and Human's Health.* Springer Publishers (New York), 520 pp.
- Keating KI. 1977. Allelopathic influence on Blue-Green bloom sequence in a eutrophic lake. Science 196: 885-887.
- Keating KI. 1978. Blue-Green algal inhibition of diatom growth; Transition from mesotrophic to eutrophic community structure. Science 199: 971-973.
- Keating KI. 1987. Exploring allelochemistry in aquatic systems. In: Waller GR (ed), ACS Symposium Series 330 (American Chemical Society, Washington DC), pp 136-146.

- Keeley JE. 1983. Crassulacean acid metabolism in the seasonally submerged aquatic *Isoetes howellii*. Oecologia (Berlin) 58: 57-62.
- Keeley JE. 1987. The adaptive radiation of photosynthesis modes in the genus *Isoetes* (Isoetaceae). In: RMM Crawford (ed), Plant Life in Aquatic and Amphibious Habitats. Blackwell Scientific publications (Boston, MA), pp 113-128.
- Keith JE, Boyer JG and de los Reyes FL. 2005. Changes in the rRNA levels of specific microbial groups in activated sludge during sample handling and storage. Lett Appl Microbiol 41: 208-215.
- Kelly CA, Rudd JWM, Furutani A, and Schindler DW. 1984. Effects of lake acidification on rates of organic matter decomposition in sediments. Limnol. Oceanogr. 29: 687-694.
- Kemp ALW, Gray CBJ, and Mudrochova **. 1972. Changes in C, N, P and S in the last 140 years in three cores from Lake Ontario, Erie and Huron. In: Allen HE and Kramer JR (eds), Nutrients in Natural Waters. Wiley-Interscience Publications (New York), p. 251-279.
- Kemp WM, Sampou P, Caffrey J, and Mayer M. 1990. Ammonium recycling versus denitrification in Chesapeake Bay sediments. Limnol. Oceanogr. 35: 1545-1563.
- Kent ML, Whipps CM, Matthews JL, Florio D, Watral V, Bishop-Stewart JK, Poort M, and Bermudez L. 2004. Mycobacteriosis in zebrafish (*Danio rerio*) research facilities. Comparative Biochemistry and Physiology 138: 383-390.
- Kent ML et al. 2006. *In vivo* and *in vitro* growth of *Mycobacterium marinum* in homeothermic temperatures. FEMS Microbiol Lett 257: 69-75.
- Kerfoot WC. 1989. Glucosinolates and phenolics in aquatic macrophytes: implications for allelopathy studies and suggested practical uses for metabolic blocking agents. Proceedings of 23rd Annual Meeting, Aquatic Plant Control Research Program. (Environmental Laboratory, U.S. Army Engineer Waterways Experiment Station (Vicksburg, MS), pp178-187.
- Kerr PC, Brockway DL, Paris DF and Sanders III, WM. 1972a. The carbon cycle in aquatic systems. In: Allen HE and Kramer JR (eds), Nutrients in Natural Waters. Wiley-Interscience Publications (New York), p. 101-124.
- Kerr PC, Brockway DL, Paris DF, and Barnett JT. 1972b. The interrelation of carbon and phosphorus in regulating heterotrophic and autotrophic populations in an aquatic ecosystem, Shriner's Pond. In: Likens GE (ed), Nutrient and Eutrophication: The Limiting-Nutrient Controversy. Allen Press, Inc (Lawrence KS), p. 42-62.
- Kerr RA. 1994. Iron fertilization: A tonic, but no cure for the greenhouse. Science 263: 1089-1090.
- Khademi S, O'Connell III J, Remis J, Robles-Colmenares Y, Miercke LJW and Stroud RM. 2004. Mechanism of ammonia transport by Amt/MEP/Rh: Structure of AmtB at 1.35 Å. Science 305: 1587-1594.
- Kim B and Wetzel RG. 1993. The effect of dissolved humic substances on the alkaline phosphatase and the growth of microalgae. Verh. Int. ver Limnol. 25: 129-132.
- Kim J et al. 2018. A molecular basis behind heterophylly in an amphibious plant, *Ranunculus trichophyllus*. PLOS Genetics 14(2): e1007208.
- King DL. 1972. Carbon limitation in sewage lagoons. In: Liken GE (ed.), Nutrients and Eutrophication: The Limiting Nutrient Controversy. Special Symposium, Am. Soc. Limnol. Oceanogr. 1: 98-110.
- Kirchgessner M and Schwarz FJ. 1986. Mineral content (major and trace elements) of carp (*Cyprinus carpio* L.) fed with different protein and energy supplies. Aquaculture 54: 3-9.
- Kirk GJD and Bajita JB. 1995. Root-induced iron oxidation, pH changes and zinc solubilization in the rhizosphere of lowland rice. New Phytol. 131: 129-137.
- Kirk JTO. 1994. Light and Photosynthesis in Aquatic Ecosystems. 2nd Edition. Cambridge Univ. Press (Cambridge MA), 509 pp.
- Kirschner RA Jr *et al.* 1992. Epidemiology of infection by nontuberculous mycobacteria. Am Rev Respir Dis 145: 271-275.
- Kirschner RA Jr *et al.* 1999. Humic and fulvic acids stimulate the growth of *Mycobacterium avium*. FEMS Microbiol Ecol 30: 327-332.
- Kistritz RU. 1978. Recycling of nutrients in an enclosed aquatic community of decomposing macrophytes (*Myriophyllum spicatum*). OIKOS 30: 561-569.

- Kithsiri HMP. 2007 Growth and reproductive performance of female guppy (*Poecilia reticulata*) in response to dietary fatty acids. (for Ph.D. in Inland Aquaculture). Deemed Univ. (Versova, Mumbai), 208 pp.
- Kleiner D. 1981. The transport of NH_3 and NH_{4+} across biological membranes. Biochimica et Biophysica Acta 639: 41-52.
- Koch MS, Mendelssohn IA, and McKee KL. 1990. Mechanism for the hydrogen sulfide-induced growth limitation in wetland macrophytes. Limnol. Oceanogr. 35: 399-408.
- Koga H et al. 2021. Identification of the unique molecular framework of heterophylly in the amphibious plant *Callitriche palustris* L. Plant Cell 33: 3272-92.
- Kokkali V *et al.* 2011. Monitoring the effect of metal ions on the mobility of *Artemia salina* nauplii. Biosensors 1: 36-45
- Koncalova H. 1990. Anatomical adaptations to waterlogging in roots of wetland graminoids: limitations and drawbacks. Aq. Bot. 38: 127-134.
- Kostka, JE, Dalton DD, Skelton H, Dollhopf S, and Stucki JW. 2002. Growth of iron (III)-reducing bacteria on clay minerals as the sole electron acceptor and comparison of growth yields on a variety of oxidized iron forms. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 68: 6256-6262.
- Kostyuk PG. 1980. Calcium ionic channels in electrically excitable membrane. Neuroscience 5: 945-959.
- Kouba A *et al.* 2011. Use of three forms of decapsulated *Artemia* cysts as food for juvenile noble crayfish (*Astacus astacus*). Czech. J. Anim. Sci. 56: 114-118.
- Kraak MHS, Wink YA, Stuijfzand SC, Buckert-de Jong MC, de Groot CJ, and Admiraal W. 1994. Chronic ecotoxicity of Zn and Pb to the zebra mussel *Dreissena polymorpha*. Aquatic Toxicol. 30: 77-89.
- Krajina VJ, Madoc-Jones S, and Mellor G. 1973. Ammonium and nitrate in the nitrogen economy of some conifers growing in Douglas-fir communities of the Pacific North-West of America. Soil Biol. Biochem. 5: 143-147.
- Kroupova H et al. 2005. Nitrite influence on fish: a review. Vet Med- Czech 50: 461-471.
- Kuenzler EJ, Belensz AJ, and Rudek J. 1986. Nutrient cycling and productivity of a North Carolina Piedmont Reservoir. Report No. 228. Water Resources Research Institute of the Univ. of North Carolina (Chapel Hill, NC).
- Kufel I. 1991. Lead and molybdenum in reed and cattail-open versus closed type of metal cycling. Aquatic Botany 40: 275-288.
- Kulshreshtha M and Gopal B. 1983. Allelopathic influence of *Hydrilla verticillata* (L.F.) Royle on the distribution of *Ceratophyllum* species. Aquatic Botany 17: 207-209.
- Kurtz LT. 1980. Potential for nitrogen loss. In: Meisinger JJ, Randall GW, Vitosh ML (eds), Nitrification Inhibitors-- Potentials and Limitations. Am. Soc. of Agronomy (Madison, WI), pp 1-17.
- Kušar D, Zajc U, Jenčič, V, Ocepek M, Higgins J, Žolnir-Dovč M, and M Pate. 2016. Mycobacteria in aquarium fish: results of a 3-year survey indicate caution required in handling petshop fish. J Fish Diseases DOI: 10.1111/jfd.12558 [on-line published article from Slovenia]
- Kuwabara A et al. 2003. Effects of ethylene and abscisic acid upon heterophylly in *Ludwigia arcuata* (Onagraceae). Planta 217: 880-87.
- Kyuma K. 1989. Classification and management of rice growing soils. Food and Fertilizer Technology Center (Taipei, Taiwan).

L

- Laanbroek HJ. 1990. Bacterial cycling of minerals that affect plant growth in waterlogged soils: a review. Aq. Bot. 38: 109-125.
- Labrenz M, Druschel GK, Thomsen-Ebert T, Gilbert B, Welch SA, Kemner KM, Logan GA, Summons RE, De Stasio G, Bond PL, Lai B, Kelly SD, and Banfield JF. 2000. Formation of sphalerite (ZnS) deposits in natural biofilms of sulfate-reducing bacteria. Science 290: 1744- 1747.
- Lacroix GL, Peterson RH, Belfry CS, and Martin-Robichaud DJ. 1993. Aluminum dynamics on gills of Atlantic salmon fry in the presence of citrate and effects on intergrity of gill structures. Aquatic Toxicol. 27: 373-402.

- Lall SP. The minerals. In: Halver JE (ed). Fish Nutrition. Second Edition. Academic Press, Inc. (New York), pp. 232-235.
- Langeland KA, Sutton DL and Canfield DE. 1983. Growth response of Hydrilla to extractable nutrients in prepared substrates. J. Freshwater Ecology 2: 263-272.
- Latch DE and McNeill K. 2006. Microheterogeneity of singlet oxygen distributions in irradiated humic acid solutions. Science 311: 1743-1746.
- Lavens P and Sorgeloos P. 2000. The history, present status and prospects of the availability of *Artemia* cysts for aquaculture. Aquaculture 181: 397-403.
- Lawlor DW. 1987. Photosynthesis: Metabolism, Control, and Physiology. Longman Scientific & Technical. (New York).
- Lawrence JR and Caldwell DE. 1987. Behavior of bacterial stream populations within the hydrodynamic boundary layers of surface microenvironments. Microb. Ecol. 14: 15-27.
- Leather GR and Einhellig FA. 1986. Bioassays in the study of allelopathy. In: Putnam AR and Tang C-H (Eds.), The Science of Allelopathy. John Wiley and Sons (NY), pp 133-145.
- LeChevallier MW. 2004. Control, treatment and disinfection of Mycobacterium avium complex in drinking water. In: Pedley S *et al* (eds). Pathogenic Mycobacteria in Water. IWA Publishing (London, UK) for the World Health Organization, pp. 143-168.
- Leclerc H. 2003. Relationships between common water bacteria and pathogens in drinking water. In Bartram J *et al* (eds). Heterotrophic Plate Counts in Drinking-water Safety. IWA Publishing (London, UK) for the World Health Organization, pp. 80-118.
- Lederberg J (ed). 2000. Encyclopedia of Microbiology (vol 3). Academic Press (NY, NY), pp 312-327.
- Lee K-S and KH Dunton. 1999. Inorganic nitrogen acquisition in the seagrass *Thalassia testudinum*: Development of a whole-plant nitrogen budget. Limnol. Oceanogr. 44: 1204-1215.
- Lee RE. 1989. Phycology (Second Edition). Cambridge University Press (New York), 645 pp.
- Leger, P *et al.* 1983. International study on *Artemia* XXIV. Cold storage of live *Artemia* nauplii from various geographical sources: Potentials and limits in aquaculture. *Aquacultural Engineering* 2: 69-78.
- Leger P *et al.* 1986. The use and nutritional value of *Artemia* as a food cource. *Oceanogr Mar Biol Ann Rev* 24: 521-623.
- Leland HV and Kuwabara. 1985. Trace metals. In: Rand GM and Petrocelli SM (Eds.), Fundamentals of Aquatic Toxicology. Hemisphere Publishing Corp. (Washington, D.C.), pp. 374-415.
- Lembi CA and Netherland MD. 1992. Pland Growth Regulation: A Viable Concept in Aquatic Plant Management. Indiana Water Resources Research Center, Purdue Univ. (West Lafayette, IN), 38 pp. (PB29-161330)
- Les DH and Sheridan DJ. 1990. Biochemical heterophylly and flavonoid evolution in North American *Potamogeton* (Potamogetonaceae). Amer. J. Bot 77: 453-465.

Lescenko P, Matlova L, Dvorska L, Bartos M, Vavra O, Navratil S, Novotny L and Pavlik I. 2003. Mycobacterial infection in aquarium fish. Veterinarni Medicina 48: 71-78. [Czech Republic]

- Leung H-W. 2001. Aerobic and anaerobic metabolism of glutaraldehyde in a river water-sediment system. Arch Environ Contam Toxicol 41: 267-273.
- Levi MH *et al.* 2003. Characterization of *Mycobacterium montefiorense* sp. nov., a novel pathogenic *Mycobacterium* from moray eels that is related to *Mycobacterium triplex*. J Clin Microbiol 41: 2147-2152.
- Lewbart G. 2001. Practical Koi and Goldfish Medicine (Internet Article)
- Lewis OAM. 1986. Plants and Nitrogen. Edward Arnold Publishers, LTD. Baltimore, MD.
- Leys NM *et al.* 2005. Occurrence and community composition of fast-growing *Mycobacterium* in soils contaminated with polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons. FEMS Microbiol. Ecol. 51: 375-388.
- Li M and Jones MB. 1995. CO₂ and O₂ transport in the aerenchyma of *Cperus papyrus* L. Aquatic Botany 52: 93-106.

- Li P and Gatlin III D. 2005. Evaluation of the prebiotic GroBiotic®–A and brewers yeast as dietary supplements for subadult hybrid striped bass (*Morone chrysopsX M. saxatilis*) challenged in situ with *Mycobacterium marinum*. Aquaculture 248: 197-205 (2005).
- Lim IC, Cho YI, Dhert P, Wong CC, Nelis H and P Sorgeloos. 2002. Use of decapsulated *Artemia* cysts in ornamental fish culture. Aquaculture Research 33: 575-589.
- Lin B-L et al. 2005. Abscisic acid regulation of heterophylly in *Marsilea quadrifolia* L.: effects of R-(-) and S-(+) isomers. J Expt Botany 56: 2935-48.
- Lindell D, Padan E, and Post AF. 1998. Regulation of *ntcA* expression and nitrite uptake in the marine *Synechococcus* sp. Strain WH 7803. J. Bacteriology 180: 1878-1886.
- Linder MC. 1991. Nutritional Biochemistry and Metabolism with Clinical Applications (Second Ed.). Elsevier (New York).
- Lindsay WL. 1984. Soil and plant relationships associated with iron deficiency with emphasis on nutrient interactions. J. Plant Nutrition 7: 489-500.
- Linsmailer EM and Skoog F. 1965. Organic growth factor requirements of tobacco tissue cultures. Physiologia Plantarum 18: 100-127.
- Linton S and Goulder R. 1998. The duckweed *Lemna minor* compared with the alga *Selenastrum capricornutum* for bioassay of pond-water richness. Aquatic Botany 60: 27-36.
 Lloyd NDH, Canvin DT, and Bristow JM. 1977. Photosynthesis and photorespiration in submerged aquatic vascular plants. Can. J. of Botany 55: 3001-3005.
- Lodge DM. 1991. Herbivory of freshwater macrophytes. Aq. Bot. 41: 195-224.
- London J and Kolenbrander PE. 1996. Coaggregation: Enhancing colonization in a fluctuating environment. In: Fletcher M (ed), Bacterial Adhesion, John Wiley (NY), pp 249-279.
- Lonergan TA 1990. Steps linking the photosynthetic light reactions to the biological clock require calcium. Plant Physiol. 93: 110-115.
- Lovley DR. 1991. Dissimilatory Fe (III) and Mn (IV) reduction. Microbiol Rev 55: 259-87.
- Lowden RM. 1982. An approach to the taxonomy of Vallisneria L. (Hydrocharitaceae). Aq. Bot. 13: 269-298.
- Lumsden PJ, Saji H, and Furuya M. 1987. Action spectra confirm two separate actions of phytochrome in the induction of flowering in *Lemna paucicostata* 441. Plant Cell Physiol. 28: 1237-1242.

М

- MacDonald GE, Puri A, and Shilling DG. 2008. Interactive effect of photoperiod and fluridone on growth, reproduction, and biochemistry of dioecious Hydrilla (*Hydrilla verticillata*). Weed Science 56: 189-195.
- MacFarlane GT and Herbert RA. 1982. Nitrate dissimilation by *Vibrio* spp. isolated from estuarine sediments. J Gen Microbiol 128: 2463-2468.
- MacRae TH and Pandey AS. 1991. Effects of metals on the early life stages of the Brine Shrimp, *Artemia*: A developmental toxicity assay. Arch. Environ. Contam. Toxicol. 20: 247-252.
- Madsen TV and Sondergaard M. 1983. The effects of current velocity on the photosynthesis of *Callitriche stagnalis* Scop. Aq. Bot. 15: 187-193.
- Madsen TV and Maberly SC. 1991b. Diurnal variation in light and carbon limitation of photosynthesis by two species of submerged freshwater macrophyte with a differential ability to use bicarbonate. Freshwater Biol. 26: 175-187.
- Madsen TV and Sand-Jensen K. 1987. Photosynthetic capacity, bicarbonate affinity and growth of Elodea canadensis exposed to different concentrations of inorganic carbon. OIKOS 50: 176-182. (**Have PDF of abstract only.)
- Madsen TV and Sand-Jensen K. 1991. Photosynthetic carbon assimilation in aquatic macrophytes. Aq. Bot. 41: 5-40.
- Madsen TV. 1993. Growth and photosynthetic acclimation by *Ranunculus aquatilis* L. in response to inorganic carbon availability. New Phytol 125: 707-15.
- Madsen TV, Maberly SC and Bowes G. 1996. Photosynthetic acclimation of submersed angiosperms to CO2 and HCO3-. Aq Bot 53: 15-30.

- Madsen JD et al. 2001. The interaction between water movement, sediment dynamics and submersed macrophytes. Hydrobiologia 444: 71-84.
- Maida M, Carroll AR, and Coll JC. 1993. Variability of terpene content in the soft coral *Sinularia flexibilis* (Coelenterata: Octocorallia), and its ecological implications. J. Chem. Ecology 19: 2285-2296.
- Mainous ME and Smith SA. 2005. Efficacy of common disinfectants against *Mycobacterium marinum*. J Aquatic Animal Health 17: 284-288.
- Majeed SK and Gopinath C. 1983. Cutaneous tuberculosis in the carp, *Cyprinus carpio* L. J Fish Diseases 6: 313-316.
- Majeed SK, Gopinath C and Jolly DW. 1981. Pathology of spontaneous tuberculosis and pseudotuberculosis in fish. J Fish Dis 4: 507-512.
- Malla S and S Banik. 2015 Production and application of live food organisms for freshwater ornamental fish Larviculture. Adv. Biores. 6: 159-167.
- Mann CJ and Wetzel RG. 1996. Loading and utilization of dissolved organic carbon from emergent macrophytes. Aquatic Botany 53: 61-72.
- Mann KH. 1972. Macrophyte production and detritus food chains in coastal waters. Mem. Ist Ital. Idrobiol., 29(Supple.): 353-383.
- Mann KH. 1973. Seaweeds: Their productivity and strategy for growth. Science 182: 975-981.
- Mansor M and Masnadi M. 1994. *Cryptocoryne elliptica*, an endangered amphibious plant in Pondok Tanjung Forest Reserve, Peninsular Malaysia. Aquatic Botany 47: 91-96.
- Marchand L, Charest PM, and Ibrahim RK. 1987. Localization of partially methylated flavonol glucosides in *Chrysosplenium americanum*: Immunogold labeling. J. Plant Physiol. 131: 339-348.
- Marchinchin Joe. 2019. Cation Exchange Capacity—What is CEC and How Does It Impact Soil Fertility? https://www.turfcaresupply.com
- Markich SJ and Jeffree RA. 1994. Absorption of divalent trace metals as analogues of calcium by Australian freshwater bivalves: an explanation of how water hardness reduces metal toxicity. Aquatic Toxicol. 29: 257-290.
- Marquenie-van der Werff M and Ernst WHO. 1979. Kinetics of copper and zinc uptake by leaves and roots of an aquatic plant, *Elodea nuttallii*. Z. Pflanzenphysiol. Bd. 92: 1-10.
- Marques A, Dinh T, Ioakeimidis C, Huys G, Swings J, Verstraete W, Dhont J, Sorgeloos P and Bossier P. 2005. Effects of bacteria on Artemia franciscana cultured in different gnotobiotic environments. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 71: 4307-4317.
- Marshall J, Corzo A, Leigh RA, and Sanders D. 1994. Membrane potential-dependent calcium transport in right-sideout plasma membrane vesicles from *Zea mays* L. roots. The Plant J. 5: 683-694.
- Marshall KC. 1976. Interfaces in Microbial Ecology. Harvard University Press, Cambridge, MA, 156 pp.
- Marshall KC. 1996. Adhesion as a strategy for access to nutrients. In: Fletcher M (ed), Bacterial Adhesion, John Wiley (NY), pp 59-87.
- Marsollier L *et al.* 2004. Aquatic plants stimulate the growth of and biofilm formation by *Mycobacterium ulcerans* in axenic culture and harbor these bacteria in the environment. Applied Environ. Microbiol. 70: 1097-1103.
- Marsollier L et al. 2004a. Aquatic snails, passive hosts of Mycobacterium ulcerans. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 70: 6296-6298.
- Martin JH, Gordon RM, and Fitzwater SE. 1991. The case for iron. Limnol. Oceanogr. 36: 1793-1802.
- Martin RB. 1984. Bioinorganic chemistry of calcium. In: Sigel H (ed), Metal Ions in Biological Systems (Vol 17). Calcium and Its Role in Biology, pp 1-49.
- Martin RB. 1986. Bioinorganic chemistry of metal ion toxicity. In: Sigel H (ed), Metal Ions in Biological Systems (Vol 20). Concepts on Metal Ion Toxicity, pp 21-45+.
- Martyn RD and Cody YS. 1983b. Isolation of phenol cells from waterhyacinth leaves and possible effect on the growth of foliar pathogens. J. Aquat. Plant Manage. 21: 58-61.

- Martyn RD, Samuelson DA, and Freeman TE. 1983a. Phenol-storing cells in waterhyacinth leaves. J. Aquat. Plant Manage. 21: 49-53.
- Martyn RD, Samuelson DA, and Freeman TE. 1983c. Electron microscopy of the penetration and colonization of waterhyacinth by *Acremonium zonatum*. J. Aquat. Plant Manage. 21: 53-58.
- Mason HL. 1957. Flora of the Marshes of California. Univ. of California Press (Berkeley CA).
- Mason T, Snell K, Mittge E, Melancon E, Montgomery R, McFadden M, Camoriano J, Kent ML, Whipps CM, and Peirce J. 2016. Strategies to mitigate a *Mycobacterium marinum* outbreak in a zebrafish research facility. Zebrafish 13: S77-S87.
- Masuda S, Watanabe Y, and Ishiguro M. 1991. Biofilm properties and simultaneous nitrification and denitrification in aerobic rotating biological contactors. Water Science & Technology 23: 1355-1363.
- Maule AG, Tripp RA, Kaattari SL and Schreck CB. 1989. Stress alters immune function and disease resistance in chinook salmon (*Oncorhynchus tshawytscha*). J Endocrinology 120: 135-142.
- Mayes RA and McIntosh AW. 1977. Uptake of cadmium and lead by a rooted aquatic macrophyte (*Elodea canadensis*). Ecology 58: 1176-1180.
- Maynard LA, Loosli JK, Hintz HF, and Warner RG. 1972. Animal Nutritiion (7th ed.), McGraw-Hill Book Co. (New York).
- McClure JW. 1970. Secondary constituents of aquatic angiosperms. In: Harborne JB (ed), Phytochemical Phylogeny. Academic Press (NY), pp 233-268.
- McCracken IR. 1987. Biological cycling of cadmium in fresh water. In: Nriagu JO and Sprague JB. Advances in Environmental Science and Technology, vol 19. John Wiley & Sons (New York), pp. 89-116.
- McCreary NJ, Carpenter SR, and Chaney JE. 1983. Coexistence and interference in two submersed freshwater perennial plants. Oecologia (Berlin) 59: 393-396.
- McDowell, Andy. Jan-Mar 2017. What exactly causes BBA? Bacterial imbalance? TAG 30 (1): 37-44.
- McGrath SP and Rorison IH. 1982. The influence of nitrogen source on the tolerance of *Holcus lanatus* L. and *Bromus erectus* Huds. to manganese. The New Phytologist 90: 443-452.
- McKee HS. 1962. Nitrogen Metabolism in Plants. Clarendon Press (Oxford, Great Britain), pp. 9-15.
- McKinney RE. 2004. Environmental Pollution Control Microbiology. Marecel Dekker, Inc (NY, NY), 447 pages.
- McKey D, Waterman PG, Gartlan JS, and Struhsaker TT. 1978. Phenolic content of vegetation in two African rain forests: ecological implications. Science 202: 61-64.
- McKim JM. 1985. Early life stage toxicity texts. In: Rand GM and Petrocelli SM (Eds.), Fundamentals of Aquatic Toxicology. Hemisphere Publishing Corp. (Washington, D.C.), pp. 58-95.
- McKnight MM and JD Neufeld. 2021. Microbial community analysis of biofilters reveals a dominance of either comammox *Nitrospira* or archaea as ammonia oxidizers in freshwater aquaria. BioRxiv 2021.11.24.468873.
- McMillan C. 1982. Reproductive physiology of tropical seagrasses. Aquatic Botany 14: 245-258.
- McNaughton SJ. 1968. Autotoxic feedback in relation to germination and seedling growth in *Typha latifolia*. Ecology 49: 367-369.
- McPherson JK, Chou CH, and Muller CH. 1971. Allelopathic constituents of the chaparral shrub *Adenostoma fasciculatum*. Phytochemistry 10: 2925-2933.
- McRoy CP and Barsdate RJ. 1970. Phosphate absorption in eelgrass. Limnol. Oceanogr. 15: 6-13.
- McRoy CP, Barsdate RJ, and Nebert M. 1972. Phosphorus cycling in an eelgrass (*Zostera marina* L.) ecosystem. Limnol. Oceanogr. 17: 58-67.
- Meadows PS and Anderson JG. 1966. Micro-organisms attached to marine and freshwater sand grains. Nature 212: 1059-1060.
- Mehta PK et al. 2006. Identification of *Mycobacterium marinum* macrophage infection mutants. Microbial Pathog 40: 139-151.
- Mertz W. 1986 and 1987. Trace Elements in Human and Animal Nutrition-- Fifth Ed. Vol. 1 and 2. Academic Press (New York).

- Methe BA *et al.* 2003. Genome of *Geobacter sulfurreducens*: metal reduction in subsurface environments. Science 302: 1967-1969.
- Miller JH, Vogelmann TC, and Bassel AR. 1983. Promotion of fern rhizoid elongation by metal ions and the function of the spore coat as an ion reservoir. Plant Physiol. 71: 828-834.
- Miller TG and MacKay WC. 1980. The effects of hardness, alkalinity and pH of test water on the toxicity of copper to rainbow trout (*Salmo gairdneri*). Water Research 14: 129-133.
- Mills AL and Powelson DK. 1996. Bacterial interactions with surfaces in soils. In: Fletcher M (ed), Bacterial Adhesion, John Wiley (NY), pp 25-57.
- Misra RD. 1938. Edaphic factors in the distribution of aquatic plants in the English lakes. J. Ecology 26: 411-451.
- Miyazaki T and Satake K. 1985. *In situ* measurement of uptake of inorganic carbon and nitrogen by the aquatic liverworts *Jungermannia vulcanicola* Steph. and *Scapania undulata* (L.) Dum. in an acid stream, Kashiranashigawa, Japan. Hydrobiologia 124: 29-34.
- Mo SC, Choi DS, and Robinson JW. 1989. Uptake of mercury from aqueous solution by duckweed: The effects of pH, copper and humic acid. J. Environ. Sci. Health A24: 135-146.
- Mock A and Peters G. 1990. Lysozyme activity in rainbow trout, *Oncorhynchus mykiss* (Walbaum), stressed by handling, transport and water pollution. J Fish Biol 37: 873-885.
- Moe MA. 1989. The Marine Aquarium Reference. Green Turtle Publications (Plantation FL).
- Moeller RE, Burkholder JM, And Wetzel RG. 1988. Significance of sedimentary phosphorus to a rooted submersed macrophyte (*Naja flexilis* (Willd.) Rostk. and Schmidt) and its algal epiphytes. Aq. Bot. 32: 261-281.
- Moens *et al.* 1989. The hemoglobins of *Artemia*; oxygen carriers with multidomain globin chains. In: MacRae TH, Bagshaw JC, and Warner AH (eds). Biochemistry and Cell Biology of *Artemia*. CRC Press (Boca Raton FL).
- Mohan P. 1994. Light measurement in the reef aquarium. 'Freshwater and Marine Aquarium' magazine, Feb 1994.

Mohan, Pete. 1997. On-line comments from saltwater fish expert.

- Mohebbi F. 2010. The brine shrimp Artemia and hypersaline environments microalgal composition: a mutual interaction (Review). Int. J. Aquat. Sci. 1: 19-27.
- Mole S and Waterman PG. 1987. A critical analysis of techniques for measuring tannins in ecological studies. Oecologia 72: 137-147.
- Mommer L et al. 2006. Photosynthetic consequences of phenotypic plasticity in response to submergence: *Rumex* palustris as a case study. J Expt Bot 57: 283-290.
- Momokawa N et al. 2011. Effects of light quality on leaf morphogenesis of a heterophyllous amphibious plant, *Rotala hippuris*. Annals Botany 108: 1299-1306
- Monties B. 1989. Lignins. In Dey PM and Harborne JB (eds), Methods in Plant Biochemistry, vol 1, Academic Press (NY), pp 113-157.
- Moon RE and Martin DF. 1985. Allelopathic substances from a marine alga (*Nannochloris* sp.). In: Thompson AC. (Ed.). The Chemistry of Allelopathy, ACS Symposium Series 268, pp 371-380.
- Moore BC, Lafer JE, and Funk WH. 1994. Influence of aquatic macrophytes on phosphorus and sediment porewater chemistry in a freshwater wetland. Aquatic Botany 49: 137-148.
- Moorhead KK and Reddy KR. 1988. Oxygen transport through selected aquatic macrophytes. J. Envir. Quality 17: 138-142.
- Morel FMM. 1983. Principles of Aquatic Chemistry. John Wiley & Sons (NY), pp. 367-372.
- Moriarty DJW. 1998. Control of luminous Vibrio species in penaeid aquaculture ponds. Aquaculture 164: 351-358.
- Morris C...and CM Wood. 2021. The physiology of fish in acidic wters rich in dissolved organic carbon, with specific reference to the Amazon basin: Ionoregulation, acid-base regulation, ammonia excretion, and metal toxicity. J Exp Zool A Ecol Integr Physiol. 2021: 1-21
- Morton SD, Sernau R, and Derse PH. 1972. Natural carbon sources, rates of replenishment, and algal growth. In: Likens GE (ed), Nutrients and Eutrophication: The Limiting-Nutrient Controversy. Allen Press, Inc (Lawrence KS), p. 197-204.
- Mostowy S et al. 2003. The in vitro evolution of BCG vaccines. Vaccine 21: 4270–4274.

- Mouton A, Basson L and Impson D. 2001. Health status of ornamental freshwater fishes imported to South Africa: a pilot study. Aquarium Sci Conservation 3: 327-333.
- Moyle JB. 1945. Some chemical factors influencing the distribution of aquatic plants in Minnesota. American Midlands Naturalist 34: 402-420.
- Muenscher WC. 1944. Aquatic Plants of the United States. Comstock Publishing Inc., Cornell University (Ithaca NY).
- Muller CH and Chou CH. 1972. Phytotoxins: An ecological phase of phytochemistry. In: Harborne JB (ed), Phytochemical Ecology, Academic Press (NY), pp 201-216.
- Mura M *et al.* 2006. Replication and long-term persistence of bovine and human strains of *Mycobacterium avium* subsp. *paratuberculosis* within *Acanthamoeba polyphaga*. Appl Environ Microbiol 72: 854-859.
- Musser, JM, Amin A and Ramaswamy S. 2000. Negligible genetic diversity of *Mycobacterium tuberculosis* host immune system protein targets: evidence of limited selective pressure. Genetics 155: 7-16.
- Myneni SCB, Brown JT, Martinez GA, and Meyer-Ilse W. 1999. Imaging of humic substance macromolecular structures in water and soils. Science 286: 1335-1338.

Ν

- Nakada M, Fukaya K, Takeshita S, and Wada Y. 1979. The accumulation of heavy metals in the submerged plant (*Elodea nuttallii*). Bull. Environ. Contam. Toxicol. 22: 21-27.
- Nakai S, Inoue Y, Hosomi M and Murakami A. 1999. Growth inhibition of blue-green algae by allelopathic effects of macrophytes. Wat. Sci. Tech. 39: 47-53.
- Nakajima M, Nishimura H, and Kumagai M. 1981. Dynamics of phosphorus and nitrogen during algal blooms in a controlled ecosystem. Verh. Int. ver Limnol. 21: 263-267.
- Nakayama H *et al.* 2014. Regulation of the KNOX-GA gene module induces heterophyllic alteration in North American Lake Cress. *Plant Cell* 26: 4733-48.
- Nakano H.....Koide Y. 2006 Immunization with dendritic cells retrovirally transduced with mycobacterial antigen 85A gene elicits the specific cellular immunity including cytotoxic T-lymphocyte activity specfic to an epitope on antigen 85A. Vaccine 24: 2110-2119.
- Nambu Z, Tanaka S, and Nambu F. 2004. Influence of photoperiod and temperature on reproductive mode in the brine shrimp, *Artemia franciscana*. J. Expt. Zoology 301A:542-546.
- NAS. 1977. Nutrient Requirements of Warmwater Fishes. National Academy of Sciences (Washington, DC).
- Nasar SAK and Datta-Munshi J. 1974. Seasonal variation in the physico-chemical and biological properties of a tropical shallow pond. Japanese J. Ecology 24: 255-259.
- Nate. 2014 https://spec-tanks.com/transitioning-aquarium-plants-emersed-to-submersed-immersed/ (Accessed August 2022).
- National Research Council. 1983. Nutrient Requirements of Warmwater Fishes and Shellfishes. National Academy Press (Washington, DC).
- Nealson KH. 1997. SEDIMENT BACTERIA: Who's there, What are they doing? and What's new? Annu Rev Earth Planet Sci 25: 404-34.
- Nelson SG, Smith BD, and Best BR. 1980. Nitrogen uptake by tropical freshwater macrophytes. Technical Report by Water Resources Research Center of Guam Univ. Agana. (Available from National Technical Information Service (NTIS), Springfield VA 22161 as PB80-194228.)
- Neori A and M Agami. 2017. The functioning of rhizosphere biota in wetlands- a review. Wetlands 37: 615-33.

Nester EW et al (Eds.). Microbiology. A Human Perspective (5th Edition). McGraw Hill (NY), 811 pp.

- Neumann M, Schulze-Robbecke R, Hagenau C and Behringer K. 1997. Comparison of methods for isolation of mycobacteria from water. App Environ Microb 63: 547-552.
- Newman MC and Mitz SV. 1988. Size dependence of zinc elimination and uptake from water by mosquitofish *Gambusia affinis* (Baird and Girard). Aquatic Toxicology 12: 17-32.

- Newman RM, Hanscom Z, and Kerfoot WC. 1992. The watercress glucosinolate-myrosinase system: a feeding deterrent to caddisflies, snails and amphipods. Oecologia 92: 1-7.
- Newman RM. 1991. Herbivory and detritivory on freshwater macrophytes by invertebrates: a review. J. North American Benthological. Society 10: 89-114.
- Newman S and Haller WT. 1988. Mineral deficiency symptoms of waterhyacinth. J. Aquat. Plant Manage. 26: 55-58.
- Nichols DS and Keeney DR. 1976. Nitrogen nutrition of *Myriophyllum spicatum*: Uptake and translocation of ¹⁵N by shoots and roots. Freshwater Biology 6: 145-154.
- Nichols HW and Bold GC. 1965. Trichosarcina polymorpha Gen. et Sp. Nov. J. Phycol. 1: 34-38.
- Nicholson RL and Hammerschmidt R. 1992. Phenolic compounds and their role in disease resistance. Annu. Rev. Phytopathol. 30: 369-389.
- Nicholson RL, Kollipara SS, Vincent JR, Lyons PC, and Cadena-Gomez G. 1987. Phytoalexin synthesis by the sorghum mesocotyl in response to infection by pathogenic and nonpathogenic fungi. Proc. Natl. Acad. Sci. 34: 5520-5524.
- Nieboer E and Richardson DHS. 1980. The replacement of the nondescript term 'heavy metals' by a biologically and chemically significant classification of metal ions. Environ. Pollution (Series B) 1: 3-26.
- Nielsen ES. 1955. An effect of antibiotics produced by plankton algae. Nature 176: 553.
- Nielsen SL and Sand-Jensen K. 1991. Variation in growth rates of submerged rooted macrophytes. Aq. Bot. 39: 109-120.
- Nielsen SL and Sand-Jensen K. 1993. Photosynthetic implications of heterophylly in *Batrachium peltatum* (Schrank) Presl. Aquatic Botany 4: 361-371.
- Nikinmaa M. 1992. How does environmental pollution affect red cell function in fish? Aquatic Toxicology 22: 227-238.
- Noga EJ. 2000. Fish Disease. Diagnosis and Treatment. Iowa State Univ. Press (Ames, Iowa), 367 pp.
- Nor YM and Cheng HH. 1986. Chemical speciation and bioavailability of copper: Uptake and accumulation by *Eichornia*. Environ. Toxicol. Chem. 5: 941-947.
- Notton BA. 1983. Micronutrients and nitrate reductase. In: Robb DA and Pierpoint WE (eds), Metals and Micronutrients: Uptake and Utilization by Plants. Academic Press (New York), pp. 228-239.
- Novotny L, Dvorska L, Lorencova A, Beran V and Pavlik I. 2004. Fish: a potential source of bacterial pathogens for human beings. Vet Med (Czech) 49: 343-358.
- NRCS 2009. Soil Biology: Soil protozoa. Internet article from government.

0

- Obenhuber DC and Lowrance R. 1991. Reduction of nitrate in aquifer microcosms by carbon additions. J. Environ. Qual. 20: 255-258.
- Ochman H and Davalos LM. 2006. The nature and dynamics of bacterial genomes. Science 311: 1730-1733.
- O'Connor JT. 1971. Iron and manganese. In: The American Water Works Assoc., Inc (ed), Water Quality and Treatment (3rd ed). McGraw-Hill Book Co (New York), pp 378-396.
- Ohle W. 1978. Ebullition of gases from sediment, conditions, and relationship to primary production of lakes. Verh. Int. ver Limnol. 20: 957-962.
- Ohmori M, Ohmori K, and Strotmann H. 1977. Inhibition of nitrate uptake by ammonia in a blue-green alga, *Anabeaena cylindrica*. Archiv. Microbiol. 114: 225-229.
- Orebamjo TO and Stewart GR. 1975. Ammonium inactivation of nitrate reductase in *Lemna minor* L. Planta (Berl.) 122: 37-44.
- Oremland RS and Stolz JF. 2003. The ecology of arsenic. Science 300: 939-947.
- Osburn ED and JE Barrett. 2020. Abundance and functional importance of complete ammonia-oxidizing bacteria (comammox) versus canonical nitrifiers in temperate forest soils. Soil Biol Biochem 145: 107801.

- Ostland VE, Watral V, Whipps CM, Austin FW, St-Hilaire S, Westerman ME and Kent ML. 2008. Biochemical, molecular, and virulence characteristics of select *Mycobacterium marinum* isolates in hybrid striped bass *Morone chrysops* X *M. saxatilis* and zebrafish *Danio rerio*. Dis Aquatic Org 79: 107-118.
- Ostrofsky ML and Zettler ER. 1986. Chemical defences in aquatic plants. J. Ecology 74: 279-287.
- Otsuki A and Wetzel RG. 1974a. Calcium and total alkalinity budgets and calcium carbonate precipitation of a small hardwater lake. Arch. Hydrobiol. 73: 14-30.
- Otsuki A and Wetzel RG. 1974b. Release of dissolved organic matter by autolysis of a submersed macrophyte, *Scirpus subterminalis*. Limnol. Oceanog. 19: 842-845.
- Otte ML, Rozema J, Koster L, Haarsma MS, and Broekman RA. 1989. Iron plaque on roots of *Aster tripolium* L.: interaction with zinc uptake. New Phytol. 111: 309-317.
- Overath RD, Titus JE, Hoover DT, and Grise DJ. 1991. The influence of field site and natural sediments on the growth and tissue chemistry of *Vallisneria americana* Michx. J. Freshwater Ecology 6: 135-145.
- Ozimek T, Gulati RD, and van Donk E. 1990. Can macrophytes be useful in biomanipulation of lakes: The Lake Zwemlust example. Hydrobiologia 200: 399-407.
- Ozimek T, Pieczynska E, and Hankiewicz T. 1991. Effects of filamentous algae on submerged macrophyte growth: A laboratory experiment. Aq. Bot 41: 309-315.

Ρ

- Paffen BGP and Roelofs JGM. 1991. Impact of CO₂ and ammonium on the growth of submerged *Sphagnum cuspidatum*. Aq. Bot. 40: 61-71.
- Pagano AM and JE Titus. 2007. Submersed macrophyte growth at low pH: carbon source influences response to dissolved inorganic carbon enrichment. Freshwater Biol 52: 2412-20.
- Pagenkopf GK. 1986. Metal ion speciation and toxicity in aquatic systems. In: Sigel H (ed), Metal Ions in Biological Systems (Vol 20). Concepts on Metal Ion Toxicity, pp 101-118.
- Painter DS and McCabe KJ. 1988. Investigation into the disappearance of Eurasian watermilfoil from the Kawartha Lakes. J. Aquat. Plant Manage. 26: 3-12.
- Palackova J and Adamek Z. 1994. The use of methaemoglobin concentration to measure sublethal effects in fish. In: Muller R and Lloyd R (eds), Sublethal and Chronic Effects of Pollutants on Freshwater Fish, Fishing News Books (Blackwell Science Ltd; Cambridge MA).
- Paling EI and AJ McComb. 1994. Nitrogen and phosphorus uptake in seedlings of the seagrass *Amphibolis antarctica* in Western Australia. Hydrobiologia 294: 104.
- Palomino JC and Portaels F. 1998. Effects of decontamination methods and culture conditions on viability of *Mycobacterium ulcerans* in the BACTEC system. J Clinical Microbiol. 36: 402-408.
- Parmenter RR and Lamarra VA. 1991. Nutrient cycling in a freshwater marsh: The decomposition of fish and waterfowl carrion. Limnol. Oceanogr. 36: 976-987.
- Pasnik DJ and Smith SA. 2005. Immunogenic and protective effects of a DNA vaccine for *Mycobacterium marinum* in fish. Vet Immunol Immunopathol 103: 195-206.
- Pasnik DJ, Vemulapalli R, Smith SA and Schurig GG. 2003. A recombinant vaccine expressing a mammalian Mycobacterium sp. antigen is immunostimulatory but not protective in striped bass. Vet Immunol Immunopathol 95: 43-52.
- Pate M, Jencic V, Zolnir-Dovc M and Ocepek M. 2005. Detection of mycobacteria in aquarium fish in Slovenia by culture and molecular methods. Diseases Aq Org 64: 29-35.
- Patrick R, Ford E, and Quarles J. 1987. Groundwater Contamination in the United States (2nd ed.), Univ. of Pennsylvania Press (Philadelphia, PA).
- Patrick ZA, Toussoun TA, and Koch LW. 1964. Effect of crop-residue decomposition products on plant roots. Ann. Rev. Phytopathol. 2: 276-292.
- Paul VJ, Cronan JM, and Cardellina JH. 1993. Isolation of new brominated sesquiterpene feeding deterrents from tropical green alga *Neomeris annulata* (Dasycladaceae: Chlorophyta). J. Chemical Ecology 19: 1847-1860.

Payne WJ. 1973. Reduction of nitrogenous oxides by microorganisms. Bacteriological Reviews 37: 409-452.

- Pedersen MF, Paling EI, and Walker DL. 1997. Nitrogen uptake and allocation in the seagrass *Amphibolis antarctica*. Aq. Bot. 56: 105-117.
- Pedersen O. 1993a. Long-distance water transport in aquatic plants. Plant Physiol. 103: 1396-1375.
- Pedersen O and Sand-Jensen K. 1993b. Water transport in submerged macrophytes. Aq. Bot. 44: 385-406.
- Pedersen O and Sand-Jensen K. 1995. Diel pulses of O₂ and CO₂ in sandy lake sediments inhabited by *Lodebia dortmanna*. Ecology 76: 1536-1545.
- Pedersen O and Sand-Jensen K. 1997. Transpiration does not control growth and nutrient supply in the amphibious plant *Mentha aquatica*. Plant, Cell and Environment 20: 117-123.
- Pedersen O, Borum J, Duarte CM, and Fortes MD. 1998. Oxygen dynamics in the rhizosphere of *Cymodocea rotundata*. Mar. Ecol. Prog. Ser. 169: 283-288.
- Pedersen O et al. 2022. Why green leaves sometimes turn reddish-an eyewitness report frm interzoo 2022. TAG 35 (July-Sept): 9-14.
- Peiffer S. 1994. Reaction of H2S with ferric oxides. In: Baker LA (ed), Environmental Chemistry of Lakes and Reservoirs, American Chemical Society (Washington D.C.), pp. ??- 390
- Peng X et al. 2021. The effects of water control on the survival and growth of Alternanthera philoxeroides in the vegetative reproduction and seedling stage. Scientific Reports 11: 13556 (10 pp).
- Pennak RW. 1973. Some evidence for aquatic macrophytes as repellents for a limnetic species of Daphnia. Int. Revue ges. Hydrobiol. 58: 569-576.
- Pennington JC. 1985. Biological Control of *Hydrilla verticillata* (L.F.) Royle with lytic enzyme-producing microorganisms. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Technical Report A-85-3. (AD A163031)
 Perez, AT, Conroy DA, and Quinones L. 2001. Presence of acid-fast bacteria in wild and cultured silver mullets (Mugil curema VAL., 1836) from Margarita Island Venezuela. Interciencia 26: 252-256.
- Perry SF and Wood CM. 1985. Kinetics of branchial calcium uptake in the rainbow trout: Effects of acclimation to various external calcium levels. J. Expt. Biol. 116: 411-433.
- Persoone G and Sorgeloos. 1980. General aspects of the ecology and biogeography of Artemia. In: Persoone G, Sorgeloos P, Roels O and Jaspers E (Eds). The Brine Shrimp *Artemia* (Vol 3). Universa Press (Wetteren, Belguim), pp 3-24.
- Peters G, Faisal M, Lang T, and Ahmed I. 1988. Stress caused by social interaction and its effect on susceptibility to *Aeromonas hydrophila* infection. Diseases Aquatic Organisms 4: 83-89.
- Peters G and Schwarzer F. 1985. Changes in hemopoietic tissue of rainbow trout under influence of stress. Dis Aquat Org 1: 1-10.
- Peverly JH. 1979. Elemental distribution and macrophyte growth downstream from an organic soil. Aq. Bot. 7: 319-338.
- Pfeiffer T, Schuster S, and Bonhoeffer S. 2001. Cooperation and competition in the evolution of ATP-producing pathways. Science 292: 504-507.
- Phillips S *et al.* 2002. Origin, causes and effects of increased nitrite concentrations in aquatic environments. Re/Views Environ Sci Bio/Tech 1: 115-141.
- Pickering AD and Pottinger TG. 1989. Stress responses and disease resistance in salmonid fish: Effects of chronic elevation of plasma cortisol. Fish Physiol Biochem 7: 253-258.
- Pilon J and Santamaria L. 2002. Clonal variation in morphological and physiological responses to irradiance and photoperiod for the aquatic angiosperm *Potamogeton pectinatus*. J Ecol 90: 859-870.
- Pineros M and Tester M. 1993. Plasma membrane Ca²⁺ channels in roots of higher plants and their role in aluminum toxicity. Plant and Soil 155/156: 119-122.
- Pineros M and Tester M. 1997. Calcium channels in higher plant cells: selectivity, regulation and pharmacology. J Expt. Bot. 48: 551-577.
- Pip E. 1984. Ecogeographical tolerance range variation in aquatic macrophytes. Hydrobiologia 108: 37-48.

- Planas D, Sarhan F, Dube L, Godmaire H, and Cadieux C. 1981. Ecological significance of phenolic compounds of *Myriophyllum spicatum*. Verh. Int. ver Limnol. 21: 1492-1496.
- Poghosyan L *et al.* 2019. Metagenomic recovery of two distinct comammox *Nitrospira* from the terrestrial subsurface. *Environ Microbiol* 21: 3627-37.
- Pokorny J, Ondok JP and Koncalova H. 1985. Photosynthetic response to inorganic carbon in *Elodea densa* (Planchon) Caspary. Photosynthetica 19: 366-372.
- Polar E and Kucukcezzar R. 1986. Influence of some metal chelators and light regimes on bioaccumulation and toxicity of Cd²⁺ in duckweed (*Lemna gibba*). Physiol. Plant 66: 87-93.
- Pollio A, Pinto G, Ligrone R, and Aliotta G. 1993. Effects of the potential allelochemical *a*-asarone on growth, physiology and ultrastructure of two unicellular green algae. J. Applied Phycology 5: 395-403.
- Ponnamperuma FN. 1981. Some aspects of the physical chemistry of paddy soils. In: Institute of Soil Science, Academia Sinica (ed.), Proceedings of Symposium on Paddy Soil. Springer-Verlag (New York), pp. 59-94.
- Poort MJ *et al.* 2006. Molecular characterization of a *Mycobacterium* species in non-native poeciliids in Hawaii using DNA sequences. J Fis Dis 29: 181-185.
- Porath D and Pollock J. 1982. Ammonia stripping by duckweed and its feasibility in circulating aquaculture. Aq. Bot. 13: 125-131.
- Porcella DB and JA Holman. 1972. Nutrients, algal growth, and culture of brine shrimp in the southern Great Salt Lake. Utah Water Research Laboratory, "The Great Salt Lake and Utah's Water Resources" (1972), pp 142-155. https://digitalcommons.usu.edu/water_rep/37
- Post WM, Peng T-H, Emanuel WR, King AW, Dale VH and DeAngelis DL. 1990. The global carbon cycle. American Scientist 78: 310-326.
- Poston HA, combs GF, and Leibovitz L. 1976. Vitamin E and selenium interrelations in the diet of Atlantic salmon (*Salmo salar*): Gross, histological and biochemical deficiency signs. J. Nutrition 106: 892-904.
- Potera C. 1996. Biofilms invade microbiology. Science 273: 1795-1797.
- Pottinger TG and Carrick TR. 1999. Modification of the plasma cortisl response to stress in rainbow trout by selective breeding. Gen Comp Endocrinol 116: 122-132.
- Powell SJ and Prosser JI. 1992. Inhibition of biofilm populations of *Nitrosomonas europaea*. Microbial Ecol. 24: 43-50.
- Prearo M, Zanoni RG, Camp Dall'Orto B, Pavoletti E, Florio D, Penati V and Ghittino C. 2004. Mycobacterioses: emerging pathologies in aquarium fish. Vet Res Com 28: 315-317.
- Prearo M et al. 2002. Cases of mycobacteriosis in aquarium gold fish. Boll Soc Ital Patol Ittica 14: 30-43.
- Preston CD and Croft JM. 1997. Aquatic Plants in Britain and Ireland. B.H. & A. Harley Ltd (Essex, England).
- Pridham JB. 1964. The phenol glucosylation reaction in the plant kingdom. Phytochemistry 3: 493-497.
- Primm TP, Lucero CA and Falkinham JO. 2004. Health impacts of environmental mycobacteria. Clin Microbiol Rev 17: 98-106.
- Pringsheim EG and Pringsheim O. 1962. Axenic culture of Utricularia. Am. J. Botany 49: 898-901.
- Prins HBA and Elzenga JTM. 1989. Bicarbonate utilization: Function and mechanism. Aq. Bot. 34: 59-83.
- Prins HBA, O'Brien J and Zanstra PE. 1982. Bicarbonate utilization in aquatic angiosperms. pH and CO₂ concentrations at the leaf surface. In: Symoens JJ, Hooper SS, and Compere P. Studies on Aquatic Vascular Plants. Royal Botanical Society of Belgium (Brussels Belgium), pp. 112-119.
- Pro Steve. 2003. *Mycobacterium marinum*: the fish disease you could catch. Internet website: http://www.reefkeeping.com/issues/2003-07/sp/feature/index.htm
- Proctor LM and Fuhrman JA. 1990. Viral mortality of marine bacteria and cyanobacteria. Nature 343: 60-62.
- Proctor VW. 1959. Studies of algal antibiosis using *Haematococcus* and *Chlamydomonas*. Limnol. Ocean. 2: 125-139.
- Prouty MG, Correa NE, Barker LP, Jagadeeswaran P and Klose KE. 2003. Zebrafish-*Mycobacterium marinum* model for mycobacterial pathogenesis. FEMS Microbiol. Letters 225: 177-182.

Pulich WM Jr. 1982. Edaphic factors related to shoalgrass (*Halodule wrightii* Aschers.) production. Bot. Mar. 25: 467-475.

- Pulich WM Jr. 1985. Seasonal growth dynamics of *Ruppia maritima* L. s.1. and *Halodule wrightii* Aschers, in southern Texas and evaluation of sediment fertility status. Aq. Bot. 23: 53-66.
- Putnam AR and Weston LA. 1986. Adverse impacts of allelopathy in agricultural systems. In: Putnam AR and Tang C-S (eds). The Science of Allelopathy. John Wiley and Sons (NY), pp 43-56.
- Puttinaowarat S, Thompson KD, Kolk A, and Adams A. 2002. Identification of *Mycobacterium* spp. isolated from snakehead, *Channa striata* (Fowler), and Siamese fighting fish, *Betta splendens* (Regan), using polymerase chain reaction-reverse cross blot hybridization ((PCR-RCBH). J. Fish Diseases 25: 235-243.
- Pynaert K, Smets BF, Wyffels S, Beheydt D, Siciliano SD, and Verstraete W. 2003. Characterization of an autotrophic nitogen-removing biofilm from a highly loaded lab-scale rotating biological contactor. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 69: 3626-3635.

R

Rabinowitch E and Govindjee. 1969. Photosynthesis. John Wiley and Sons (NY).

Rae, TD. 1999. >>>>>Science 284: 805.

- Rai DN and Munshi JD. 1972. The influence of thick floating vegetation (Water hyacinth: *Eichornia crassipes*) on the physico-chemical environment of a freshwater wetland. Hydrobiologia 62: 65-69.
- Ralph PJ, Burchett MD, and Pulkownik A. 1992. Distribution of extractable carbohydrate reserves within the rhizome of the seagrass *Posidonia australis* Hook. f. Aq. Bot. 42: 385-392.
- Ramakrishnan L, Federspiel NA, and Falkow S. 2000. Granuloma-specific expression of *Mycobacterium* virulence proteins from the glycine-rich PE-PGRS family. Science 288: 1436-1439.
- Ramakrishnan L, Valdivia RH, McKerrow JH, and Falkow S. 1997. *Mycobacterium marinum* causes both long-term subclinical infection and acute disease in the Leopard Frog (*Rana pipiens*). Infect. Immun. 65: 767-773.
- Ramsay JM, Feist GW, Varga ZM, Westerfield M, Kent ML and Schreck CB. 2006. Whole-body cortisol is an indicator of crowding stress in adult zebrafish, *Danio rerio*. Aquaculture 258: 565-574.
- Randall KA. 2016. Sunken Gardens. Timber Press (Portland OR), 252 pp.
- Rao S and Ram HYM. 1981. Regeneration of whole plants from cultured root tips of *Limnophila indica*. Can J. Bot 59: 969-973.
- Raskin I and Kende H. 1983. How does deep water rice solve its aeration problem. Plant Physiol. 72: 447-454.
- Raskin I. 1999. Getting to the root of the matter. Science 285: 1347-1348.
- Rattray MR, Howard-Williams C, and Brown JMA. 1991. Sediment and water as sources of nitrogen and phosphorus for submergd rooted aquatic macrophytes. Aq. Bot. 40: 225-237.
- Raun AL and Pedersen O. 2007. The Aquatic Gardener 20: 7-12.
- Raven JA, Handley LL, MacFarlane JJ, McInroy S, McKenzie L, Richard JH, and Samuelsson G. 1988. The role of CO₂ uptake by roots and CAM in acquisition of inorganic C by plants of the isoetid life-form: A review, with new data on *Eriocaulon decangulare* L. New Phytol. 108: 125-148.
- Raven JA. 1988. The iron and molybdenum use efficiencies of plant growth with different energy, carbon, and nitrogen sources. New Phytol. 109: 279-287.
- Raven JA. 1993. Phytoplankton: limits on growth rates. Nature 361: 209-210.
- Raven PH, Evert RF, and Eichhorn SE (Editors). 1992. Biology of Plants (5th Ed.), Worth Publishers (NY), 791 pp.
- Rawat SK, Singh RK and RP Singh. 2019. Remediation of nitrite contamination in ground and surface waters using aquatic macrophytes. J Environ Biol 33: 51-56.
- Rawls JF, Samuel BS and Gordon JI. 2004. Gnotobiotic zebrafish reveal evolutionarily conserved responses to the gut microbiota. PNAS 101: 4596- 4601.
- Raymond J et al. 2002. Whole-genome analysis of photosynthetic prokaryotes. Science 298: 1616-1620.
- Read RR and Costerton JW. 1987. Purification and characterization of adhesive exopolysaccharides from *Pseudomonas putida* and *Pseudomonas fluorescens*. Can. J. Microbiol. 33: 1080-1090.

- Reddy CN and Patrick WH. 1977. Effect of redox potential on the stability of zinc and copper chelates in flooded soils. Soil Science of America 41: 729-732.
- Reddy KR and Sutton DL. 1984. Water hyacinths for water quality improvement and biomass production (Reviews and Analyses). J. Envir. Qual. 13: 1-8.
- Reddy KR and Tucker JC. 1983b. Productivity and nutrient uptake of water hyacinth, *Eichhornia crassipes*. I. Effect of nitrogen source. Econ. Bot 37: 237-247.
- Reddy KR, Agami M, and Tucker JC. 1989. Influence of nitrogen supply rates on growth and nutrient storage by water hyacinth (*Eichhornia crassipes*) plants. Aq. Bot. 36: 33-43.
- Reddy KR, Tucker JC, and DeBusk WF. 1987. The role of *Egeria* in removing nitrogen and phosphorus from nutrient enriched waters. J. Aquat. Plant Manage. 25: 14-19.
- Reddy KR. 1981. Diel variations of certain physico-chemical parameters of water in selected aquatic systems. Hydrobiologia 85: 201-207.
- Reddy KR. 1983a. Fate of nitrogen and phosphorus in a waste-water retention reservoir containing aquatic macrophytes. J. Envir. Qual. 12: 137-141.
- Reed SC, Middlebrooks EJ, and Crites RW. 1988. Natural Systems for Waste Management and Treatment. McGraw-Hill Book Co (New York).
- Reid SG, Sundin L, Kalinin AL, Rantin FT, and Milsom WK. 2000. Cardiovascular and respiratory reflexes in the tropical fish traira (*Hoplias malabaricus*): CO₂/pH chemoresponses. Respiration Physiology 120: 47-59.
- Reiskind JB, Beer S, and Bowes G. 1989. Photosynthesis, photorespiration and ecophysiological interactions in marine macroalgae. Aq. Bot. 34: 131-152.
- Reiskind JB, Madsen TV, Van Ginkel LC, and Bowes G. 1997. Evidence that inducible C4-type photosynthesis is a chloroplastic CO₂-concentrating mechanism in *Hydrilla*, a submersed monocot. Plant Cell Environ. 20: 211-220.
- Reiskind JB, Seamon PT, and Bowes G. 1989. Photosynthetic responses and anatomical features of two marine macroalgae with different CO₂ compensation points. Aq. Bot 33: 71-86.
- Rheinheimer G. 1985. Aquatic Microbiology (3rd ed.). John Wiley and Sons (New York).
- Rheinheimer G. 1992. Aquatic Microbiology (4th ed.). John Wiley and Sons (New York).
- Rhodes MW and Ottinger CA. 2005. *Mycobacterium pseudoshottsii* sp nov., a slowly growing chromogenic species isolated from Chesapeake Bay striped bass (*Morone saxatilis*). Inter J Systematic Evol. Microbiol. 55:1139-1147.
- Rhodes MW, Kator H, Kaattari I, Gauthier D, Vogelbein W and Ottinger CA. 2004. Isolation and characterization of mycobacteria from striped bass *Morone saxatilis* from the Chesapeake Bay. Dis Aquat Org 61: 41-51.
- Rice EL and Pancholy SK. 1974. Inhibition of nitrification by climax ecosystems. III. Inhibitors other than tannins. Amer. J. Bot. 61: 1095-1103.
- Rice EL. 1984. Allelopathy (Second Edition). Academic Press (NY).
- Rice EL. 1992. Allelopathic effects on nitrogen cycling. In: Rizvi SJH and Rizvi V, Allelopathy, Basic and Applied Aspects, Chapman and Hall (New York), pp 31-58.
- Rich HW and Morel FMM. 1990. Availability of well-defined iron colloids to the marine diatom *Thalassiosira weissflogii*. Limnol. Oceanogr. 35: 652-662.
- Rich PH and Devol AH. 1978. Analysis of five North American lake ecosystems VII. Sediment processing. Verh. Int. ver Limnol. 19: 598-604.
- Rich PH and Wetzel RG. 1978. Detritus in the Lake Ecosystem. Am. Naturalist 112: 57-71.
- Richards K. 1987. The effects of different spectrum fluorescent bulbs on the photosynthesis of aquatic plants. Freshwater and Aquarium Magazine (July), pp 17-20.
- Richardson K, Beardall J, and Raven JA. 1983. Adaptation of unicellular algae to irradiance: an analysis of strategies. New Phytologist 93: 157-191.
- Riemer DN. 1984. Introduction to Freshwater Vegetation. AVI Publishing Co. (Westport, CT).

Riebesell U et al. 2007. Enhanced biological carbon consumption in a high CO₂ ocean. Nature 450: 545-548.

- Risgaard-Petersen N, Rysgaard S, Nielsen LP, and Revsbech NP. 1994. Diurnal variation of denitrification and nitrification in sediments colonized by benthic microphytes. Limnol. Oceanogr. 39: 573-579.
- Rizvi SJH and Rizvi V (eds). 1992. Allelopathy. Basic and applied aspects. Chapman and Hall (New York NY).

Roberts RJ (ed). 2001. Fish Pathology (3rd Ed). W.B. Saunders Publishing (NY, NY), pp 325-327.

- Robinson EH, LaBomascus D, Brown PB, and Linton TL. 1987. Dietary calcium and phosphorus requirements of *Oreochromis aureus* reared in calcium-free water. Aquaculture 64: 267-276.
- Roeder M and Roeder RH. 1966. Effect of iron on the growth rate of fishes. J. Nutrition 90: 86-90.
- Roelofs JGM, Brandrud TE, and Smolders AJP. 1994. Massive expansion of *Juncus bulbosus* L. after liming of acidified SW Norwegian lakes. Aq. Bot. 48: 187-202.
- Roelofs JGM, Schuurkes JAAR, and Smits AJM. 1984. Impact of acidification and eutrophication on macrophyte communities in soft waters II. Experimental studies. Aq. Bot 18: 398-411.
- Roelofs JGM. 1983. Impact of acidification and eutrophication on macrophyte communities in soft waters in The Netherlands. 1. Field observations. Aquatic Botany 17: 139-155.
- Roelofs JGM. 1986. The effect of airborne sulphur and nitrogen deposition on aquatic and terrestrial heathland vegetation. Experientia 42: 372- 377.
- Roesijadi G and Robinson WE. 1994. Metal regulation in aquatic animals: mechanisms of uptake, accumulation, and release. In: Malins DC and Ostrander GK (eds.). Aquatic Toxicology. Lewis Publishers (Boca Raton LA), pp 387-420.
- Rogers KKH and Breen CM. 1983. An investigation of macrophyte, epiphyte and grazer interactions. In: Wetzel RG (ed). Periphyton of Freshwater Ecosystems. Dr. W. Junk Publishers (Boston), pp 217-226.
- Rogge RW and Drewes CD. 1993. Assessing sublethal neurotoxicity effects in the freshwater oligochaete, *Lumbriculus variegatus*. Aquatic Toxicol. 26: 73-90.
- Rom, WN and SM Garay (Eds.). 2004. *Tuberculosis* (2nd Ed). Lippincott Williams & Wilkins (New York), p. 17 (of 944 pp)
- Romheld V and Marschner H. 1983. Mechanism of iron uptake by peanut plants. I. Fe^{III} reduction, chelate splitting, and release of phenolics. Plant Physiol. 71: 949-954.
- Romheld V and Marschner H. 1984. Plant-induced pH changes in the rhizosphere of "Fe-efficient" and "Fe-inefficient" soybean and corn cultivars. J. Plant Nutrition 7: 623-630.
- Romheld V and Marschner H. 1986. Evidence for a specific uptake system for iron phytosiderophores in roots of grasses. Plant Physiol. 80: 175-180.
- Rorison IH 1985. Nitrogen source and the tolerance of *Deschampsia flexuosa*, *Holcus lanatus* and *Bromus erectus* to aluminum during seedling growth. J. Ecology 73: 83-90.
- Rorison IH. 1960a. Some experimental aspects of the calcicole-calcifuge problem. I. The effects of competition and mineral nutrition upon seedling growth in the field. J. Ecology 48: 585-599.
- Rorison IH. 1960b. The calcicole-calcifuge problem II. The effects of mineral nutrition on seedling growth in solution culture. J. Ecology 48: 679-688.
- Rorison IH. 1984. Calcium as an environmental variable. Plant, Cell and Environ. 7: 381-390.
- Rorison IH. 1986. The response of plants to acid soils. Experientia 42: 357-362.
- Rosen AA and Booth RL. 1971. Taste and odor control. In: Water Quality and Treatment (3rd ed.). McGraw-Hill Book Co. (New York), pp 227-242.
- Ross S. 1989. Soil Processes. A Systematic Approach. Routledge (New York).
- Rout NP and BP Shaw. 2001. Salt tolerance in aquatic macrophytes: possible involvement of the antioxidative enzymes. Plant Science 160: 415-423.
- Rowe EL, Ziobro RJ, Wang CJK and Dence CW. 1982. The use of an alga *Chlorella pyrenoidosa* and a duckweed *Lemna perpusilla* as test organisms for toxicity bioassays of spent bleaching liquors and their components. Environ. Pollution (Series A) 27: 289-296.

- Rowe MT and Grant IR. 2006. *Mycobacterium avium* ssp. *paratuberculosis* and its potential survival tactics. Lett Appl Microb 42: 305-311.
- Rozan TF, Lassman ME, Ridge DP and Luther III GW. 2000. Evidence for iron, copper and zinc complexation as multinuclear sulphide clusters in oxic rivers. Nature 406: 879-882.
- Ruby SM, Jaroslawski P, and Hull R. 1993. Lead and cyanide toxicity in sexually maturing rainbow trout, *Oncorhynchus mykiss* during spermatogenisis. Aquatic Toxicol. 26: 225-238.
- Ruley KM et al. 2004. Identification of Mycobacterium marinum virulence genes using signature-tagged mutagenesis and the goldfish model of mycobacterial pathogenesis. FEMS Microbiol Lett 232: 75-81.
- Rump HH and Krist H. 1992. Laboratory Manual for the Examination of Water, Waste Water, and Soil, 2nd edition. VCH, Weinheim, Germany, 190 pp. (*ref. in Markich 1994)
- Russel EW. 1973. Soil Conditions and Plant Growth (10th ed). William Clowes and Sons, Ltd. (London).
- Russo RC. 1985. Ammonia, nitrite, and nitrate. In: Rand GM and Petrocelli SM (Eds.), Fundamentals of Aquatic Toxicology. Hemisphere Publishing Corp. (Washington, D.C.), pp. 455-471.
- Rutishauser R. 1993. The developmental plasticity of *Utricularia aurea* (Lentibulariaceae) and its floats. Aquatic Botany 45: 119-143.
- Rysgaard S, Risgaard-Petersen N and Sloth NP. 1996. Nitrification, denitrification, and nitrate ammonification in sediments of two coastal lagoons in Southern France. Hydrobiologia 329: 133-141.

S

- Sabba RP and Miller JH. 1993. Calcium delays the onset of cell division and rhizoid elongation in gemmae of the calcifuge fern, *Vittaria graminifolia*. Am. J. Botany 80: 624-628.
- Sadauskas-Henrique H...and CM Wood. 2021. Physicochemical properties of the dissolved organic carbon can lead to different physiological responses of zebrafish (*Danio rerio*) under neutral and acidic conditions. *J Exp Zool A Ecol Integr Physiol* 2021: 1-14.
- Safferman RS and Morris ME. 1963. Algal virus: Isolation. Science 140: 679-680.
- Saito K, Matsumoto M, Sekine T, Murakoshi I, Morisaki N, and Iwasaki S. 1989. Inhibitory substances from *Myriophyllum brasiliense* on growth of blue-green algae. J. Natural Products 52: 1221-1226.
- Sakaguchi T, Nakajima A and Horikoshi T. 1981. Studies on the accumulation of heavy metal elements in biological systems. XVIII. Accumulation of molybdenum by green microalgae. European J. Appl. Microbiol. Biotechnol. 12: 84-89.
- Sakai M, Kono SM, Tassakka ACMAR, Ponpornpisit A, Areechon N, Katagiri T, Yoshida T, and Endo M. 2005. Characterization of a *Mycobacterium* sp isolated from guppy *Poecilia reticulate*, using 16S ribosomal RNA and its internal transcribed spacer sequences. Bull. European Assoc. Fish Pathologists 25: 64-69.
- Saleque MA and Kirk GJD. 1995. Root-induced solubilization of phophate in the rhizosphere of lowland rice. New Phytol. 129: 325-336
- Salvucci ME and Bowes G. 1982. Photosynthetic and photorespiratory responses of the aerial and submerged leaves of *Myriophyllum brasiliense*. Aq. Bot. 13: 147-164.
- Sanders GE and Swaim LE. 2001. Atypical piscine Mycobacteriosis in Japanese medaka (*Orzaias latipes*). Comparative Medicine 51: 171-175.
- Sand-Jensen K and Borum J. 1991a. Interactions among phytoplankton, epiphyton, and macrophytes in temperate freshwaters and estuaries. Aq. Bot 41: 137-175.
- Sand-Jensen K and Madsen TV. 1991b. Minimum light requirements of submerged freshwater macrophytes in laboratory growth experiments. J. Ecology 79: 749-764.
- Sand-Jensen K and Sondergaard M. 1979. Distribution and quantitative development of aquatic macrophytes in relation to sediment characteristics in oligotrophic Lake Kalgaard, Denmark. Freshwater Biol. 2: 1-11.
- Sand-Jensen K, Jeppesen E, Nielsen K, van der Bijl L, Hjermind L, Nielsen LW and Iversen TM. 1989. Growth of macrophytes and ecosystem consequences in a lowland Danish stream. Freshwater Biol. 22: 15-32.
- Sand-Jensen K. 1983. Photosynthetic carbon sources of stream macrophytes. J. Expt. Bot. 34: 198-210.

- Sand-Jensen K. 1987. Environmental control of bicarbonate use among freshwater and marine macrophytes. In: Crawford RMM (ed), Plant Life in Aquatic and Amphibious Habitats. Blackwell Scientific Publications (Boston, MA), p. 99-112.
- Sano LL, Krueger AM and PF Landrum. 2005. Chronic toxicity of glutaraldehyde: differential sensitivity of three freshwater organisms. Aquatic Toxicology 71: 283-296.
- Santamaria L, Dias C, and Hootsmans MJM. 1994. The influence of ammonia on the growth and photosynthesis of *Ruppia drepanensis* Tineo from Donana National Park (SW Spain). Hydrobiologia 275-276: 219-231.
- Sauchelli V. 1969. Trace Elements in Agriculture. Van Nostrand Reinhold Co. (New York).
- Sauder, Laura A *et al.* 2011. Aquarium nitrification revisited: Thaumarchaeota are the dominant ammonia oxidizers in freshwater aquarium biofilters. *PLoS One* 6: e23281, 9 pages
- Saunders GW. 1972. The transformation of artificial detritus in lake water. Mem. Ist. Ital. Idrobiol. 29(Sup.): 261-288.
- Schagerl M and Pichler C. 2000. Pigment composition of freshwater charophyceae. Aquatic Botany 67: 117-129.
- Scharff O and Foder B. 1996. Depletion of calcium stores by thapsigargin induces membrane depolarization by cation entry in human neutrophils. Cell Calcium 20: 31-41.
- Schat H. 1984. A comparative ecophysiological study on the effects of waterlogging and submergence on dune slack plants: growth, survival and mineral nutrition in sand culture experiments. Oecologia (Berlin) 62: 279-286.
- Schindler DW, Brunskill GJ, Emerson S, Broecker WS, and Peng T-H. 1972. Atmospheric carbon dioxide: Its role in maintaining phytoplankton standing crops. Science 177: 1192-1194.
- Schindler DW. 1977. Evolution of phosphorus limitation in lakes. Science 195: 260-262.
- Schoenberg SA, Benner R, Armstrong A, Sobecky P, and Hodson RE. 1990. Effects of acid stress on aerobic decomposition of algal and aquatic macrophyte detritus: Direct comparison in a radiocarbon assay. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 57: 237-244.
- Schramm A, de Beer D, van den Heuvel JC, Ottengraf S, and Amann R. 1999. Microscale distribution of populations and activities of *Nitrosospira* and *Nitrospira* spp. along a macroscale gradient in a nitrifying bioreactor: quantification by *in situ* hybridization and the use of microsensors. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 65: 3690-3696.
- Schramm A, de Beer D, Wagner M, and Amann R. 1998. Identification and activities *in situ* of *Nitrosospira* and *Nitrospira* spp. as dominant populations in a nitrifying fluidized bed reactor. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 64: 3480-3485.
- Schroder JH and Peters K. 1988. Differential courtship activity of competing guppy males (*Poecilia reticulata* Peters: Pisces: Poeciliidae) as an indicator for low concentrations of aquatic pollutants. Bull. Environ. Contam. Toxicol. 40: 396-404.
- Schulz, HN. 1999. Sulfur-eating microbes. Science 284: 493-495.

Schulze-Robbecke R and Buchholtz K. 1992. Heat susceptibility of aquatic mycobacteria. Applied Environ. Microbiol. 58: 1869-1873.

- Schuurkes JAAR, Kok CJ, and Hartog CD. 1986. Ammonium and nitrate uptake by aquatic plants from poorly buffered and acidified waters. Aq. Bot. 24: 131-146.
- Schwoerbel VJ and Tillmanns GC. 1972. Adaptation to ammonia *in situ* by submerged macrophytes. Arch. Hydrobiol. (Sup.) 42: 139-141. (German)
- Schwoerbel VJ and Tillmanns GC. 1974. Assimilation of nitrogen from the medium and nitrate reductase activity in submerged macrophytes: *Fontinalis antipyretica* L. Arch. Hydrobiol. Suppl. 47: 289-294.
- Scott AP and Ellis T. 2007. Measurements of fish steroids in water- a review. Gen Comp Endocrinol 153: 392-400.
- Sculthorpe CD. 1967. The Biology of Aquatic Vascular Plants. St. Martin's Press (New York).
- Seddon B. 1972. Aquatic macrophytes as limnological indicators. Freshwater Biol. 2: 107-130.
- Seitz K. Chloroplast motion in response to light in aquatic vascular plants. In: Symoens JJ, Hooper SS, and Compere P. Studies on Aquatic Vascular Plants. Royal Botanical Society of Belgium (Brussels Belgium), pp 89-101.
- Seitzinger SP, Nixon SW, and Pilson MEQ. 1984. Denitrification and nitrous oxide production in a coastal marine ecosystem. Limnol. Oceanogr. 29: 73-83.

- Sela M, Garty J, and Tel-or E. 1989. The accumulation and the effect of heavy metals on the water fern *Azolla filiculoides*. New Phytol. 112: 7-12.
- Serra JL, Arizmendi JM, Blanco F, Martinez-Bilbao M, Alana A, Fresnedo O, Urkijo I, and Llama MJ. 1990. Nitrate assimilation in the non-N²-fixing cyanobacterium *Phormidium laminosum*. In: Ullrich WR, Rigano C, Fuggi A, Aparicio PJ (eds). Inorganic Nitrogen in Plants and Microorganisms. Springer Verlag (New York), pp 196-202.
- Serrano L and Guisande C. 1990. Effects of polyphenolic compounds on phytoplankton. Verh. Internat. Verein. Limnol. 24: 282-288.
- Serrano L. 1992. Leaching from vegetation of soluble polyphenolic compounds, and their abundance in temporary ponds in the Donana National Park (SW Spain). Hydrobiologia 229: 43-50.
- SFBB (San Francisco Bay Brand) website: <u>https://sfbb.com</u> Nothing on hatching on their website in Oct 2019, but was on 2006.
- Shacklock PS, Read ND, and Trewavas AJ. 1992. Cytosolic free calcium mediates red light-induced photomorphogenesis. Nature 358: 753-755.
- Shapiro J. 1990. Biomanipulation: The next phase-- making it stable. Hydrobiologia 200: 13-27.
- Sharma BD and Harsh R. 1995. Diurnal acid metabolism in the submerged aquatic plant, *Isoestes tuberculata*. American Fern J. 85: 58-60.
- Sharma BD. 1998. Fungal associations in the roots of three species of Isoetes L. Aquatic Botany 61: 33-37.
- Sharma KP. 1985. Allelopathic influence of algae on the growth of *Eichhornia crassipes* (Mart.) Solms. Aq. Bot. 22: 71-78.
- Shaw MR, Zavaleta ES, Chiariello NR, Cleland EE, Mooney HA, and Field CB. 2002 Grassland responses to global environmental changes supressed by elevated CO2. Science 298: 1987-1990.
- Shearer KD. 1988. Dietary potassium requirement of juvenile Chinook salmon. Aquaculture 73: 119-129.
- Sheldon SP. 1986. Factors influencing the numbers of branches and inflorescences of *Potamogeton richardsonii* (A. Benn.) RYDB. Aquatic Botany 24: 27-34.
- Sher-Kaul S, Oertli B, Castella E and Lachavanne J. 1995. Relationship between biomass and surface area of six submerged aquatic plant species. Aquatic Botany 51:147-154.
- Shivappa RB and.....GA Lewbart. 2017. Laboratory evaluaton of different formulations of Stress Coat for slime production in goldfish (*Carassius auratus*) and koi (*Cyprinus carpio*). PeerJ 5:e3759
- Shkolnik MYA. 1984. Trace Elements in Plants. Elsevier Publishing Co. (New York).
- Short FT and McRoy CP. 1984. Nitrogen uptake by leaves and roots of the seagrass *Zostera marina* L. Botanica Marina 27: 547-555.
- Short FT. 1987. Effects of sediment nutrients on seagrasses: Literature review and mesocosm experiment. Aq. Bot. 27: 41-57.
- Siegler DS. Secondary metabolites and plant systematics. In: Conn EE (ed.), The Biochemistry of Plants, vol 7, Academic Press (New York), pp. 139-171.
- Silbergeld E and Hruska RE. 1980. Neurochemical investigations of low level lead exposures. In: Needleman HL, Low Level Lead Exposure: The Clinical Implications of Current Research. Raven Press (NY), pp. 135-157.
- Silverman M, Belas R, and Simon M. 1984. Genetic control of bacterial adhesion. In: Marshall KC (ed), Microbial Adhesion and Aggregarion, Springer-Verlag, pp 95-107.
- Simpson PS and Eaton JW. 1986. Comparative studies of the photosynthesis of the submerged macrophyte *Elodea canadensis* and filamentous algae *Cladophora glomerata* and *Spirogyra* sp. Aq. Bot 24: 1-12.
- Singh SP. 1981. Physico-chemical characteristics and macrophytes of 'Naukuchiya Tal', a mid altitude lake of Kumaun Himalaya (India). Tropical Ecology 22: 40-53.
- Skyring GW. 1988. Acetate as the main energy substrate for the sulfate-reducing bacteria in Lake Eliza (South Australia) hypersaline sediments. FEMS Microbiol. Ecol. 53: 37-93.

SI

- Small BC and Bilodeau AL. 2005. Effects of cortisol and stress on channel catfish (*Ictalurus punctatus*) pathogen susceptibility and lysozyme activity following exposure to *Edwardsiella ictaluri*. Gen Comp Endocrinol 142: 257-262.
- Small BC. 2004. Effect of isoeugenol sedation on plasma cortisol, glucose, and lactate dynamics in channel catfish (*Ictalurus punctatus*) exposed to three stressors. Aquaculture 238: 469-481.
- Smart RM and Barko JW. 1985. Laboratory culture of submersed freshwater macrophytes on natural sediment. Aq. Bot. 21: 251-263.
- Smith BN. 1984. Iron in higher plants: Storage and metabolic role. J. Plant Nutrition 7: 759-766.
- Smith CS and Jones HL. 1990. Inhibition of Hydrilla growth by aquatic plant extracts and secondary compounds. Proceedings of 24th Annual Meeting, Aquatic Plant Control Research Program. (Environmental Laboratory, U.S. Army Engineer Waterways Experiment Station (Vicksburg, MS), pp 91-98.
- Smith CS. 1993. A bicarbonate-containing medium for the solution culture of submersed plants. Can. J. Bot. 71: 1584-1588.
- Smith H and Holmes MG. 1977b. The function of phytochorome in the natural environment-III. Measurement and calculation of phytochrome photoequilibria. Photochem. Photobiol. 25: 547-550.
- Smith H. 1975. Phytochrome and Photomorphogenesis. McGraw-Hill. (UK).
- Smith H. 1982. Light quality, photoperception, and plant strategy. Ann. Rev. Plant Physiol. 33: 481-518.
- Smith H. 1994. Sensing the light environment: the functions of the phytochrome family. In: Kendrick RE and Kronenberg GHM (Eds), Photomorphogenesis in Plants (2nd Ed.), Kluwer Academic Publishers (Dordrecht), pp. 377-416.
- Smith MS. 1982. Dissimilatory reduction of NO_2^- to NH_4^+ and N_2O by a soil *Citrobacter* sp. Applied Environ. Microbiol. 43: 854-860.
- Smits AJM, Kleukers RMJC, Kok CJ, and van der Velde G. 1990b. Alcohol dehydrogenase isozymes in the roots of some nymphaeid and isoetid macrophytes. Adaptations to hypoxic sediment conditions? Aq. Bot 38: 19-27.
- Smits AJM, Laan P, Thier RH, and van der Velde G. 1990a. Root aerenchyma, oxygen leakage patterns and alcoholic fermentation ability of the roots of some nymphaeid and isoetid macrophytes in relation to the sediment type of their habitat. Aq. Bot. 38: 3-17.
- Smits AJM, Schmitz GHW, and van der Velde G. 1992. Calcium-dependent lamina production of *Nymphoides peltata* (Gmel.) O. Kuntze (Menyanthaceae): Implications for distribution. J. Expt. Bot. 43: 1273-1281.
- Smits AJM, Schmitz GHW, van der Velde G, and Voesenek LACJ. 1995. Influence of ethanol and ethylene on the seed germination of three nymphaeid water plants. Freshwater Biology 34: 39-46.
- Sneddon J and Pappas CP. 1991. Binding and removal of metal ions in solution by an algae biomass. Am. Environ. Lab. (Oct): 9-13.
- Solomon JM *et al.* 2003. Intracellular replication of *Mycobacterium marinum* within *Dictylostelium discoideum*: Efficient replication in the absence of host coronin. Infect Immun 71: 3578-3586.
- Sommer SG and Jensen ES. 1991. Foliar absorption of atmospheric ammonia by ryegrass in the field. J. Environ. Qual. 20: 153-156.
- Sondergaard M. 1979. Carbon uptake by leaves and roots of Littorella uniflora (L.) Aschers. Aq. Bot 6: 1-12.
- Sorensen J. 1978. Capacity for denitrification and reduction of nitrate to ammonia in a coastal marine sediment. Applied Environ. Microbiol. 35: 301-305.
- Sorgeloos P *et al.* 1977. Decapsulation of *Artemia* cysts: a simple technique for the improvement of the use of brine shrimp in aquaculture. Aquaculture 12: 311-315.
- Sorgeloos P. 1980. The use of the brine shrimp *Artemia* in aquaculture. In: Persoone G, Sorgeloos P, Roels O and E Jaspers (Eds). *The Brine Shrimp* Artemia (Vol 3). Universa Press (Wetteren, Belguim), pp 25-46.
- Sorgeloos, P. 1985. Potential of converting microalgae into brine shrimp *Artemia*. Arch. Hydrobiol. Beih. Ergebn. Limnol. 20: 147-149.

- Sorgeloos P, Coutteau P, Dhert P, Merchie G and P Lavens. 1998. Use of brine shrimp, *Artemia* spp., in larval crustacean nutrition: A review. Rev. Fisheries Sci. 6: 55-68.
- Sorgeloos P, Dhert P, and P Candreva. 2001. Use of brine shrimp, *Artemia* spp., in marine fish larviculture. *Aquaculture* 200: 147-159.
- Sorrell BK and FI Dromgoole. 1989. Oxygen diffusion and dark respiration in aquaic macrophytes. *Plant Cell Envir*. 12:293-299 (abstract only).
- Sorrell BK. 1991. Transient pressure gradients in the lacunar system of the submerged macrophyte *Egeria densa* Planch. Aq. Bot. 39: 99-108.
- Spacie A and Hamelink JL. 1985. Bioaccumulation. In: Rand GM and Petrocelli SM (Eds.), Fundamentals of Aquatic Toxicology. Hemisphere Publishing Corp. (Washington, D.C.), pp. 495-525.
- Spanggaard B, Huber I, Nielsen J, Sick EB, Pipper CB, Martinussen T, Slierendrecht WJ and Gram L. 2001. The probiotic potential against vibriosis of the indigenous microflora of rainbow trout. Envion Microbiol. 3: 755-765.
- Speiler RE. 1987. Dyschronogenic effects of environmental contaminants. Annual Report of the Marine and Freshwater Biomedical Core Center, Univ. of Wisconsin (Milwaukee WI), p. 62.
- Spence DHN. 1981. Light quality and plant responses underwater. In: Smith H (ed.). Plants and the Daylight Spectrum. Academic Press (New York).
- Spencer DF and Anderson LWJ. 1986. Photoperiod responses in monoecious and dioecious *Hydrilla verticillata*. Weed Science 34: 551-557.
- Spencer DF and Ksander GG. 1989b. Influence of external iron concentration on active iron for four species of aquatic macrophytes. J. Aquat. Plant Manage. 27: 65-69.
- Spencer DF and Ksander GG. 1995. Differential effects of the microbial metabolite, acetic acid, on sprouting of aquatic plant propagules. Aquatic Botany 52: 107-119.
- Spencer DF and Rejmanek M. 1989. Propagule type influences competition between two submersed aquatic macrophytes. Oecologia (Berlin) 81: 132-135+)
- Spencer DF, Ksander GG, and Bissell SR. 1992. Growth of monoecious Hydrilla on different soils amended with peat or barley straw. J. Aquat. Plant Manage. 30: 9-15.
- Spencer DF. 1986. Early growth of *Potamogeton pectinatus* L. in response to temperature and irradiance: morphology and pigment composition. Aq. Botany 26: 1-8.
- Spinti M, Zhuang H, and Trujillo EM. 1995. Evaluation of immobilized biomass beads for removing heavy metals from wastewaters. Water Environ. Res. 67: 943-952.
- Sposito G. 1986. Distribution of potentially hazardous trace metals. In: Sigel H (ed), Metal Ions in Biological Systems (Vol 20). Concepts on Metal Ion Toxicity, pp 1-20.
- Spotte S. 1979. Fish and Invertebrate Culture. Second Ed. Wiley-Interscience Publications (New York).
- Sprague JB. 1985. Factors that modify toxicity. In: Rand GM and Petrocelli SM (Eds.), Fundamentals of Aquatic Toxicology. Hemisphere Publishing Corp. (Washington, D.C.), pp. 124-163.
- Spry DJ and Wood CM. 1985. Ion flux rates, acid-base status, and blood gases in rainbow trout, *Salmo gairdneri*, exposed to toxic zinc in natural soft water. Can. J. Fish. Aquat. Sci. 42: 1332-1341.
- Stafford HA. 1990. Flavonoid Metabolism. CRC Press (Boca Raton FL).
- Stamm LM and Brown EJ. 2004. *Mycobacterium marinum*: the generalization and specialization of a pathogenic mycobacterium. Microbes Infect 6: 1418-1428.
- Stappen GV. 2002. Zoogeography. In: Abatzopoulos Th J, Beardmore JA, Clegg JS, and Sorgeloos P (eds). *Artemia*: Basic and Applied Biology. Kluwer Academic Publishers (Boston, MA), pp 171-224.
- Steele CW. 1989. Effects of sublethal exposure to copper on diel activity of sea catfish, *Arius felis*. Hydrobiologia 178: 135-141.
- Steenbergen CLM, Sweerts J-P RA, and Cappenberg TE. 1993. Microbial biogeochemical activities in lakes: stratification and eutrophication. In: Ford TE (ed), Aquatic Microbiology. An Ecological Approach. Blackwell Scientific Publications (Boston MA), pp 69-99.

- Steinberg SL and Coonrod HS. 1994. Oxidation of the root zone by aquatic plants growing in gravel-nutrient solution culture. J. Environ. Qual. 23: 907-913.
- Steinert M *et al.* 1998. *Mycobacterium avium* Bacilli grow saprozoically in coculture with *Acanthamoeba polyphaga* and survive within cyst walls. Appl Environ Microbiol 64: 2256-2261.
- Stenlid G. 1970. Flavonoids as inhibitors of the formation of adenosine triphosphate in plant mitochondria. Phytochemistry 9: 2251-2256.
- Stephen JR, Kowalchuk GA, Bruns MV, McCaig AE, Phillips CJ, Embley TM, and Prosser JI. 1998. Analysis of β-Subgroup proteobacterial ammonia oxidizer populations in soil by denaturing gradient gel electrophoresis analysis and hierarchical phylogenetic probing. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 64: 2958-2965.
- Stevens KL and Merrill GB. 1981. Dihydroactinidiolide-- a potent growth inhibitor from *Eleocharis coloradoensis* (spikerush). Experientia 37: 1133.
- Steward KA. Growth of Hydrilla (*Hydrilla verticillata*) in hydrosoils of different composition. Weed Science 32: 371-375.
- Stewart GR. 1972. The regulation of nitrite reductase level in Lemna minor L. J. Expt. Botany. 23: 171-183.
- Stinear, T *et al.* 2000. Identification of *Mycobacterium ulcerans* in the environment from regions in Southeast Australia in which it is endemic with sequence capture-PCR. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 66: 3206-3213.
- Stinear T et al. 2000b. Comparative genetic analysis of *Mycobacterium ulcerans* and *Mycobacterium marinum* reveals evidence of recent divergence. J Bacteriol 182: 6322-6330.
- Stinear, T et al. 2004. Analytical methods fo the detection of waterborne and environmental pathogenic mycobacteria. In: Pedley S et al (eds). Pathogenic Mycobacteria in Water. IWA Publishing (London, UK) for the World Health Organization, pp. 55-73.
- Stom DL and Roth R. 1981. Some effects of polyphenols on aquatic plants: 1. Toxicity of phenols in aquatic plants. Bull. Environ. Contam. Toxicol. 27: 332-337.
- Stragier P, Hermans K, Stinear T and Portaels F. 2008. First report of a mycolactone-producing *Mycobacterium* infection in fish agriculture in Belgium. FEMS Microbiol Lett 286: 93-95.
- Strike, TB, Feltrer Y, Flach E, Macgregor SK and S Guillaume. 2017. Investigation and management of an outbreak of multispecies mycobacteriosis in Australian lungfish (*Neoceratodus fosteri*) including the use of triple antibiotic treatment. J Fish Diseses 40 (4): 557-570.
- Strous M, Fuerst JA, Kramer EHM, Logemann S, Muyzer G, van de Pas-Schooonen KT, Webb R, Kuenen JG, and Jetten MSM. 1999. Missing lithotroph identified as new planctomycete. Nature 400: 446-449.
- Stryer L. 1988. Biochemistry (Third Edition). W.H. Freeman and Co. (NY).
- Su KL, Staba EJ, and Abul-Hajj Y. 1973. Preliminary chemical studies of aquatic plants from Minnesota. Lloydia 36: 72-79.
- Suarez-Lopez P and Coupland G. 1998. Plants see the blue light. Science 279: 1323-1324.
- Subramanyam K. 1962. Aquatic Angiosperms. Council of Scientific & Industrial Research (New Delhi, India).
- Sultana M et al. 2010a. Morphological plasticity of submerged macrophyte Potamogeton wrightii Morong under different photoperiods and nutrient conditions. Chemistry and Ecology 26: 223-232.
- Sultana M *et al.* 2010b. Photosynthetic and growth responses of Japanese sasabamo (*Potamogeton wrightii* Morong) under different photoperiods and nutrient conditions. *Chemistry and Ecology* 26: 467-477.
- Sunda WG, Huntsman SA, and Harvey GR. Photoreduction of manganese oxides in seawater and its geochemical and biological implications. Nature 301: 234-236.
- Sutcliffe JF and Baker DA. 1981. Plants and Mineral Salts. Second Ed. Edward Arnold Ltd. (London).
- Suttle CA, Chan AM, and Cottrell MT. 1990. Infection of phytoplankton by viruses and reduction of primary productivity. Nature 347: 467- 469.
- Sutton DL and Latham WGH. 1996. Analysis of interstitial water during culture of *Hydrilla verticillata* with controlled release fertilizers. Aq. Bot. 54: 1-9.
- Sutton DL. 1985. Culture of Hydrilla (*Hydrilla verticillata*) in sand root media amended with three fertilizers. Weed Science 34: 34-39.

- Sutton DL. 1986. Influence of allelopathic chemicals on sprouting of Hydrilla tubers. J. Aquat. Plant Manage. 24: 88-90.
- Sutton DL. 1986a. Growth of Hydrilla in established stands of spikerush and slender arrowhead. J. Aquat. Plant Manage. 24: 16-20.
- Swaim LE, Connolly LE, Volkman HE, Humbert O, Born DE and Ramakrishnan L. 2006. Mycobacterium marinum infection of adult Zebrafish causes caseating granulomatous tuberculosis and is moderated by adaptive immunity. Infection Immunity. 74: 6108- 6117.
- Svedang MU. 1992. Carbon dioxide as a factor regulating the growth dynamics of *Juncus bulbosus*. Aq. Bot. 42: 231-240.
- Svobodova Z et al. 2005. Nitrite poisoning of fish in aquaculture facilities with water-recirculating systems. ACTA Vet Brno 74:129-37.
- Symons JM. 1978. Interim Treatment Guide for Controlling Organic Contaminants in Drinking Water Using Granular Activated Carbon. Water Supply Research Division (Cincinnati OH).
- Szabo S, Braun M, Balazsy S, and Reisinger O. 1998. Influences of nine algal species isolated from duckweedcovered sewage miniponds on *Lemna gibba* L. Aq. Bot 60: 189-195.
- Szathmary E, Jordan F, and Pal C. 2001. Can genes explain biological complexity? Science 292: 1315-1316.

Szczepanska W. 1971. Allelopathy among the aquatic plants. Pol. Arch. Hydrobiol. 18: 17-30.

Szczepanski AJ. 1977. Allelopathy as a means of biological control of water weeds. Aq. Bot. 3: 193-197.

Т

- Tacon AGJ and DeSilva SS. 1983. Mineral composition of some commercial fish feeds available in Europe. Aquaculture 31: 11-20.
- Takaya N. 2002. Dissimilatory nitrate reduction metabolisms and their control in fungi. J Biosci and Bioengineer 94: 506-510.
- Talaat AM, Reimschuessel R, Wasserman SS and Trucksis M. 1998. Goldfish, *Carassius auratus*, a novel animal model for the study of *Mycobacterium marinum* pathogenisis. Infect. Immun. 66: 2938-2942.
- Talaat AM, Trucksis M, Kane AS and Reimschuessel R. 1999. Pathogenicity of *Mycobacterium fortuitum* and *Mycobacterium smegmatis* to goldfish, *Carassius auratus*. Vet. Microbiol. 66: 151-164.
- Tamaru CS et al. 1997? Enrichment of *Artemia* for use in freshwater ornamental fish production. UC Davis Publication #133.
- Tang C-S, Cai W-F, Kohl K, and Nishimoto RK. 1995. Plant stress and allelopathy. In: Inderjit, Dakshini KMM, and Einhellig FA (eds), Allelopathy: Organisms, Processes, and Applications. ACS Symposium Series 582 (American Chemical Society, Washington D.C), pp. 142-157.
- Tang C-S. 1986. Continuous trapping techniques for the study of allelochemicals from higher plants. In: Putnam AR and Tang C-S (Eds.), The Science of Allelopathy, John Wiley & Sons (NY).
- Tang KWH-P Grossart. 2016. Methane production in oxic lake waters potentially increases aquatic methane flux to air. Environ Sci Technol Lett 3:227-33.
- Tappin, Adrian. Internet article updated 2000:

 http://pandora.nla.gov.au/pan/21803/20040913/members.optushome.com.au/chelmon/Myco.htm
- Tappin, Adrian R. *Rainbowfishes. Their Care and Keeping in Captivity.* 2010. Art Publications. Book (493 pp.) available for download at: rainbowfishes@optusnet.com.au
- Tarifeno-Silva E, Kawasaki LY, Yu DP, Gordon MS and Chapman DJ. 1982. Aquacultural approaches to recycling of dissolved nutrients in secondarily treated domestic wastewaters- III. Uptake of dissolved heavy metals by artificial food chains. Water Research 16: 59-65.
- Tasker R and Smith H. 1977. The function of phytochrome in the natural environment--V. Seasonal changes in radiant energy quality in woodlands. Photochem. Photobiol. 26: 487-491.
- Tenny MW, Echelberger Jr. WF, Guter KF, and Carberry JB. 1972. Nutrient removal from waste water by biological treatment methods. In: Allen HE and Kramer JR (eds), Nutrients in Natural Waters. Wiley-Interscience Publications (New York), pp. 391-419.

- Terrados J and SL Williams. 1997. Leaf versus root nitrogen uptake by the surfgrass *Phyllospadix torreyi*. Mar Ecol Prog Ser 149: 267-277.
- Terras FRG, Eggermont K, Kovaleva V, Raikhel NV, Osborn RW, Kester A, Rees SB, Torrekens S, Van Leuven F, Vanderleyden J, Cammue BPA, and Broekaert WF. 1995. Small cysteine-rich antifungal proteins from radish: Their role in host defense. Plant Cell 7: 573-588.
- Thevissen K, Ghazi A, de Samblanx GW, Brownlee C, Osborn RW, and Broekaert WF. 1996. Fungal membrane responses induced by plant defensins and thionins. J Biol. Chem. 271: 15018-15025.
- Thimann KV. 1963. The Life of Bacteria (2nd ed.). The MacMillan Co. (New York).
- Thomas B and Vince-Prue D. 1997. Photoperiodism in Plants. Academic Press (New York).
- Thomas V *et al.* 2006. Biodiversity of amoebae and amoebae-resisting bacteria in a hospital water network. Appl Environ Microbiol 72: 2428-2438.
- Thompson PA, Levasseur ME, and Harrison PJ. 1989. Light-limited growth on ammonium vs. nitrate: What is the advantage for marine phytoplankton? Limnol. Oceanogr. 34: 1014-1024.
- Thorel MF, Falkinham JO and Moreau RG. 2004. Environmental mycobacteria from alpine and subalpine habitats. FEMS Microbiol. Ecology 49: 343-347.
- Thurman EM. 1985. Organic Geochemistry of Natural Waters. Martinus Nijhoff/Dr W. Junk (Boston).
- Thursby GB and Harlin MM. 1982. Leaf-root interaction in the uptake of ammonia by *Zostera marina*. Mar. Biol. 72: 109-112.
- Timberlake DL, Strand SE, and Williamson KJ. 1988. Combined aerobic heterotrophic oxidation, nitrification and denitrification in a permeable-support biofilm. Water Research 22: 1513-1517.
- Tinker PBH. 1979. Uptake and consumption of soil nitrogen in relation to agronomic practice. In: Hewitt EJ and Cutting CV (eds.). Nitrogen Assimilation of Plants. Academic Press (NY), pp 101-122.
- Titus JE and Adams MS. 1977. Comparative carbohydrate storage and utilization patterns in the submersed macrophytes, *Myriophyllum spicatum* and *Vallisneria americana*. Am. Mid. Nat. 102: 263-272.
- Titus JE and Pagano AM. 2017. Carbon dioxide and submersed macrophytes in lakes: linking functional ecology to community composition. Ecology 98: 3096-3105.
- Titus JE and Stephens MD. 1983. Neighbor influences and seasonal growth patterns for *Vallisneria americana* in a mesotrophic lake. Oecologia (Berlin) 56: 23-29.
- Titus JE, Feldman RS, and Grise D. 1990. Submersed macrophyte growth at low pH. 1. CO₂ enrichment effects with fertile sediment. Oecologia 84: 307-313.
- Tlalka M and Gabrys H. 1993. Influence of calcium on blue-light-induced chloroplast movement in *Lemna trisulca* L. Planta 189: 491-498.
- Toetz DW. 1971. Diurnal uptake of NO₃ and NH₄ by a *Ceratophylllum*-periphyton community. Limnol. Oceanogr. 16: 819-822.
- Toetz DW. 1974. Uptake and translocation of ammonia by freshwater hydrophytes. Ecology 55: 199-201.
- Tornbjerg T, Bendix M, and Brix H. 1994. Internal gas transport in *Typha latifolia* L. and *Typha angustifolia* L. 2. Convective throughflow pathways and ecological significance. Aq. Bot. 49: 91-105.
- Tortoli E. 2003. Impact of genotypic studies on mycobacterial taxonomy: the new mycobacteria of the 1990s. Clin Microbiol Rev 16: 319-354.
- Touchette BW and Burkholder JM. 2000. Review of nitrogen and phosphorus metabolism in seagrasses. J Expt Marine Biol Ecol 250: 133-167.
- Tourchette BW and JM Burkholder 2002. Seasonal variations in carbon and nitrogen constituents in eelgrass (*Zostera marina* L.) as influenced by increased temperature and water-column nitrate. Botanica marina 45: 23-34.
- Touchette BW, Burkholder JM and Glasgow Jr HB. 2003. Variations in eelgrass (*Zostera marina* L.) morphology and internal nutrient composition as influenced by increased temperature and water column nitrate. Estuaries 26: 142-155.
- Trebitz AS, Nichols SA, Carpenter SR, and Lathrop RC. 1993. Patterns of vegetation change in Lake Wingra following a *Myriophyllum spicatum* decline. Aq. Bot. 46: 325-340.

- Trenzado CE, Carrick TR and Pottinger TG. 2003. Divergence of endocrine and metaboloic responses to stress in two rainbow trout lines selected for differing cortisol responsiveness to stress. Gen Comp Endocrinol 133: 332-340.
- Trieff NM. 1980. Toxicity of metals, oils and other organics on *Artemia*. In: Persoone G, Sorgeloos P, Roels O and Jaspers E (Eds). The Brine Shrimp *Artemia* (Vol 1). Universa Press (Wetteren, Belguim), pp 253-262.
- Triemer RE and Ott DW. 1989. Description of an Isonema-like flagellate associated with Cryptocoryne disease. J. Phycology 25 (2 Suppl.): 5 (Abstract).
- Trneny C. 2004. TB or not 2B. VIC. Newsletter (Dec. 2004): 6-7.
- Trommer G, Poxleitner M and H Stibor. 2020. Responses of lake phytoplankton communities to changing inorganic nitrogen supply forms. *Aquatic Sciences* 82: 22 (13 pp.)
- Trought MC and Drew MC. 1981. Alleviation of injury to young wheat plants in anaerobic solution cultures in relation to the supply of nitrate and other inorganic nutrients. J. Expt. Botany 32: 509-522.
- Tsai J, Dyer DW, and Sparling PF. 1988. Loss of transferrin receptor activity in *Neisseria meningitidis* correlates with inability to use transferrin as an iron source. Infection and Immunity 56: 3132-3138.
- Tsai YL, Schlasner SM and Tuovinen OH. 1986. Inhibitor evaluation with immobilized *Nitrobacter agilis* cells. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 52: 1231-1235.
- Tucker CS and DeBusk TA. 1983. Seasonal variation in the nitrate content of water hyacinth (*Eichhornia crassipes* (Mart.) Solms). Aq. Bot 15: 419-422.
- Tucker CS. 1981. The effect of ionic form and level of nitrogen on the growth and composition of *Eichhornia crassipes* (Mart.) Solms. Hydrobiologia 83: 517-522.
- Twilley RR, Blanton LR, Brinson MM, and Davis GJ. 1985. Biomass production and nutrient cycling in aquatic macrophyte communities of the Chowan River, North Carolina. Aq. Bot. 22: 231-252.
- Twitchen ID and Eddy FB. 1994. Effects of ammonia on sodium balance in juvenile rainbow trout *Oncorhynchus mykiss* Walbaum. Aquatic Toxicology 30: 27-45.
- Tye M, Rider D, Duffy EA, Seubert A. Lothert B and LA Schimmenti. 2014. Nonhatching decapsulated *Artemia* cysts as a replacement to *Artemia* nauplii in juvenile and adult zebrafish culture. Zebrafish DOI: 0.1089
- Tyler G and Strom L. 1995. Differing organic acid exudation pattern explains calcifuge and acidifuge behaviour of plants. Annals of Botany 75: 75-78.
- Tyler G. 1996. Mineral nutrient limitations of calcifuge plants in phosphate sufficient limestone soil. Annals of Botany 77: 649-656.
- Tylova-Munzarova E, Lorenzen B, Brix H, and Votrubova O. 2005. The effects of NH₄⁺ and NO₃⁻ on growth, resource allocation and nitrogen uptake kinetics of *Phragmites australis* and *Glyceria maxima*. Aq. Bot. 81: 326-342.

U & V

- Ucko M and Colorni A. 2005. *Mycobacterium marinum* infections in fish and humans in Israel. J. Clin Microbiol. 43: 892-895.
- Ucko M, Colorni A, Kvitt H, Diamant A, Zlotkin A and Knibb WR. 2002. Strain variation in *Mycobacterium marinum* fish isolates. Applied Environ. Microbiol. 68: 5281-5287.
- Ullrich WR, Larsson M, Larsson CM, Lesch S, and Novacky A. 1984. Ammonium uptake in *Lemna gibba* G 1, related membrane potential changes, and inhibition of anion uptake. Physiol. Plant. 61: 369-376.
- Underwood GJC. 1991. Growth enhancement of the macrophyte *Ceratophyllum demersum* in the presence of the snail *Planorbis* planorbis: the effect of grazing and chemical conditioning. Freshwater Biology 26: 325-334.
- Urban NR, Gorham E, Underwood JK, Martin FB, and Ogden III JG. 1990. Geochemical processes controlling concentrations of Al, Fe, and Mn in Nova Scotia lakes. Limnol. Oceanogr. 35: 1516-1534.
- van Aller RT, Pessoney GF, Rogers VA, Watkins EJ, and Leggett HG. 1985. Oxygenated fatty acids: A class of allelochemicals from aquatic plants. In: Thompson AC. (Ed.). The Chemistry of Allelopathy, ACS Symposium Series 268, pp 387-400.

- van der Leeden F, Troise FL, and Todd DK. 1990. The Water Encyclopedia, Second Ed., Lewis Publishers (Boca Raton LA).
- van der Sar AM....and Bitter W. 2004a. *Mycobacterium marinum* strains can be divided into two distinct types based on genetic diversity and virulence. Infect Immun 72: 6306-6312.
- van der Sar, Appelmelk BJ, Vandenbroucke-Grauls CMJE and Bitter W. 2004b. A star with stripes : zebrafish as an infection model. Trends Microbiol 12: 451-457.
- van Kessel MAHJ et al. 2015. Complete nitrification by a single microorganism Nature 528: 555-59.
- van Sumere CF, Cottenie J, de Greef J, and Kint J. 1972. Biochemical studies in relation to the possible germination regulatory role of naturally occurring coumarin and phenolics. Recent Advances in Phytochemistry 4: 166-221.
- Van TK, Haller WT, and Bowes G. 1976. Comparison of the photosynthetic characteristics of three submersed aquatic plants. Plant Physiol. 58: 761-768.
- van Veen H and R Sasidharan. 2021. Shape shifting by amphibious plants in dynamic hydrological niches. *New Phytologist* 229:79-84
- Van Vierssen W and Prins TC. 1985. On the relationship between the growth of algae and aquatic macrophytes in brackish water. Aq. Bot 21: 165-179.
- Van Vierssen W and van Wijk RJ. 1982. On the identity and autecology of *Zannichellia peltata* Bertol. in western Europe. Aquatic Botany 13: 367-383.
- van Wijck C, de Groot C-J, and Grillas P. 1992. The effect of anaerobic sediment on the growth of *Potamogeton pectinatus* L.: the role of organic matter, sulphide and ferrous iron. Aquatic Botany 44: 31-49.
- Vanzella A, Guerrero MA, and Jones RD. 1990. Recovery of nitrification in marine bacteria following exposure to carbon monoxide or light. Mar. Ecol. Prog. Series 60: 91-95.
- Veiseth E, Fjaera SO, Bjerkeng B and Skjervold PO. 2006. Accelerated recovery of Atlantic salmon (*Salmo salar*) from effects of crowding by swimming. Com Biochem Physiol, Part B 144: 351-358.
- Vergeer LHT, Aarts TL, and de Groot JD. 1995. The 'wasting disease' and the effect of abiotic factors (light intensity, temperature, salinity) and infection with *Labyrinthula zosterae* on the phenolic content of *Zostera marina* shoots. Aquatic Botany 52: 35-44.
- Vergeer LHT, and Develi A. 1997. Phenolic acids in healthy and infected leaves of *Zostera marina* and their growthlimiting properties towards *Labyrinthula zosterae*. Aquatic Botany 58: 65-72.
- Verschuere L, Dhont J, Sorgeloos P and Verstraete W. 1997. Monitoring biology patterns and r/K-strategists in the intensive culture of *Artemia* juveniles. J. Appl. Microbiol. 83: 603-612.
- Verschuere L, Heang H, Criel G, Sorgeloos P and Verstraete W. 2000. Selected bacterial strains protect *Artemia* spp. from the pathogenic effects of *Vibrio proteolyticus* CW8T2. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 66: 1139-1146.
- Verschuere L, Rombaut G, Huys G, Dhont J, Sorgeloos P and Verstraete W. 1999. Microbial control of the culture of *Artemia* juveniles through preemptive colonization by selected bacterial strains. Appl. Environ. Microbiol. 65: 2527-2533.
- Verschuere L, Rombaut G, Sorgeloos P and Verstraete W. 2000. Probiotic bacteria as biological control agents in aquaculture. Microbiol. Mol. Biol. Rev. 64: 655-671.
- Versichele D and Sorgeloos P. 1980. Controlled production of Artemia cysts in batch cultures. In: Persoone G, Sorgeloos P, Roels O and Jaspers E (Eds). The Brine Shrimp Artemia (Vol 3). Universa Press (Wetteren, Belguim), pp 231-246.
- Vickery, ML. 1984. Ecology of Tropical Plants. John Wiley and Sons (New York).
- Vitt DH and Chee W-L. 1990. The relationships of vegetation to surface water chemistry and peat chemistry in fens of Alberta, Canada. Vegetatio 89: 87-106.
- Vonk JA, Middleburg JJ, Stapel J, and TJ Bouma. 2008. Dissolved organic nitrogen uptake by seagrasses. Limnol. Oceanogr 53:542-548.
- Vroom RJEBK Sorrell. 2022. Physiological processes affecting methane transport by wetland vegetation—A review. Aquatic Botany 182: 103547. (13 pp)

- Waiwood KG and Beamish FWH. 1978a. The effect of copper, hardness and pH on the growth of rainbow trout, *Salmo gairdneri*. J. Fish Biol. 13: 591-598.
- Waiwood KG and Beamish. 1978b. Effects of copper, pH and hardness on the critical swimming performance of rainbow trout (*Salmo gairdneri* Richardson). Water Research 12: 611-619.
- Wallace JW, Mabry TJ and Alston RE. 1969. On the biogenesis of flavone *o*-glycosides and *c*-glycosides in the Lemnaceae. Phytochemistry 8: 93-99.
- Walstad D. 2003. Ecology of the Planted Aquarium (2nd Edition). Echinodorus Publishing (Chapel Hill, NC USA), 194 pp.
- Walstad, Diana. 2013. *Ecology of the Planted Aquarium* (3rd Edition). Echinodorus Publishing (Chapel Hill, NC), 194 pp.
- Walstad D. 2009. Photoperiod and lighting. TAG 22: 27-33.
- Walstad D. 1993. Decomposition as a Source of CO2. TAG 6: 46-51.
- Walstad D. 2008. Natural Planted Tank with a Little Aquascaping. TAG 21: 11-16.
- Walters GR and Plumb JA. 1980. Environmental stress and bacterial infection in channel catfish, *Ictalurus punctatus* Rafinesque. J Fish Biol 17: 177-185.
- Wang, Baozhan et al. 2015. Differential contributions of ammonia oxidizers and nitrite oxidizers to nitrification in four paddy soils. Inter Soc Microb Ecol (ISME) 9: 1062-75.
- Wang W and Lewis MA. 1997. Metal accumulation by aquatic macrophytes. In: Wang W, Gorsuch JW, and Hughes JS (eds). Plants for Environmental Studies. CRC Lewis Publishers (NY), pp 367-416.
- Wang Y *et al.* 2006. Isolation and identificaton of mycobacteria from soils at an illegal dumping site and landfills in Japan. Microbiol Immunol 50: 513-524.
- Wang WB, Li AH, Cai TZ and Wang JG. 2005. Effects of intraperitoneal injection of cortisol on non-specific immune functions of *Ctenopharyngodon idella*. J Fish Biol 67: 779-793.
- Wang Z-C, Asem A, and S-C Sun. 2017. Coupled effects of photoperiod, termperature and salinity on diapause induction of the parthenogenetic *Artemia* (Crustacea: Anostraca) from Barkol Lake, China. North-Western J Zoology 13: 12-17.
- Warren LA and Kauffman ME. 2003. Microbial geoengineers. Science 299: 1027-1029.
- Watral V and Kent ML. 2007. Pathogenesis of *Mycobacterium spp*. in Zebrafish (*Danio rerio*) from research facilities. Comp Biochem Physiol (Part C) pp. 55-60.
- Watson EV. 1981. British Mosses and Liverworts (3rd Ed). Cambridge University Press (Cambridge, England).
- Webb J and Jackson MB. 1986. A transmission and cryo-scanning EM study of the formation of aerenchyma (cortical gas-filled spaces) in adventitious roots of rice (*Oryza sativa*). J. Expt. Bot 37: 832-841.
- Webb T and Armstrong W. 1983. The effects of anoxia and carbohydrates on the growth and viability of rice, pea and pumpkin roots. J. Expt. Bot. 34: 579-603.
- Weber AS and Tchobanoglous G. 1985. Nitrification in water hyacinth treatment systems. J. Environ. Engineering 111: 699-713.
- Weber DN and Spieler RE. 1994. Behavioral mechanisms of metal toxicity in fishes. In: Malins DC and Ostrander GK (eds.). Aquatic Toxicology. Lewis Publishers (Boca Raton LA), pp 421-467.
- Weber DN, Russo A, Seale DB, and Spieler RE. 1991. Waterborne lead affects feeding abilities and neurotransmitter levels of juvenile fathead minnows (*Pimephales promelas*). Aquatic Toxicol. 21: 71-80.
- Weber JA, Tenhunen JD, Yocum CS, and Gates DM. 1979. Variation of photosynthesis in *Elodea densa* with pH and/or high CO₂ concentrations. Photosynthetica 13: 454-458.
- Wehr JD, Kelly MG, and Whitton BA. 1987. Factors affecting accumulation and loss of zinc by the aquatic moss *Rhynchostegium riparioides* (Hedw.) C. Jens. Aq. Bot. 29: 261-274.
- Weisner SEB and Graneli W. 1989. Influence of substrate conditions on the growth of *Phragmites australis* after a reduction in oxygen transport to below-ground parts. Aq. Bot. 35: 71-80.

- Wekell JC, Shearer KD and Gauglitz EJ. 1986. Zinc supplementation of trout diets: Tissue indicators of body zinc status. The Progressive Fish-Culturist 48: 205-212.
- Welsh PG, Skidmore JF, Spry DJ, Dixon DG, Hodson PV, Hutchinson NJ, and Hickie BE. 1993. Effect of pH and dissolved organic carbon on the toxicity of copper to larval fathead minnow (*Pimephales promelas*) in natural lake waters of low alkalinity. Can. J. Fish. Aquat. Sci. 50: 1356-1362.
- Wendelaar Bonga SE. 1993. Endocrinology. In: Evans DH (Ed.). The Physiology of Fishes. CRC Press (Boca Raton), pp.469-502.
- Wendelaar Bonga SE. 1997. The stress response in fish. Physiol Reviews 77: 591-625.
- Westermann P. 1993. Wetland and swamp microbiology. In: Ford TE (ed.). Aquatic Microbiology. An Ecological Approach, pp 205-238.
- Wetzel RG and Manny BA. 1972. Secretion of dissolved organic carbon and nitrogen by aquatic macrophytes. Verh. Int. ver. Limnol. 18: 162-170.
- Wetzel RG, Brammer ES, Lindstrom K, and Forsberg C. 1985. Photosynthesis of submersed macrophytes in acidified lakes. II. Carbon limitation and utilization of benthic CO₂ sources. Aq. Bot. 22: 107-120.
- Wetzel RG. 1969. Factors influencing photosynthesis and excretion of dissolved organic matter by aquatic macrophytes in hard-water lakes. Verh. Int. ver. Limnol. 17: 72-85.
- Wetzel RG. 1972. The role of carbon in hard-water marl lakes. In: Likens GE (Ed.), Nutrients and Eutrophication: The Limiting Nutrient Controversy. Special Symposium, Amer. Soc. Limnol. Oceanogr. 1: 84-97.
- Wetzel RG. 1975. Limnology. Saunders College Publishing (Philadelphia, PA).
- Wetzel RG. 1983. Limnology (Second Ed.). Saunders College Publishing (Philadelphia, PA).
- Wetzel RG. 1990. Land-water interfaces: Metabolic and limnological regulators. Verh. Int. ver. Limnol. 24: 6-24.
- Wetzel RG. 1992. Gradient-dominated ecosystems: sources and regulatory functions of dissolved organic matter in freshwater ecosystems. Hydrobiologia 229: 181-198.
- Wetzel RG. 1993. Humic compounds from wetlands: Complexation, inactivation, and reactivation of surface-bound and extracellular enzymes. Verh. Int. ver Limnol. 25: 122-128.
- Wetzel RG. 2001. Limnology. Lake and River Ecosystems (Third Ed.). Academic Press (New York), 1006 pages.
- Whipps CM, Watral VG and Kent ML. 2003. Characterization of a *Mycobacterium* sp. in rockfish, *Sebastes alutus* (Gilbert) and *Sebastes reedi* (Westrheim & Tsuyuki), using rDNA sequences. J Fish Dis 26: 1-5.
- Whipps CM, Dougan ST and Kent ML. 2007. *Mycobacterium haemophilum* infections of zebrafish (*Danio rerio*) in research facilities. FEMS Microbiol Lett 270: 21-26.
- Whipps CM, Butler WR, Pourahmad F, Watral VG and Kent ML. 2007b. Molecular systematics support the revival of *Mycobacterium salmoniphilum* (ex Ross 19760) sp. nov., nom. re., a species closely related to *Mycobacterium chelonae*. Int J Systematic Evol Microbiol 57: 2525-2531.
- Whipps CM, Matthews JL and Kent ML. 2008. Distribution and genetic characterization of *Mycobacerium chelonae* in laboratory zebrafish *Danio rerio*. Dis Aquatic Org 82: 45-54.
- Whitehead DC and Lockyer DR. 1987. The influence of the concentration of gaseous ammonia on its uptake by the leaves of Italian ryegrass, with and without an adequate supply of nitrogen to the roots. J. Expt. Bot 38: 818-827.
- Whittaker RH and Feeny PP. 1971. Allelochemics: Chemical interactions between species. Science 171: 757-770.
- Wild A. 1988. Russell's Soil Conditions and Plant Growth (11th Edition). John Wiley & Sons (NY), 991 pp.
- Wildgoose WH. 1999a. Acid-fast bacteria found in granulomatous lesions in a koi carp (*Cyprinus carpio*). Fish Vet J 4: 17-32.
- Wildgoose WH. 1999. Koi health care in the UK: a veterinary overview. Fish Vet J 3: 1-18.
- Wilhelm SW and Trick CG. 1994. Iron-limited growth of cyanobacteria: multiple siderophore production is a common response. Limnol. Oceanogr. 39: 1979-1984.
- Wilkinson SC, Goulding KH, and Robinson PK. 1989. Mercury accumulation and volatilization in immobilized algae cells. Biotechnology Letters 11: 864.

- Williams JDH and Mayer T. 1972. Effects of sediment diagenisis and regeneration of phosphorus with special reference to Lakes Erie and Ontario. In: Allen HE and Kramer JR (eds), Nutrients in Natural Waters. Wiley-Interscience Publications (New York).
- Williamson CE. 1995. What role does UV-B radiation play in freshwater ecosystems? Limnol Oceanogr 40: 386-392.
- Wilson MA, Barron PF, and Gillam AH. 1981. The structure of freshwater humic substances as revealed by ¹³C-NMR spectroscopy. Geochimica et Cosmochimica Acta 45: 1743-1750.
- Windell JT, Foltz JW and Sarokon JA. 1978. Methods of fecal collection and nutrient leaching in digestibility studies. The Progressive Fish-Culturist. 40: 51-55.
- Wink M and Twardowski T. 1992. Allelochemical properties of alkaloids. Effects on plants, bacteria and protein biosynthesis. In: Rizvi SJH and Rizvi V, Allelopathy, Basic and Applied Aspects, Chapman and Hall (New York), pp. 129-150.
- Winkel A and J Borum. 2009. Use of sediment CO2 by submersed rooted plants. Annals Bot :103: 1015-23.
- Winner RW and Gauss JD. 1986. Relationship between chronic toxicity and bioaccumulation of copper, cadmium and zinc as affected by water hardness and humic acid. Aquatic Toxicology 8: 149-161.
- Winner RW and Owen HA. 1991. Toxicity of copper to *Chlamydomonas reinhardtii* (Chlorophyceae) and *Ceriodaphnia dubia* (Crustacea) in relation to changes in water chemistry of a freshwater pond. Aquatic Toxicoogy 21: 157-170.
- Winner RW. 1985. Bioaccumulation and toxicity of copper as affected by interactions between humic acid and water hardness. Water Res. 19: 449-455.
- Wise DJ, Schwedler TE and Otis DL. 1993. Effects of stress on susceptibility of naïve channel catfish in immersion challenge with *Edwardsiella ictaluri*. J Aquatic Animal Health 5: 92-97.
- Witters HE, van Puymbroeck S, Vangenechten JHD, and Vanderborght OLJ. 1990. The effect of humic substances on the toxicity of aluminum to adult rainbow trout, *Oncorhynchus mykiss* (Walbaum). J. Fish Biol. 37: 43-53.
- Wium-Andersen S and Houen G. 1983. Elemental sulphur, a possible allelopathic compound from *Ceratophyllum demersum*. Phytochemistry 22: 2613.
- Wium-Andersen S, Anthoni I, Christophersen C, and Houen G. 1982. Allelopathic effects on phytoplankton by substances isolated from aquatic macrophytes (Charales). Oikos 39: 187-190.
- Wolf JC and Smith SA. 1999. Comparative severity of experimentally induced mycobacteriosis in striped bass *Morone saxatilis* and hybrid tilapia *Oreochromis* spp. Dis Aq Org 38: 191-200.
- Wolfe JM and Rice EL. 1979. Allelopathic interactions among algae. J. Chemical Ecology 5: 533- 542.
- Wolinsky E. 1973. Mycobacteria. In: Davis BD, Dulbecco R, Eisen H, Ginsberg HS, Wood BW, and McCarty M (eds), Microbiology (2nd Ed); Harper & Row (Hagerstown MD), pp 844-869.
- Wood CM. 1992. Flux measurements as indices of H⁺ and metal effects on freshwater fish. Aquatic Toxicology 22: 239-264.
- Wood CM et al. 2011. The two faces of DOC. Aquatic Toxicology 105S (2011): 3-8
- Wooten JW. 1978. Effects of photoperiod, light intensity, and stage of development on flower initiation in *Sagittaria* graminea Michx. (Alismataceae). Aquatic Botany 4: 245-255.
- Wurtsbarugh WA. 1988. Iron, molybdenum and phosphorus limitation of N₂ fixation maintains nitrogen deficiency of plankton in the Great Salt Lake drainage (Utah, USA). Verh. Int. ver Limnol. 23: 121-130.

Y

- Yamasaki S, Kimura M, and Yoneyama T. 1992. Early withering of lower leaves of *Phragmites australis* (Cav.) Trin. ex Steud. in a eutrophic stand: Role of oxygen concentration, fate of nitrogen and nitrogen uptake by the plants. Aq. Bot 42: 143-157.
- Yanong RPE, Curtis EW, Terrell SP, and Case G. 2003. Atypical presentation of mycobacteriosis in a collection of frogfish (*Antennarius striatus*). J. Zoo Wildlife Med. 34: 400-407.

- Yarzhombek AA and Bekina EN. 1987. Efficiency of extraction of soluble matter from water by fish. J. Ichthyology 27: 22-28.
- Yeo RR. 1980. Life history and ecology of dwarf spikerush (Eleocharis coloradoensis). Weed Science 28: 263-272.
- Yin L, Li W, Madsen TV, Maberly SC, and G Bowes. 2017 Photosynthetic inorganic carbon acquisition in 30 freshwater macrophytes. Aquatic Botany 140: 48-54.

Ζ

- Zanoni RG, Florio D, Fioravanti, Rossi M and Prearo M. 2008. Occurrence of *Mycobacterium* spp. in ornamental fish in Italy. J Fish Diseases 31: 433-441.
- Zapata O and McMillan C. 1979. Phenolic acids in seagrasses. Aquatic Botany 7: 307-317.
- Zattau WC. 1988. A survey of the continental United States for pathogens of Eurasian watermilfoil. Technical Report A-88-3, Environmental Laboratory, U.S. Army Engineer Waterways Experiment Station (Vicksburg, MS), 48 pp.
- Zhang Z, Rengel Z and K Meney. 2009. Kinetics of ammonium, nitrate and phosphorus uptake by *Canna indica* and Schoenoplectus validus. Aquatic Botany 91:71-74.
- Zia S and McDonald DG. 1994. Role of the gills and gill chloride cells in metal uptake in the freshwater-adapted rainbow trout, *Oncorhynchus mykiss*. Can. J. Fish. Aquat. Sci. 51: 2482-2492.
- Zimba PV, Hopson MS and DE Colle. 1993. Elemental composition of five submersed aquatic plants collected from Lake Okeechobee, Florida. J. Aquat. Plant Manage. 31: 137- 140.
- Zimmerman AM et al. 2021. Chemical niches and ionoregulatory traits: applying ionoregulatory physiology to the conservation management of freshwater fishers. Conservation Physiology 9(1), 17 pp.
- Zinder SH and Brock TD. 1978. Microbial transformations of sulfur in the environment. In: Nriagu JO (ed) Sulfur in the Environment (Part 2, Ecological Impacts). John Wiley & Sons (NY), pp. 445-466.
- Zohlen A and Tyler G. 1997. Differences in iron nutrition strategies of two calcifuges, *Carex pilulifera* L. and *Veronica officinalis* L. Annals of Botany 80: 553-559.
- Zorec R and Tester M. 1992. Cytoplasmic calcium stimulates exocytosis in a plant secretory cell. Biophys. J. 63: 864-867.
- Zsoldos F, Haunold E, Vashegyi A, and Herger P. 1993. Nitrite in the root zone and its effects on ion uptake and growth of wheat seedlings. Physiologia Plantarum 89: 626-631.